
AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND ♦ CITY COUNCIL 

August 25, 2014            6:30 p.m. 

MAYOR 
Tom Reid 

Keith Ordeneaux 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

Position No. 4 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Tony Carbone 
Position No. 1 

Gary Moore 
Position No. 3 

Jon R. Branson 
Deputy City Manager 

Darrin Coker 
City Attorney 

Clay Pearson  
City Manager 

Scott Sherman 
Position No. 2 

Greg Hill 
Position No. 5 

Trent Epperson 
Assistant City Manager 

Young Lorfing 
City Secretary 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public 
information, at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting 
on the bulletin board located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



Page 1 of 3 – 8/25/2014 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2014│6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS│PEARLAND CITY HALL│3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
281.652.1600 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. INVOCATION AND THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA FLAG AND TEXAS FLAG

III. ROLL CALL: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers Carbone,
Sherman, Moore, and Hill.

IV. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  In order to hear all citizen comments at a reasonable
hour, the City Council requests that speakers respect the three-minute time limit
for individual comments and the five-minute time limit for an individual
speaking on behalf of a group.  This is not a question-answer session, however,
it is an opportunity to voice your thoughts with City Council.

V. PUBLIC HEARING: None

VI. CONSENT AGENDA:

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine and
require little or no deliberation by the City Council.  These items will be
enacted/approved by one motion unless a councilmember requests separate
action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered by separate action (VI. matters removed from Consent
Agenda).  Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation.

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes: 

1. Minutes of the July 28, 2014, Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m.

B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. Cup 2014-05 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit for certain property, 
being 5.00 Acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, A-304 in 
Brazoria County, Texas being the same land described as 5.00 Acres in a 
warranty deed from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, dated July 
5, 2007 and recorded as Document No. 2007039242, official records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. (located at the 2500 Block of Miller Ranch RD., 
Pearland, TX Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP 2014-05 to allow 
for a church, temple, or place of worship in the single family residential-1 (R- 
1) District at the request of Raymond JJ ZHUO, Applicant, on behalf of
Houston Chinese Church, owner, containing a savings clause, a severability 
clause, an effective date and other provisions related to the subject. 



Page 2 of 3 – 8/25/2014 

C. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-106 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, awarding a 
unit bid for water and wastewater analysis services to Eastex Environmental 
Laboratory, Inc. in the estimated amount of $80,605.00. 

D. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-105 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, accepting the 
City’s Investment Report for the quarter ending June 2014. 

E. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-107 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the 
Pearland Independent School District for School Resource Officer Program. 

F. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-101 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, adopting the 
updated Parks and Recreation Programming Standards of Care for youth, 
ages 5-13 years. 

VI. MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

VII. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-108 – A
Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Pearland, Texas, authorizing
the sale of undeveloped property abutting the Sam Houston Toll Way
(between south Wayside Drive and Mykawa Road) to the Harris County Toll
Road authority in the amount of $1,371,356.00.

2. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-102 – A
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the
City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with
Brazoria County for certain road overlay projects: 1) Hatfield Road, FM 518
north to Rice Road; 2) Veterans Drive, Walnut Street south to Magnolia
Drive; and 3) Harkey Road, Magnolia Drive south to Bailey Road.

3. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No.
1502 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas,
repealing Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages, of the City of Pearland Code of
Ordinances, in its entirety, and adopting a new Chapter 4 for the purposes
of complying with state law; having a savings clause, a severability clause,
and a repealer clause; providing for publication, codification, and an
effective date.

4. Consideration and Possible Action – Regarding the appointment to the
Parks, Recreation and Beautification Board to Position No. 5 for unexpired
term expiring November 1, 2017.



Page 3 of 3 – 8/25/2014 

5. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No.
2000M-117 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland,
Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of
Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of certain
real property, being that portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James
Hamilton Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion lying within Harris County,
Texas and the remainder lying within Brazoria County, Texas, according to
the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of the deed
records of Harris County, Texas, (located at the southwest corner of
Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 288, Pearland, TX), Zone Change
2014- 02Z; a request of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American
Modern Green Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone change
from the Waterlights Planned Development (PD) to the Modern Green-Ivy
District PD, on approximately 48.5 acres of land, providing for an
amendment of the zoning district map; containing a savings clause, a
severability clause and an effective date and other provisions related to the
subject.

6. Council Input and Discussion – FY2015 Budget and Multi-Year Plan:
 General Fund Budget Further Reductions/Revenue

Enhancements
 Take Home Fleet Expansion
 Police Staffing and Resources
 City Hall Renovations
 Water/Sewer Rates
 Water Meter Change-Out Program
 Other Budget Discussion  Items

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS: None.

IX. MAYOR/COUNCIL ISSUES

X. ADJOURNMENT  

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call Young 
Lorfing at 281.652.1840 prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.  



Consent 
Agenda 
Item A 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes: 

1. Minutes of the July 28, 2014, Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 



Page 1 of 11 – 7/28/2014  

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, JULY 28, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 

Mayor Reid called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with the following present: 

Mayor  Tom Reid 
Mayor Pro-Tem Keith Ordeneaux 
Councilmember Tony Carbone 
Councilmember Scott Sherman 
Councilmember Gary Moore  
Councilmember Greg Hill 
City Manager Clay Pearson 
City Attorney Darrin Coker 
City Secretary Young Lorfing  

Others in attendance: Claire Bogard Director of Finance; Jon Branson Deputy City Manager; 
Matt Buchanan President of Pearland Economic Development Cooperation; Michelle 
Graham Director of Parks and Recreation; Bonita Hall Director of Human Resource and 
Safety Management; Lata Krishnarao Director of Community Development; Kim Sinistore 
Executive Director of the Convention/Visitors Bureau; Eric Wilson Director of Public Works; 
Sparkle Anderson Communications Manager; Skipper Jones Assistant Director of Capital 
Projects; Bob Pearce Purchasing Officer; Joel Hardy Grants Coordinator; John Knight 
Information Technology Manager. 

The invocation was given by Councilmember Carbone and the Pledge of Allegiance was led 
by City Manager Clay Pearson. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, 
Moore, and Hill. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS:  None. 

Mayor Reid called the Public Hearing Meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 

PUBLIC HEARING: To gather public comment and testimony regarding amendments to the 
Strategic Partnership Agreements between the City and Brazoria County Municipal Utility 
Districts Nos. 21 and 22.  Mr. Darrin Coker, City Attorney. 

STAFF REVIEW: 

City Attorney Darrin Coker reported the Municipal Utility District is waiting for its Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity (CCN) application to be processed. It has been proposed that 
the parties amend the Strategic Partnership Agreement (SPA) allowing the MUD to construct 
and operate its facilities as a temporary agent of the City. The facilities would be constructed, 
maintained and operated by the MUD using the City’s CCN. The agency relationship would 
terminate once the MUD’s CCN is issued. The MUD will also indemnify and hold harmless 
the City from any and all liability associated with its use of the City’s CCN. Although MUD 21 
has limited commercial capacity, the proposed amendment will also allow the City to collect 



Page 2 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

sales taxes from the commercial tracts when they develop. The amendment will address the 
immediate concern of getting water/sewer services to properties in the MUD, but the dialogue 
has also presented opportunities for the long-term planning of infrastructure connections and 
capabilities for this portion of the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 
 
Municipal Utility District Nos. 21 and 22 Representative Tim Austin stated the Municipal Utility 
District No. 21 is dealing with high fluoride detected in the water. The levels of fluoride is not 
dangerous, but according to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) if 
fluoride levels are over 2 milligrams per liter, it requires a notice to be sent to the residents. 
The District is going a step further and is sinking a test well. It will be drilled to a deeper 
aquifer level and mix the two water wells together to bring the fluoride level where it should 
be. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS: None. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF DISCUSSION: 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Tim Austin regarding the fluoride level and the 
District receiving the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CNN). 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:   
 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes:     
 
1. Minutes of the July 14, 2014, Special Meeting, held at 5:30 p.m. 

 
B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. CUP 2014-03 –  An ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain 
property, being legally described as 4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of 
a called 4.826 acres  being the south 129’ of Lot 79 and the north 214’ of 
Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T.  and B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 240, Brazoria 
County, Texas, located on the east  side of Harkey Road, between 
Josephine Street to the north and Fite Road to the  south; Pearland, TX., for 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-03 to allow for a church, 
within the Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning district, at the request of 
Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard  Christian Fellowship of 
Pearland, owner; containing a savings clause, a severability clause and an 
effective date and other provisions related to the subject.   
Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of Community Development. 

 
C. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. 2000M-116 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of 
certain real property, being a tract ofland containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 
square feet), situated in the H.T. & R.R.R.Survey, Abstract No. 543, 



Page 3 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

Brazoria County, Texas, being out of the H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of 
Lot 1 of a subdivision of Section 4 recorded in Volume 410, Page 536 of the 
Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County,Texas, (located 
at the northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, Pearland, TX), 
Zone Change 2014-08Z; a request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for 
approval of a change in zoning from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to 
Office and Professional (OP) on approximately 0.44 acres of land, providing 
for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a savings clause, a 
severability clause and an effective date and other provisions related to the 
subject.  Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of Community Development. 

 
D. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. 788-1 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas amending the procedure for abandoning, altering, closing, 
and vacating streets, alleys, and other public rights-of-way and portions 
thereof within the City of Pearland; containing a savings clause and a 
severability clause; providing for codification and an effective date; and 
containing other provisions relating to the subject.   Mr. Darrin Coker, City 
Attorney. 

 
E. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-78 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee to enter into amendments to the Strategic 
Partnership Agreements with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District Nos. 
21 and 22; providing the conditions under which the City’s sales and use tax 
may be collected; and providing for the temporary use of the City’s 
Convenience and Necessity.  Mr. Darrin Coker, City Attorney.   

 
F. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-76 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee to enter into a professional services contract 
for surveying services with C. L. Davis & Company, in the amount of 
$77,062.00 associated with the north/south ditches impacted by Cowart 
Creek Drainage Project.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 

 
Councilmember Carbone made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Sherman, to adopt 
Consent Agenda Items A through F as presented on the Consent Agenda. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA: None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

NEW BUSINESS:     
 
Council Action – Resolution No. R2014-83 – A resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, awarding a bid for construction services, associated with the Sports 
Complex at Shadow Creek Ranch Park, to the Crain Group, LLC., in the amount of 
$6,569,575.96 and authorizing and authorizing budget amendment.     
Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager.  

 
Councilmember Sherman made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Carbone, to 
approve Resolution No. R2014-83.  
 
President of Municipal Utility District No. 26, Michael Parks, 2309 Paradise Canyon Drive, 
addressed Council stating the MUD Board has been listening to the voices of the residents of 
Shadow Creek Ranch. The Board communicated to the residents regarding providing funds 
to the City of Pearland for the water, sewer, and drainage infrastructure so other things can 
be accomplished that were approved in the 2007 Bond Election. The MUD Board has been 
able to do this without raising taxes. The Sports Complex would be vital for the development, 
and property values in Shadow Creek Ranch. There will be a public meeting on August 21, 
2014 for the residents, Council and City Leaders to attend and voice their opinions.  
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked to award a bid for construction 
services, associated with the Sports Complex at Shadow Creek Ranch Park, to the Crain 
Group, LLC., in the amount of $6,569,575.96. Construction is scheduled to begin in early 
August 2014 based on a contract award tonight by Council. Construction duration is 
scheduled for substantial completion within 300 days and final completion in 330 days. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Assistant Director of Capital Projects Skipper Jones 
regarding the removal of parking spaces and sidewalks. 
 
Councilmember Sherman stated he would like to see the Amphitheater included in the plan 
because that was something the residents asked for. He further stated he is disappointed it 
has taken this long to get the park off the ground. Even more disappointed that the City is in 
the position that it cannot pay for the entire park. Partly because of the economy, and partly 
decisions made by past Council. It is not a good feeling here tonight, having to pull pieces out 
of the plan because the City does not have enough funds.  
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Assistant Director of Capital Projects Skipper Jones 
regarding alternate items taken out in Phase 1, and putting them back in Phase 2. 
 
Councilmember Sherman stated he does not want there to be a misunderstanding by the 
residents if a certain agreement has been reached by the Municipal Utility District Nos. 21 
and 26 that they are going to get everything they have asked for. There is already a shortfall 
of the cost of some items and what the MUD is planning on funding. 
 
Councilmember Carbone thanked Staff for the work they did on this project, and he was glad 
to see a local business with the low bid. He is looking forward to getting this project started. 
 
Councilmember Hill asked if there is a way to insure the items in the original bond that are 
going to be taken off will be put back on.  
 
 



Page 5 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

City Attorney Darrin Coker stated in order to have the Municipal Utility Districts participation 
there will be an interlocal agreement. The items Council is concerned with can be addressed 
in the interlocal agreement. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated there is a lot of frustration with something that was voted 
on in 2007 and the City is just now getting ready to start the project. He wants to vote for this, 
and he wants to get this moving, but he wants some assurance that it will get built the way it 
was promised.  
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
Council Action – Regarding Shadow Creek Ranch Park – Municipal Utility District Funding 
for Utilities.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Carbone, to 
approve the Shadow Creek Ranch Park – Municipal Utility District Funding for Utilities. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson stated Staff is seeking direction from Council to allow Municipal 
Utility District Nos. 21 and 26 to go through a process where they would seek the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) approval, talk to their residents, and provide 
funding to the City for the offsite utility work. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated the voters in the Municipal Utility Districts had a chance to 
build this park several years ago. Five years ago they had an election, and voted it down. He 
would like to see something showing the residents have changed their mind, and they want 
to spend their MUD tax money on a City park.  
 
President of Municipal Utility District No. 26 Michael Parks stated he understands what 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux is saying. Since it was voted down there has been 
communication between the residents explaining what a Municipal Utility District is and what 
it can do. Through several community meetings the residents now understand how the MUD 
can benefit the residents without a tax increase. In August and September 2014 there are 
scheduled community meetings to hear what the residents have to say. If the residents do 
not want the MUD to assist on this issue, then the voters will have spoken. 
 
Councilmember Sherman stated just because a Municipal Utility District can do something 
does not mean they should. This is a matter of fairness. This was passed as a City bond, the 
voters came together and decided they want this project. As a City it is our responsibility to 
build this park. He believes the MUD Directors in their hearts are trying to do something 
really good because they want to get the park built. He also thinks it is unfair to ask the 
residents to pay for a portion of the park when it should be funded by the City. He has talked 
to a number of residents in Shadow Creek Ranch and the majority of them do not want to 
assist in funding the park. He wants to see the park built, but he does not think this is the 
appropriate way to fund the park, he feels there are other ways to do this. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated the Municipal Utility Districts came to the City wanting to 
contribute to this project. He will accept funds from anyone that wants to contribute to a City 



Page 6 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

project. He has a problem when there is an elected official of the MUD Board stating he is a 
resident, elected by the residents, and Council is going to say to him he is not listening to his 
residents. He trusts the election process for the MUD that the residents put the right people 
in place to make the right decisions. 
 
Councilmember Sherman stated two weeks ago Council heard from representatives with the 
Municipal Utility District No. 26 and Brazoria/Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 1. They 
both were in favor of this process. He stated he read meeting minutes from both boards from 
the last six months. There were only two instances where this topic was discussed in the 
MUD meetings, and in both of those instances it was more of an overview. In one instance it 
stated they were going to delay discussing this at a later date, and the discussion never 
happened. He does not see where the MUD boards have come together to say this is what 
they want to do. What he sees is the voters saying no, and the board is attempting to find a 
way to do something the voters have told them not to do, and that is wrong. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated if in fact the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) 
were to approve the 80 percent, it would be money that is reimbursed, the short term debt 
would be paid off, and it would not extend the life of the Municipal Utility Districts. It is a valid 
concern and a chance that TCEQ will reimburse 80 percent. 
 
City Attorney Darrin Coker stated he will share with Council what the Municipal Utility District 
Attorney Lynne Humphries shared with staff in a recent meeting. Typically when drainage 
utilities like these are put in, they are only taken to the property lines. In this case some of the 
utilities will be going internal to the property. The Municipal Utility District (MUD) will have to 
show the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), that the residents in Shadow 
Creek Ranch and MUD Districts will be benefiting because of that expenditure even though it 
is serving the City’s property. That is why Attorney Lynne Humphries assessed it at 80 
percent. 
 
Mayor Reid stated Council needs to give the Municipal Utility District Boards a chance to 
make a decision. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he would like to continue to pursue some other funding 
options for the City in case the 80 percent turns out not be in the City’s favor. He stated he 
does not mind the Municipal Utility Districts moving forward, but he would like the City to 
continue to do what they can to fix this problem. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Director of Parks and Recreation Michelle Graham 
regarding some wording and the prioritized list in the agenda packet. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux asked for clarification on what is being voted on. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson stated Staff is seeking direction on whether to pursue the 
Interlocal Agreements and Pre-Financing Agreements with the Municipal Utility District No. 
26 and Brazoria/Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 1.  
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the 
difference between the Municipal Utility Districts providing the infrastructure or the City 
providing the infrastructure that is needed. 

 



Page 7 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he would like to amend his motion to state the Municipal 
Utility District Board will come back to Council in September 2014 with a report for Council to 
consider. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated his concern that the motion as read on the Agenda does not 
address the recommendation in the packet. 
 
City Attorney Darrin Coker stated this does not need to be voted on. This is more of a 
discussion on policy whether or not Council wants Staff to go down this path. The motion 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux made is recommending to the Municipal Utility District to come 
back to Council with a report, and at that time Council will vote for the interlocal agreement or 
not. 
 
Assistant Vice President of Municipal Utility District No. 26 Caralynn Prade addressed 
Council stating the first time the MUD was trying to vote this park in was because we saw a 
need for our children. We were trying to get something in place, and may have rushed to get 
it through. The voters not having been educated on what the Board was trying to do voted it 
down. Both Boards would like to explain to the voters that there are so many children in our 
area, and no facilities or parks for the children. We need to consider our children so they will 
have a safe area and facilities to go to.  
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Attorney Darrin Coker regarding a vote is not 
necessary because this is not a resolution or ordinance.  
 
City Attorney Darrin Coker stated what he hears is the Municipal Utility Districts are to 
present this to their constituencies, take formal action, and report back to Council. 
 
Council Action – First Reading of Ordinance No. 1501 – An ordinance authorizing the 
issuance of City of Pearland, Texas, permanent improvement and/or refunding bonds in one 
or more series; setting certain parameters for the bonds; authorizing refunding of certain 
outstanding obligations; authorizing a pricing officer to approve the amount, the interest rate, 
price, and terms thereof and certain other procedures and provisions relating thereto.  
Ms. Claire Bogard, Director of Finance. 
 
Councilmember Moore made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Sherman, to approve 
Ordinance No. 1501 on its First Reading. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked for consideration and approval 
to authorize the issuance of City of Pearland Permanent Improvement and/or Refunding 
Bonds in one or more series, setting certain parameters for the bonds; refunding of certain 
outstanding obligations; a Pricing Officer to approve the amount, interest rate, price, terms, 
and certain other procedures and provisions relating thereto. 
 
BOSC, Inc. Financial Advisor, Ryan Ohara gave an overview of Permanent Improvement and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2014. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and BOSC, Inc. Financial Advisor Ryan Ohara 
regarding the Underwriters discount and Bond Salesman. 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

Discussion ensued between Council and Assistant Director of Capital Projects Skipper Jones 
regarding County Road 59 expansion and the time frame on Smith Ranch Road. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Hill, Moore, Ordeneaux, Sherman, and Carbone. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 
 
Council Action – Resolution No. 2014-80 – A resolution authorizing publication of notice of 
intention to issue Certificates of Obligation, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$5,000,000, for the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain public works, 
authorizing distribution of a preliminary official statement relating to such series of certificates 
and authorizing certain other matters relating thereto.  Ms. Claire Bogard, Director of 
Finance. 
 
Councilmember Hill made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, to approve 
Resolution No. 2014-80. 
 
BOSC, Inc. Financial Advisor Ryan Ohara, gave an overview of Certificates of Obligation, 
Series 2014 and Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and BOSC, Inc. Financial Advisor Ryan Ohara 
regarding the publication of notice of intention to issue Certificates of Obligation. 
 
Councilmember Carbone asked for an explanation on the City issuing 20 year debt without 
the voter’s specific approval. 
 
Andrews Kurth, LLP, Representative Rick Witte, stated the Certificate of Obligation process 
works with a notice provision. The notice is published twice, voters in the City have the 
opportunity to present a petition before the meeting of September 22, 2014. If they present a 
petition with 5 percent of registered voter signatures, then the City would have to have an 
election. This process has been around a long time, it is frequently used by Cities. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council, Finance Director Claire Bogard and City Manager Clay 
Pearson regarding the breakdown of projects and issuing 20 year debt for current year 
payroll. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he is struggling with the City wanting to finance current 
payroll out 20 years, and more debt to come for projects that have not been approved. He 
understands it is necessary, but he does not necessarily agree with Construction 
Management.  
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” Councilmember Carbone. 
 
Motion Passed 4 to 1. 
 
 



Page 9 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

Council Action – Resolution No. R2014-84 – A resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, determining the public necessity for certain water line/hydrant 
improvements in the vicinity of SH 35 and Alice Street.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City 
Manager. 
 
Councilmember Carbone made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, to 
approve Resolution No. 2014-84. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported if the City decides to move forward with this project, the 
plan is to tie into the 12” waterline at Alice Street. Construct a 12” waterline within the 25’ 
water/sewer easement along the east side of Highway 35 right-of-way and locate hydrants 
along the way at the standard spacing of 300’. The separation requirement between the 
water and sewer line can be met based on the depth of the sewer line and width of the 
easement. The waterline will be extended to the southern property line of the Profax parcel. It 
will take approximately six months at a cost estimate of $150,000. Funding will need to be 
allocated from the Water and Sewer fund. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” Councilmember Sherman. 
 
Motion Passed 4 to 1. 
 
Council Action – First Reading of Ordinance No. CUP 2014-04 – An ordinance of the City 
Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain 
property, being legally described as a  tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 47,999 
square feet of land, out of a called 9.993 acre tract situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, 
Abstract No.  506, Brazoria County, Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, Inc. as recorded in 
the Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria County, Texas, the parent tract 
being located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse Road,Pearland, TX., 
for Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-04, to  allow for the construction of an 
Auto Wash (Self Service), with the General-Business (GB) zoning district; at the request of 
Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old Place, Inc., owner; 
containing a savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other provisions 
related to the subject.   Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of Community Development.  
 
Councilmember Sherman made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Carbone, to 
approve Ordinance No. CUP 2014-04 on its First Reading. 
 
Mayor Reid read into the record the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation to 
forward to Council for approval of Application No. CUP2014-04. 
 
Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao reported Council is being asked to 
consider CUP2014-04 to construct an Auto Wash (Self Service) on approximately 1.1 acres 
of a called 9.9 acre tract. 
 
Councilmember Moore asked how the impact fee is figured on a car wash. 
 
Assistant City Engineer Richard Mancilla stated it is figured by the number of lanes the car 
wash has. 
 



Page 10 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Hill, Moore, Ordeneaux, Sherman, and Carbone. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
Council Action – Resolution No. R2014-85 – A resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, awarding the employee health insurance benefits for stop loss and administration 
services to Cigna and renewing employee dental insurance with Aetna.  
Ms. Bonita Hall, Director of Human Resources. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Carbone, to 
approve Resolution No. 2014-85. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked for consideration and approval 
to renew the agreement with Cigna to continue to provide administrative services and to 
provide specific and aggregate stop loss at the recommended Cigna Plan Option 6 rates. In 
addition, the proposed plan design option 6a and the dental renewal. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the thoughts 
of staff after attending the presentation of the new changes.  
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
Council Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-82 – A resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Pearland, Texas, approving the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development Community Development Block Grant Program year 2014/fiscal year 2015 
Annual Action Plan.  Mr. Joel Hardy, Grants Coordinator. 
 
Councilmember Moore made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Carbone, to approve 
Resolution No. 2014-82. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked for approval of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Development Block Grant 
Program year 2014/fiscal year 2015 Annual Action Plan. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he is voicing his opposition for the Code Enforcement and 
Housing rehab, his opinion has not changed from the last meeting. 
 
Councilmember Moore stated his opinion has changed since the last meeting, but he does 
not understand why the City has to pay someone $62,000 to manage this account. He stated 
that money can go a long way on improving living conditions instead of hiring someone to 
manage this account. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson stated those funds are not just for Administration. They are also 
used for field work, social services programs, code enforcement, family housing rehab 
program activities and other infrastructure and improvements. 



Page 11 of 11 – 7/28/2014    
 

 

 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Hill, Moore, Ordeneaux, and Sherman. 
 
Voting “No” Councilmember Carbone. 
 
Motion Passed 4 to 1. 

 
Council Action – Resolution No. R2014-81 – A resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, authorizing a contract for professional services associated with the McHard 
Road Extension Project, with Freese Nichols, Inc., in the amount of $4,415,202.20.   
Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 

 
Councilmember Hill made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, to approve 
Resolution No. 2014-81. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked to approve the proposal and 
award a professional services contract to Freese Nichols, Inc. for the McHard Road 
Extension project in the amount of $4,415,202.20. 
 
Councilmember Hill thanked Staff for being so vigil and getting the funding through the 
Surface Transportation Program-Metropolitan Mobility (STP-MM) which put the City only 
having to fund 20 percent which is a break for the tax payer. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: None. 

 
MAYOR/COUNCIL ISSUES: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected this the ___ day of ______A.D. 2014. 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Tom Reid 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Young Lorfing, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 



Consent 
Agenda 
Item B 

B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. Cup 2014-05 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit for certain 
property, being 5.00 Acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, A-
304 in Brazoria County, Texas being the same land described as 5.00 
Acres in a warranty deed from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese 
Church, dated July 5, 2007 and recorded as Document No. 2007039242, 
official records of Brazoria County, Texas. (located at the 2500 Block of 
Miller Ranch RD., Pearland, TX Conditional Use Permit Application No. 
CUP 2014-05 to allow for a church, temple, or place of worship in the 
single family residential-1 (R- 1) District at the request of Raymond JJ 
ZHUO, Applicant, on behalf of Houston Chinese Church, owner, 
containing a savings clause, a severability clause, an effective date and 
other provisions related to the subject. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 
construct a church campus on 5.00 acres of land. The applicant has plans to construct 
the church campus in 3 phases. Phase 1 will consist of roughly 7,500 square feet 

ITEM NO.:   Ordinance No.  

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PRESENTOR:  Lata 

Krishnarao 

AGENDA OF: August 25, 2014 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 31, 2014 

PREPARED BY: Ian Clowes 

REVIEWED BY:  Lata Krishnarao      REVIEW DATE:  8/7/14 

SUBJECT: A   request of Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for Houston Chinese 
Church, owner, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
Church, Temple, or Place of Worship in the Single Family Residential 
(R-1) Zoning District, on the following described property: 

 General Location:  2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd.  

EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. CUP 2014-05 and Exhibits (Exhibit A – Legal 
Description; Exhibit B – Location  Map; Exhibit C – Site Plan; Exhibit D 
– Legal Ad; Exhibit E – Planning and Zoning Commission
Recommendation Letter),  Joint Public, Hearing Staff Report,  Site 
Plan, Vicinity and Zoning Map, Future Land Use Map, Aerial Map, 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter, Applicant 
Packet         

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 

Page 1 of 3 

Cup 2014-05



dedicated to worship and classroom space.  Per the site plan, the site will be heavily 
landscaped and include approximately 277 parking spaces.  The applicant has an 
existing CUP for the same use that was approved on August 26, 2013.  Due to 
unforeseen issues, the applicant has yet to proceed with the proposed project.  The 
Unified Development Code (UDC) states that if an approved CUP is unable to be acted 
on within a year, the CUP may be extended for up to one year or it shall become void. 
The applicant is seeking a one (1) year extension of the originally approved CUP. 

Trees will be planted along Miller Ranch Road to satisfy the street tree requirement and 
a vegetative screen with a 30 foot landscaped buffer along the north, east and south 
property lines as required to meet residential adjacency requirements.  At least fifteen 
percent (15%) of the gross site area is required to be maintained in landscaped area. 
As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the requirement. 
Access will be provided from Miller Ranch Road and 6 foot sidewalks will be 
constructed. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-05 to 
allow for the construction of a church on the approximately 5.00 acres of land for the 
following reasons, and with the following condition: 

1. The proposed church should not negatively impact surrounding properties or
developments.  However increased traffic may be an issue.  A Traffic Impact
Analysis is required as part of the platting process in order to determine if any
improvements would be required to mitigate any adverse impacts as it relates to
traffic.

2. The subject property is adjacent to single family on the north, east, south, and
west.  The building setback requirements in addition to the residential adjacency
requirements will ensure minimal impacts to the existing and future residential
developments.  Pursuant to Section 4.2.4.1, because the applicant proposes a
vegetative screen, a 30-foot buffer area is required dense enough to be
completely opaque year round, which is at least four feet (4’) tall at the time of
planting and at least  eight feet (8’) tall within twelve (12) months.  The applicant
proposes to use new and existing trees.

3. As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the required 15%
landscaped area.

Condition 

1. The site is developed in accordance with the attached site plan provided by the
applicant.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on July 21, 2014, P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel 
Tunstall made a motion to approve with the following conditions: 

1) The site to be developed in accordance with the attached site plan provided by
Page 2 of 3 



the applicant.  
 

P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed seconded. There was no discussion. The vote was 6-
0 and the motion passed.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL: Consider the conditional use permit. 
 
  

Page 3 of 3 
 



ORDINANCE NO. CUP 2014-05 
 

    
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY, BEING 
5.00 ACRES OUT OF THE G.T. & B.R.R. COMPANY SURVEY, A-304 IN 
BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS BEING THE SAME LAND DESCRIBED AS 5.00 
ACRES IN A WARRANTY DEED FROM STEVEN C. MUTH TO HOUSTON 
CHINESE CHURCH, DATED JULY 5, 2007 AND RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 
2007039242, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS. (LOCATED 
AT THE 2500 BLOCK OF MILLER RANCH RD., PEARLAND, TX) CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT APPLICATION NO. CUP 2014-05 TO ALLOW FOR A CHURCH, 
TEMPLE, OR PLACE OF WORSHIP IN THE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL-1 (R-
1) DISTRICT AT THE REQUEST OF RAYMOND JJ ZHUO, APPLICANT,  ON 
BEHALF OF HOUSTON CHINESE CHURCH, OWNER, CONTAINING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT. 

 

 WHEREAS Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for Houston Chinese Church, owner, 

filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for an Church, Temple, or 

Place of Worship, on certain property, said property being legally described in the 

original applications for amendment attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "A", and more graphically depicted in the location map attached 

hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “B” and the site plan identified 

as Exhibit “C”; and 

 

WHEREAS, on the 21st day of July, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held before 

the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of Pearland, 

Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, the 

affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as 

Exhibit "D", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of Section 

1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

 

WHEREAS, on the 21st day of July, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

    
   



of the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council regarding the 

proposed Conditional Use Permit application for Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for 

Houston Chinese Church, owner, whereby the Commission recommended approval of 

the Conditional Use Permit, said recommendation attached hereto and made a part 

hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “E”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, the City Council considered this application and the recommendation of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meeting(s) on August 11, 2014; and 

August 25, 2014; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, having fully heard the testimony and argument of 

all interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the 

case of the application of Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for Houston Chinese Church, 

owner, presented which, in the judgment of the City Council, would justify the approval 

of said application; now, therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate limits of 

the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently classified as Single Family Residential – 1 

(R-1), is hereby granted a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Church, Temple, or 

Place of Worship  in said zoning district; such property being more particularly 

described as: 
 

Being 5.00 acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, A-304 in Brazoria 
County, Texas. Being the same land described as 5.00 acres in a warranty deed 
from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, dated July 5, 2007 and recorded 
as document No. 2007039242, official records of Brazoria County, Texas 

Page 2 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



Located at the 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd. Pearland, TX 
 
Subject to the following Conditions: 

 
1) The site to be developed in accordance with the attached site plan provided by 

the applicant. (Exhibit “C”) 
 

 Section II.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that the 

recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary prerequisites of law 

have been accomplished.  The City Council further finds and determines that there has 

been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and presentation of this matter 

to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the City Council for consideration and 

decision. 

 

  Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

 

                                  Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

 

 Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

 

 Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

Page 3 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 

approval on second and final reading. 

 

          PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 11th day of August, 

2014. 

 

 

 
       _________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC  
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 25th        

day of August, 2014.       

 

       __________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

Page 4 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
Exhibit A 

Legal Description 
 

Being 5.00 acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, A-304 in Brazoria 
County, Texas. Being the same land described as 5.00 acres in a warranty deed 
from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, dated July 5, 2007 and 
recorded as document No. 2007039242, official records of Brazoria County, 
Texas. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
 

Exhibit B 
Location Map 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
Exhibit C 
Site Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 8 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
        Exhibit D 

Legal Ad 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
Exhibit E 

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation Letter  
July 22, 2014 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 
 

Re: Recommendation on CUP 2014-05 

 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

 
At their regular meeting on July 21, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
considered the following:   
 

A request of Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for Houston Chinese Church, owner, for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Church, Temple, or Place of Worship 
in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District, on the following described 
property: 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Being 5.00 acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company 
Survey, A-304 in Brazoria County, Texas. Being the same land described as 5.00 
acres in a warranty deed from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, 
dated July 5, 2007 and recorded as document No. 2007039242, official records 
of Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

GENERAL LOCATION:  2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd.  Pearland, TX 

 

Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made a motion to approve with the following 
conditions: 

 

 

Page 10 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



 
1) The site to be developed in accordance with the attached site plan provided by 

the applicant.  
 
P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed seconded.  The vote was 6-0 and the motion passed.    
 
Sincerely, 

 
Ian Clowes 
Senior Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Page 11 of 11 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-05 

 



Summary of Analysis 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct a church 
campus on 5.00 acres of land. The applicant has plans to construct the church campus in 3 
phases. Phase 1 will consist of roughly 7,500 square feet dedicated to worship and classroom 
space.  Per the site plan, the site will be heavily landscaped and include approximately 277 
parking spaces.  The applicant has an existing CUP for the same use that was approved on 
August 26, 2013.  Due to unforeseen issues, the applicant has yet to proceed with the 
proposed project.  The Unified Development Code (UDC) states that if an approved CUP is 
unable to be acted on within a year, the CUP may be extended for up to one year or it shall 
become void. The applicant is seeking a one (1) year extension of the originally approved 
CUP. 
 
Trees will be planted along Miller Ranch Road to satisfy the street tree requirement and a 
vegetative screen with a 30 foot landscaped buffer along the north, east and south property 
lines as required to meet residential adjacency requirements.  At least fifteen percent (15%) of 
the gross site area is required to be maintained in landscaped area.  As illustrated by the site 
plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the requirement.  Access will be provided from Miller 
Ranch Road and 6 foot sidewalks will be constructed. 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses 
Surrounding uses include single family to the north, east, south and west. The property directly 
to the north and west is developed as a single family subdivision. The property directly to the 
south and east is undeveloped but is currently in the platting stages for a single family 
subdivision with the proposed detention area being located adjacent to the southern property 
line of the subject property. 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Suburban Residential – 12  (SR-12) Single Family 
South Single Family Residential 3 (R-3) Detention Pond (Future) 
East Single Family Residential 1 and 3 (R-1, R-3)  Undeveloped Land 
West Single Family Residential 3 (R-3) 

 
Single Family 

 
Conformance with the Unified Development Code 
The subject property is located within the Single Family Residential 1 (R-1) zoning district.  
The proposed use is permitted with approval of a Conditional Use Permit. A non-residential 
use located within a residential zone is required to meet the regulations of the Neighborhood 
Services (NS) zone.  The NS zone requires a 25’ setback in the front, 15’ on the side’ and 15’ 
in the rear.  The nonresidential use of a church or place of worship will be subject to all 

   
 

   
   

  
 

 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 

 

 



 

commercial screening requirements.  This includes a 25’ buffer with a masonry wall or a 30’ 
buffer with a vegetative wall for all areas that abut residential property. The landscape buffer 
shall remain open and unobstructed (i.e., no parking, driveways or other use of the buffer 
area.)  The applicant is proposing a 30 foot buffer with screening being achieved through 
vegetation as opposed to fencing.   
 
The below table illustrates the above regulations and how the site will comply: 
 

NS Requirements Subject Property 
Minimum Lot Area 12,500 square 

feet 
217,800 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width 100 feet 255 feet 
Minimum Lot Depth 100 feet 852 feet 
Minimum Front Yard 25 feet 302 feet 
Minimum Side Yard 15 feet 90 feet  
Minimum Rear Yard 10 feet 410 feet 
Minimum Landscaped Area 15% >15% 
30 feet 30 feet 30 feet 
All other requirements will be met including façade requirements, dumpster screening, platting, 
etc. 
Site History 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1998.  When a property is 
annexed into the City, the default zoning is Suburban Development (SD) district.  As a result of 
the adoption of the Unified Development Code in 2006, the site was rezoned to R-1.  The 
property is undeveloped and is not platted.  A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Church was 
approved for the site on August 26, 2013; however is about to expire, as the permit was not 
acted upon.  The original CUP was approved with the condition that the site be developed in 
accordance with the submitted Site Plan (as seen in Exhibit 8).  
 
Platting Status 
The site is not platted.  Platting will be required prior to development and the release of any 
permits.  Platting will trigger right-of-way dedication, the installation of 6-foot sidewalks along 
the frontage of the property, various easements such as water and sewer easements, fire 
hydrants, detention facilities and a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA). 
 
Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 
The site is located within the Low Density Residential future land use designation, and was 
added to the Comprehensive Plan (The Plan) as a result of the 2004 update.  The Plan 
recommends single family residential within this designation and zoning districts Residential 
Estate (RE), Suburban Residential 15 (SR-15), Suburban Residential 12 (SR-12), and Single 
Family Residential 1 (R-1).   The existing zoning designation is in compliance with the Future 
Land Use Plan. The proposed use will is not in compliance with the Future Land Use 
designation 
 
 
 



   
 

   
   

  
 

 

designation.  In these situations, The Plan recommends that these developments should be 
evaluated on their own merit, on a case-by-case basis.   
 
Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 
The subject property has frontage on Miller Ranch Road; a local street, which requires a 
minimum of 60 feet of right-of-way.  Miller Ranch Road is not in conformance with the 
thoroughfare plan, as the width of the roadway in this location is 40 feet.  Additional right-of-
way will be dedicated at the time of platting. 
 
Availability of Utilities 
The subject property has access to public water and public sewer.  The applicant is responsible 
for extending lines onto the subject property, if necessary.  
 
Impact on Existing and Future Development 
The subject property is surrounded by single family zoning on all four sides. There are 
residential subdivisions to the west, which is separated by Miller Ranch Road, and to the north.  
The property to the south and east is zoned for single family dwellings and is in currently being 
platted as a single family subdivision.  The property adjacent to the south will be utilized solely 
as detention and park space for the new subdivision.  Residential adjacency standards apply to 
the north, east, and south of the subject property, which will help to mitigate any negative 
impacts on the existing and future single family developments.  The applicant proposes a 30 
foot vegetative screen along the northern and southern property lines, using existing and new 
trees. 
Additionally, a traffic impact analysis is required prior to development.  This process will 
determine if improvements may be required to mitigate any traffic issues.   
 
Additional Comments 
A Pre-Development Meeting was held with the applicant on April 17, 2013.  Additionally, the 
request has been reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and there were no 
additional comments from the DRC at the time of this report. 
 
Public Notification 
Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed to the applicant as well as 
property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the CUP.  
Additionally a legal notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper and 
notification signs were placed on the property by the applicant.  
 
Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 
Staff has not received any comments either in opposition or in support of the CUP at the time of 
this report. 
 



 

 
 
Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-05 to allow for the construction of a church on 
the approximately 5.00 acres of land for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed church should not negatively impact surrounding properties or 
developments.  However increased traffic may be an issue.  A Traffic Impact Analysis 
is required as part of the platting process in order to determine if any improvements 
would be required to mitigate any adverse impacts as it relates to traffic. 
 

2. The subject property is adjacent to single family on the north, east, south, and west.  
The building setback requirements in addition to the residential adjacency 
requirements will ensure minimal impacts to the existing and future residential 
developments.  Pursuant to Section 4.2.4.1, because the applicant proposes a 
vegetative screen, a 30-foot buffer area is required dense enough to be completely 
opaque year round, which is at least four feet (4’) tall at the time of planting and at 
least  eight feet (8’) tall within twelve (12) months.  The applicant proposes to use new 
and existing trees.  
  

3. As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the required 15% 
landscaped area. 
 
 

Conditions 

1. The site is developed in accordance with the attached site plan provided by the 
applicant. 

 





M
ILLER

 R
A

N
C

H
 R

D

CAMELOTS CT

EXCALIBURS CT

KING AUTHORS CT

FAIR BROOK WAY

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

ERIN GLEN WAY

BROOKSHORE LN

HIDDEN FALLS DR

2633
2633

2631
2631

2629
2629

2623 2621
2621

2635

2404

2553

2637

2629
2635

2619
26212623

2627

2530

9602

2528

2426

9908 9906 9904 9902

9907 9905 9903 9901

9707 9703 9701
2305 2306

9708 9706 9702 9614 9610 9608
2307

2305

2355

9719 9715 9711

9904 9902 9816 9812 9810 9806 9804 9716 9714
2306

2304

2302
2307

2305
2308
2306

2307 2308

9630

9813

9619

9809

9805

2625

2454

2446
2442
2434

9726

9725

9913

2425

9706

9905

9829 9821

9702
973498149906

9805 9733

9621

2410

9718
97349806

9814
98229906

9621
9629

9805

9821

9914 9906 9822 9806
9710

9630 9622

9605
961396299709

982199059913

96059613

96149622

971797339813
9829

98309914

9806

9613

96149622

9629

9630

9709

9710

9717

9718

9725

9726
98229830

99059913

9914

2430

2422

9813

9614

962197019717

9718

9725

9726

9733

97349814

9829

9830

10005

10014

10012 10010 10008 10004

10011

10009 10007 10005 10003

10101
10011 10009 10007 10003 10001

10020 10018 10016 10014 10010 10008

10006

10004

1000210102
10012 10010 10008 10006 10002

10101
10019 10017 10015 10011 10009 10005

10003

10001

10019
10015 10013 10009 10005 10001

10028 10026 10022 10020 10016 10012 10010 10008

10006

10004

1000210018 10016 10012 10010 10006 10004

10025 10023 10019 10017 10013

10003

10001 AERIAL MAP

CUP 2014-05

2500 BLOCK OF 
MILLER RANCH

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 327 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



R-3

R-1

GC

SR-12

M
ILLER

 R
A

N
C

H
 R

D

CAMELOTS CT

EXCALIBURS CT

KING AUTHORS CT

FAIR BROOK WAY

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

ERIN GLEN WAY

BROOKSHORE LN

HIDDEN FALLS DR

2633 2631
2631

2629
2629

2623 2621
2621

2635

2404

2553

2637

2629
2635

2619
26212623

2627

2530

9602

2528

2426

9908 9906 9904 9902

9907 9905 9903 9901

9707 9703 9701
2305 2306

9708 9706 9702 9614 9610 9608
2307

2305

2355

9719 9715 9711

9904 9902 9816 9812 9810 9806 9804 9716 9714
2306

2304

2302
2307

2305
2308
2306

2307 2308

9630

9813

9619

9809

9805

2625

2454

2446
2442
2434

9726

9725

9913

2425

9706

9905

9829 9821

9702
973498149906

9805 9733

9621

2410

9718
97349806

9814
98229906

9621
9629

9805

9821

9914 9906 9822 9806 9710
9630 9622

9605
961396299709

982199059913

96059613

96149622

971797339813
9829

98309914

9806

9613

96149622

9629

9630

9709

9710

9717

9718

9725

9726
98229830

99059913

9914

2430

2422

9813

9614

962197019717

9718

9725

9726

9733

97349814

9829

9830

10005

10014

10012 10010 10008 10004

10011

10009 10007 10005 10003

10101
10011 10009 10007 10003 10001

10020 10018 10016 10014 10010 10008

10006

10004

1000210102
10012 10010 10008 10006 10002

10101
10019 10017 10015 10011 10009 10005

10003

10001

10019
10015 10013 10009 10005 10001

10028 10026 10022 10020 10016 10012 10010 10008

10006

10004

1000210018 10016 10012 10010 10006 10004

10025 10023 10019 10017 10013

10003

10001 ZONING MAP

CUP 2014-05

2500 BLOCK OF 
MILLER RANCH

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 327 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

M
ILLER

 R
A

N
C

H
 R

D

CAMELOTS CT

EXCALIBURS CT

KING AUTHORS CT

FAIR BROOK WAY

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

ERIN GLEN WAY

BROOKSHORE LN

HIDDEN FALLS DR

2633
2633

2631
2631

2629
2629

2623 2621
2621

2635

2404

2553

2637

2629
2635

2619
26212623

2627

2530

9602

2528

2426

9908 9906 9904 9902

9907 9905 9903 9901

9709

9708 9706 9702 9612 9608

2355

9719 9715

9904 9902 9816 9812 9810 9806 9804 9716 9714
2306

2304

2302
2307

2305
2308
2306

2307 2308

9630

9813

9619

9809

9805

2625

2454

2446
2442
2434

9726

9725

9913

2425

9706

9905

9829 9821

9702
973498149906

9805 9733

9621

2410

9718
97349806

9814
98229906

9621
9629

9805

9821

9914 9906 9822 9806
9710

9630 9622

9605
961396299709

982199059913

96059613

96149622

971797339813
9829

98309914

9806

9613

96149622

9629

9630

9709

9710

9717

9718

9725

9726
98229830

99059913

9914

2430

2422

9813

9614

962197019717

9718

9725

9726

9733

97349814

9829

9830

10005

10014

10012 10010 10008 10004

10011

10009 10007 10005 10003

10101
10011 10009 10007 10003 10001

10020 10018 10016 10014 10010 10008

10006

10004

1000210102
10012 10010 10008 10006 10002

10101
10019 10017 10015 10011 10009 10005

10003

10001

10019
10015 10013 10009 10005 10001

10028 10026 10022 10020 10016 10012 10010 10008

10006

10004

1000210018 10016 10012 10010 10006 10004

10025 10023 10019 10017 10013

10003

10001 FLUP MAP

CUP 2014-05

2500 BLOCK OF 
MILLER RANCH

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 327 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Abutter Map

CUP 2013-05

2500 Block of Miller Ranch

Brazoria

M
ILLER

 R
A

N
C

H
 R

D

CAMELOTS CT

EXCALIBURS CT

KING AUTHORS CT

SILVER
LA

K
E PK

W
Y

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



CUP 2014-05
2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd. - Church Temple, Place of Worship

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP

CRUZ GERARDO 9726 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8521

GOLDEN RICHARD SYLVAN II 9904 AUTUMN LAKE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584-3053

RITCHEY KAREN 3110 BRUNO WAY PEARLAND TX 77581

BRAZORIA COUNTY MUD NO 19 3200 SOUTHWEST FWY STE 260 HOUSTON TX 77027-7537

PEREZ GUADULUPE & BETZAIDA 9734 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8521

GRIFFITH BILL D 7235 PALMETTO ST MANVEL TX 77578-4753

TABORA REINA XIOMARA 9814 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584

AUTUMN LAKE PROPERTY 17049 EL CAMINO REAL STE 100 HOUSTON TX 77058-2611

CARRANZA JESUS & GUADALUPE 3702 GRASSMERE ST HOUSTON TX 77051-3261

BROWN CHARLES D JR & MYRIS M 9901 AUTUMN LAKE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584-3054

GONZALEZ JOSE JR 1018 COUNTY ROAD 712B ALVIN TX 77511

ELUMIR ARTEMIO 9903 AUTUMN LAKE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584-3054

WHITWORTH KENNETH M 9906 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8525

MACKINNON ALEXANDER 275 SHIN OAK WAY KERRVILLE TX 78028-2084

RITCHEY KAREN 3110 BRUNO WAY PEARLAND TX 77581

TREADWAY GEORGANNE & J C 2302 ANTHONY LN PEARLAND TX 77581-3711

HOUSTON CHINESE CHURCH 10305 MAIN ST HOUSTON TX 77025-5509

WILLIAMS DAVID & CONSTANCE 9902 AUTUMN LAKE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584-3053

RAMIREZ OLGA V 9701 BERKSHIRE TRCE PEARLAND TX 77584-3058

FERNANDEZ EDWARD 16503 NIGHTENGALE FALLS CT CYPRESS TX 77429

GARCIA GUADALUPE 9733 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584

MARTINEZ BEATRIZ 9805 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8524

CLARK JEFFREY 9813 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8524

BISHOP JEFFERY A & ELIZABETH C 9821 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8524

OKORO EMMANUEL & ANNETTE 9905 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8526

HAYES BOBBY D & STEPHANIE SAU HAYES 4706 PECAN GROVE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-8602

MCGAHEE JAMES & JENNIFER 10006 BROOKSHORE LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3059

MCCLURE JASON R & CYNTHIA FREDRICK 10008 BROOKSHORE LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3059

GOSSETT KENNETH 9718 CAMELOTS CT PEARLAND TX 77584-8521



























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation Letter  
July 22, 2014 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 
 
Re: Recommendation on CUP 2014-05 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
At their regular meeting on July 21, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
following:   
 

A request of Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for Houston Chinese Church, owner, for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Church, Temple, or Place of Worship 
in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District, on the following described 
property: 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Being 5.00 acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company 
Survey, A-304 in Brazoria County, Texas. Being the same land described as 
5.00 acres in a warranty deed from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, 
dated July 5, 2007 and recorded as document No. 2007039242, official records 
of Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
GENERAL LOCATION:  2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd.  Pearland, TX 
 

P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made a motion to approve with the following 
conditions: 

 
1) The site to be developed in accordance with the attached site plan provided by 

the applicant.  
 
P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed seconded.  The vote was 6-0 and the motion passed.    
 
Sincerely, 

 
Ian Clowes 
Senior Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

 



Consent 
Agenda 
Item C 

C. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-106 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, awarding a 
unit bid for water and wastewater analysis services to Eastex 
Environmental Laboratory, Inc. in the estimated amount of $80,605.00. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 
Four (4) sealed bids were received August 5, 2014, for water and wastewater testing services 
as required by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) per bid specifications 
of City Bid No. 0714-49.  Bid notices were provided to 151 companies, published in newspaper 
of record, and posted on the City’s electronic bidding website in accordance with City 
Purchasing Policy. 

SCOPE OF CONTRACT 
The awarded contractor will transport samples to their testing facility, conduct the appropriate 
tests, and shall submit the subsequent results to the City and TCEQ within the mandated time. 
The contractor is also responsible for providing and maintaining all required chain of custody 
documentation.  

AGENDA OF: August 25, 2014 ITEM NO.:  Resolution No. R2014-106

DATE SUBMITTED: August 15, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PREPARED BY: Bob Pearce PRESENTOR: Eric Wilson 

REVIEWED BY:    Trent Epperson  REVIEW DATE:  

SUBJECT:  Bid Award for Water and Wastewater Laboratory Testing Services 

EXHIBITS:  R2014 - 106 
  Exhibit A to Resolution - Bid Tabulation 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   $80,605 (est.) AMOUNT BUDGETED:   $80,605 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   $80,605 PROJECT NO.:    
ACCOUNT NO.:   030-4042-555-11-00 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:  
ACCOUNT NO.:    
PROJECT NO.:    
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 

ltaylor
Typewritten Text
8-19-2014



BID AND AWARD 
Public Works personnel have reviewed the bids and recommend award to the low bidder, 
Eastex Environmental Laboratory, Inc.  The City has utilized Eastex for several years, and 
Public Works reports a high degree of satisfaction with the quality of their service. The bid 
award is for a one (1) year term, with an option for two (2) one (1) year renewals, upon the 
mutual agreement of the parties, and the approval of City Council. 

The contract will provide for fixed unit costs for each item for a period on one (1) year, with no 
allowable increases.  At the expiration of the initial term, the contract may be renewed for two 
(2) additional one (1) year renewals upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  Any price 
increase request at a renewal period must be substantiated by a commensurate increase during 
the prior 12 month period in the “All Items” category of the CPI for the Houston-Galveston-
Brazoria region. 

SCHEDULE 
Water and wastewater laboratory testing will occur as needed throughout the term of the 
agreement. 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 
This purchase is recommended for the purpose of furthering the City’s objective and meet 
TCEQ guidelines to provide for public safety and welfare. 

CURRENT AND FUTURE FUNDING/FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 
Funding for these services will come from the Water & Sewer Operations Special Services 
account. 

O&M IMPACT INFORMATION 

Fiscal Year 2014 2015 2016 
Est. Expenditures $80,605 $83,265* (estimated, w/ 

renewal option to be reviewed 
by Council in August, 2015. 

$86,013*(est.) 

*Based upon estimated 3.3% annual increases of the current CPI

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of a resolution to award a bid for water and wastewater testing 
services to Eastex Environmental Laboratory, Inc. at the unit costs as highlighted in the 
attached bid tabulation. 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-106 
 

 

A Resolution  of  the  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Pearland,  Texas, 
awarding a unit bid for water and wastewater analysis services to 
Eastex Environmental Laboratory, Inc. in the estimated amount of 
$80,605.00. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City previously opened bids for water and wastewater 
 

analysis services, and such bids have been evaluated. 
 

Section 2. That the City Council hereby awards the bid with Eastex 

Environmental Laboratory, Inc., at the unit price amounts reflected in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto. 
 

Section 3. The City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute a 
 
contract for water and wastewater analysis services. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the   day of   , 

A.D., 2014. 
 
 
 
 

 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
 
 

DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



Bid Tabulation: Water and Wastewater Laboratory Services
Bid Opening Date: Tuesday, August 5, 2014
Bid Number: 0714-49

Line Description UOM
Est. 
Qty Unit Extended Unit Extended Unit Extended Unit Extended

1
BIOCHEMICAL OXYGEN 
DEMAND, 5 DAY (BOD5) EA 720 $10.00 $7,200.00 $16.00 $11,520.00 $20.00 $14,400.00 $20.00 $14,400.00

2

CARBONACEOUS BIOLOGICAL 
OXYGEN DEMAND, 5 DAY 
(CBOD5) EA 600 $10.00 $6,000.00 $17.00 $10,200.00 $20.00 $12,000.00 $20.00 $12,000.00

3
E. COLI (COLONIES PER 100 
ML) EA 960 $8.00 $7,680.00 $25.00 $24,000.00 $20.00 $19,200.00 $35.00 $33,600.00

4
FECAL COLIFORMS 
(COLONIES PER 100 ML) EA 120 $8.00 $960.00 $22.50 $2,700.00 $20.00 $2,400.00 $35.00 $4,200.00

5
MICROSCOPIC EVALUATION 
(MICRO) EA 1000 $6.00 $6,000.00 $25.00 $25,000.00 $20.00 $20,000.00 $90.00 $90,000.00

6
MIXED LIQUOR SUSPENDED 
SOLIDS (MLSS) EA 1000 $5.00 $5,000.00 $10.00 $10,000.00 $15.00 $15,000.00 $25.00 $25,000.00

7
MIXED LIQUOR VOLATILE 
SUSPENDED SOLIDS (MLVSS) EA 1000 $4.00 $4,000.00 $5.00 $5,000.00 $20.00 $20,000.00 $45.00 $45,000.00

8
AMMONIA NITROGEN 
(NH3N) EA 1100 $7.00 $7,700.00 $15.00 $16,500.00 $15.00 $16,500.00 $25.00 $27,500.00

9 PAINT FILTER EA 4 $15.00 $60.00 $10.00 $40.00 $10.00 $40.00 $13.00 $52.00

10

TOXICITY CHARACTERISTIC 
LEACHATE PROCEDURE 
(TCLP) EA 5 $500.00 $2,500.00 $750.00 $3,750.00 $20.00 $100.00 $1,008.00 $5,040.00

11 PCB EA 5 $75.00 $375.00 $90.00 $450.00 $50.00 $250.00 $108.00 $540.00
12 % SOLID EA 600 $5.00 $3,000.00 $10.00 $6,000.00 $5.00 $3,000.00 $13.00 $7,800.00

13
TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 
(TSS) EA 1350 $5.00 $6,750.00 $10.00 $13,500.00 $15.00 $20,250.00 $20.00 $27,000.00

Eastex Environmental 
Laboratory, Inc Envirodyne Laboratoties, Inc.

TTI Environmental Laboratories, 
LLC. Ana-Lab Corporation



Line Description UOM
Est. 
Qty Unit Extended Unit Extended Unit Extended Unit Extended

Eastex Environmental 
Laboratory, Inc Envirodyne Laboratoties, Inc.

TTI Environmental Laboratories, 
LLC. Ana-Lab Corporation

14
TOTAL COLIFORM (POTABLE 
WATER) EA 2200 $9.00 $19,800.00 $10.00 $22,000.00 $20.00 $44,000.00 $27.00 $59,400.00

15 HEAVY METALS/METAL EA 10 $50.00 $500.00 $125.00 $1,250.00 $5.00 $50.00 $143.00 $1,430.00
16 TOTAL HYDROCARBONS EA 6 $40.00 $240.00 $55.00 $330.00 $35.00 $210.00 $44.00 $264.00
17 POLLUTANT SCAN EA 4 $500.00 $2,000.00 $225.00 $900.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 $1,474.00 $5,896.00
18 IRON AND MANGANESE EA 26 $24.00 $624.00 $20.00 $520.00 $20.00 $520.00 $42.00 $1,092.00

19
TOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS 
(TDS) AND CHLORIDES EA 12 $18.00 $216.00 $25.00 $300.00 $35.00 $420.00 $42.00 $504.00
Total $80,605.00 $153,960.00 $189,940.00 $360,718.00



Consent 
Agenda 
Item D 

D. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-105 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, accepting 
the City’s Investment Report for the quarter ending June 2014. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: 8/25/2014 ITEM NO.:
DATE SUBMITTED:  8/4/2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance
PREPARED 
BY:

Rick Overgaard PRESENTOR: Claire Bogard 

REVIEWED BY: REVIEW DATE: 

SUBJECT:  June 2014 Quarterly Investment Report  

EXHIBITS: Resolution 2014-105 
 June 2014 Investment Report 

Grant Developer/Other Cash Opns

Bonds To Be Sold Bonds - Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold

FUNDING: 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:N/A  
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.: 
To be completed by Department:  
     X   Finance   X Legal  Ordinance X  Resolution

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

The Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Texas Government Code 2256 and 
the City’s Investment Policy require that an Investment Report be presented 
to City Council no less than quarterly.  The report, as presented, incorporates 
the requirements of PFIA, including detailed listing of purchases, sales, 
description of each security and management summary. 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 

To achieve safety of principal, adequate liquidity to meet cash needs, and 
reasonable yields commensurate with the preservation of principal and 
liquidity.  All funds will be invested in compliance with all state and local 

8/19/2014

Resolution No. R2014-105



statutes and all Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, and 
related financial accounting standards. 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The City’s portfolio totals $85.3 million, down $8.9 million from the March 
2014 report.  The decrease is primarily from operating and capital project 
expenditures.  The portfolio has an average yield to maturity for the quarter 
of .44%, which is higher than the City’s average agency note benchmark of 
.13%, equivalent to the weighted average maturity of the portfolio, and 
higher than the 1 year T-Bill benchmark of .11% for the quarter.   
 
At June 30, 2014, yield to maturity was .48% compared to the benchmark of 
.11% for the one-year T-Bill and .14% for the agency benchmark, which is 
equivalent to the weighted average maturity of the portfolio.  This is an 
increase of .11 basis points from last quarter. 
 
The weighted average maturity increased to 377 days as the City’s 
Investment Policy was amended for up to a 5-Year maturity date for single 
investments, with a portfolio composition of 56% in cash, 19% in CDs and 
25% in agency notes as of June 30, 2014. 
 
June 2014 quarter-end highlights are included below, along with September, 
December and March for comparative purposes. 
 

 September 2013 December 2013 March 2014 June 2014 

Beginning Book 
Value 

$ 86,244,583 $ 81,180,410 $ 89,365,731 $ 94,239,639 

Ending Book Value $ 81,180,410 $ 89,365,731 $ 94,239,639 $ 85,261,339 
Change in 

Portfolio 

$ (5,064,173)  $  8,185,321 $ 4,873,908   $ 8,978,300 

Interest Earned $ 43,968 $ 58,819 $ 85,452 $ 96,714 
Weighted Average 

Maturity  
179 Days 230 Days 264 Days 377 Days 

Yield to Maturity .27% .33% .37% .48% 
One Year T-Bill 

Benchmark 

.10% .13% .13% .11% 

Agency 
Benchmark 

.09% .15% .11% .14% 

Portfolio 
Composition: 

    

Cash 69% 67% 66% 56% 
CD 13% 14% 15% 19% 

Agency Notes 18% 19% 19% 25% 
 

Also, as a comparison, Texpool, the State local government investment pool, 
is yielding .036% with a weighted average maturity of 79 days.  The full 
report is attached.  The staff investment committee met on August 19, 2014 
to review the report.  

 



RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Consideration and approval of Resolution 2014-105, to receive the 
investment report for the quarter ending June 2014. 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-105 
 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
accepting the City’s Investment Report for the quarter ending June 
2014. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS:  

 Section 1.  That the City Council hereby accepts the Quarterly Investment 

Report attached hereto as Exhibit “A” for the quarter ending June 2014. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________, 
A.D., 2014. 
 
 
 

     
 ________________________________ 

       TOM REID 
       MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 













































































Consent 
Agenda 
Item E 

E. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-107 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing 
the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 
with the Pearland Independent School District for School Resource Officer 
Program. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   08/25/2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: 08/14/2013 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PREPARED BY: Claire Bogard PRESENTOR: Chief Doyle 

REVIEWED BY:     REVIEW DATE: 

SUBJECT:  Inter-Local agreement with Pearland Independent School District for 
School Resource Officer Program 

EXHIBITS: Resolution 2014-107 
 Inter-Local Agreement 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash Opns 
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
     X   Finance   X Legal  Ordinance  X Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Pearland, for a number of years, has provided police officers to Pearland 
Independent School District (PISD), via an Inter-Local agreement, to be utilized by the District 
as School Resource Officers.   The current agreement expires August 2014, as such, Council 
is being requested to approve an agreement for the upcoming school year.  PISD approved 
the agreement at its August 12 school board meeting.  

SCOPE OF CONTRACT 

The agreement with the District provides for nine officers and one supervisor to the junior high, 
ninth grade and high schools for a nine-month period that corresponds with the District’s 
school calendar.    There is one officer per junior high (4);   one officer at the 9th grade campus 
(1); two officers at Pearland High School  (2), and two officers at Dawson High School(2).   

Jon R. Branson August 18, 2014

Resolution No. R2014-107



 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

PISD is billed monthly for 100% of the personnel costs (including benefits and overtime) 
related to school activities associated with the officers.  In October, the District is billed for the 
annual operating cost of the officer including uniforms, training, fuel, and annual depreciation 
on the vehicle, computer, mobile radios, etc.   Total estimated cost and revenue to the City is 
$803,750.  There is no financial impact to the City; the City is fully reimbursed. 
  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Consideration and approval of Resolution 2014-107 approving the Inter-local Agreement 
between the City and the Pearland Independent School District for the SRO Program.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 RESOLUTION NO. R2014-107 
 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal 
Agreement with the Pearland Independent School District for School 
Resource Officer Program. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That certain Interlocal Agreement by and between the City of Pearland 

and Pearland Independent School District, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby authorized and approved. 

Section 2. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest an Interlocal Agreement with Pearland Independent School 

District. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

 
________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
  
 
________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 
 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

PEARLAND INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF PEARLAND  
 
 

This Agreement is made this ______ day of __________ 2014, between the 
Pearland Independent School District (“District”) and the City of Pearland(“City”). 
 

Pursuant to the authority granted by the “Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act”, Chapter 
791 Texas Government Code providing for the cooperation between local governmental 
bodies, the parties hereto, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained 
herein, agree as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, the contract is made under the authority of Section 791 of the Texas 
Government Code; and, 
  

WHEREAS, the parties, in performing governmental functions or in paying for the 
performance of governmental function hereunder shall make that performance or those 
payments from current revenues legally available to that party; 
 

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of each party find that the subject of this contract 
is necessary for the benefit of the public and that each party has the legal authority to 
perform and to provide the governmental function or service which is the subject matter of 
this contract; furthermore, the governing bodies find that the performance of this contract is 
in the common interest of both parties; and that the division of cost fairly compensates the 
performing. 
 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and 
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, it is 
hereby agreed as follows: 

 
1. City will provide police officers from its police department for District to utilize as 

School Resource Officers (“SROs”) during the nine (9) month period (the “Term”) 
that corresponds with District’s annually adopted school calendar, excluding any 
summer sessions.  All SROs will be equipped with police vehicles unless District 
requests otherwise in writing. 

 
2. District will reimburse to City the full wages, including related overtime, and benefits 

(“Compensation”) that City pays to or provides for the SROs during the Term.  The 
Compensation reimbursement will be invoiced monthly by City and shall be paid by 
District within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice. 

 



 
 2 

3. District will also reimburse City for operational expenses attributable to each SRO, 
including without limitation the costs of training and equipping each SRO with a fully 
equipped police vehicle, a handheld radio, and uniforms (“Expenses”).  The 
reimbursement rate for Expenses for the Term spanning 2014-2015 will be 
$8,876.00 per officer if the officer is equipped with a police vehicle, and $1,785.00 
per officer if the officer is not equipped with a police vehicle.  Expenses 
reimbursement will be invoiced by City in October of each year and shall be paid by 
District within thirty (30) days of receipt of said invoice. 

 
4. City will provide ten SROs to District, comprised of nine Police Officers and one 

Supervisor.  District may unilaterally adjust the number of SROs provided by City by 
notifying City of such change in writing no later than April 1 prior to the start of the 
Term.  If either party wishes to change the number of SROs after April 1, such 
change shall only be effective if mutually agreed upon in writing by both parties.  If 
the number of SROs is changed, District’s billing will be adjusted on a pro rata 
basis.  Absences by officers assigned to District as SROs shall be covered by City’s 
temporarily assigning other police officers for the duration of said absence. 

 
5. The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year, commencing on the effective 

date reflected herein, terminating on the same day of the year 2015.  District will 
reimburse City for Compensation and Expenses incurred for SROs up to the 
effective date of termination of this Agreement. 

 
6. City and District agree that City in performing this Agreement shall act as an 

independent contractor and shall have control of its own work and the manner in 
which it is performed.  District will have the right to allocate the SRO positions 
amongst District’s various facilities as it sees fit, but City will control assignment of 
specific officers to those positions and will maintain supervisory control over all 
SROs in the performance of their duties as peace officers. 

 
7. Nothing herein shall be deemed in any manner to constitute a waiver of sovereign, 

governmental, or any other immunity or affirmative defense that may be asserted by 
District or City.  Nor shall this agreement be in any manner construed to create a 
cause of action for the benefit of any person not a party to this Agreement, or to 
create any rights for the benefit of any person not a party to this Agreement no 
otherwise existing at law. 

 
8. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in this Agreement 

will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party 
sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation moneys that may become 
due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to 
the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless 
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under this Agreement. 

 



 
 3 

9. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such 
manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this 
Agreement is prohibitive or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be 
ineffective to the extent of such provision or invalidity, without invalidating the 
remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

 
10. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with and governed 

by the laws of the State of Texas.   
 
11. This Agreement and all obligations created hereunder shall be performable in 

Brazoria, Fort Bend and Harris Counties, Texas. 
 
 
In witness whereof, the parties have hereunto set their hands and signatures on the date 
first above mentioned. 

 
Pearland Independent School District. 
By: 
 
_______________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND,  
a Texas municipal corporation 

 
 

By:___________________________________    
Clay Pearson, City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 4 

 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   ' 

'     
BRAZORIA COUNTY  ' 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this             day of                
________________, 2014, by ___________________________, on behalf of 
_____________________. 
 

 
                                                              
Notary Public, State of Texas 
My Commission Expires: 
 
                                                                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   ' 

'     
BRAZORIA COUNTY  ' 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
_________________, 2014, by Clay Pearson, City Manager of the City of Pearland, a 
Texas home rule municipality, on behalf of said municipality. 
 

 
                                                              
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
                                                              



Consent 
Agenda 
Item F 

F. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-101 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, adopting the 
updated Parks and Recreation Programming Standards of Care for youth, 
ages 5-13 years. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this agenda request is to provide an updated version to the current Standards of 
Care (SOC) that are to be adopted annually by City Council. Included in this packet is the updated 
version of the standards that will be scheduled as an action item on an upcoming Council agenda. 

The standards were originally presented to Council in 2010. Updates were necessary in 2011 and 
now in 2014. This year the most significant change is our commitment to health. In collaboration 
with the National Recreation and Park Association it is our commitment to help kids grow up 
healthy with their community parks and recreation. Commit to Health is a five year campaign that 
supports the implementation of Healthy Eating and Physical Activity Standards (HEPA). There are 
19 HEPA standards. We have included 7 in our SOC. 

Background 

The SOC are intended to be minimum standards by which the City of Pearland Parks and 
Recreation Department will operate the City’s Youth Programs for children for a minimum of 3 
consecutive hours at a time for ages 5 - 13 years. These are basic childcare regulations for programs 
operated by the City of Pearland. 

The Texas Department of Family and Protective Services requires licensing of all agencies that care 
for children ages 5-13, however  we as a municipality qualify for exemption based on the following: 

  AGENDA OF:    8/25/14        ITEM NO.:

     DATE SUBMITTED: 8/6/14  DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: P&R 

     PREPARED BY:  Colene Cabezas          PRESENTOR:  Michelle Graham 

     REVIEWED BY:   Jon R. Branson            REVIEW DATE: August 6, 2014 

SUBJECT: Annual Adoption of the Parks and Recreation Standards of Care 

EXHIBITS: R2014-101; 2014 Standards of Care, Thursday Packet Memo 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 

Resolution No. R2014-101



“Required license or accreditation does not apply to an elementary-age (ages 5-13) 
recreation program operated by a municipality provided the governing body of the 
municipality annually adopts standards of care by ordinance after a public hearing for such 
programs, that such standards are provided to the parents of each program participant, and 
that the ordinances shall include, at minimum staffing ratios, minimum staff qualifications, 
minimum facility, health, and safety standards, and mechanisms for monitoring and 
enforcing the adopted local standards; and further provide that parent be informed that the 
program is not licensed by the state and the program may not be advertised as a child-care 
facility” 

The programs operated by the City are recreational in nature and are not day care programs. These 
standards allow the department to ensure the safety of children participating in programs.  They also 
enable the department to provide consistency in our delivery of service as it relates to caring for the 
youth of the community.  The SOC will be reviewed and adopted annually. Council will also be kept 
informed of any compliance violations of the SOC. In 2011 there was one compliance violation. 
That violation was easily fixed with the addition of a statement on our marketing materials. The 
statement we included was that our camps are not recognized as a licensed day care by the state. 
There have been no other compliance issues to date. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends that Council approve and adopt the updated Standards of Care established for 
the Parks & Recreation recreational programming for youth ages 5-13 years. 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-101 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
adopting the updated Parks and Recreation Programming Standards 
of Care for youth, ages 5-13 years. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  That the City Council hereby approves the Standards of Care 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________, 
A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 





























THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 1  

 
PURPOSE 
 
The following Standards of Care are intended to be minimum standards by which 
the City of Pearland Parks and Recreation Department will operate the City’s 
Youth Programs that program for children for a minimum of 3 consecutive hours 
at a time and for ages 5- 12 years. These are basic childcare regulations for 
programs operated by the City of Pearland. The programs operated by the City 
are recreational in nature and are not day care programs. These Standards of 
Care will allow the department to ensure the safety of children participating in 
programs.  They will also enable the department to provide consistency in our 
delivery of service as it relates to caring for the youth of the community.  The 
Standards of Care will be reviewed and adopted annually by Council. 
  

I. GENERAL INFORMATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

A. Organization 
 

According to the City Charter the City of Pearland is a council-
manager government where in the elective members of Council 
appoints the City Manager.  The elected members “City Council” 
enact local legislation, adopt budgets, determine policies, and 
appoint the City Manager who is responsible for the execution of 
the laws and the administration of the government of the city. 
 

B. Implementation 
 

The City Manager designates the operations and implementation of 
the Youth Programs Standards of Care is the responsibility of the 
Parks and Recreation Department Director and designees. 
 

C. Application 
 

Services to which these Standards of Care will apply are:  
(Ages 5-12 years for a minimum of 3 consecutive hours) 

• Camps 
• After School Programs 
 

D. Access to Standards 
 

1. Each site will have a current copy of the Standards of 
Care available for public and staff review. 

 
2. Parents will be able to view the Standards of Care on-

line and it will also be available upon request. 
 



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 2  

E. Program Objectives for Youth Programs: 
1. Provide a variety of opportunities to learn something new 

that encourages growth and responsibility while 
discovering a new interest. 

II. STAFFING 
 

A. Specific Job Requirements 
 

1. Program Supervisors 
 
Essential Job Functions 

1. Leaders direct and supervise a day camp / 
afterschool program for ages 5-12 years. 

2. Develop and implement a daily curriculum under 
Parks and Recreation guidelines. 

3. Responsible for ensuring activities are conducted in a 
safe manner. 

4. Responsible for all related record keeping. 
5. Supervise and interact with participants in a wide 

variety of recreational activities.  
6. Responsible for communicating needs to supervisors.  
7. Interact with participants, parents, and other staff to 

provide a high quality program.  
8. Responsible for maintaining facility appearance 

during and after camp / afterschool. 
9. Responsible for reporting any incidents/accidents to 

supervisor.  
 
 
Minimum Qualifications 

1. Must be mature, responsible, and able to complete 
duties with minimal supervision. 

2. Must have a high school diploma or GED. 
3. Must be able to communicate with the public and 

skilled at interacting with children. 
4. Must be skilled in supervising children of varying 

age levels in a group setting.  
5. Must have a valid Texas driver’s license and 

eligible for a CDL. 
6. Must pass a department criminal background 

check and drug screening.  
7. Must have previous experience in supervising 

children and posses knowledge of recreational 
games, crafts, and activities.  



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 3  

8. Must have First Aid and CPR certification prior to 
camp start date. 

9. City employees must complete departmental 
training.  

 
 

B. Criminal Background Checks 
 

Criminal Background Checks will be conducted on prospective 
Youth Program Employees or Contract employees. If results of the 
check indicate that an applicant has been convicted of any of the 
following offenses, he or she will not be considered for 
employment: 
 

1. a felony  
2. a misdemeanor pertaining to the following: 

• public indecency 
• delivery/distribution of a controlled substance 
• possession of a controlled substance within the 

last 10 years. 
 

C. Drug Screening 
 
All prospective city employees will be subject to a drug test prior to 
hiring.  
 

D. Minimum Staff Ratios 
 
The number of children may not exceed staff by a minimum ratio of 
1 staff per 15 children, ages 5-12. 
 

E. Training 
1. The Department is responsible for providing training and 

orientation to all program leaders in working with 
children and for specific job responsibilities.  

2. Employees will be trained on the provision of recreation 
activities and games. 

3. All leaders must be familiar with the Standards of Care 
for Youth Programs.  

4. Program employees will be trained in appropriate 
procedures to handle emergencies, including first aid 
and CPR. 

5. Leaders will be trained in City and Department policies 
and procedures.  

 
III. FACILITY STANDARDS 



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 4  

 
A. Safety Measures 

1. Emergency evacuation and relocation plans will be 
posted at each facility.  

2. Each site will have a fully stocked first aid kit. 
3. In a situation where evacuation is necessary, the first 

priority of staff is to make sure all participants are in a 
safe location. 

4. All sites will be equipped with the appropriate number of 
fire extinguishers. Fire extinguishers shall be inspected 
annually to ensure they are in working order.  

 
B. Inspections 

1. Program employees will inspect sites daily for a 
sanitation or safety concerns. Any and all concerns 
should be passed on to the site director immediately. A 
daily report will be completed and kept on file.  

2. A daily inspection will be made of all equipment and 
supplies that will be utilized that week. 

 
C. Health and Sanitation 

1. All indoor sites will have toilets located and equipped 
where children can use them independently and staff 
can supervise as needed. 

2. There must be one flush toilet for every 30 children. 
3. The site must have an adequate supply of water and 

ensure that it will be provided to participants in a safe 
and sanitary manner.  

 
IV. SERVICE STANDARDS 
 

A. Appearance and Behavior 
1. Staff name badges and attire will be worn and clearly 

visible. 
2. Participants and parents will be treated with respect at 

all times.  
 

B. Communication with Parents 
1. Staff will keep parents continuously informed of the 

activities and schedules. A weekly schedule will be 
available for parents upon request and copies will be 
kept with the daily sign in sheets.  

2. Staff will note details of the behavior of participants 
(accomplishments, discipline problems, general 
activities, etc.) and update parents as much as possible. 

 



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 5  

C. Additional Staff Responsibilities 
1. Staff will monitor the sign in/out log at all times 
2. Staff will make an attempt to answer any complaints at 

the site and resolve all problems. Situations that cannot 
be resolved on site by staff will be referred to a 
supervisor immediately. All Complaints will be followed 
up on within 24 hours if they are not resolved on site. 

3. Prior to beginning work each day all staff will check in 
the appointed location for any messages, instructions or 
information.   

 
V. OPERATIONAL ISSUES 

A. Emergency phone numbers are kept at the front desk of the 
facilities, as well as with the supervisors on any field trips. Those 
numbers include fire, police and ambulance service, administration, 
Community Centers and all supervisors. A list of cell phone 
numbers will also be made available.  

 
B. A Program manual is given to every staff member. The manual will 

include the following: 
1. Discipline Policy 
2. Rules and Regulations 
3. Forms 
4. Standards 
5. Game, activity leadership 
6. Guidelines for interacting with children 
7. Program Goals and Objectives 
8. Departments Mission and Vision 
 

C. Sign in and out sheets will be used everyday. Only adults listed on 
the sign in/out release will be allowed to pick up a child. An 
authorized person must sign the sheet in order for staff to release 
the child.  

 
D. Emergency evacuation and relocation plans will be posted at each 

facility. 
 

 
E. Parents will be notified regarding planned field trips and provided 

the required release forms. 
 
F. There will be a general staff to participant ration of 1 staff to every 

15 children.  Afterschool, Camp and Field Trips will vary. 
 

G. Enrollment information will be kept and maintained on each child 
and shall include: 



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 6  

• Child’s name, birth date, home address, home telephone 
number,  and any phone number where parents maybe 
reached during the day 

• Parent’s names, address and phone number 
• Names and telephone numbers of persons to whom the child 

can be released  
• Liability Waiver 
• Medical Information and release on participant 
• Field Trip /Transportation release  form as needed 

 
H. Discipline 

1. Discipline and guidance of children must be consistent 
and based on an understanding of individual needs and 
development.  

2. There shall be no harsh, cruel, or unusual treatment.  
3. Program employees may use brief, supervised 

separation from the group if necessary.  
4. Incident reports will be filled out on any disciplinary 

cases, and information is to be shared with parents 
when picking up the child or sooner when circumstances 
warrant it. 

5. A sufficient number and/or severe nature of discipline 
reports, as detailed in the Program Manual, may result in 
a participant being suspended from the program.  

6. In instances where there is a danger to participants or 
staff, offending participants will be removed from the 
program site as soon as possible.  

7. Program participants must adhere to the Parks and 
Recreation Department Behavior Policy. 

 
 

I. Illness or Injury 
1. Participants who are considered to be a health or safety 

concern to other participants or employees will not be 
permitted into to the program.  

2. Staff shall immediately notify the parent or other person 
authorized by the parent when the child is injured or has 
been involved in any situation which placed the child at 
risk.  

3. An ill child will not be allowed to participate if the child is 
suspected of having a temperature and/or accompanied 
by behavior changes or other signs or symptoms until 
medical evaluation indicates that the child can be 
included in the activities.  

4. Illness and injuries will be handled in a manner to protect 
the health of all participants and employees.  



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 7  

5. When injury occurs, an incident/accident report shall be 
filled out completely and immediately after the incident. 

6. Staff shall notify parents or authorized persons of 
children in the facility when there is an outbreak of a 
communicable disease in the facility, required to be 
reported to the County Department of Health. Staff must 
notify parents of children in a group there is an outbreak 
of lice or other infestation in the group.  

 
J. Transportation 

1. Before participants are transported to and from a City 
sponsored activity, a transportation release form must be 
completed by the parents.  

2. Program staff will carry all participant information forms 
when away from the program site.  

3. First aid supplies will be available in any vehicle 
transporting program participants.  

 
VI. ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMMING 
 

A. The program will provide activities for each group according to the 
participant’s age, interest, and abilities. The activities should be 
flexible and promote the emotional, social, and educational 
advancement of each participant.  

 
B. Programs will include indoor and outdoor activities.  
 
C. Programs will include a balance of active and passive activities, as 

well as group/individual activities.  
 

D. Program supervisors will incorporate the Healthy Eating and 
Physical Activity (HEPA) Standards that are applicable and feasible 
into the current Program Content.  

1. Healthy Eating Standards: 
a. Provide plain potable drinking water. 
b. Provide snacks or frozen desserts that meet the 

USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards. 
c. Serve only non-caffeinated beverages 
 

2. Physical Activity Standards: 
a. Dedicate at least 20% or at least 30 minutes of 

morning or afterschool program time to physical 
activity and at least 60 minutes of a full day program. 

b. Provide physical activities in which youth are 
moderately to vigorously active for at least 50% of the 
physical activity time. 



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 8  

c. Limit digital device time to less than one hour per day 
and digital device use is limited to homework or 
activities that engage youth in moderate to vigorous 
intensity physical activity. 
  

3. Youth and Family Education Standard: 
a. Offer evidence-based nutrition education to youth. 

 
 

VII. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR CHILDREN 
  

A. A child is not allowed to use the telephone unless it is an 
emergency. In this case, staff should make the call for the child.  

 
B. Children must walk in the building. Running is only permitted in the 

gym or for specific activities.  
 

C. Children must respect staff, each other, and themselves. 
 

D. Children must wear shoes at all times unless otherwise directed. 
 

E. Programs in facilities where the general public has access to the 
facility will assign staff to remain with the youth participants at all 
times (bathrooms, lunch breaks, activities, etc.) Children will never 
be unsupervised. 

 
F. Staff must know where each and every child is AT ALL TIMES. 
 
 

VIII. MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT 
 

A. To confirm and ensure the Standards of Care are being adhered to, 
each program supervisor will complete a weekly inspection report. 
The reports will be reviewed and filed in the program supervisor’s 
office.    

 
B. The program supervisor will review all reports and inspections. If it 

is determined that the site is not in compliance the Recreation 
Superintendent will be informed and a deadline  will be set for 
compliance  

 
C. Complaints regarding enforcement of the Standards of Care will be 

directed to the program supervisor. The supervisor will be 
responsible to take the necessary steps to resolve the problems. 
Complaints will be recorded and reported to the Recreation 



THE CITY OF PEARLAND PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS OF CARE 

 

 
Youth Program Standards of Care  Page 9  

Superintendent. The resolution to the complaint will be reported 
and kept on file.  

 
D. The Standards of Care will be reviewed annually and updated 

accordingly.  City Council will be kept informed on the overall status 
of compliance issues when they arise. 

 
 
 
Review and Revision History 
Created September 2010 
Updated September 2011 
Reviewed September 2013 
Updated August 2014 



New 
Business 
Item No. 1 

1. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-108 – A
Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Pearland, Texas, authorizing
the sale of undeveloped property abutting the Sam Houston Toll Way
(between south Wayside Drive and Mykawa Road) to the Harris County
Toll Road authority in the amount of $1,371,356.00.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:  August 25, 2014 ITEM NO.: 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 8, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Engineering and Capital 
Projects 

PREPARED BY: Anthony Vu PRESENTOR: Trent Epperson 

REVIEWED BY: Trent Epperson REVIEW DATE:   August 15, 2014 

SUBJECT: City of Pearland Land Sale to Harris County Toll Road Authority 

EXHIBITS:   R2014-108; A- Warranty Deed; B- Easement; C- Survey Map; D- Area 
Map

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: NA AMOUNT BUDGETED:  NA 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: NA PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:  NA 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
        Finance   X Legal  Ordinance X  Resolution 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of a resolution approving a land acquisition sale with Harris 
County Toll Road Authority for the grand total of $1,371,356.00 and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the warranty deeds and permanent access easement.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 
The City of Pearland acquired a tract of land on September 29, 1997 for $410,058.25. The 
property consisted of approximately 146.13 acres generally bounded by undeveloped Howe 
Street (South Wayside Drive) to the west, Beltway 8 to the north, Mykawa Road to the east, 
and Clear Creek to the south (see Exhibit D). At the time, City Administration was able to 
acquire at a favorable cost with the intention of getting the property under City control for 
development purposes.  Subsequently, there was a proposed Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
swap with the City of Houston, which would have put the property within the City of Pearland 
that was not completed.  The property has significant development issues with lack of utilities, 
existing wetlands, floodplain, and floodway, so it was used for other purposes.   

Resolution No. R2014-108



The City utilized approximately 35 acres of the property to construct a wetland mitigation site 
for the Pearland Parkway project and 1.51 acres to construct a floodplain fill mitigation pond for 
the State Highway 35 project (TxDOT Pond).  

In April 17, 2012, Harris County Toll Road Authority (HCTRA) notified the City that they were 
investigating certain properties adjacent to the right-of-way of Beltway 8 for additional 
detention capacity to mitigate the drainage impacts of expanding the Sam Houston Tollway by 
two lanes in each direction. HCTRA initiated offers to purchase two tracts of land located within 
the 146.13 acres on August 13, 2013. Staff provided feedback and comments regarding the 
initial appraisals to ensure the property was properly appraised.  In addition, staff commented 
on the initial location to ensure the acquisition would not encumber future projects.  After 
several revisions to their detention design, HCTRA reinitiated their acquisition efforts in August 
11, 2014 to acquire a 4.695 acre and 3.729 acre tract of land for $664,641.00 and $694,139.75 
respectively, a permanent access easement for $1,846.00 and a temporary access easement 
for $8,925.00. 

The valuations of the two proposed tracts have been made by an independent State Certified 
Real Estate Appraiser to determine its fair market value for HCTRA. The property is located in 
the City of Houston which has no zoning ordinance which would restrict development of the 
property. Therefore, according to the appraiser, the highest and best use of the property is for 
multi-family, commercial, retail, light industrial improvements or special properties. Staff and 
our appraisal consultants have reviewed the appraisal reports and concurred with the 
appraiser’s valuation.   

SCOPE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT 

HCTRA purchase of a 4.695 acre tract (A100K on Exhibit D) in fee simple. 

Improvements: 452LF barbed wire fence x $3.11 per square feet $1,406.00 
Cost to cure:  1,358 LF of barbed wire fencing x $3.11 per square feet $4,223.00 
Land:  204,505 square feet x $3.25 per square feet  $664,641.00 
Access Easement: 113,566 square feet x $3.25 per square feet x 1% x 50% $1,846.00 

Total: $672,116.00 

HCTRA purchased of a 3.729 acre tract (A100J on Exhibit D) in fee simple. 

Land: 162,427 square feet x 4.25 per square feet $690,315.00 
Temp. Access Easement: 2,100 square feet x $4.25 per square feet $8,925.00 

Total: $699,240.00 

Grand Total: $1,371,356.00 

Whole property:  146.13 acres 
Part to be acquired by HCTRA:    (8.424 acres) 

Property after HCTRA sale:  137.706 acres 
Less:  Wetland Mitigation Site   (35.033 acres) 

TxDOT Pond      (1.51 acres) 
Remaining usable land:   101.163 acres 



 
BID AND AWARD 
n/a 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
August 25, 2014 City Council meeting 
August 26, 2014 Obtain signatures for Deed 
August 27, 2014 Deed to Harris County  
September 1, 2014 Harris County check request (4-6 weeks) 
October 13, 2014 Tentative closing date at Title Company; receive compensation 

 
 

 
POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 
 
The intended use of the property by HCTRA is compatible with the existing use of the property 
and supports the expansion of the South Sam Houston Tollway, which will provide improved 
mobility for the region and Pearland.  As HCTRA has identified this property as an ideal 
location for storm water detention for the project, they would have the option to exercise 
Eminent Domain to acquire the property if this negotiated price is not accepted. 
 
 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-108 
 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing the sale of undeveloped property abutting the Sam 
Houston Toll Way (between south Wayside Drive and Mykawa Road) 
to the Harris County Toll Road authority in the amount of 
$1,371,356.00. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS: 

 Section 1.  That certain Warranty Deed and Access Easement attached hereto 

as Exhibits “A” and “B” and made a part hereof for all purposes are hereby conveyed to 

the Harris County Toll Road authority in the amount of $1,371,356.00. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________, 
A.D., 2014. 
 
 
 

     
 ________________________________ 

       TOM REID 
       MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



Tract A100J and A100K, Sam Houston Tollway SE 
 
 

WARRANTY DEED 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF HARRIS §      KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

  

 That, City of Pearland,, hereinafter known as Grantor, whether one or more, for 

and in consideration of the sum of ONE MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTY 

THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY FIVE NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,360,585.00), to 

Grantor in hand paid by the County of Harris, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

have GRANTED, SOLD and CONVEYED, and by these presents do GRANT, SELL and 

CONVEY unto the said County of Harris, a body corporate and politic under the laws of 

the State of Texas, all of the following described real property in the County of Harris, State 

of Texas, to-wit: 

  

 8.424 acres of land, collectively as two tracts situated in the W. J. Lovett 

Survey, Abstract No. 526, Harris County, Texas, being more particularly 

described in Exhibit "A"  and “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for 

descriptive purposes (the “land”). 

 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described land, together with all and 

singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging, unto the said County 

of Harris, its successors or assigns forever; save and except the following reservations and 

provisions: 

  



 This conveyance is subject to all easements, restrictions and reservations of record 

in the County Clerk's Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris County, which 

affect the property herein conveyed, to the extent they are valid and subsisting and are 

enforceable against a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 

  

 And the said Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and assigns to warrant 

and forever defend all and singular the said land unto the said County of Harris, its 

successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever, lawfully claiming or to claim 

the same, or any part thereof, except as to the reservations from and exceptions to 

conveyance and warranty. 

 

 
 EXECUTED this _________ day of ____________________, 2014. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

                                                    City of Pearland 
 
            
        BY: _________________________________ 
 
 
                          _________________________________ 
                                                                Print or type name and title 
           
 
                                                                        
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                          



 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on _____________________, 2014, by  
 
____________________________, __________________________ of City of Pearland, on 
behalf of said city, 
      
            
      __________________________________ 
      Notary Public signature  
 
 
 
 
 













ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Date:  ______________________________ 
 
Grantor: City of Pearland 
 
Grantor’s Mailing Address (including county): 
 
  3519 Liberty Drive 
  Pearland, TX 77581 
   
 
Grantee: County of Harris 
Grantee’s Mailing Address (including county): 
 

 10555 Northwest Freeway, Suite 210 
  Houston, TX 77092 
 
 
Dominant Estate Property (including any improvements): 
 

4.695 acres of land out of the W.J. Lovett Survey, Abstract No. 526 
in Harris County, Texas, described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and made a part hereof, more particularly described above as the 
Dominate Estate property 

 
Easement Property: 2.607 acre tract of land located in the W.J. Lovett Survey, 

Abstract 526 in Harris County, Texas; described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for descriptive 
purposes.   

 
Easement Purpose: For providing free and un-restricted pedestrian and 

vehicular ingress and egress with unlimited access to and 
from the Dominant Estate Property, and portions thereof, to 
and from Sam Houston Parkway.  

 
Consideration: $1,846.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Reservations from and Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty: 
 
Easements, rights of way and prescriptive rights, whether of record or not; presently 
recorded and valid instruments, other than encumbrances and conveyances, that affect 
the Easement Property, all visible and apparent easements on or across the Easement 
Property. 
 
Grantor, for the consideration and subject to the reservations from and exceptions to 
conveyance and warranty, grants, sells, and conveys to Grantee an easement over, upon 
and across the Easement Property for the Easement Purpose and for the benefit of the 
Dominant Estate property, and any portions thereof, together with all and singular the 
rights and appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, to have and hold it to Grantee, 
Grantee’s successors, or assigns forever. Grantor binds Grantor and Grantor’s 
successors and assigns against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim 
the same or any part thereof, except as to the reservation from and exceptions to 
conveyance and warranty. The following terms and conditions shall apply to the 
easement: 
 

1. Character of Easement.  The easement granted is appurtenant to and shall 
run with, the Dominant Estate Property, and any portions thereof, whether or not such 
easement is referenced in any conveyance of the Dominant Easement Property, and/or 
any portion thereof.  Vehicle access will be limited to Harris County for access to its’ 
building easement.   

 
2. Duration of Easement.  The easement shall be perpetual 

 
3. Exclusiveness of Easement.  The easement is nonexclusive, and Grantor 

reserves for Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns the right to convey the same 
or other rights and/or easements to others, so long as such further conveyance is 
subject to this grant. 

 
 
4. Secondary Easement.  In addition, the Grantee shall have the right to use 

so much of the surface of the property adjacent to the Easement Property as may be 
reasonably necessary to install and maintain a road reasonably suited for the Easement 
Purpose.  However, the Grantee shall promptly restore any such adjacent property to its 
previous physical condition if changed by utilization of the rights granted by this 
secondary easement. 
 

5. Rights Reserved.  Grantor reserves for Grantor and Grantor’s successors 
and assigns the right to continue to use and enjoy the surface of the Easement Property 



for all purposes which do not interfere with or interrupt the use or enjoyment of the 
easement.  Grantor may improve Easement Property with pavement, etc., cross with 
drainage and culverts, and other utilities necessary to connect Grantor’s divided 
property.    
 

6. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns where 
permitted by this Agreement. 

 
7. Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be subject to and governed by the 

laws of the State of Texas, excluding any conflicts-of-law rule or principle that might 
refer the construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the laws of another state. 
Each party hereby submits to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts in the State 
of Texas and to venue in the county or counties in which the Easement Property is 
situated. 

 
8. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts with the same effect as if all signatory parties had signed the same 
document. All counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one and the 
same instrument. 

 
9. Effect of Waiver or Consent.  No waiver or consent, express or implied, by 

any party to or of any breach or default by any party in the performance by such party 
of its obligations hereunder shall be deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver to 
or of any other breach or default in the performance by such party of the same or any 
other obligations of such party hereunder. Failure on the part of a party to complain of 
any act of any party or to declare any party in default, irrespective of how long such 
failure continues, shall not constitute a waiver by such party of its rights hereunder 
until the applicable statute of limitation period has run. 

 
10. Integration.  This Agreement contains the complete agreement between 

the parties and cannot be varied except by the written agreement of the parties. The 
parties agree that there no oral agreements, understandings, representations or 
warranties which are not expressly set forth herein. 

 
11. Legal Construction.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained 

in this Agreement shall for any reason be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any 
respect, to the extent such invalidity or unenforceability does not destroy the basis of 
the bargain among the parties, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not 
affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.  Whenever 
required by the context as used in this Agreement, the singular number shall include 
the plural and neuter shall include the masculine or feminine gender, and vice versa. 



Article and Section headings appearing in this Agreement are for convenient reference 
only and are not intended, to any extent or for any purpose, to restrict or define the text 
of any Article or Section. This Agreement shall not be construed more or less favorably 
between the parties by reason of authorship or origin of language. 

 
 
 

    GRANTOR: 
 
    City of Pearland 

 
 

By: _______________________________ 
 
                         _______________________________ 
                                                Print name and title     

 

 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

    § 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

This Instrument was acknowledged before me on _________________________, 2014, by  
 
__________________________, _______________________ of City of Pearland, on behalf 
of said city. 
 

________________________________ 
Notary Public signature 











 1 

           TEMPORARY ACCESS EASEMENT 
 
 

 
Date:  ___________________________________ 
 
Grantor: City of Pearland 
 
Grantor’s Mailing Address: 
   

3519 Liberty Drive 
                        Pearland, TX 77581 
 
 
Grantee: County of Harris, a body corporate and politic of the State of Texas 
 
Grantee’s Mailing Address: 
 

 10555 Northwest Freeway, Suite 210 
 Houston, TX 77092 

 
 
Dominant Estate Property (including any improvements):   
 

3.729 acres of land out of the W. J. Lovett Survey, Abstract   
526 in Harris County, Texas, described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, more particularly 
described above as the Dominate Estate property 

 
Easement Property: 0.048 acre tract of land located in the W.J. Lovett Survey, 

Abstract 526 Harris County, Texas; described in Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for descriptive 
purposes.   

 
Easement Purpose: For providing free and uninterrupted pedestrian and 

vehicular ingress and egress to and from the Dominant 
Estate Property, and portions thereof, to and from Sam 
Houston State Parkway 

 
Consideration: $8,925.00  
 
Reservations from and Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty: 
 



 2 

Easements, rights of way and prescriptive rights, whether of record or not 
presently recorded and valid instruments, other than encumbrances and 
conveyances, that affect the Easement Property, all visible and apparent 
easements on or across the Easement Property. 

 
Grantor, for the consideration and subject to the Reservations from and Exceptions to 
Conveyance and Warranty, grants, and conveys to Grantee an easement over, upon and 
across the Easement Property for the Easement Purpose and for the benefit of the 
Dominant Estate Property, and any portions thereof, together with all and singular the 
rights and appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, to have and hold the easement 
to Grantee and Grantee’s successors, or assigns, forever. Grantor binds Grantor and 
Grantor’s successors, and assigns to warrant and forever defend the title to the 
easement in Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the easement or any part thereof, except as to 
the Reservations from and Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty. The following 
terms and conditions shall apply to the easement: 
 

1. Character of Easement.         The easement granted is appurtenant to and 
shall run with the Dominant Estate Property, or any portion thereof, whether or not 
such easement is referenced in any conveyance of the Dominant Easement Property, or 
any portion thereof. If, from time to time, or any time, all, or part, of the Dominant 
Estate Property is conveyed, assigned, or transferred to, or is otherwise vested in, one or 
more parties, as to any estate or interest therein, including, but not limited to that of a 
leasehold, license, or easement, then, in such case, the easement granted hereby shall 
inure to the benefit of, and may be used and enjoyed by, such party or parties, for the 
Easement Purpose, such easement being an appurtenance to the estate or interest 
owned by that party or parties, whether such interest or estate is owned as to all, or 
only part, of the Dominant Estate Property and whether that estate or interest be that of 
a fee simple, leasehold, license, or easement. The easement granted herein shall be used 
for the purpose recited in the “Easement Purpose,” and for that purpose, only, except 
that in the case of the Grantee, and the Grantee, only, the term, “free and uninterrupted 
pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress,” as used in the Easement Purpose,  

 
2.      Duration of Easement.    The easement shall be temporary and will expire 

upon completing construction and opening of Wayside Drive.  
 
3. Rights Reserved.  Grantor reserves for Grantor and Grantor’s successors 

and assigns the right to continue to use and enjoy the surface of the Easement Property 
for all purposes which do no interfere with or interrupt the use or enjoyment of the 
easement.   

 
4. Binding Effect.  This agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns.   



 3 

 
  5. Integration.   This agreement contains the complete agreement between 

the parties and cannot be varied except by the written agreement of the parties. The 
parties agree that there no oral agreements, understandings, representations or 
warranties which are not expressly set forth herein.  

 
 

GRANTOR: 
     
      City of Pearland 
 
 
      BY: __________________________________ 
 
       
             __________________________________ 
             Print or type name 
                 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
    § 
COUNTY  OF  HARRIS § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on _________________________, 2014 by 
__________________________, _______________________ of City of Pearland, on behalf of 
said city. 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Notary Public Signature 

























Clear Creek

Centerpoint Energy Easement/ROW

Clear Creek

TXDOT Pond

City of Pearland

:
0 500

Feet

P:\GIS\Projects\SamHoustonTollway\Southeast\DougEmery-DetentionPondExhibit\DougEmery-DetentionPondExhibit-JMO.mxd Photograph date: January 2012

Hardy Toll Road North

Legend

Sam Houston Tollway - Southeast Widening

www.hctra.org

HCTRA Detention Basin

Wetland Mitigation Area

July 7, 2014

A100J

A100K

HCTRA Access Easement

HCAD Parcels

TXDOT Pond

HCTRA Drainage Easement

Exhibit B



New 
Business 
Item No. 2 

2. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-102 – A
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing
the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal Agreement
with Brazoria County for certain road overlay projects: 1) Hatfield Road,
FM 518 north to Rice Road; 2) Veterans Drive, Walnut Street south to
Magnolia Drive; and 3) Harkey Road, Magnolia Drive south to Bailey
Road.



AGENDA   REQUEST 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The attached Interlocal Agreement between the City and County is the annual 
agreement that covers the construction, maintenance, improvement and repair activities 
on certain streets in the City. The City will provide the materials and the County will 
provide the equipment and labor for work performed under the agreement. The roads 
for proposed maintenance are identified on Exhibit “A.” 
 
 
 
 

 

 AGENDA OF: 8-25-14 ITEM NO.:  Resolution No. R2014-102 

 
 DATE SUBMITTED: DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Public Works 
 
 PREPARED BY: Darrin Coker PRESENTOR: Eric Wilson 
 

  REVIEWED BY: NA REVIEW DATE: NA 
 

 

SUBJECT: Brazoria County Interlocal (Roads) 
 
 

EXHIBITS: R2014-102 
                     

 
EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  AMOUNT BUDGETED:  
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  
 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
          Finance     Legal        Ordinance    Resolution 



 RESOLUTION NO. R2014-102 
 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal 
Agreement with Brazoria County for certain road overlay projects: 1) 
Hatfield Road, FM 518 north to Rice Road; 2) Veterans Drive, Walnut 
Street south to Magnolia Drive; and 3) Harkey Road, Magnolia Drive 
south to Bailey Road. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That certain Interlocal Agreement by and between the City of Pearland 

and Brazoria County, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 

hereof for all purposes, is hereby authorized and approved. 

Section 2. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest an Interlocal Agreement with Brazoria County. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

 
________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
  
 
________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

















New 
Business 
Item No. 3 

3. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No.
1502 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas,
repealing Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages, of the City of Pearland Code of
Ordinances, in its entirety, and adopting a new Chapter 4 for the purposes
of complying with state law; having a savings clause, a severability clause,
and a repealer clause; providing for publication, codification, and an
effective date.



AGENDA   REQUEST 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 Attached for Council’s consideration is a proposed revision of the City’s Alcohol 
Ordinance that was provided to Council in the June 26th Administrative Packet.  The 
City’s current ordinance was drafted in 1960 and does not comply with state law; however, 
the City’s practice of issuing alcohol permits has always followed the state’s guidelines. 
The purpose for the new ordinance is to make the City’s ordinance consistent with state 
law and how the City processes permits. State law generally permits municipalities to 
regulate the location and hours of operation for the sale of alcoholic beverages, and the 
following represents a summary of the ordinance: 

 Churches and public hospitals; not allowed within 300
feet; distance measured front door to front door along right-
of-way lines; NO EXCEPTIONS 

 Public or Private Schools; not allowed within 300 feet;
distance measured from the property line of the school to 
the property line of the business and in a direct line across 
intersections; EXCEPTION: If the business is a food and 

AGENDA OF: 8-25-14 ITEM NO.:

DATE SUBMITTED: 8-11-14 DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Darrin Coker PRESENTOR: Darrin Coker 

REVIEWED BY: NA REVIEW DATE: NA 

SUBJECT: Alcohol Ordinance 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 1502; June 26, 2014 Council memo; Permit Location 
Verification Form 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: AMOUNT BUDGETED: 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 

Ordinance No. 1502



beverage certificate holder (restaurant) within 300 feet 

of a private school. A private school is one that offers a 
course of instruction in one or more grades from K-12th 
grade and has more than 100 students enrolled and attending 
courses at a single location. 

 Daycare; not allowed within 300 feet; distance measured
in a direct line from the property line of the daycare to the 
property line of the business, and in a direct line across 
intersections; EXCEPTION: If the business is a food and 

beverage certificate holder or an off-premise permit 

(grocery and convenient store) within 300 feet of a 

daycare. A daycare facility is one that provides care for 
more than 12 children under the age of 14 for less than 24 
hours per day. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1502 

An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
repealing Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages, of the City of Pearland 
Code of Ordinances, in its entirety, and adopting a new Chapter 4 for 
the purposes of complying with state law; having a savings clause, 
a severability clause, and a repealer clause; providing for 
publication, codification, and an effective date. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages, of the City of Pearland Code 

of Ordinances, is hereby repealed and a new Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages, is hereby 

adopted to read as follows: 

“Sec. 4-1. Permit Required; Fees. 

No person shall manufacture, sell, distribute or store any alcoholic beverage 
within the city without first obtaining a permit from the City Secretary. Prior to 
the issuance of a permit pursuant to this Chapter, the applicant for the permit 
shall pay to the city such fees as are authorized by state law. 

Sec. 4-2. General requirements. 

(a) Churches and public hospitals. The sale of alcoholic beverages by a 
dealer whose place of business is within 300 feet of a church or public 
hospital is prohibited.  

(b)  Public and private schools within 300 feet. The sale of alcoholic 
beverages by a   dealer whose place of business is within 300 feet of a 
public school or a "private school" as that term is defined in V.T.C.A., 
Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33, is prohibited. This section does not 
apply to the holder of:  

(1) A license or permit who also holds a food and 
beverage certificate covering a   premises that is 
located within 300 feet or a private school; or 

(2) A license or permit covering a premises where 
minors are prohibited from entering under V.T.C.A., 



ORDINANCE NO. 1502 

Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.53, and that is 
located within 300 feet of a private school.  

(c) Day care centers and child care facilities. The sale of alcoholic beverages 
by a dealer whose place of business is within 300 feet of a day care center or 
child care facility, as those terms are defined by V.T.C.A., Human Resources 
Code § 42.002 is prohibited.  

(1) This section does not apply to a permit or license 
holder who sells alcoholic beverages if:  

a. The permit or license holder and the day
care center or child care facility are
located on different stories of a
multistory building; or

b. The permit or license holder and the day
care center or child care facility are
located in separate buildings and either
the permit or license holder or the day
care center or child care facility is
located on the second story or higher of
a multistory building.

(2) This section applies only to a permit or license 
holder under the following chapters of the V.T.C.A., 
Alcohol Beverage Code Ch. 25 (Wine and Beer 
Retailer's Permit), Ch. 28 (Mixed Beverage Permit), 
Ch. 32 (Private Club Registration Permit), Ch. 69 
(Retail Dealer's On-Premises License), or Ch. 74 
(Brewpub License) who does not hold a food and 
beverage certificate. 

(3) This section does not apply to a foster group 
home, foster family home, family home, agency 
group home, or agency home as those terms are 
defined by V.T.C.A., Human Resources Code § 
42.002. 

Sec. 4-3. Measurement of distance. 

2 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/11263/level2/PTIICOOR_CH74PARE.html%23PTIICOOR_CH74PARE


ORDINANCE NO. 1502 

(a) Churches and public hospitals. The measurement of the distance between 
the place of business where alcoholic beverages are sold and a church or 
public hospital shall be along the property lines of the street fronts and from 
front door to front door, and in a direct line across intersections.  

(b) Public and private schools, day care centers and child care facilities. The 
measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic 
beverages are sold and the public or private school, day care center, or child 
care facility shall be:  

(1) In a direct line from the property line of the public or 
private school to the property line of the place of 
business, and in a direct line across intersections; or  

(2) In a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to 
the property line of the place of business, in a direct line across 
intersections, and vertically up the building at the property line to the 
base of the floor on which the business is located if the place of 
business is located on or above the fifth story of a multistory building.  

(3) For any permit or license covering premises on September 1, 1983, 
pursuant to V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33, the 
measurement of the distance between the premises and a public or 
private school shall be along the property lines of the street fronts and 
from front door to front door, and in a direct line across intersections.  

  Sec. 4-4. Noncontiguous Operations. 

A mixed beverage permit holder who holds a food and beverage certificate 
may designate, as part of the permit holder’s premises, a secured noncontiguous 
area located on a public sidewalk adjoining the premises, so long as the area 
designated meets the following requirements: 

(a) The area does not encroach upon any dedicated public right-of-way or 
portion thereof; 

(b) The area is separated from the permit holder’s premises only by a 
sidewalk or portion that is adjacent to said premises; 

(c) The area is directly across the adjoining sidewalk from the permit 
holder’s premises and does not reduce or obstruct the road frontage of 
any establishment located adjacent to the permit holder. 

3 



ORDINANCE NO. 1502 

  Sec. 4-5. Hours of Sale. 

 The holder of a permit authorizing the on-premise consumption of alcohol 
shall comply with the provisions of V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 
105.03 and 105.05, except that such permittee’s shall be allowed to apply for 
a late hours permit to sell alcohol between midnight and 2 a.m. on any day. 

Sec. 4-6. Variances. 
City Council may grant a variance to regulation under Section 4-2, if the 

governing body determines that enforcement of the regulation in a particular instance is 

not in the best interest of the public, constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other 

resources, creates an undue hardship on an applicant for a license or permit, does not 

serve its intended purpose, is not effective or necessary, or for any other reason, after 

consideration of the health, safety, and welfare of the public and the equities of the 

situation, determines is in the best interest of the community.” 

Section 2. Savings.  All rights and remedies which have accrued in favor of 

the City under this Ordinance and amendments thereto shall be and are preserved for 

the benefit of the City. 

Section 3. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase 

or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions thereof.   

Section 4. Repealer.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed but only to the extent of such conflict. 

4 



ORDINANCE NO. 1502 

Section 5. Codification.  It is the intent of the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified in the City's 

official Code of Ordinances as provided hereinabove. 

Section 6. Publication and Effective Date.  The City Secretary shall cause 

this Ordinance, or its caption, to be published in the official newspaper of the City of 

Pearland, upon passage of such Ordinance.  The Ordinance shall then become 

effective ten (10) days from and after its publication, or the publication of its caption, in 

the official City newspaper. 

PASSED and APPROVED ON FIRST READING this the _______ day of 

______________________, A. D., 2014. 

__________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING,TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

5 



ORDINANCE NO. 1502 

PASSED and APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING this the _____ 

day of ___________________, A. D., 2014. 

__________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

6 



NGHIEM V. DOAN 
DARRIN M. COKER DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY 
CITY ATTORNEY TELEPHONE (281) 652-1665 

TELEPHONE (281) 652-1678 
LAWRENCE G. PROVINS 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY II 
JENIFER K. SMITH TELEPHONE (281) 652-1666 

 LEGAL SECRETARY 
TELEPHONE (281) 652-1664 KATIE A. LEININGER 
TELECOPIER (281) 652-1679 ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY I 

TELEPHONE (281) 997-5918 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: DARRIN M. COKER, CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: JUNE 26, 2014 

SUBJECT: ALCOHOL ORDINANCE 

Attached for your review and comment is a draft copy of a proposed rewrite of the 
City’s Alcohol Ordinance. The City’s current ordinance was drafted in 1960 and does not 
comply with state law; however, the City’s practice of issuing alcohol permits has always 
followed the state’s guidelines. The purpose for preparing a new ordinance is to make the 
City’s ordinance consistent with state law and how the City processes permits. State law 
generally permits municipalities to regulate the location and hours of operation for the sale 
of alcoholic beverages, and the following represents a summary of the ordinance: 

• Churches and public hospitals; not allowed within 300 feet; distance
measured front door to front door along right-of-way lines; NO 
EXCEPTIONS 

• Public or Private Schools; not allowed within 300 feet; distance
measured from the property line of the school to the property line of the 
business and in a direct line across intersections; EXCEPTION: If the 
business is a food and beverage certificate holder (restaurant) within 
300 feet of a private school. A private school is one that offers a course of 
instruction in one or more grades from K-12th grade and has more than 100 
students enrolled and attending courses at a single location. 

• Daycare; not allowed within 300 feet; distance measured in a direct line
from the property line of the daycare to the property line of the business, 
and in a direct line across intersections; EXCEPTION: If the business is 
a food and beverage certificate holder or an off-premise permit 
(grocery and convenient store) within 300 feet of a daycare. A daycare 
facility is one that provides care for more than 12 children under the age of 
14 for less than 24 hours per day. 



• Late hours; permit holders can obtain a late hour permit allowing sales
between the hours of midnight and 2 a.m. on any day 

• Variances; City Council can grant a distance variance for certain hardship
circumstances or inequitable situations 

I frequently receive questions asking why the City does not amend its ordinance to 
allow liquor stores or bars that do not serve food.  As a reminder the City’s ordinance is 
not an authorization ordinance and is limited to the regulation of location/hours. 
Texas is unique because individual counties provide the authority for the type of alcohol 
sales that are permitted in cities. Brazoria County at one time was wet for beer only, so for 
years the City was limited to the sale of beer only (except for restaurants that followed the 
private club guidelines requiring individual to register as a member). The only way a city 
can deviate from a county’s wet status is to conduct a local option election. Brazoria 
County and the City have conducted two (2) local option elections, and both were 
approved by the voters. The first election allowed the sale of mixed beverages by food and 
beverage certificate holders that derive at least 51% of their gross revenue from the sale of 
food (restaurants). The second election allowed the sale of wine by retailer’s for off 
premise consumption (grocery and convenient stores). Liquor stores and bars would 
require a separate local option election to be allowed in the Brazoria County portion of the 
City. On the other hand, liquor stores and bars are allowed in the Harris County portion of 
the City because Harris County’s wet status applies in those areas. 

2 





New 
Business 
Item No. 4 

4. Consideration and Possible Action – Regarding the appointment to the
Parks, Recreation and Beautification Board to Position No. 5 for unexpired
term expiring November 1, 2017.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:  August 11 , 2014 ITEM NO.: 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 4, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Parks and Recreation 

PREPARED BY: Michelle Graham PRESENTOR:          Mayor Reid 

REVIEWED BY: Jon R. Branson REVIEW DATE:  August 4, 2014 

SUBJECT:   Appointment to the Parks, Recreation & Beautification Board 

EXHIBITS:  Applications and Resume’s 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $ AMOUNT BUDGETED: $ 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $ PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:   
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
       Finance   Legal     Ordinance Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

There is currently a vacancy on the Parks, Recreation and Beautification Board for Position #5.  
Applications that have been completed and submitted in this calendar year have been received from Kevin 
Lucas, Bethany Earl, Cheryl Weaver, Jessica Fernandez, Paul Needham, Sean Ennis, Ted Mittica and Valerie 
Marvin. 

BID AND AWARD 
N/A 

SCHEDULE 
N/A 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 
N/A 

O&M IMPACT INFORMATION 

New Business No. 4



N/A  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff recommends consideration of an appointment to the Parks, Recreation and Beautification Board for 
Position #5. 

























































































































New 
Business 
Item No. 5 

5. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No.
2000M-117 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland,
Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of
Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of certain
real property, being that portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James
Hamilton Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion lying within Harris County,
Texas and the remainder lying within Brazoria County, Texas, according
to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of the deed
records of Harris County, Texas, (located at the southwest corner of
Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 288, Pearland, TX), Zone
Change 2014- 02Z; a request of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of
American Modern Green Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a
zone change from the Waterlights Planned Development (PD) to the
Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on approximately 48.5 acres of land,
providing for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a
savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other
provisions related to the subject.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: August 25, 2014 ITEM NO.: 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 12, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Community 
    Development 

PREPARED BY: Lata Krishnarao PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao 

REVIEWED BY:  Matt Buchanan       REVIEW DATE:  August 18, 2014 

SUBJECT:     A request of Kevin Cole applicant; on behalf of America Modern 
Green  Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone 
change from the Waterlights Planned Development (PD) to the 
Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on approximately 48.5 acres of 
land on the following described property, to wit: 

General Location:    Southwest corner of Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 
  288 

ATTACHMENTS:      
• Ordinance No. 2000M-112 and Exhibits (Exhibit A – Application; Exhibit B

- Vicinity and Zoning Map; Exhibit C -  Legal Ad; Exhibit D -  Planning and 
Zoning Commission Recommendation; Exhibit E – PD Document) 

• Joint Public Hearing Staff Report
• Future Land Use Map
• Abutter Map
• Returned Notices
• Abutter List
• Aerial Map
• Original PUD
• Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter
• Modern Green Public Comments

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
To be completed by Department: 

    Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 1

Ordinance No. 2000M-117



PROJECT SUMMARY:  The applicant Kevin Cole, on behalf of the owner America 
Modern Green Development (Houston) LLC., is proposing a 48.5 acre mixed use, 
pedestrian oriented development located on the west side of SH 288, east of Kirby 
Drive, south of South Spectrum Boulevard, and north of Clear Creek.  

PROJECT COMPONENTS:  The proposed project will consist of eleven (11) blocks, of 
which seven (7) will contain retail or offices in the first floor and residential and other 
uses in the top floors. One (1) block with house the Continuum Care Retirement 
Community (CCRC) and the remaining three (3) blocks will house residential units.  The 
blocks will have a minimum of two (2) stories and a maximum of seventeen (17) stories.  
The project will consist of the following components. 

Commercial:  The commercial uses will include a minimum of 140,000 square feet of 
offices, 160,000 square feet of retail (restaurants, shopping and personal services), and 
a 150-room hotel with a 15,000 square foot conference center.  All areas may be 
increased based on the market demand. 

Retirement Community: The proposed project will also incorporate a 225-unit 
Continuum Care Retirement Community (CCRC) with a combination of independent 
living, assisted living, skilled nursing, and related uses.  A 10,000 square feet 
Community Center is part of the Continuum Care Retirement Community (CCRC), and 
will be available for use by the entire community, not just the residents. 

Residential: The multi-family component will comprise of a maximum of 1150 units, of 
which 750 will be individually owned residential units and 400 will be rental units.  These 
units will be in the form of urban style dwellings (residential units wrapped around 
parking), flats or lofts, and townhouses. Garden style dwellings will be prohibited. 

Open Space and Recreation: The project incorporates approximately fifteen (15) acres 
of public recreational open space along the Clear Creek with amenities such as trails, 
picnic tables, barbeque pits, exercise areas, pavilions, restrooms, benches, and drinking 
fountains.  Additionally, plazas, courtyards, and other gathering spaces will be located 
within the development, totaling to approximately twenty (20) acres of open space. 

Phasing: The entire project is proposed to be developed in two (2) phases. The first 
phase, consisting of seven (7) blocks (numbered 1-7 on the Building Program Plan), will 
encompass public recreational open space along the Clear Creek and all related 
amenities, the Continuum Care Retirement Community (CCRC), hotel, conference 
center, offices, some retail, shopping, and 575 residential units.  The public recreational 
open space along the Clear Creek and all related amenities will be completed in the first 
phase, prior to the first building being occupied.  The remaining residential and retail, in 
four (4) blocks (numbered 8-11 on the Building Program Plan), will be completed in the 
second phase. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 2



Expected Program Density by Phase - Summary 
Phase 1 Phase 2 – Total of Both Phases 

Office 140,000 sf (minimum) 140,000 sf (minimum) 
Hotel 150 hotel keys (minimum) 150 hotel keys (minimum) 
Hotel Conference Center 15,000 sf (minimum) 15,000 sf (minimum) 
CCRC 225 units (minimum) 225 units (minimum) 
Restaurants, Shopping, 

  
120,000 sf (estimate) 160,000 sf (minimum) 

Residential - Individual 
 

375 units (estimate) 750 units (maximum) 
Residential - Rental 200 units (estimate) 400 units (maximum) 
Community Center 10,000 sf (minimum) 10,000 sf (minimum) 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 3



PROCESS: This project was first discussed at a joint workshop of the City Council and 
Planning and Zoning Commission in October 7, 2013.  City Council and Planning and 
Zoning Commission conducted a joint public hearing on March, 17, 2014.  
Subsequently, at their regular meeting of July 7, 2014, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission made a recommendation to the City Council to approve the project with 
conditions.  The next steps include City Council’s consideration and action at their two 
regular meetings of August 25, 2014 and September 8, 2014. 

PREVIOUS DISCUSSION ITEMS: Since October 2013, the following items and 
concerns were discussed with the applicant and addressed in their July 2014 submittal: 

Codification and Design Standards: 
• Require built-form, as shown in the exhibits
• Discourage conventional apartments
• Define all land use terms used in the PD and provide a breakdown of area/

number of units for each of these
• Images need to be tied to the map and to the components for better clarity to

assist in review and approval of future permits.

Land Use: 
• Land use mix - Increase the percentage of offices and retail uses and lower

multi-family 
• More buildings to include first floor commercial / office uses.

Open Space/Amenities: 
• Details on parks and open space - meet the city's requirements
• Details of infrastructure improvements and lake amenities within and outside PD

boundaries – assign responsibility for construction, maintenance, & ownership.

Multi-Family Housing Form 
• Need better regulations to prevent “garden style” development
• Include minimum heights, details on designs, and restrictions on parking in areas

along the streets by limiting the building setbacks.  Provide building design and
elevations to ensure pedestrian oriented, high-density, with parking
area/structure enveloped by housing, and shared parking for commercial and
residential uses (Texas Wrap Housing Product).

Street Network 
• Clarify that all external roads will be public and constructed by the developer.

Internal roads can be private 
• Identify ownership and maintenance responsibility of all in the PD.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 4



The table below summarizes the proposed uses and the changes compared to the 
previously approved Waterlights District and the October and January submittals to the 
current July 2014 submittal: 

Waterlights 
District 

% of 
total 
land 

October 
2013 - 
Modern 
Green Ivy 
District 

% of 
total 
land 

January 
2014 - 
Modern 
Green Ivy 
District 

% of 
total 
land 

July  2014 - 
Proposed 
Modern Green 
Ivy District 

% of 
total 
land 

Site Area 57.7 acres NA 48.5 acres NA 48.5 acres NA 48.5 acres NA 
Office 390,000 sf 15.5% 110,000 sf 5.2% 100,000 sf 4.7% 140,000 sf 6.6% 
Retail 
Shopping 
Restaurant 

218,000 sf 8.6% 80,000 sf 3.7% 130,000 sf 6.1% 160,000 sf 7.6% 

Hotel 500 keys 450 keys 100 keys 150 keys 
Hotel 
Conference 
Center 

NA NA NA 15,000 sf 0.7% 

Senior 
Facility 

0 Included in 
hotel 

310 keys 225 units 

Residential 1150 units* 
on 48.5 acres 

(1400 on 
57.7 acres) 
Additional 10 
acres not 
included in 
Modern 
Green PD 

24.26 
units/a
cre 

1410 units 
on 48.5 acres 

29 .07 
units/a
cre 

1300 units 
on 48.5 acres 

MF rental: 
400 units 
MF- 
condo:900 
units 
Additional 
25% (95 
units) allowed 

26 .8 
units/
acre 

1150 units on 
48.5 acres 

MF rental – 400 
units 
MF Individual 
owner: 750 
units 
Capped 

23.7 
units/
acre 

Community 
Center 

Within 
residential 
blocks 

Not 
calculated 

80,000 sf 3.8% 10,000 sf 0.47
% 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property 
owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration, as well as property 
owners within the existing Planned Development.  A legal notice of public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.   No comments were received from property owners within 200 feet of the 
subject property.  A number of comments were received from other residents, 
predominantly from Shadow Creek Ranch, and a summary is attached with this packet.  

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 5



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ACTION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on July 7, 2014, Planning and Zoning Commission 
discussed the proposal including hotel size, park dedication fees, type of multi-family 
units, parameters used for the market study, whether this PD would be considered a 
destination point for the Houston region, gains for residents of Pearland, etc. 

Commissioner Linda Cowles made a motion to approve with conditions, and P&Z Vice 
Chairperson Mary Starr seconded.  The vote was 4-2.  Commissioners Reed and Tunstall 
voted against the motion and Commissioners Cowles, Fuertes, Starr, and McLane voted 
in favor.  Zone Change No. 2014-02Z was approved with eighteen (18) conditions as 
detailed in the attached P &Z approval letter.  The corrections were minor edits and 
clarifications to the document, except for the first condition on Parkland Dedication and 
Open Space that is discussed below.   

Parkland Dedication – City Council and P &Z specifically did not approve any 
variance to the Parkland Dedication, since this can be a payment in lieu of. Please 
indicate how the balance (based on $900/unit) will be addressed. Currently a 
standard of $700 sf/unit has been used in the PD. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Staff has been working with the applicant over the past 
few weeks and the P & Z conditions of approval have been addressed.  

As indicated above, one of the comments was clarification on Parkland Dedication and 
Open Space requirements.   

Parkland Dedication: The PD document establishes a Parkland Dedication requirement 
to provide amenities valued at $750 per residential and CCRC independent living units in 
conformance with the City’s requirement.   

Open Space Requirements:  City’s standards require 27.1 acres of public open space for 
the proposed number of multi-family units (including CCRC), at 900 square feet per unit. 
This amounts to 55.9% of the gross area. Applicant has stated in the PD that –“Due to 
the nature of the traditional neighborhood design contemplated in the Lower Kirby Urban 
Center and proposed for the Ivy District, the density of residential units in the Ivy District 
PD zoning district will be significantly higher than any other current zoning district.” 
Therefore, the PD establishes a maximum requirement of 40% of the total gross area as 
open space, which equals to 19.4 acres.  This will be a combination of 18.7 acres 
(minimum) as public open space and remaining as private open space.  

Staff recommends approval of the proposed PD for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed PD is in compliance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan’s
Lower Kirby Urban Center Development Code.

2. The proposed PD is in compliance with the purpose of the PD as stated in the
UDC.

Consider the zone change request for Modern Green-Ivy District PD. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 6



Ordinance No. 2000M-117 

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, amending 
Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of Pearland, Texas, for the 
purpose of changing the classification of certain real property, being that portion 
of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion 
lying within Harris County, Texas and the remainder lying within Brazoria County, 
Texas, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of 
the deed records of Harris County, Texas, (located at the southwest corner of 
Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 288, Pearland, TX), Zone Change 2014-
02Z; a request of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American Modern Green 
Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone change from the Waterlights 
Planned Development (PD) to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on 
approximately 48.5 acres of land, providing for an amendment of the zoning 
district map; containing a  savings clause, a severability clause and an 
effective date and other provisions related to the subject.  

WHEREAS, Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American Modern Green 

Development, LLC., owner; is seeking approval of a change in zoning the Waterlights 

PD to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on approximately 48.5 acres of land; said 

property being legally described in the original application for amendment attached 

hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “A” and more graphically 

depicted in the location map identified as Exhibit “B”; and 

WHEREAS, on the 17th day of March, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, 

the affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "C", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of 

Section 1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

WHEREAS, on the 7th day of July, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission of 

the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council regarding the zone 

change application of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American Modern Green 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 7



Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a change in zoning from the Waterlights PD 

to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on approximately 48.5 acres of land, said 

recommendation attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit 

“D”; and  

WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council considered this application and the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meetings on the 25th day of August 2014 

and the 8th day of September 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council having fully heard the testimony and argument of all 

interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the case 

of the application of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American Modern Green 

Development, LLC., owner; for seeking approval of a change in zoning from the 

Waterlights PD to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on approximately 48.5 acres of 

land, presented which, in the judgment of the City Council, would justify the approval of 

said application; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate City 

 Limits of the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently located within the Waterlights PD, 

is hereby granted a change in zoning to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD; said PD 

attached hereto as Exhibit E, in accordance with all conditions and requirements of the 

current Unified Development Code and incorporated for all purposes, such property 

being more particularly described as: 

That portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton Survey, Abstract No. 
881, a portion lying within Harris County, Texas and the remainder lying within 
Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 
83, Page 342 of the deed records of Harris County, Texas. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 8



GENERAL LOCATION:   Southwest corner of Spectrum Boulevard and State 
Highway 288 

     Section II.   The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary 

prerequisites of law have been accomplished and that no valid protest of the 

proposed change has been made.  The City Council further finds and determines 

that there has been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and 

presentation of this matter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the 

City Council for consideration and decision. 

Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that the 

amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 9



approval on second and final reading. 

 

          PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 25th day of August, 

2014. 

 
        _________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC  
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 8th       

day of September, 2014.       

 

       __________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 10



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 

 
 

That portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton Survey, Abstract No. 
881, a portion lying within Harris County, Texas and the remainder lying within 
Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 
83, Page 342 of the deed records of Harris County, Texas. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 11



Exhibit B 
Location Map 

 

 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 12



Exhibit C 
Legal Ad 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 13



Exhibit D 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 8, 2014 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 
 
Re: Recommendation on Zone Change Application No. 2014-02Z 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
At their meeting on July 7, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
following:   
 
 A request of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American Modern Green 

Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone change from the Waterlights 
Planned Development (PD), to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on 
approximately 48.5 acres of land on the following described property, to wit: 

 
 Legal Description:  That portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton 

Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion lying within Harris County, Texas and the 
remainder lying within Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat 
thereof recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of the deed records of Harris County, 
Texas. 

 
 General Location:  Southwest corner of Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 

288. 
 
After staff presentation by the Director of Community Development, Lata Krishnarao, 
approval was recommended by staff.   
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 14



After discussion, P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles made the motion to recommend 
approval with conditions, and P&Z Vice Chairperson Mary Starr seconded. The vote 
passed (4-2), with Commissioners Derrick Reed and Daniel Tunstall in opposition. 
 
Recommended conditions follow: 
   

1. Parkland Dedication – City Council and P &Z specifically did not approve any 
variance to the Parkland Dedication, since this can be a payment in lieu of. 
Please indicate how the balance (based on $900/unit) will be addressed. 
Currently a standard of $700 sf/unit has been used in the PD. 

2. Page 21 – F. Minor Deviations – line 9- “Design” was misspelled. 

3. Page 27 – Marquee Sign – Flashing lights not permitted by UDC. Please remove 
the sentence that refers to flashing lights. 

4. Page 43 – Residential Uses –The table indicates that townhomes are permitted 
in Public Square. Other areas of the PD indicate that townhomes will be 
restricted to Parkside Neighborhood. Please clarify. 

5. Page 46 – as previously discussed add phasing to the Program Density to plan 
to indicate what can be expected in terms of land use breakdown at the end of 
each phase. 

6. Page 48 – Please add the block numbers in Table 7.1 for better clarity. 

7. Pager 50, 51 – Under Utilities and Block Standards please refer to sections of the 
PD that address this, and replace the note– “There are no specific…) 

8. Page 51 – e. (10) Building Height conflicts with Table 7.2 –Building Height 
Standards. 

9. Page 51 – C.1.c, d , and g– Refer to Chapter 8 on Building Design Standards 
and replace the note “There are no specific …”. 

10. Page 52, Building Materials - As indicated in previous discussions, staff 
recommends percentage breakdown of various materials to avoid a monotonous 
100% stucco/brick building. 

11. Page 53 – f. (5) “windows and doors or and visually…” Replace. 

12. Page 55 – 2.c and d – refer to sections in the PD that address this, replace 
“None”. 

13. Page 56 – C. 2 – Public Square Sub-District Guidelines – Refer to regulatory 
plans and chapters in the PD. 

14. Page 56, Building Materials - As indicated in previous discussions, staff 
recommends percentage breakdown of various materials to avoid a monotonous 
100% stucco/brick building. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 15



15. Page 57 – B. 5. – Fruge Road – Connection is shown to a section of Fruge Road
that does not exist. Improvement of the road needs to be shown.

16. Page 62 – C.1.2 – Island width shown is less than 5 feet for certain streets. How
will this requirement of tree being 4 feet from the curb be met?

17. Page 61 – C.2. – Guidelines – Refer to Master Streetscape Plan and Public
Open Space Plan – Page 23.

18. 2. Guidelines – Need to refer to Page 23.3. Master Plans - to be provided prior to 
Platting. 

Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 16



Exhibit E 
Modern Green-Ivy District PD 

See Following Pages

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 17



THE 

MODERN GREEN
  IVY DISTRICT

The Planned Development Zoning District (PD) Document

Submitted to the City of Pearland | November 15, 2013

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | January 31, 2014

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | May 2, 2014

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | June 20, 2014 

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 18



2

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 19



THE 

MODERN GREEN
  

IVY DISTRICT

The Planned Development Zoning District (PD) Document

Submitted to the City of Pearland | November 15, 2013

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | January 31, 2014

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | May 2, 2014

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | June 20, 2014 

Revision Submitted to the City of Pearland | August 7, 2014

America Modern Green Development (Houston) LLC | Skidmore, Owings & Merrill LLP | Hargreaves Associates   ©2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 20



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 21



Part 1  Purpose and Intent 6

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development 8

Part 3  Administration 20

Part 4  Definitions 24

Part 5  Zoning  32

Part 6  Land Use 40

Part 7  Building Form and Development Standards 48

Part 8  Building Design Controls 52

Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls 57

Part 10  Signage Design Controls 65

Part 1 1  Open Space Design Controls 68

Appendix A  Site Description 74

Appendix B  Design Plans 86

Appendix C  Regulating Plans 98

Appendix D  Building Examples 102

Appendix E  Streetscape Examples 114

Appendix F  Signage Examples 126

Appendix G  Open Space Examples 130

TABLE OF

CONTENTS

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 22



6

Part 1  Purpose and Intent

August 7, 2014

T
he goal of the Modern Green “Ivy District” is to create a vibrant, 
walkable and ecological mixed-use community where residents 
of Pearland, Texas, can live, work, shop and play. The vision for the 
new district builds upon the recent growth and momentum that has 

shaped Pearland into one of most desirable urban centers within the  
Greater Houston metropolitan region. The Ivy District will set a new standard 
for development of a high quality urban environment for residents and 
visitors alike.

The purpose of the “Ivy District” Planned Development 
(referred to herein as the “Ivy District PD” or “Ivy District”), 
proposed by America Modern Green Development (Houston) 
LLC (“Modern Green”), is to capitalize on and respond to 
key attributes and unique characteristics of its land and 
location to create a distinctive, innovative and ecologically 
sensitive mixed-use urban community that will be a model for 
achieving the goals and objectives of the City of Pearland’s 
Comprehensive Plan. The following are key attributes and 
unique characteristics of the Ivy District site that warrant its 
classification as a PD zoning district pursuant to UDC Section 
2.2.2.1(b):

• Paragraph (2): Clear Creek runs through the southern 
portion of the Ivy District site. With the creek and its 
floodway covering a large area of the site, an ecologically 
sensitive approach to development is required to protect 
this unique environmental feature. 

• Paragraph (3): It is located within the proposed Lower 
Kirby Urban Center, which has been incorporated into the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, that is envisioned as a mixed-
use development with traditional neighborhood design, 
which requires an innovative approach to development.

1 PURPOSE AND INTENT

• Paragraph (7): It is adjacent to and readily accessible 
from State Highway 288 (SH-288) to the east, and 
adjacent to and directly accessible from South 
Spectrum Drive to the north. The site is also a 
short distance from Kirby Drive to the west and 
easily accessible from Beltway 8 to the north. The 
proximity of the site to SH-288 and other important 
thoroughfares presents a unique development 
opportunity that calls for a distinctive, high-quality 
development.

To achieve its purpose, the Ivy District PD establishes a 
land use and development strategy focused on distinct, 
yet compatible and integrated neighborhood spaces 
within convenient walking distances for residents and 
easily accessible to visitors, that will be developed in a 
sustainable and ecologically-sensitive manner, and will 
adhere to high-quality design standards. The result will be 
a vibrant, sustainable and attractive community in which 
residents and visitors can engage in a wide range of public 
spaces and supporting amenities within a pedestrian-
friendly environment. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 23



7

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 1  Purpose and Intent

August 7, 2014

Guided by this land use and development strategy, the intent 
of the Ivy District is to:

(1) Create a diverse and multi-generational mixed-use 
community that includes an office complex, hotel 
and conference center, anchor retail establishments, 
a retirement community, and an urban residential 
neighborhood, all integrated within a street network with 
neighborhood-oriented retail shops in an ecologically-
friendly setting of public and private open spaces.

(2) Build a mixed-use neighborhood on the western portion 
of the site that is residentially oriented and organized 
within a setting of public parks. This neighborhood will 
be unique in character and offer a range of amenities for 
residents set within an attractive pedestrian environment.

(3) Build a mixed-use neighborhood on the eastern portion 
of the site that is commercially oriented and organized 
around a public square. This vibrant neighborhood will 
be highly visible and readily accessible from the SH-288 

corridor, yet integrated with the residential component of 
the Ivy District community and within convenient walking 
distance for its residents.

(4) Build a state-of-the-art Continuing Care Retirement 
Community (CCRC) that will provide a high quality of life 
for its residents and promote their interaction with the 
broader Ivy District community,

(5) Build a community center that will be an amenity 
accessible to both the Ivy District and broader Pearland 
communities that would be used for special public and 
private activities, events and performances.

(6) Promote sustainable and ecologically sensitive 
development by establishing standards and guidelines 
for environmentally friendly and innovative design and 
construction methods.

(7) Promote aesthetically pleasing development by 
establishing standards and guidelines for high-quality 
building and landscape design.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 24



8

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

A. Site Description

The Ivy District property is a 48.5-acre site generally located 
on the west side of State Highway 288 (SH-288), east of Kirby 
Drive, south of South Spectrum Boulevard, and north of Fruge 
Road, within the City of Pearland (City), Harris County, Texas.

The land is predominantly undeveloped grassland and wooded 
areas, with Clear Creek running through the southeast corner 
of the site. There is a partially constructed detention pond on 
the east side of the site, just north of Clear Creek. Access to the 
site is from South Spectrum Boulevard and an access driveway 
off the SH-288 frontage road.

Figure 2.1, “Location Map,” shows the location of Ivy District 
site. The following site-related information is provided in 
Appendix A, “Site Description”:

Exhibit A1 – Location Map

Exhibit A2 – Site Survey

Exhibit A3 – Legal Description

Exhibit A4 – CLOMR Plan

Exhibit A5 – FEMA Letter

C
H

R
IS

 R
D

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

FRUGE RD

PROJECT 
AREA

MCHARD ROAD

H
IG

H
W

AY
 2

88

Clear Creek

S. SPECTRUM DRIVE

Figure 2.1  Location Map

B. Master Plan

The Master Plan for the Ivy District envisions a unique mixed-
use community with extensive open space. Office, retail, hotel, 
a retirement community, and residential uses will be integrated 
into a pedestrian-oriented urban environment. Figures 2.2 
through 2.7, at the end of this part, illustrate the Master Plan 
vision, described as follows:

Figure 2.2, “Illustrative Master Plan” identifies the types 
of buildings and other improvements proposed, and is an 
artistic depiction of the proposed location and arrangement of 
buildings and other improvements that would be effected by 
the complete implementation of the Ivy District PD. 

Figure 2.3, “Illustrative Perspective Keyplan” is an artistic 
depiction of the scale and massing of the proposed buildings 
in the Ivy District.

Figure 2.4, “Illustrative Aerial Perspective” is an artistic 
depiction of the scale and massing of the proposed buildings 
in the Ivy District.

Figure 2.5, “Illustrative Perspective - Clear Creek Recreational 
Park” is an artistic depiction of the character of Clear Creek 
Recreational Park. 

Figures 2.6 and 2.7, “Illustrative Perspective – Green Ivy 
Drive” and “Illustrative Perspective – Jade Street” are artistic 
depictions of the human-scale vision for a vibrant urban 
experience.

Note that the buildings depicted in these figures provide 
context and illustrate the proposed scale and massing, but are 
not representative of the proposed architectural design; see 
Part 8 of this PD document for building design controls and 
representative examples of architectural design intent. 

C. Design Plan

The “Design Plan” for the Ivy District establishes the proposed 
conceptual design for the PD within the framework of the 
PD’s zoning and land use regulations, building form and 
development standards, and design controls. It is the intent of 
the Ivy District to implement the elements of the Design Plan 

DESCRIPTION OF THE 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT2

K
IR

B
Y

 D
R

IV
E

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 25



9

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

as proposed and depicted on the Design Plan exhibits, which 
are provided in Appendix B. However, during implementation 
of the PD, market and other factors may influence changes to 
elements of the Design Plan; changes that are in compliance 
with PD zoning and land use regulations, building form and 
development standards, and design controls will be considered 
“Minor Deviations.” Administration of Minor Deviations are 
discussed further in Part 3 of this PD document.

Descriptions of each Design Plan exhibit are provided below. 
Allowed variations that would be considered Minor Deviations 
are identified in Table 3.1 in Part 3 of this PD document.

Exhibit B1 – “Site Plan”
Illustrates the PD site boundaries and how the basic PD 
framework—street network and blocks—will be arranged and 
interface with existing conditions.

Exhibit B2 – “Illustrative Master Plan” 
Identifies the types of buildings and other improvements 
proposed, and illustrates the proposed location and 
arrangement of the buildings and other improvements that 
would be effected by the complete implementation of the 
Ivy District PD. The rendered elements of this plan are artistic 
depictions and may not reflect the actual design; see Parts 
8, 9 and 11 for building, streetscape and landscape design 
controls and representative examples of intended architectural, 
streetscape and landscape design character.

Exhibit B3 – “Street Network Plan” 
Establishes (a) the number, types and classifications of streets 
that will be developed within and adjacent to the Ivy District, 
(b) their connection points to existing or planned new streets, 
and (c) their conceptual alignment and configuration.

Exhibit B4 – “Building Program Plan”
Illustrates the conceptual location, type, configuration and 
program areas of proposed buildings. 

Exhibit B5 – “Setbacks Plan”
Illustrates application of setback standards based on the 
proposed program.

Exhibit B6 – “Public Open Space Plan”
Identifies land area proposed and calculated as public open 
space, and identifies proposed parks, greens, plazas, squares 
and gardens.

Exhibit B7 – “Parkland Landscape Plan”
Identifies the type and character of landscaping proposed 
within the public open spaces.

Exhibit B8 – “Parkland Amenities Plan” 
Identifies the type, locations, and quantities of amenities 
proposed within the public open spaces.

Exhibit B9 – “Phasing Plan”
Illustrates the boundaries of the proposed phases of 
development. See Part 3, Section H, for additional phasing 
information.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 26



10

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Figure 2.2  Illustrative Master Plan

ART & 
CULTURE 
GREEN

IVY SQUARE

IVY GARDEN

IVY PLAZA

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

CLEAR CREEK 
RECREATIONAL PARK

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Urban Style Dwellings

Flats or Lofts

Urban Style Dwellings

Townhouse

Retail / 
Urban Style Dwellings

Retail / 
Urban Style Dwellings

Community Center / 
Urban Style Dwellings

CCRC

Retail / 
Hotel

Retail / 
Urban Style Dwellings

Retail / Office

Conference 
Center

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 27



11

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Figure 2.3  Illustrative Perspective Key Plan

Figure 2.4 Illustrative Aerial Perspective

Figure 2.5 Illustrative Perspective - Clear Creek Recreational Park

Figure 2.6 Illustrative Perspective - Green Ivy Drive

Figure 2.7 Illustrative Perspective - Jade Street

3

3

4

4

2

2

1

1

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 28



12

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.Figure 2.4  Illustrative Aerial Perspective

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 29



13

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 30



14

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.Figure 2.5  Illustrative Perspective - Clear Creek Recreational Park

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 31



15

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 32



16

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.Figure 2.6  Illustrative Perspective - Green Ivy Drive

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 33



17

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 34



18

Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.Figure 2.7  Illustrative Perspective - Jade Street

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 35



19

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 2  Description of the Planned Development

August 7, 2014

Note: Renderings reflect design vision and final design may vary.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 36



20

Part 3  Administration

August 7, 2014

A. Components of the PD Document

The purposes of this PD document and its corresponding 
components are:

(1) Describe the purpose and intent of the Ivy District PD.

Part 1 – “Purpose and Intent of the Ivy District Planned 
Development”

(2) Provide a description of the PD site, the proposed 
conceptual design for the PD (the “Design Plan”), and overview 
of the zoning and regulatory framework. 

Part 2 – “Description of the Ivy District Planned 
Development”

(3) Establish administrative procedures and other bases for 
City of Pearland officials and staff to assess development 
applications during the implementation phases. 

Part 3 – “Administration”

(4) Establish definitions for terms that have specific application 
to and/or specific meaning relative to the Ivy District PD.

Part 4 – “Definitions”

(5) Establish the PD zone and zoning regulatory framework for 
the Ivy District PD. 

Part 5 – “Zoning”

(6) Establish land use and development regulations.

Part 6 – “Land Use”

(7) Establish building form and other physical development 
standards.

Part 7 – “Building Form and Development Standards”

(8) Establish design controls to guide and instruct 
implementation of the PD.

Part 8 – “Building Design Controls”

Part 9 – “Street and Streetscape Design Controls”

Part 10 – “Signage Design Controls”

Part 11 – “Open Space Design Controls”

B. Compliance with the Unified Development Code

The Ivy District Planned Development (PD) will be established 
as the City of Pearland’s “Ivy District” zoning district. Except 
as modified by this PD document, all development within the 
Ivy District shall comply with the requirements of the City of 

ADMINISTRATION3
Pearland’s (“City”) Unified Development Code, 8th Edition, 
January 2013, and the T-15 and T-16 amendments approved 
June 24, 2013, and December 16, 2013, referred to altogether 
throughout this PD document as “UDC.”

C. Compliance with other City Requirements

Implementation of the Ivy District PD shall comply with 
all applicable City requirements, current at the time of 
implementation, including but not limited to, the Engineering 
Design Criteria Manual (EDCM).

D. Compliance with Requirements of Authorities Having 
Jurisdiction

Implementation of the Ivy District PD shall comply with 
requirements of all authorities having jurisdiction over 
development of the site.

E. Design Plan

The Design Plan established in Part 2 and Appendix B of this 
PD document illustrates the conceptual element of the PD, 
including proposed location and boundaries of the PD site and 
its access via the existing street network; location of buildings 
and other improvements; configuration and classification of 
the street network; location and arrangement of land uses 
and conceptual configuration and program for buildings; the 
application of setback standards based on the conceptual 
configuration and program for buildings; public open space 
and parkland landscaping and amenities; and phasing plan.

The Design Plan shall be construed in conjunction with the Ivy 
District zoning regulations established in Part 5 and Appendix 
C of this PD document, the land use provisions established in 
Part 6 of this PD document, building form and development 
standards established in Part 7 of this PD document, and 
the design controls established in Parts 8 through 11 of this 
PD document. Therefore, during implementation of the PD, 
changes to conceptual elements of the Design Plan due 
to market and other factors may be permitted as “Minor 
Deviations” provided that such changes are in compliance 
with PD zoning and land use regulations, building form and 
development standards, and design controls. Administration of 
Minor Deviations are discussed further in Section F below.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 37



21

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 3  Administration

August 7, 2014

F. Minor Deviations

During the implementation of the PD, the City Manager or his 
or her designee (altogether, “City Manager”) shall have the 
authority to approve “Minor Deviations” from the Design Plan 
without a public hearing process. Should the developer wish 
to appeal a decision of the City Manager on a proposed Minor 
Deviation, then the developer may apply for an appeal to the 
City Council for a ruling on the matter without a public hearing 
process. Should the developer wish to pursue a proposed 
change to the Design Plan that is not deemed a Minor Deviation 
by the City Manager, or by the City Council upon appeal, then 
the proposed change will be considered a “Major Deviation” 
administered according to the provisions in Section G below.

Allowed variations that would be considered Minor Deviations, 
subject to the approval processes described above, are 
identified in Table 3.1, on the following page. 

G. Major Deviations

“Major Deviations” from the Design Plan, development 
standards and design controls, and PD zoning and land-
use regulations must be submitted to the City of Pearland’s 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for approval 
with a public hearing as an amendment to the Ivy District PD. 

Major Deviations include:

(1) Any changes to the Ivy District zone characteristics or 
zoning and land-use regulating plans, and

(2) Any variations from the Design Plan, building form, 
development standards, and design controls that are either (i) 
not listed in Table 3.1 and approved pursuant to the provisions 
of Section F above, or (ii) not otherwise permitted by the 
provisions of this PD document.

H. Phasing

Exhibit B9 illustrates the boundaries of Phases 1 and 2. 
Generally, all development within Phase 1 must be complete 
prior to commencing development in Phase 2, as described 
below:

(1) Development of the entire Clear Creek Recreational 
Park must be complete prior to granting of a Certificate of 
Occupancy by the City for the first building or groups of 
buildings to be completed in Phase 1.

(2) As a minimum, development of proposed buildings or 
other improvements must be completed on six of the eight 
development blocks within the Phase 1 boundaries (Blocks 
1 through 7 and 12) and pad sites must be developed for the 
remaining two blocks before development on Blocks 8 through 
11 within the Phase 2 boundaries may begin. A block shall be 
deemed developed when a building or other improvement is 
completed sufficient for its intended purpose and a Certificate 
of Occupancy is granted when applicable; however, usable 
space within a new building does not have to be fully leased or 
occupied.

(3) Development of the entire street network serving the area 
within the Phase 1 boundaries must be completed prior to 
commencing Phase 2 development. However, development of 
streets and pad sites for Phase 2 may begin and be completed 
during Phase 1 development.

(4) Completion of any additional on- and/or off-street 
improvements resulting from a traffic impact analysis (see 
Section I below) must be achieved for the entire 48.5 acre 
site during the first increment of Phase 1 development and 
if required will be a condition for granting of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for any building or facility.

(5) Drainage improvements, open space and parkland 
dedication requirements must be achieved proportionately 
as they apply to each increment of development within both 
primary phases and compliance must be demonstrated prior 
to granting of a Certificate of Occupancy for any building or 
improvement.

I. Additional Requirements

1. Traffic Impact Analysis
A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) must be prepared for the 
Ivy District PD and approved prior to submittal of a plat 
application. Should the results of the TIA indicate that 
additional on- and/or off-site street improvements are 
required, then such improvements shall be incorporated as an 
amendment to the Ivy District PD prior to submittal of a plat 
application.  Any additional street improvements resulting from 
the TIA must be completed for the entire 48.5 acre site during 
the first increment of development.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 38



22

Part 3  Administration

August 7, 2014

TABLE 3.1  MINOR DEVIATIONS

Item Allowed Variation

Design Plan

Site Plan (Exhibit B1)

(a) The conceptual alignment of the streets and their connection points 
to existing streets where there is no existing intersection are allowed to 
vary during implementation of the PD, but the number of streets shall 
not change. (b) The general configuration of blocks are allowed to vary 
in correlation to permitted variations in conceptual street alignment, but 
the number of blocks shall not change.

Illustrative Master Plan (Exhibit B2)

The form, scale and design of buildings, streetscape and landscape 
depicted are artistic renderings of the design vision for the 
completed PD and the designs depicted are permitted to vary during 
implementation of the PD.

Street Network (Exhibit B3)

(a) The conceptual street alignment and connection points to existing 
streets where there is no existing intersection are allowed to vary during 
implementation of the PD, but the number of streets, designated street 
types and classifications, and connection points to existing intersections 
shall not change. (b) Street names are placeholders and may vary.

Program Area (Exhibit B4)

Locations, types, configurations and program of buildings are allowed to 
vary provided that variations are in compliance with PD zoning and land 
use regulations, building form and development standards, and design 
controls.

Setbacks (Exhibit B5)
Setbacks depicted are allowed to vary in correlation to allowed program 
variations.

Public Open Space (Exhibit B6)

All proposed parks, greens, squares, plazas and gardens shall be 
developed in the general locations depicted, but their size and 
configuration are allowed to vary in correlation to permitted variations in 
street alignment, block configuration, buildings and structures.

Parkland Landscape (Exhibit B7)
The proposed configuration of landscaping and water bodies depicted 
may vary, but the general location and types of landscaping and water 
bodies may not vary. 

Parkland Amenities (Exhibit B8)
The proposed configuration and placement of amenities depicted may 
vary, but the extent, types and quantities of amenities may not vary.

Phasing (Exhibit B9)
Delineation of phases depicted is not allowed to vary; see Section H for 
further information on phasing.

Development Standards

Building Frontage  
No more than 15% reduction in the length of the required frontage is 
allowed only to accommodate port cocheres for drop-off and pick-up 
areas.

Street Cross Sections

Cross sections of new streets may be adjusted with respect to number 
of lanes, lane widths, on-street parking configuration, and pedestrian 
accommodation due to regulatory factors such as the results of a traffic 
impact analysis, to accommodate fire access, and the like.

Detention / Retention Areas
Location, configuration and/or shape of detention/retention areas may 
be varied due to regulatory factors such as those associated with the 
results of the drainage analysis.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 39



23

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 3  Administration

August 7, 2014

2. Drainage Study
A drainage study must be prepared for the Ivy District PD and 
approved prior to submittal of a plat application. Should the 
results of the drainage study indicate that additional on- and/
or off-site drainage improvements are required, then such 
improvements shall be required to be incorporated as an 
amendment to the Ivy District PD prior to submittal of a plat 
application. Any additional drainage improvements resulting 
from the drainage study may be completed incrementally 
provided that drainage requirements are met for each 
increment of development.

3. Master Plans
The following master plans for the entire Ivy District must 
be approved by the City Manager prior to submittal of a plat 
application:

(1 ) Master Streetscape Plan, as prescribed in Part 9, Section C,  
       of this PD document.

(2) Master Signage and Wayfinding Plan, as prescribed in Part   
       10, Section A, of this PD document.

(3) Master Public Open Space and Landscape Plan, as              
       prescribed in Part 11, Section A, of this PD document.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 40



24

Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

In addition to Definitions in Chapter 5 of the City of 
Pearland UDC, 8th Edition, January 2013 and the T-15 and 
T-16 amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 
16, 2013, the following terms shall have the corresponding 
interpretations. The definitions in this subsection under the 
Ivy District PD document shall supersede definitions of any 
terms also in Chapter 5 of the UDC and shall only apply to 
development within the Ivy District.

A. General Terms

Assisted Living Facilities / Units (ALU)  are licensed by the 
State of Texas to provide personal assistance to residents.  
They typically have smaller accommodations than congregate 
or independent living facilities, and sometimes provide small 
kitchenettes.  

Auto-Related Sales and Service Uses means establishments 
that provide retail sales and services related to automobiles 
including, but not limited to, cars, trucks, tires, parts, batteries, 
gasoline, etc. 

Balcony is a platform projecting from a second or higher story 
interior or exterior wall of a building, usually enclosed for 
privacy and protection by a rail. A balcony usually has French 
or sliding glass doors leading out to it, and can be entered 
from a living room or bedroom. 

Block Face Dimensions are the linear dimension of a block 
along one of its street frontages. 

Bioswales are landscape elements designed to remove silt and 
pollution from surface runoff water. They consist of shallow, 
trough-like depressions with gently sloped sides (less than 
six percent) and filled with vegetation and/or compost. The 
water’s flow path, along with the wide and shallow ditch, is 
designed to maximize the time water spends in the swale, 
which aids the trapping of pollutants and silt.

Block Perimeter means the aggregate dimension of a block 
along all of its street frontages. 

Block means the aggregate of lots, pedestrian passages 
and rear alleys, circumscribed on all sides by streets (or the 
projected extension of streets, the Clear Creek floodway or 
other boundaries when not circumscribed on all sides by 
streets). 

DEFINITIONS4
Build-to Line means the line at which the principal building’s 
front façade shall be built. 

Building Form Standards means the standards established for 
each Sub-District that specify the height, bulk, orientation, and 
elements for all new construction and development. 

Canopy means an awning-like projection from a wall that 
is made of rigid materials and is permanently attached to a 
building’s facade and allowed to project over public sidewalks.

City Manager means the City Manager of the City of Pearland 
or his/her designee. 

Colonnade means a structure that is similar to an arcade 
except that it is supported by vertical columns without arches.

Commercial or Mixed Use Building means a building in which 
the first floor of the building is built to commercial ready 
standards and any of the floors are occupied by non-residential 
or residential uses. 

Commercial Ready means space constructed at a minimum 
floor to floor height of 15 feet which may be used for non-
commercial uses and can be converted into retail/commercial 
use. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a 
retail/commercial use in a Commercial Ready space, the space 
must comply with all building and construction codes for that 
use. The intent of Commercial Ready space is to provide the 
flexibility of occupying a space in accordance with market 
demand and allowing the use in such space to change to retail/
commercial uses accordingly. 

Community Garden is a small to medium size garden 
cultivated by members of an area for small scale agricultural 
uses for the benefit of the same people. It may consist of 
individually tended plots on a shared parcel or may be 
communal (everyone shares a single plot).

Comprehensive Plan means the City of Pearland 
Comprehensive Plan that establishes policy guidance for the 
long-term growth and development of the City as adopted on 
the effective date of this PD. 

Congregate Living Units (CLU) are differentiated from 
independent living units (ILU) by the lack of full cooking 
facilities.  They may have a kitchenette with refrigerator and 
microwave, sometimes a small cook-top, but they generally 
do not have an oven. They are not licensed to provide assisted 
living services.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 41



25

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC) means any 
buildings specifically designed for and occupied by senior 
citizens, designed to meet the physical or social needs of 
senior citizens, which may include: assisted living, congregate 
living, independent living or skilled nursing facilities, 
rehabilitative services, medical or personal care services, social 
gathering space, restaurant and dining space, assembly and 
entertainment space, or education and cultural space.

Courtyard is a landscaped open space, usually in the center 
of the block with no street frontage, bounded by walls or 
buildings on at least two sides. 

Encroachment means any structural or non-structural element 
such as a sign, awning, canopy, terrace, or balcony that breaks 
the plane of a vertical or horizontal regulatory limit, extending 
into a Setback, into the Public R.O.W., into an Easement, or 
above a height limit. 

Façade Rhythm means the repetition of a vertical or horizontal 
feature, bay width or architectural element on a façade at a 
regular interval that provides scale and massing to a building. 

Forecourt is a small private open space between a building 
facade and the Build-to Line.

Formula Retail means a retail business which, along with seven 
or more business locations, is required by contractual or other 
arrangement to maintain any of the following: standardized 
merchandise, services, décor, uniforms, architecture, colors, 
signs or other similar features.

Gallery means an extension of the main façade of the 
building that is at or near the front property line. The gallery 
or column-supported canopy-like structure may overlap the 
public sidewalk provided that (a) all columns remain within the 
property line of the building; and (b) with City approval.

Garden Style Apartment means a development of one or more  
apartment buildings in which each building is no more than 
four stories tall, and there are no internal hallways or stairs 
connecting any individual units.  Entries to each apartment 
unit are from a common exterior stairwell or sidewalk that 
serve more than two units, and the buildings are typically 
surrounded by outdoor landscaping, hardscape, and  
surface parking.

Independent Living Units (ILU) are defined by the presence of 
a private living area (a room or apartment that can be locked), 
with full cooking facilities (oven and cooktop as well as a 
refrigerator and sink).  Independent living for older adults may 
be on a campus with other types of living and care such as 
assisted living, or they may be limited to amenities and some 
services. 

Kiosk means a small temporary or permanent structure often 
open on one or more sides used for sales in civic/open spaces. 

Live-Work Unit means a mixed-use building type with a 
dwelling unit that may also be used for work purposes, 
provided that the ‘work’ component is restricted to the uses of 
professional office, artist’s workshop, studio, or other similar 
uses and is located on the street level and constructed as 
separate units under a condominium regime or as a single unit. 
The ‘work’ component is usually located on the first floor which 
is built to Commercial Ready standards. The ‘live’ component 
may be located on the street level (behind the work 
component) or any other level of the building. Live-work unit 
is distinguished from a home occupation otherwise defined 
by this ordinance in that the work use is not required to be 
incidental to the dwelling unit, non-resident employees may be 
present on the premises, and customers may be served on site. 

Living Screen means a Street Screen composed of landscaping 
in the form of vegetation. 

Master Sign Plan means a unique sign plan to implement a 
specific vision for a portion or all of the development that 
meets Part 10 of this PD document. 

Minor Modification means any changes to the Ivy District PD 
that meet the threshold criteria established in Part 3F and 
Table 3.1. 

Patio is an outdoor space for dining or recreation that adjoins 
a residence and is often paved. It may also be a roofless inner 
courtyard within a residence, typically found in  
Mediterranean dwellings. 

Pedestrian Easement means a grant of use of private property 
to the public for pedestrian access and use. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 42



26

Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

Pedestrian Passage is an intimate street level passage way 
for pedestrians from the interior of one block or building to a 
public sidewalk. These paths provide direct pedestrian access 
to residential addresses and create unique spaces for frontages 
to engage and enter off of. 

Playground is a space designed and equipped for children’s 
recreation. A playground may be fenced and may include an 
open shelter. Playgrounds may be located within residential 
areas, placed within a block, or included in other civic/ 
open spaces. 

Private Open Space means open space provided for all 
residential uses, privately accessible open spaces such as 
courtyards, porches, and balconies.  

Public Open Space means publicly accessible open space in 
the form of parks, gardens, squares, plazas, greens, pocket 
parks, playgrounds, etc. that may be privately or publicly 
owned. 

Garden (formal) means a Public Open Space with 
formal landscaping intended to be a quiet, relaxing and 
meditative space.

Green means a Public Open Space intended for 
unstructured recreation, spatially defined by landscaping 
rather than building frontages. 

Park means a Public Open Space that is a preserve largely  
available for unstructured recreation. 

Plaza means a primarily hardscaped Public Open Space 
with formal landscaping, available for civic purposes and 
commercial activities. 

Square means a Public Open Space designed for 
unstructured recreation and civic purposes, spatially 
defined by building frontages and consisting of paths, 
lawns and trees, formally arranged. 

Recommended Public Open Space means plaza, green, 
square, or park area identified on Exhibit B6, Public Open 
Space Plan, which is shown as a suggested feature within 
the Ivy District. A Recommended Public Open Space is not 
required and is at the election of an applicant or developer. 

Regulating Plan means the Ivy District Regulating Plans 
attached hereto as Appendix C that shows the Sub-Districts, 
Land Uses, open space, general layout of the street network, 
and other Special Requirements applicable to the Ivy District 
subject to the standards in this PD document. 

Required Public Open Space means plaza, green, square, or 
park area identified on Exhibit B6, Public Open Space Plan, 
which is shown as a mandatory feature within the Ivy District. 
A “Required Public Open Space Plan” shall be provided at 
the time of development and its design and location may be 
adjusted to meet the context of the development provided it 
meets the standards established in Part 11 of this PD document. 

Residential Building means a building type that is built to 
accommodate only residential uses on all floors of the building 
such as townhomes, apartment buildings, duplexes, etc. 

Retail Sales Retail establishments are the final step in the 
distribution of merchandise. They are organized to sell in 
small quantities to many customers. Establishments in stores 
operate as fixed point-of-sale locations, which are designed 
to attract walk-in customers. Retail establishments often 
have displays of merchandise and sell to the general public 
for personal or household consumption, though they may 
also serve businesses and institutions. Some establishments 
may further provide after-sales services, such as repair and 
installation. Included in, but not limited to this category, are 
durable consumer goods sales and service, consumer goods, 
other grocery, food, specialty food, beverage, dairy, etc., and 
health and personal services. Excluded from this category are 
formula retail establishments (refer to formula retail definition).

Roof Terraces are flat areas on top of a building which are 
accessible for use as a recreation space for the residents and 
users of the building.

Senior Citizen includes any elderly person over the age of 
55 (This age criteria is the same as the City of Pearland UDC, 
8th Edition, January 2013 and the T-15 and T-16 amendments 
approved June 24, 2013 and December 16, 2013 definition for 
“Assisted Living Facility”)

Service Uses means a category for limited personal service 
establishments which offer a range of personal services that 
include (but not limited to) clothing alterations, shoe repair, dry 
cleaners, laundry, health and beauty spas, etc. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 43



27

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

Sign, Building Blade means a pedestrian-oriented sign that 
is affixed perpendicular to the corner of a building or to the 
front façade of a building above the first floor to provide 
identification for the whole building. 

Sign, Marquee means a sign structure placed over the entrance 
to a theatre or other public gathering venue. It has signage 
stating either the name of the establishment or the name 
of the event, artist, and other details of the event appearing 
at that venue. Marquee signs may often be combined with 
Building Blade signs. 

Sign, Monument means any sign which is connected to the 
ground and which has no clear space for the full width of the 
sign between the bottom of the sign and the surface of the 
ground. A monument sign may include a sign face and sign 
structure, and may also include a sign base and sign cap. 

Sign, Sandwich Board means a portable sign consisting of two 
panels of equal size, which are hinged at the top or one panel 
with a support and placed on the ground or pavement so as to 
be self-supporting. 

Sign, Tenant Blade means a smaller pedestrian-oriented sign 
that is affixed perpendicular to the building façade under a 
canopy or awning or immediately over a tenant space and 
provides identification for individual tenants within a building. 

Skilled Nursing Facilities (SNF) are licensed in the State of 
Texas.  They provide 24-hour supervision and nursing/ 
medical care.    

Street Screen means a freestanding wall or living screen built 
along the BTZ or in line with the building façade line along the 
street. It may mask a parking lot or a loading/service area from 
view or provide privacy to a side yard and/or strengthen the 
spatial definition of the public realm. 

Street Type means a specific designation for streets in the Ivy 
District that establishes a certain character and cross-sections 
to improve walkability within the development. 

Street Network means the Required and Recommended 
network for new and existing streets within the Ivy District as 
established in the Street Network Plan, Exhibit B3. 

Sub-District means an area within the Ivy District development 
that creates a distinct urban form different from other areas 

within the Ivy District. Sub-Districts are identified in the Sub-
Districts Regulating Plan, Exhibit C1.

Tree Planting Area means the actual ground area which is 
disturbed for planting a tree. It shall include the root ball and 
backfill soil around it. The tree planting area may be larger than 
the tree well which is placed over the tree planting area. 

Tree Well means an unpaved area around the trunk of a tree 
within the sidewalk area that is either landscaped with ground 
cover or covered with a tree grate. 

B. Technical Terms

Arcade means a portion of the main façade of the building that 
is at or near the property line and a colonnade that supports 
the upper floors of the building. Arcades are intended for 
buildings with first floor commercial or retail uses and the 
arcade may be one or two stories. 

Figure 4.1  Arcade

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

BUILD-TO ZONE BUILD-TO ZONE

SIDEWALK

STREET

BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PL

B (facade width)

LOT WIDTH

MIN. SETBACKMAX. SETBACK

ARCADE

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.WR.O.W

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

A
MAX. 

ALLOWABLE 
SETBACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILDING 
FRONTAGE %

x 100=
B (Building facade width)

A (lot width minus max. setback)

GALLERY BUILDING ARCADE BUILDING

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

RECESSED ENTRY

Build-to Zone (BTZ) means the area between the minimum 
and maximum setbacks within which the principal building’s 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 44



28

Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

front façade (building façade line) is to be located. 

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

BUILD-TO ZONE BUILD-TO ZONE

SIDEWALK

STREET

BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PL

B (facade width)

LOT WIDTH

MIN. SETBACKMAX. SETBACK

ARCADE

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.WR.O.W

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

A
MAX. 

ALLOWABLE 
SETBACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILDING 
FRONTAGE %

x 100=
B (Building facade width)

A (lot width minus max. setback)

GALLERY BUILDING ARCADE BUILDING

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

RECESSED ENTRY

Figure 4.2  Build-to Zone

Building Façade Line means the vertical plane along a lot 
where the portion of the building’s front facade closest to the 
street is actually located.

Figure 4.3  Building Facade Line

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

BUILD-TO ZONE BUILD-TO ZONE

SIDEWALK

STREET

BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PL

B (facade width)

LOT WIDTH

MIN. SETBACKMAX. SETBACK

ARCADE

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.WR.O.W

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

A
MAX. 

ALLOWABLE 
SETBACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILDING 
FRONTAGE %

x 100=
B (Building facade width)

A (lot width minus max. setback)

GALLERY BUILDING ARCADE BUILDING

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

RECESSED ENTRY

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

BUILD-TO ZONE BUILD-TO ZONE

SIDEWALK

STREET

BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PL

B (facade width)

LOT WIDTH

MIN. SETBACKMAX. SETBACK

ARCADE

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.WR.O.W

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

A
MAX. 

ALLOWABLE 
SETBACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILDING 
FRONTAGE %

x 100=
B (Building facade width)

A (lot width minus max. setback)

GALLERY BUILDING ARCADE BUILDING

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

RECESSED ENTRY

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

BUILD-TO ZONE BUILD-TO ZONE

SIDEWALK

STREET

BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PL

B (facade width)

LOT WIDTH

MIN. SETBACKMAX. SETBACK

ARCADE

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.WR.O.W

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

A
MAX. 

ALLOWABLE 
SETBACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILDING 
FRONTAGE %

x 100=
B (Building facade width)

A (lot width minus max. setback)

GALLERY BUILDING ARCADE BUILDING

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

RECESSED ENTRY

Building Frontage means the percentage of the building’s 
front façade that is required to be located at the front Build-to 
Line or Zone as a proportion of the lot’s frontage along that 
public street. Courtyards, forecourts, and pedestrian breezeway 
frontages shall be considered as building façade for the 
calculation of building frontage.  

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

BUILD-TO ZONE BUILD-TO ZONE

SIDEWALK

STREET

BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PL

B (facade width)

LOT WIDTH

MIN. SETBACKMAX. SETBACK

ARCADE

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.WR.O.W

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

A
MAX. 

ALLOWABLE 
SETBACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

BUILDING 
FRONTAGE %

x 100=
B (Building facade width)

A (lot width minus max. setback)

GALLERY BUILDING ARCADE BUILDING

BUILDING 
FACADE 

LINE

R.O.W

RECESSED ENTRY

Figure 4.4  Building Frontage Calculation

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 45



29

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

EXT.
COR.

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

EXT.
COR.

Typical Characteristics

Typically setbacks are between 30’ and 60’.

Direct access to each unit is from common external circulation areas.

Typically there is no street level retail.

Surface parking areas.

P

C. Residential Building Typology

1. Garden Style Apartment 
a. A large development of small, clustered apartment 

buildings. 
b. Each building is usually two to four stories tall, and there 

are no internal hallways, although adjacent apartments 
may share a wall. 

c. Each apartment entrance is from a common stairwell 
or patio, and the buildings are typically surrounded by 
outdoor landscaping, patios, and large surface  
parking lots.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 46



30

Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

3. Urban Style Dwellings with No Internal Parking 
a. Self-contained dwelling units that occupy only part of  

a building. 
b. Plan organization where all the dwelling units are along  

either side of a corridor.
c. Buildings are usually 3- to 5-stories tall and reinforce the 

street edge.

Typical Characteristics

Setbacks are regulated to be between 5’ and 15’.

Common point of entry into lobby accessing common internal circulation area 
(direct access to street level units is permitted if there is no street level retail).

Street level retail is permitted and typical for this building type.

All parking structures must have at least 3 sides of occupiable uses and the 
remaining side must have an architectural screen.

Typical Characteristics

Setbacks are regulated to be between 5’ and 15’.

Common point of entry into lobby accessing common internal circulation area 
(direct access to street level units is permitted if there is no street level retail).

Street level retail is permitted and typical for this building type.

All parking structures must have at least 3 sides of occupiable uses and the 
remaining side must have an architectural screen.

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

RETAIL

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

RETAIL

UNIT

UNITINT.
COR.

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

RETAIL

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

RETAIL

UNIT

UNITINT.
COR.

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

RETAIL

INT.
COR.

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

RETAIL

INT.
COR.

UNIT

P

2. Urban Style Dwellings with Internal Parking
a. Self-contained dwelling units that occupy only part of  

a building. 
b. Plan organization where all the dwelling units are along 

one side of the access corridor.
c. Residential units surround an internal parking structure. 
d. Buildings are usually 3- to 5-stories tall and reinforce the 

street edge.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 47



31

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 4  Definitions

August 7, 2014

UNIT UNITUNIT

FLAT 
BUILDING

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT UNITUNIT

FLAT 
BUILDING

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT

UNIT UNITUNIT

UNIT UNITUNIT

4.

UNIT UNITUNIT

UNIT UNITUNIT

4.
5. Townhouse 

a. A dwelling unit having a common wall with or abutting 
one or more adjacent buildings and neither above nor 
below any other dwelling unit.

b. Dedicated front and rear access to the outside.

4. Flats or Lofts
a. A dwelling unit having a common wall with or abutting 

one or more adjacent buildings, with both front and rear 
access to the outside. 

b. A flat or loft building contains multiple dwelling units 
organized vertically and is adjacent to other flat or loft 
buildings on either side, but not on its front or back. 

Typical Characteristics

Setbacks are regulated to be between 5’ and 15’.

Direct access to each unit from street level with private internal circulation.

Street level retail is permitted, but not typical for this building type.

All parking structures must have at least 3 sides of occupiable uses and the 
remaining side must have an architectural screen.

Typical Characteristics

Setbacks are regulated to be between 5’ and 15’.

Access to each “stack” of units is from the street level leading to common 
internal circulation area.

Street level retail is permitted but not typical for this building type.

All parking structures must have at least 3 sides of occupiable uses and the 
remaining side must have an architectural screen.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 48



32

Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

ZONING5
A. Relationship to the Base Zoning District

The Ivy District site was previously zoned for another PD that 
was not implemented and has expired; therefore, the base 
zoning district for the site is now designated for an unspecified 
PD. Prior to designation as a PD zoning district, the site was 
primarily within the Spectrum zoning district; specifically, 
Districts S1, S2 and S3. The intended character of development 
within those districts is generally similar to the Ivy District. In 
addition, the Ivy District site is also within the area proposed 
for a new “Lower Kirby Urban Center,” which the City has 
incorporated into its Comprehensive Plan, but a corresponding 

zoning district has not been establish. The intended character 
of development with the proposed Lower Kirby Urban Center 
is also generally similar to the Ivy District.

In consideration of all of the above factors, The Ivy District 
PD will establish a new zoning district that will replace the 
current unspecified PD zoning district and be governed by 
development regulations, design controls, and administrative 
and other requirements established in this PD document. 
Figure 5.1, on the following page, illustrates the boundaries of 
the Ivy District superimposed on the City’s Zoning Map.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 49



33

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

0 400’200’ 800’

Figure 5.1  Zoning Plan Excerpt

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

SH
-2

88

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Clear C
reek

Ivy District

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Source: City of Pearland Zoning Plan, 27 Jan 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 50



34

Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

B. Influence of the Proposed Lower Kirby District

The Ivy District site is also located within a portion of a 
proposed new “Lower Kirby Urban Center” (referred to also as 
the “Lower Kirby” plan) that the City has incorporated into its 
Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, the planning for the proposed 
Ivy District was influenced by the vision for the Lower Kirby 
plan, and the basis and template for this PD document was the 
“Proposed Form-based Code for Lower Kirby Urban Center,” 
dated November 17, 2011.

The Lower Kirby plan establishes five “Character Zones,” three 
of which are designated for the land within the Ivy District site. 
The following is a summary description of those Character 
Zones:

1. Urban Neighborhood
Designated for land on the west/southwest portion of the Ivy 
District site, the Urban Neighborhood consists primarily of a 
residential fabric. The area is intended to have a mix of small 
apartments, townhomes and live-work units with commercial 
activity concentrated at street intersections and along the 
Clear Creek frontage.

2. Highway Commercial
Designated for land on the east/northeast portion of the Ivy 
District site, Highway Commercial is intended to provide an 
appropriate transition in the Lower Kirby Urban Center from 
the Beltway 8 and SH 288 access roads. This area is intended 
for regional office and retail development.

3. Commercial Transition
Designated for a small portion of land on the northwest corner 
of the Ivy District site, Commercial Transition is intended to 
provide for a range commercial (retail, office and live-work) 
and residential uses as a transition from the Mixed Use core 
(designated for land northwest of the Ivy District site).

In addition to the Character Zones described above, the Lower 
Kirby plan also designates Clear Creek and the land within 
its floodway in the southeast corner of the Ivy District site as 
required open space.

Figure 5.2, on the following page, illustrates the boundaries 
of the Ivy District superimposed on the Lower Kirby plan. As 
will be discussed further below, the Ivy District will establish 
sub-districts with similar qualities as the three Lower Kirby 
Character Zones described above.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 51



35

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

0 400’200’ 800’

Figure 5.2  Lower Kirby Plan Excerpt

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

SH
-2

88

Clear C
reek

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

Ivy District

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Source: City of Pearland, Lower Kirby Urban Center Development Code, 24 Jun 2011

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Lower Kirby Legend

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 52



36

Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

C. Proposed Ivy District

The proposed Ivy District will include two sub-districts for 
which their corresponding land use characteristics and 
locations within the Ivy District are generally consistent with 
the Lower Kirby Character Zones described above. In addition, 
a third sub-district will be established that designates Clear 
Creek and the land within its floodway as required open 
space, also consistent with the Lower Kirby plan. Therefore, 
these three Ivy District sub-districts will effectively be the 
first increment in the development of the Lower Kirby Urban 
Center.

The Ivy District sub-districts are described below.

1. “Public Square” Sub-district
The Public Square Sub-district will be zoned for “Mixed Use 
– Predominantly Commercial.” This Sub-district will have the 
tallest buildings, highest density and the most pedestrian 
activity. This Sub-district will have the greatest variety of 
uses, consisting of retail, office, hotel, and potentially some 
residential. Required open space will also be incorporated into 
the development of this Sub-district, envisioned predominantly 
in the form of a public square that will be an organizing feature 
of this Sub-district. This Sub-district combines characteristics 
of the Lower Kirby “Highway Transition” and “Commercial 
Transition” zones.

A parcel of land south of Clear Creek is also a part of the Public 
Square Sub-District. That parcel is designated for potential 
development of commercial and/or retail uses; development 
within the parcel will comply with all zoning and land-use 
regulations, building form and development standards, 
design controls, and administrative and other requirements 
established in this PD document, specifically as they apply to 
the Public Square Sub-district.

2. “Parkside Neighborhood” Sub-district
The Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district will be zoned for 
Mixed Use – Predominantly High Density Residential.” This 
Sub-district will consist primarily of an urban residential 
fabric, with street-level retail in strategic areas. Commercial 
development compatible with the residential neighborhood 
would also be permitted in the eastern portion of this Sub-
district. Required open space will also be incorporated into the 
development of this Sub-district, envisioned predominantly 
in the form of public parks that will be an organizing feature 
of this Sub-district. This Sub-district combines characteristics 
of the Lower Kirby “Urban Neighborhood” and “Commercial 
Transition” zones.

3. “Clear Creek” Sub-district
The Clear Creek Sub-district will be zoned for “Public Open 
Space.” This Sub-district is defined by the Clear Creek 
floodway and will be developed as public open space, 
envisioned as a recreational park.

The proposed Ivy District Sub-districts and their relationship to 
the proposed Lower Kirby plan are illustrated in Figure 5.3, on 
the following page.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 53



37

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

0 400’200’ 800’

Figure 5.3  Ivy District Plan (overlaying Lower Kirby Plan)

Ivy District Legend

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

Ivy District

Clear C
reek

SH
-2

88

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 54



38

Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

D. Permitted Land Use

To further reinforce the intent of the Ivy District Sub-districts, 
only specified land uses will be permitted for each block that 
correspond to the desired characteristics of the Sub-district 
to which they belong. The permitted land uses, by general 
categories, are illustrated in Figure 5.4, on the following page, 
and discussed further in Part 6 of this PD document.

E. Regulating Plans

The Regulating Plans described below and included in 
Appendix C, “Regulating Plans,” establish the Ivy District PD 
zoning sub-districts and permitted land uses.

1. Ivy District Sub-districts Regulating Plan
Included in Appendix C, Exhibit C1, is the “Ivy District Sub-
district Regulating Plan” that establishes the boundaries of 
the Ivy District and its Sub-districts as described above. No 
variations from this plan shall be permitted without amending 
the Ivy District PD.

2. Ivy District Land Use Regulating Plan
Included in Appendix C, Exhibit C2, is the “Ivy District Land Use 
Regulating Plan” that establishes the permitted land uses for 
each development block within the Public Square and Parkside 
Neighborhood Sub-districts, as well as the permitted land use 
for the Clear Creek Sub-district. Note the following:

(1) For the Public Square and Parkside Neighborhood 
Sub-districts, permitted land uses are established under 
the following general categories: Commercial, Retail 
and Residential. Refer to Part 6 for more information on 
specific land uses permitted within these categories. For 
any given block, the permitted uses include all or any 
combination of the uses specified. Further, public open 
space shall also be incorporated within the development 
of the blocks as required to comply with open-space 
requirements established in Part 6 this PD document.

(2) For the Clear Creek Sub-district, public open space is 
the only permitted land use. Refer to Part 6 of this PD 
document for more specific information on allowed 
development within public open space.

(3) The street network depicted on this plan and the 
corresponding block configurations are provided 
for context and reference and may vary during 
implementation in accordance with the Minor Deviation 
provisions established in Part 3 of this PD document. 
However, variations from the number of blocks, their 
designated locations, and their permitted land uses as 
established by this plan shall not be permitted without 
amending the Ivy District PD.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 55



39

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 5  Zoning

August 7, 2014

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 9

BLOCK 10

BLOCK 11

BLOCK 12

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Floodway

Clear Creek

Ivy District Legend

Commercial, Retail

Commercial, Retail,  
Residential

Retail, Residential

Residential

Public Open Space

Notes:
1. The depicted alignment of streets and configuration of blocks are conceptual and variable pursuant to the minor 

deviation provisions established in this PD document.
2. Public open space is the only permitted land use where indicated on this plan; however, public open space shall 

also be incorporated in the development blocks as required to meet open space requirements as established in 
this PD document.

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

Figure 5.4  Land Use Regulating Plan “Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Solid line denotes a Public Street, 
fixed alignment

Dashed line denotes Private Street, 
variable alignment

Sub-districts Street Types

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Ivy District Boundary

Zoning Districts Legend

SP1

SP2

SP3

SP4

GB

GC

BP-288

PD

Urban Neighborhood

Commercial Transition

Highway Commercial

Character Zones Type ‘A’ Streets

Type ‘B’ Streets

Required Regional 
Detention / Floodway

Designated Floodway

Required Open Space

Open Space

“Promenade” Frontage

Frontage Type

Recommended Civic Use

Recommended Access Point to Greenway

Approximate Parcel Line

1/4-mile Radius Pedestrian Shed

Bike/ped-way

Special Conditions

AV-94-48 (2-Lane Avenue)

“Neighborhood Tributary” - ROW varies 

ST-62-38 (Urban Neighborhood Street - Type A)

Waterfront Promenade

AV-82-44 (Avenue)

RD-44-22 (Service/Access Road)

NOTE: For all street types, a dashed line 
denotes a recommended private street; a 
solid line denotes a public required street

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 56



40

Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

A. Ivy District Area Summary

Exhibit C1, “Ivy Districts Sub-Districts Regulating Plan,” 
establishes the boundaries of the Sub-districts; Table 6.1 
presents the gross areas of the Ivy District Sub-districts.

TABLE 6.1 - ZONING SUB-DISTRICTS AREA

Public Square 11.7 acres 

Parkside Neighborhood 21.3 acres 

Clear Creek 15.5 acres 

Ivy District Total 48.5 acres

B. Land Use Area Summary

1. Permitted Land Uses
Exhibit C2, “Ivy District Land Use Regulating Plan” designates 
the permitted land-use categories for the Ivy District Sub-
districts, designated by general category—Commercial, Retail, 
Residential—for each block. Due to the mixed-use nature of 
the Ivy District PD, more than one permitted use is assigned to 
most blocks. Table 6.2 presents a summary of the area (acres) 
of each land use category. 

TABLE 6.2 - PERMITTED LAND USE AREAS

Use Location

Mixed Use - Commercial, Retail Blocks 1, 2, 4 and 12

Mixed Use - Commercial, Retail, Residential Blocks 3 and 7 

Mixed Use – Residential, Retail Blocks 5, 6 and 8 

Residential Blocks 9, 10 and 11 

Public Open Space Clear Creek Sub-district

2. Schedule of Permitted Uses
Table 6.3, on pages 42-43, establishes a schedule of specifically 
permitted uses for the Ivy District grouped under general land 
use categories, and Table 6.4, on pages 44-45, establishes use 
criteria. Specific uses that are not listed in the schedule but 
are substantially similar to specified uses may be permitted in 
accordance with deviation procedures established in Part 3 of 
this PD document.

LAND USE6
C. Building Program 

Exhibit B4, “Building Program Plan,” illustrates the proposed 
program for Ivy District buildings. Table 6.5, on page 46, 
establishes density limits, either minimum or maximum (as 
applicable to a specific use), in terms of either gross area 
(square footage) or number of units (as applicable to a specific 
use) for the buildings, grouped by general land use categories. 
Table 6.6, on page 46, provides program densities expected 
at the completion of each phase, as illustrated in Exhibit B9, 
“Phasing Plan,” and described in Section H of Part 3 of this PD 
document.

D. Residential

1. Residential Density
The residential component of the Ivy District will be comprised 
of a maximum of 1,150 residential units. Refer to Table 6.7, on 
page 46, for Residential Density calculations as defined by the 
UDC.

2. Residential Building Types
Exhibit B2, “Illustrative Master Plan,” indicates the type of 
residential buildings envisioned in the residential land-use 
locations. Thorough definitions of each proposed residential 
building type in the Ivy District are provided in Part 4, Section 
C, of this PD document. “Urban Style Dwellings” with internal 
parking shall comprise a minimum of 50% of all residential 
units.

3. Prohibition of Garden Style Apartments
A thorough definition of “Garden Style Apartment” type of 
residential building is provided in Part 4, Section C, of this 
PD document. Due to the desire to create a vibrant, “urban 
style” neighborhood within the Ivy District, construction of 
any garden style apartments within any sub-district of the Ivy 
District is expressly prohibited. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 57



41

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

E. Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC)

1. Description
The Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC) will be a 
single tall building categorized as a commercial use. The CCRC 
will have the following defining characteristics:

• Healthcare facilities licensed by the State of Texas

• Structured entrance fees and/or monthly fees

• Support-staff intensive

• Age-restricted population

• Aging in place benefits and resources

• Hospitality and Healthcare related staff

• Dedicated commercial dining facilities for daily  
meal service

• Multiple programs, services and amenities for residents

The principal elements of the CCRC will be:

• Independent living units

• Assisted living units

• Memory care units

• Skilled nursing units

2. Independent Living Component
Approximately 70% of the total units will be independent living 
units; the exact number of independent living units developed 
will be required to be included in the required open space 
calculations. For purposes of this PD document, 158 units (70% 
of the minimum 225 total units) is included in the calculation of 
open space and parkland dedication requirements in Sections 
G and H .

3. Healthcare Component
The healthcare component of the CCRC includes the 
assisted living, memory care and skilled nursing units. Those 
healthcare-related units shall comprise a minimum of 30% of 
all CCRC units.

F. Community Center

The Community Center is envisioned as a space that can be 
used for residents living in the Ivy District community or the 
Greater Pearland community for public or private events, 
activities or performances. As illustrated on Exhibit B4, 
“Building Program Plan,” the Community Center is proposed 
to be located in the street level of the residential building on 
Block 7.

G. Public Open Space Requirements

1. The Calculation of Open Space Requirements
The total amount of open space required for the Ivy District 
shall be calculated as follows:

• 900 sf/residential unit

• 900 sf/independent living unit in the CCRC

Based on the proposed Design Plan, the estimated open space 
requirement is:

• 1,150 residential units x 900 sf = 23.8 acres

• 158 CCRC independent living units x 900 sf = 3.3 acres

• Total required = 27.1 acres

As illustrated in Exhibit B6, “Public Open Space Plan,” 18.7 
acres of public open space is proposed. An additional amount 
of private open space will also be developed, but it would be 
difficult to achieve program goals as well as the additional 8.4 
acres of open space required by the calculation above. Further, 
the total requirement of 27.1 acres of public open space is 
55.9% of the gross area, which is contradictory to the goals 
of a walkable urban neighborhood. Due to the nature of the 
traditional neighborhood design contemplated in the Lower 
Kirby Urban Center and proposed for the Ivy District, the 
density of residential units in the Ivy District PD zoning district 
will be significantly higher than any other current zoning 
district. Therefore, the higher residential density resulting from 
an urban neighborhood must be taken into account in the 
application of open space requirements. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 58



42

Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

**Model homes are limited to a time period until all homes are sold in the neighborhood.

P Permitted by right P/C Permitted with design criteria per Table 6.4 P/A Permitted Accessory Use P/A/C Permitted as an Accessory Use with design criteria per Table 6.4

NP Not Permitted P/CUP Permitted with a Conditional Use Permit NA Not applicable A Accessory use to not exceed 25% of the primary use building square footage

Su
b-

D
is

tr
ic

t 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

qu
ar

e

Pa
rk

si
de

 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d

C
le

ar
 C

re
ek

TABLE 6.3 - SCHEDULE OF PERMITTED USES

Commercial Uses

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate establishments including banks, credit unions, real estate, and property management services, with 
no drive through facility

P P/C NP

Offices for business, professional, and technical uses such as accountants, architects, lawyers, doctors, etc. P P/C NP

Research laboratory headquarters, laboratories and associated facilities P NP NP

Hotels P/C NP NP

Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC) P/C P/C NP

Retail Uses 

Formula Retail P/C P/C NP

Retail Sales or Service with no drive through facility (includes alcohol sales which shall meet Chapter 4 of the City of Pearland Code of 
Ordinances.  Excluded from this category are Auto-Retail Sales and Service Uses (see Part 4 of this PD for Definition of Retail, Service 
uses, and Auto-related Sales and Service)

P P/C NP

Food Service Uses such as full-service restaurants, cafeterias, caterers, bakeries and snack bars

Included in this category is café seating within a public or private sidewalk area with no obstruction of pedestrian circulation.  Also 
included in this category is the sale of alcoholic beverages which shall meet Chapter 4 of the City of Pearland Code of Ordinances.

P P/C P/C

Residential Uses  

Home Occupations P/A P/A NP

Multi-family Residential

     First Floor

     Upper Floor
NP 
P

P/C 
P

NP 
NP

Residential Lofts P P NP

Single-family residential attached dwelling unit (Townhomes) NP P NP

Live-work unit P P NP

Garden Style Apartment NP NP NP

Other Uses

Art galleries P P/C NP

Art, antique, furniture or electronics studio (retail, repair or fabrication; excludes auto electronics sales or service) P NP NP

Games arcade establishments P/CUP NP NP

Theater, cinema, dance, music or other entertainment establishment P NP NP

Performing arts center P NP NP

Community center P NP NP

Museums and other special purpose recreational institutions P NP NP

Fitness, recreational sports, gym, or athletic club P NP P/C

Parks, greens, plazas, squares, and playgrounds P P P

Drag Strip, Fairgrounds, Gaming Establishment, Private Club or Adult Entertainment NP NP NP

Business associations and professional membership organizations P P/C NP

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 59



43

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

**Model homes are limited to a time period until all homes are sold in the neighborhood.

P Permitted by right P/C Permitted with design criteria per Table 6.4 P/A Permitted Accessory Use P/A/C Permitted as an Accessory Use with design criteria per Table 6.4

NP Not Permitted P/CUP Permitted with a Conditional Use Permit NA Not applicable A Accessory use to not exceed 25% of the primary use building square footage

Su
b-

D
is

tr
ic

t 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

qu
ar

e

Pa
rk

si
de

 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d

C
le

ar
 C

re
ek

TABLE 6.3 - SCHEDULE OF PERMITTED USES, CONTINUED

Other Uses

Child day care and preschools P P NP

Schools, libraries, and community halls P NP NP

Universities and Colleges P NP NP

Hospital NP NP NP

Clinic, Emergency Medical Center or Medical Office Building P NP NP

Civic uses P NP NP

Social services and philanthropic organizations P NP NP

Religious Institutions  P NP NP

Funeral homes  P NP NP

Warehouse and storage NP NP NP

Artisanal Production (included in this category are jewelry, silverware, personal metal goods, flatware, dolls, toys, games, musical 
instruments, medical equipment, high-tech/clean manufacturing, office supplies, and signs.)

P/C P/C NP

Wholesale trade establishment, Manufacturing or Assembly NP NP NP

Publishing (newspaper, books, periodicals, software) NP NP NP

Motion picture and sound recording P NP NP

Telecommunications and broadcasting (radio, TV, cable, wireless communications, telephone, etc.) NP NP NP

Information services and data processing P NP NP

Model homes for sales and promotion** P P NP

Cigars, Tobacco Shops (Retail Only) P/CUP NP NP

Parking, surface (primary use of property) NP NP NP

Parking, surface (accessory use of property) P/A P/A P/A

Parking, structure P P NP

Private attached garage NP P NP

Private detached garage NP P NP

Sales from kiosks P NP P

Community garden P P P

Antennas including cell, accessory, and mounted on top of buildings P/A/C NP NP

Solar energy equipment P/A/C P/A P/A

Special Event P/C P/C P/C

Rain harvesting equipment P/C P/C P/C

Utility equipment (includes electrical transformers, gas meters, etc.) P/A/C P/A/C P/C

Any use with a drive through facility  NP NP NP

Auto-related Service, Bail Bonds, Crematorium, Travel Trailer, Home for Alcoholic, Narcotic or Psychiatric Patients or Pawn Shop NP NP NP

Veterinarian Animal Hospital (No Animal Hospital with Outside Pens) P NP NP

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 60



44

Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

TABLE 6.4 - USE CRITERIA

Use Sub-District Use Criteria

Commercial Uses

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 
establishments 

Parkside Neighborhood, 
Clear Creek

Building area shall not exceed 5,000 sf per instance, per block for Parkside 
Neighborhood. Limited to one (1) building in Clear Creek.Food Service Uses such as full-service 

restaurants, cafeterias, bakeries and snack bars 
with no drive through facilities 

Offices for business, professional, and technical 
uses 

Parkside Neighborhood, 
Public Square

Shall be permitted in any live-work building where the first floor is built to Commercial 
Ready standards with 14’ first floor clear height and handicapped access. 

All other buildings for office and art gallery uses shall be limited to 6,000 sf, except in 
Block 7.

Assisted Living & Skilled Nursing Public Square
Assisted living or skilled nursing units shall not exceed more than 30% of the total unit 
mix of the CCRC.

Retail Uses

Formula Retail
Parkside Neighborhood, 
Public Square

No Restaurants (including shops providing one type of food, but not including Coffee 
Shops), Convenience Stores or Big Box retail are permitted in the development. All 
Formula Retail must adhere to design guidelines established in this PD.

Retail sales and service Parkside Neighborhood Building area shall not exceed 5,000 sf per instance, per block.

Residential Uses

Urban-style dwellings and flats or lofts  
Parkside Neighborhood, 
Public Square

Urban-style dwellings with internal parking shall comprise a minimum of 50% of all 
residential units.  Efficiency units shall not exceed more the 25% of overall unit mix.

Townhouses Parkside Neighborhood Minimum Lot Width - Twenty feet (20’)

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 61



45

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

TABLE 6.4 - USE CRITERIA, CONTINUED

Use Sub-District Use Criteria

Other Uses

Art Galleries
Parkside Neighborhood, 
Public Square

Shall be permitted in any live-work building or any commercial building where the 
first floor is built to Commercial Ready standards with 14’ first floor clear height and 
handicapped access. 

All other buildings for office and art gallery uses shall be limited to 6,000 sf.

Business Associations and professional 
membership organizations

Parkside Neighborhood
Shall only be permitted on corner lots in the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district

Building area shall not exceed 5,000 sf per block

Miscellaneous manufacturing and assembly 
(included in this category are jewelry, 
silverware, personal metal goods, flatware, 
dolls, toys, games, musical instruments, 
medical equipment, high-tech/clean 
manufacturing, office supplies, and signs.) 

Parkside Neighborhood, 
Public Square

No outdoor storage is permitted.

Service, loading, unloading and truck access shall be located in compliance with the 
Service and Loading Regulating Plan (Appendix E)

All buildings for manufacturing, assembly and wholesale trade uses shall be limited to 
1,000 sf per unit in the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district and 3,000 sf per user in the 
Public Square Sub-district.

Wholesale trade establishment 

Fitness, recreational sports, gym, and  
athletic club

Clear Creek Building area shall not exceed 10,000 sf.

Hotel Public Square
The hotel may include specific design provisions or guest services for senior citizens, such 
as enhanced accessibility design standards and concierge services.

Antennas including cell, accessory and 
mounted (Excluded from this category are 
freestanding and commercial antennas and 
equipment buildings) 

Public Square 

Antennas shall be permitted on rooftops. 

Antennas shall be screened entirely. 

Antennas shall not be visible from the ground and any area below 50’-0” in height. 

Special Events such farmers’ market, holiday 
sales and festivals

All sub-districts

Small events and outdoor activities do not need a Special Events permit. Larger events 
that meet the criteria of the City’s Special Events ordinance shall be permitted. The 
Building Official shall issue a permit for special events when he finds:

That there is an adequate off-street parking area, approved by the City; and

That the location and layout of drives and parking areas, of lighting, and of temporary 
event signs will not constitute a hazard to the public traveling to the abutting public 
streets and will not obstruct the visibility along such streets.

Rainwater harvesting equipment All sub-districts Rainwater harvesting equipment must be installed in buildings or below grade

Utility equipment (includes electrical 
transformers, gas meters, etc)  

All sub-districts
Utility equipment shall be integrated and screened from view within buildings.  All utility 
distribution throughout the district shall be located below grade.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 62



46

Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

* Refer to Section E for more information.

** Refer to Section F for more information.

TABLE 6.5 - BUILDING PROGRAM DENSITY

Minimum Maximum

Commercial

Office 140,000 sf

Hotel 150 hotel keys

Hotel Conference Center 15,000 sf

CCRC 225 units*

Retail  

Restaurants, Shopping, Personal Services 160,000 sf

Residential

Individual Owner 750 units

Rental 400 units

Other

Community Center 10,000 sf**

TABLE 6.6 - EXPECTED PROGRAM DENSITY BY PHASE

Phase 1 Phase 2

Commercial

Office 140,000 sf (minimum) 140,000 sf (minimum)

Hotel 150 hotel keys (minimum) 150 hotel keys (minimum)

Hotel Conference Center 15,000 sf (minimum) 15,000 sf (minimum)

CCRC 225 units (minimum) 225 units (minimum)

Retail  

Restaurants, Shopping, Personal Services 120,000 sf (estimate) 160,000 sf (minimum)

Residential

Individual Owner 375 units (estimate) 750 units (maximum)

Rental 200 units (estimate) 400 units (maximum)

Other

Community Center 10,000 sf (minimum) 10,000 sf (minimum)

TABLE 6.7 - RESIDENTIAL DENSITY

Use Gross Density Net Density Gross Residential Density

Primary Residential 23.7 units/acre 39.4 units/acre 29.9 units/acre

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 63



47

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 6  Land Use

August 7, 2014

Due to the higher density that will result from the Ivy District’s 
urban residential neighborhood, a maximum requirement 
of 40% of the total gross area will also be established for 
the Ivy District. Therefore, the overall maximum open space 
requirement is calculated as follows:

Maximum requirement: 48.5 acres x 40% = 19.4 acres

The minimum amount of public open space developed will 
be 18.7 acres as proposed. In addition, private open space 
and potentially more public open space will be developed to 
comply with the minimum open space requirement.

2. Proportionate Development of Open Space
Open space requirements shall be satisfied for residential and 
CCRC ILU development within each phase, as well as each 
increment of development within a phase, until the overall 
maximum requirement has been satisfied.

H. Parkland Dedication Requirements

1. Calculation of Parkland Dedication Requirements
The parkland dedication requirement for the Ivy District PD 
shall be based on the value of parkland amenities provided 
in lieu of land dedication. The required value of parkland 
amenities shall be calculated as follows:

• $750/residential unit

• $750/CCRC independent living unit

Based on the proposed Design Plan, the estimated required 
value of amenities will be:

• 1,150 residential units x $750 = $862,500

• 158 CCRC independent living units x $750 = $118,500

• Total value required = $981,000

Items considered to be parkland amenities shall include:

• Shade trees

• Walking, running and bicycle trails

• Picnic and gathering areas with picnic tables and  
barbeque pits

• Play areas and exercise stations with playground and 
exercise equipment

2. Proportionate Development of Amenities
Parkland amenities requirements shall be satisfied for 
residential and CCRC ILU development within each phase, as 
well as each increment of development within a phase.

Developer shall provide an estimated value of amenities as 
part of a plat development application and provide evidence of 
compliance with the required amenity value prior to receipt of 
a Certificate of Occupancy.

I. Parking Requirements

1. Commercial and Retail
(1) Required off-street parking for non-residential use 

(with the exception of the CCRC) shall be one (1) 
space per three hundred square feet (300 sf) gross.

(2) Required off-street parking for the CCRC shall be 
one (1) space per independent living unit.

2. Residential
(1) Required off-street parking for residential uses 

within the Public Square Sub-district shall be one (1) 
space per residential unit.

(2) Required off-street parking for residential uses 
within the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district shall 
be one and a half (1.5) spaces per unit.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 64



48

Part 7  Building Form and Development Standards

August 7, 2014

This part of the PD Document establishes Building Form 
and Development Standards for the Ivy District that apply 
generally to all development within the district and specifically 
to the Public Square and Parkside Neighborhood Sub-districts. 
Diagrams and reference letters are used for illustrative 
purposes only. Reference letters may not be in continuous 
sequence.

A. General

The following Building Form and Development Standards shall 
apply to the entire Ivy District development.

1. Standards
a. Building Placement

(1) Build-to Zones (BTZ). See Sections B and C of this 
part for BTZ standards applicable to the Public 
Square and Parkside Neighborhood Sub-districts, 
respectively. 

(2) Setbacks. Table 7.1 establishes requirements for 
distance from property line to BTZ for all Sub-
districts, as illustrated in Exhibit B5, “Setbacks Plan.”

      
TABLE 7.1 - IVY DISTRICT - SETBACK STANDARDS

Block Frontage Min. (ft.) Max. (ft.)

3, 5-11
Residential & 

Retail/Residential Above
5 10

4 CCRC 5 8

1, 2, 4
Ivy Square & Ivy Plaza  

(North and South Frontages)
5 8

2 Hotel (South Frontage) 5 8

4 Creek Lane (East Frontage)* 5 8

1, 3, 5, 8 Spectrum Drive* 8 10

1-4 Green Ivy Drive* 10 15

1, 2 Highway 288* - 25

*These street frontages supersede any use frontages

b. Block Standards
(1) There are no general block standards.

c. Commercial Frontage Requirements
(1) See Sections B and C of this part for Commercial 

Frontage Requirements applicable to the Public 
Square and Parkside Neighborhood Sub-districts, 
respectively.

BUILDING FORM AND  
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS7

d. Special Frontage Requirements
(1) See Sections B and C of this part for Special 

Frontage Requirements applicable to the Public 
Square and Parkside Neighborhood Sub-districts, 
respectively.

e. Building Height
(1) Maximum height limits establish a predominant low-

rise, neighborhood fabric and the location of taller 
buildings. Height zones at the Ivy District focus the 
greatest density near transit, provide a comfortable 
pedestrian environment that is visually and socially 
engaging, and protect views for neighbors.

(2) The height of structures shall comply with the 
minimum and maximum heights as is indicated for 
each development block in Table 7.2.

               
TABLE 7.2 - IVY DISTRICT - BUILDING HEIGHT STANDARDS

Block Stories (min.-max)* Height (min.- max)*

1 2 - 17 25 - 210 feet

2 2 - 17 25 - 210 feet

3 2 - 17 25 - 210 feet

4 2 - 17 25 - 210 feet

5 2 - 5 25 - 70 feet

6 2 - 5 25 - 70 feet

7 2 - 17 25 - 210 feet

8 2 - 5 25 - 70 feet

9 2 - 5 25 - 70 feet

10 2 - 5 25 - 70 feet

11 2 - 5 25 - 70 feet

12 2 - 17 25 - 210 feet

* For “Urban Style” and “Flats or Lofts” residential buildings, the 
minimum stories and height shall be 3 stories and 30 feet.  

(3) Photovoltaic and thermal solar collectors, rain water 
and fog collecting equipment, wind turbines and 
other sustainability components may project above 
the maximum height limit.

(4) Those portions of a building that may project above 
the maximum height limit are:  

 – Parapets up to four feet (4’) in height.
 – Mechanical enclosures and other rooftop support 

facilities that occupy less than twenty percent (20%) 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 65



49

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 7  Building Form and Development Standards

August 7, 2014

of the roof area up to ten feet (10’) in height.
 – For buildings taller than one hundred feet (100’) wall 

planes extensions such as those used for screening 
of mechanical equipment that are either fifty 
percent (50%) physically and visibly permeable or 
translucent, up to ten feet (10’) in height.

Residential common areas are permitted to project 
twelve feet (12’) above the maximum height limit.  
Residential, active uses include, but are not limited 
to: community rooms and kitchens; recreational 
facilities; and greenhouses. Those portions of a 
building that do project above the height limit must 
step-back at a minimum ratio of one-point-two feet 
(1.2’) in a horizontal dimension, from the exterior 
building wall facing a right-of-way, for every one foot 
(1’) above the maximum height limit. All other sides 
of that projection must step-back at a minimum ratio 
of one-half foot (0.5’) in a horizontal dimension, from 
the exterior wall of the habitable floor below, for 
every one foot (1’) above the maximum height limit. 

Figure 7.1  Height Limit Exceptions

100’ or 50% 
of streetwall, 

whichever is less

1.2
1

.5
1

Streetwall

 

Those portions of a building that exceed the 
indicated maximum height limit shall be no longer 
than fifty percent (50%) of building length (Figure 
7.1). Railings, planters and visually permeable 
building elements no greater than forty-two inches 
(42”) above the roof are exempt from step-back 
requirements (Figure 7.2).

(5) First floor-to-floor height shall be fifteen feet (15’) 
minimum for non-residential use and ten feet (10’) 
minimum for residential use. See note C  in  
Figure 7.2.

(6) First floor finish level shall be twelve inches (12”) 
maximum above sidewalk for first floor commercial 
use and thirty inches (30”) minimum, twenty-four to 
forty-eight inches (24-48”) for residential use. See 
note D  in Figure 7.2.

(7) Upper floor-to-floor heights shall be ten feet (10’) 
minimum. See note E  in Figure 7.2.

C
O

M
M

O
N

P
R

IV
AT

E

6’-6”

5’-0”1’-6”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

P
R

IV
AT

E
 

C
O

M
M

O
N

8’-0”

6’-0”2’-0”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

8’-0” SETBACK6’-6” SET-0’-0” SET-

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

PL

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

4’

8’

0’-0”

PL

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 

Z
O

N
E

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

4’

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

6’-6”

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

3’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

C
O

M
M

O
N

P
R

IV
AT

E

6’-6”

5’-0”1’-6”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

P
R

IV
AT

E
 

C
O

M
M

O
N

8’-0”

6’-0”2’-0”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

8’-0” SETBACK6’-6” SET-0’-0” SET-

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

PL

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

4’

8’

0’-0”

PL

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 

Z
O

N
E

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

4’

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

6’-6”

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

3’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

Figure 7.2  Commercial and Residential Buildings Heights

f. Parking and Service Areas
(1) Parking driveway width shall be twenty feet (20’) 

maximum, only to be exceeded when driveway 
width must address service access or fire lane 
standards

(2) Shared driveways and cross access easements are 
required between lots to minimize curb cuts.

(3) Spacing between driveways shall comply with UDC 
and EDCM standards.

g. Encroachments
(1) In no case shall an encroachment be located over an 

on-street parking space or travel lane.
(2) All encroachments over public right-of-way shall 

obtain a Waiver of Encroachment from the City  
of Pearland.

h. Utilities
(1) All primary utility lines shall be located underground.
(2) All secondary utility lines shall be located 

underground where practical.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 66



50

Part 7  Building Form and Development Standards

August 7, 2014

(3) Any secondary utility lines or equipment located 
above ground shall be approved by the City Manager 
or designee.

2. General Notes
(1) The area between the building and the edge of the 

BTZ or the edge of  the public sidewalk shall be 
paved flush with the sidewalk.  This area can have 
landscaping and planting within tree wells and 
planters but shall not have lawns or  
landscape islands.

(2) Attics and mezzanines less than seven feet (7’) (avg.) 
height shall not be counted as a story.

(3) Corner buildings may exceed the maximum 
building height by fifteen percent (15%) for twenty 
percent (20%) of the building’s frontage along each 
corresponding street façade.

Figure 7.3  Corner Building Height

(4) Ground and roof mounted mechanical equipment 
shall be screened from direct ground level view 
from adjoining public rights-of-way. In addition 
to a parapet wall no lower than thirty-six inches 
(36”), the perimeter of any visible roof mounted 
mechanical equipment shall be circumscribed by a 
wall or permanent screen that is at least as tall as the 
equipment itself.

(5) Setbacks and build-to lines on recessed entries and 
arcade buildings shall be measured from the building 
façade line.

(6) Chapter 4 Site Development Section 4.2.1.3 of 
the City of Pearland Unified Development Code, 
Eighth Edition, January 2013 and the T-15 and T-16 
amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 
16, 2013, shall apply for design of off-street parking 
areas, except as modified by this PD document.

(7) All parking structures must have at least three (3) 
sides of occupiable uses (at all floor levels) and 
the remaining side must be clad in an architectural 
screen. 

B. Public Square Sub-district

The following Building Form and Development Standards, 
which complement and/or amplify corresponding standards in 
Section A of this part, shall apply specifically to development 
within the Public Square Sub-district.

1. Public Square Sub-district Standards
a. Building Placement

(1) Refer to Figure 7.4 for Build-To Zone (BTZ) 
requirements (Distance from property line to the 
edge of the BTZ) 

C
O

M
M

O
N

P
R

IV
AT

E

6’-6”

5’-0”1’-6”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

P
R

IV
AT

E
 

C
O

M
M

O
N

8’-0”

6’-0”2’-0”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

8’-0” SETBACK6’-6” SET-0’-0” SET-

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

PL

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

4’

8’

0’-0”

PL

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 

Z
O

N
E

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

4’

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

6’-6”

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

3’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

Figure 7.4  Public Square Sub-district BTZ

(2) Building Frontage required: 80% (min.). See note A  
in Figure 7.4.

b. Block Standards
(1) There are no block standards that apply specifically 

to the Public Square Sub-district.

c. Commercial Frontage Requirements
(1) First floors of Retail uses shall be built to include first 

floor-to-floor height of fifteen feet (15’) minimum, 
ingress and egress, handicap access, and first floor 
elevation flush with the sidewalk.   

(2) Refer to Part 8 of this PD document for additional 
frontage design controls.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 67



51

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 7  Building Form and Development Standards

August 7, 2014

d. Special Frontage Requirements
(1) First floors of all buildings fronting Ivy Square shall 

be occupied by Retail uses.
(2) Refer to Part 8 of this PD document for additional 

frontage design controls.

e. Building Height
(1) Refer to Table 7.2 for building height standards 

applicable to the Public Square Sub-district.

f. Encroachments
(1) Canopies, signs, awnings and balconies may 

encroach over the sidewalk as long as the vertical 
clearance is a minimum of eight feet (8’). 

g. Utilities
(1) There are no utilities standards that apply specifically 

to the Public Square Sub-district.

2. Public Square Sub-district Notes
(1) First floor heights shall not apply to parking 

structures
(2) All buildings in the Public Square Sub-district shall 

meet the Building Design Controls in Part 8 of  
this document.

(3) One district parking structure may be allowed with 
all sides clad in an architectural screen, in lieu of an 
occupiable use.

C. Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district

The following Building Form and Development Standards, 
which complement and/or amplify corresponding standards in 
Section A of this part, shall apply specifically to development 
within the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district.

1. Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district Standards
a. Building Placement

(1) Refer to Figure 7.5 for Build-To Zone (BTZ) 
requirements (Distance from property line to the 
edge of the BTZ) 

(2) Building Frontage required: 60% (min.). See note A  
in Figure 7.4. 

b. Block Standards
(1) There are no block standards that apply specifically 

to the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district.

c. Commercial Frontage Requirements
(1) There are no commercial frontage standards that 

apply specifically to the Parkside Neighborhood  
Sub-district.

d. Special Frontage Requirements
(1) There are no special frontage standards that apply 

specifically to the Parkside Neighborhood  
Sub-district.

e. Building Height
(1) Refer to Table 7.2 for building height standards 

applicable to the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-
district.

(2) Any Accessory Building shall have a maximum 
height limit of one (1) story.

f. Encroachments
(1) At corner lots, canopies, signs, awnings and 

balconies may encroach over the sidewalk as long as 
the vertical clearance is a minimum of eight feet (8’).

g. Utilities
(1) There are no utilities standards that apply specifically 

to the Parkside Neighborhood  Sub-district.

               

C
O

M
M

O
N

P
R

IV
AT

E

6’-6”

5’-0”1’-6”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

P
R

IV
AT

E
 

C
O

M
M

O
N

8’-0”

6’-0”2’-0”

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

8’-0” SETBACK6’-6” SET-0’-0” SET-

3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

3’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN 3’
-0

”
M

IN
.

10’-0”
MAX.

BUILD 
TO ZONE

SEE 
SETBACK

 PLAN

PL

P

PL

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

4’

8’

0’-0”

PL

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 

Z
O

N
E

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

18’ MIN. OCCUPIED 
HABITABLE SPACE
ABOVE 12’ FROM 

GRADE

0’-0”

A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 
Z

O
N

E
P

E
D

E
S

-
T

R
IA

N
 Z

O
N

E

SL

10
’-

0”
M

IN
.

4’

B
E

LO
W

 
G

R
A

D
E

Z
O

N
E

6’-6”

B

L

A

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

3’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

10’-0” FIRST FLOOR 
OPTIONAL SET BACK

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

A

BUILD TO ZONE

SIDE WALK

SETBACK
(SEE SET BACK PLAN)

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

PL

B

E

C

D

E

E

E

Figure 7.5  Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district BTZ

2. Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district Notes
(1) All buildings in the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-

district shall comply with the Building Design 
Controls in Part 8 of this document.

(2) All parking structures must have at least three (3) 
sides of occupiable uses (at all floor levels), and 
the remaining side must be clad in an architectural 
screen.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 68



52

Part 8  Building Design Controls

August 7, 2014

A. Introduction

The Building Design Controls for the Ivy District shall establish 
a coherent urban character and encourage enduring and 
attractive development. Development plans or site plans shall 
be reviewed by the City Manager or Designee for compliance 
with the controls below. The key design principles establish 
essential goals for development in the Ivy District to encourage 
the preservation, sustainability, and visual quality of this unique 
environment.

B. General Building Design Controls

1. General Standards
a. Overall 

(1) Buildings shall be located and designed so that they 
provide visual interest and create enjoyable, human-
scaled spaces.

(2) New buildings shall utilize building elements and 
details to achieve a pedestrian-oriented public realm.

(3) Building façades shall include appropriate 
architectural details to create variety and interest.

(4) Open space(s) shall be incorporated to provide 
usable public areas integral to the urban 
environment.

b. Building Orientation
(1) Primary entrance to buildings shall be located on the 

street along which the building is oriented. 
(2) All primary entrances shall be oriented to the public 

sidewalk for ease of pedestrian access. 

c. Design of Parking Structures
(1) Where above-ground structured parking is located 

at the perimeter of a building, it shall be screened 
in such a way that cars on all parking levels are 
completely hidden from view from all adjacent public 
and private streets. 

(2) Parking garage ramps shall not be visible from any 
public street. Ramps shall not be located along the 
perimeter of the parking structure. 

(3) Architectural screens shall be used to articulate the 
façade, hide parked vehicles, and shield lighting. 
Architectural screens shall have consistent façade 
materials with neighboring buildings and shall be 
complementary in their articulation. In addition, 
the first-floor façade treatment (building materials, 

BUILDING DESIGN CONTROLS8
windows, and architectural detailing) shall be 
continued to the second floor of a parking structure. 

(4) When parking structures are located at street 
intersections, corner architectural elements shall be 
incorporated, such as corner entrance, signage  
and glazing. 

(5) Parking structures and adjacent sidewalks shall be 
designed so pedestrians and bicyclists are clearly 
visible to entering and exiting automobiles. 

d. Building Materials
(1) Primary building façade materials shall consist of the 

following: brick, stone, stucco utilizing a three-step 
process, spandrel glass shadow box, cementitious 
panel, colored or patterned resin-impregnated 
panel, or glass block. Resin-impregnated panels 
shall be composed of kraft paper or layers or similar 
material impregnated with phenolic resin which has 
been compressed and bonded under heat and high 
pressure. Primary building façade materials shall 
comprise no less than eighty percent (80%) of a 
building’s façade (excluding doors and windows). 
The remaining twenty percent (20%) may consist 
of either a complementary primary façade material 
or an allowable accent material (see Par. 2 below). 
If one or more complementary primary material is 
used for accent or contrast, then the accenting or 
contrasting primary materials may exceed twenty 
percent (20%), as long as no single primary material 
exceeds eighty percent (80%).

(2) Materials allowed exclusively as an accent material 
include the following: wood, modular architectural 
metal panel system with concealed fasteners and 
high-performance coating or natural-weathering 
face material, split-face concrete block, tile, or pre-
cast concrete panels. Materials allowed exclusively 
as accent materials may be used on no more than 
twenty percent (20%) of a building’s façade. More 
than one (1) accent material may be used as long as 
the total amount does not exceed twenty percent 
(20%).

(3) Façades shall not be made of EIFS. EIFS shall be 
limited to moldings and architectural detailing on 
building façades. EIFS materials shall constitute less 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 69



53

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 8  Building Design Controls

August 7, 2014

than ten percent (10%) of any building and shall 
not be used on any portion of any wall that is lower 
than twenty feet (20’) from grade, unless otherwise 
approved by the Building Official. 

(4) Cementitious-fiber panels with at least a fifty (50)-
year warranty shall only be used on twenty percent 
(20%) of the upper floor. 

(5) Roofing materials visible from any public right-of-
way shall be copper, zinc, factory finished standing 
seam metal or metal panel, terra cotta, stone, 
synthetic stone, or similar materials.

e. Façade Composition
(1) Non-residential structures fifty-thousand (50,000) 

square feet in area or greater shall incorporate 
façade articulation of at least three feet (3’) in depth 
for every twenty-five feet (25’) (not cumulatively) in 
vertical height or horizontal length.

(2) Non-residential structures less than fifty-thousand 
(50,000) square feet shall incorporate façade 
articulation of at least one foot (1’) in depth for every 
ten feet (10’) (not cumulatively) in vertical height or 
horizontal length.

(3) Residential buildings shall incorporate façade 
articulation of at least four inches (4”) in depth at 
each floor vertically and between twenty feet (20’) 
and thirty feet (30’) in horizontal length. 

(4) Buildings three (3) stories or higher shall provide 
façade articulation which distinguishes between the 
street level and the upper level of the building. This 
rhythm shall be expressed by changing materials, 
or color, or by using design elements such as 
fenestration, columns, or by façade articulation.

(5) For retail storefront buildings, display window areas 
shall be utilized. 

(6) Storefronts on façades that span multiple tenants 
shall use architecturally compatible materials, colors, 
details, awnings, signage, and lighting fixtures. 

(7) Building entrances shall be defined and articulated 
by architectural elements such as entry portals, 
porches, overhangs, railings, balustrades, and 
others as appropriate. All building elements shall be 
compatible with the architectural style, materials, 
colors, and details of the building as a whole. 

f. Commercial Frontage
(1) All primary retail entrances must meet the sidewalk 

at grade.  
(2) Active use first floors must have a minimum floor-

to-floor height of fifteen feet (15’) with a minimum of 
twelve foot (12’) ceilings.

(3) Active use spaces shall be expressed with façade 
treatments that are scaled to human activity on the 
street.  Lower levels of the building shall include 
changes in materials or changes in fenestration 
scaled to create a comfortable pedestrian zone.

(4) First floor retail and other commercial uses must 
be physically and visually oriented towards a 
public right-of-way or easement, such as a plaza or 
pedestrian passage.

(5) At least fifty percent (50%) of the length of the 
first floor façade between the height of two (2) and 
twelve (12) feet shall be devoted to transparent 
windows, doors and/or visually open spaces (such as 
courtyards, forecourts, and pedestrian breezeways), 
to allow maximum visual interaction between 
sidewalk areas and the interior of active use spaces.  
The use of dark or mirrored glass is not permitted.

(6) In order to allow for multiple storefronts, retail bays 
shall be no greater than thirty-five feet (35’) wide, 
measured along the street frontage, even if initial 
retail tenants occupy more than one bay. 

(7) Tenant improvements of retail spaces must maintain 
the transparency of the storefront; this may be 
achieved with the placement of public areas of 
the proposed use adjacent to the façade and by 
avoiding the use of shades, curtains or displays that 
compromise visibility into the space.

(8) When commercial first floor uses incorporate 
outdoor seating and dining, a minimum sidewalk 
through-way dimension of six feet (6’) must be 
maintained.

g. Residential Frontage
(1) Each first floor residential unit shall have an 

individual entry door directly from an adjacent 
courtyard, dedicated open space, public right-of-way 
or easement.

(2) Where first floor residential units face a public right-
of-way or easement residential entries shall occur 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 70



54

Part 8  Building Design Controls

August 7, 2014

at a minimum average of one (1) door per thirty-five 
(35) linear feet of building frontage.  

(3) Residential entries shall be sheltered from the rain 
and wind and provide an entry light.  First floor 
residential unit entries shall be recessed a minimum 
of eighteen inches (18”) from the streetwall.

(4) At least fifty percent (50%) of the first floor façade of 
residential buildings shall be devoted to transparent 
windows and doors to allow maximum visual 
interaction between sidewalk areas and the interior 
of residential units.  The use of dark or mirrored glass 
is not permitted.

(5) First floor residential units shall have a minimum 
floor to floor height of ten feet (10’). 

(6) Along a sloped street frontage, the elevation change 
between the first habitable floor of a residential 
dwelling unit and the back of sidewalk are permitted 
to be up to five feet (5’) in height for fifty percent 
(50%) of the streetwall. 

(7) A twenty-four to forty-eight inch (24–48”) elevation 
change shall be provided between the first habitable 
floor of first floor residential dwelling units and 
the sidewalk grade in order to provide adequate 
separation between the interior of residential units 
and the public realm, while maintaining visual 
connection.  Entries and common areas to residential 
buildings may be at sidewalk grade. 

h. Windows and Doors
(1) Windows and doors on street-fronting façades shall 

be designed to be proportional and appropriate to 
the specific architectural qualities of the building. 

(2) First-floor windows shall not be opaque, tinted or 
mirrored glass. 

(3) All first floor retail front façades of buildings shall 
have transparent storefront windows covering no 
less than fifty percent (50%) of the façade area.  

(4) Glazing must be of low reflectance (12% of visible 
exterior light).

(5) All commercial building façades should have 
transparent windows covering at least fifty percent 
(50%) of the façade area for all floors. 

(6) All façades of residential buildings shall have 
transparent windows covering at least thirty percent 
(30%) of the façade area for all floors.  

i. Sustainability
(1) Guidelines for all sustainable site and building 

elements or systems shall meet all current 
sustainable industry standards and best practices.

(2) All new Ivy District buildings shall be LEED® 
certified.  Buildings shall be constructed to all current 
sustainable industry standards and best practices to 
contribute to the ecological sustainability and overall 
health and wellness of the neighborhood residents. 

j. Building Top 
(1) Mechanical equipment located on top of buildings 

must be screened from public view and from 
neighboring buildings with enclosures, parapets, 
setbacks, landscaping, or other means.  Any 
enclosure or screening used must be designed as 
a logical extension of the building, using similar 
materials and detailing as the rest of the building’s 
surfaces.

(2) A minimum of twenty percent (20%) of all building 
and parking structure roof area shall incorporate 
photovoltaic panels in the Parkside Neighborhood 
and Public Square Sub-Districts. Guidelines for 
installation of photovoltaic panels shall meet all 
current industry standards and best practices.

(3) A minimum of twenty percent (20%) of all building 
of area shall include green roofs systems in the 
Parkside Neighborhood and Public Square Sub-
Districts. Guidelines for green roof construction 
standards shall meet all current industry standards 
and best practices. Green roofs shall be constructed 
in such a way to encourage residents or visitors to 
inhabit them.

(4) Where feasible, roof designs shall include systems 
such as vegetated roof covers, with growing media 
and plants which minimize heat island effect and 
stormwater run-off and improve thermal envelope 
performance.  

(5) Living roofs must incorporate regionally appropriate 
plant species to minimize water consumption 
requirements.  

2. General Guidelines
The following General Building Design Guidelines complement 
corresponding general standards in Section B.1 of this part.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 71



55

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 8  Building Design Controls

August 7, 2014

a. Overall
(1) Compatibility is not meant to be achieved through 

uniformity, but through the use of complementary 
variations in building elements to achieve individual 
building identity.

(2) All new buildings at Ivy District should use a high 
quality, contemporary design vocabulary to provide 
the neighborhood with an overall modern aesthetic

(3) Residential units should be designed to maximize 
opportunities for residents to enjoy a more seamless 
connection between indoor and outdoor spaces.  
This may be reflected in the design of the building 
façade by including terraces, decks, balconies and 
roof gardens. 

(4) Building designs should incorporate modulation 
and articulation such as massing reveals, changes 
of textures, materials, and/or colors, or shifts of the 
façade plane in order to create a pedestrian-scaled 
façade. Any façade articulation should be based on 
the overall building size and height in order to be 
legible at an urban scale.

b. Building Orientation
(1) At intersections, corner buildings may have their 

primary entrances oriented at an angle to the 
intersection. 

(2) Secondary and service entrances may be located 
from internal parking areas or alleys.

c. Design of Parking Structures
(1) There are no general building design guidelines that 

apply specifically to parking structures.

d. Building Materials
(1) There are no general building design guidelines that 

apply specifically to building materials.

e. Façade Composition
(1) Entrances to upper level uses may be defined and 

integrated into the design of the overall building 
façade.

(2) Corner emphasizing architectural features, awnings, 
blade signs, arcades, colonnades and balconies  
may be used along commercial storefronts to add 
pedestrian interest. 

(3) Blank walls of more than twelve feet (12’) in length 
are discouraged.

(4) Frontages used for utilities, storage, and services 
should be minimized and integrated into the overall 
articulation and fenestration of the façade by 
continuing design elements across these areas and 
therefore enhancing the visual interest of the service 
areas for pedestrians.

(5) Buildings which are located on axis with a 
terminating street or at the intersection of streets 
may be considered as feature buildings. Such 
buildings may be designed with features which take 
advantage of that location, such as an accentuated 
entry and a unique building articulation, which is 
offset from the front wall planes and goes above the 
main building eave or parapet line. 

f. Commercial Frontage
(1) Active-use frontages should be designed in a 

manner that promotes a sense of vitality and 
liveliness in order to focus social activity at the  
Ivy District.

(2) Commercial and storefront entrances should 
be easily identifiable and distinguishable from 
residential entrances.  Recessed doorways, awnings, 
transparencies, changes in color or materials are 
encouraged to identify and enhance retail entrances.

g. Residential Frontage
(1) To foster a pedestrian-focused neighborhood, 

building bases should convey a sense of activity and 
liveliness. 

(2) Residential buildings should make every effort 
to activate and enliven the building base as the 
interface between the public and private realm.  

h. Windows and Doors
(1) Punched windows in a predominantly solid wall 

should be recessed a minimum of two inches (2”) in 
order to give building façades a sense of substance 
and depth.

i. Sustainability
(1) All new Ivy District buildings are intended to be 

constructed using ecologically sustainable materials 
and technologies in order to contribute to the 
reduction of natural resource consumption and 
waste production.  

(2) Ivy District will develop goals and strategies 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 72



56

Part 8  Building Design Controls

August 7, 2014

for building energy and water use, construction 
activities, and the selection of building materials, 
utilities and appliances.   

j. Building Top
(1) Buildings should provide usable rooftop and/ or 

terraced open spaces such as rooftop gardens and 
decks accessible to all units in the building.

(2) Green roofs may sustain a variety of plants and 
invertebrates, as well as provide a habitat for various 
bird species that enhance biodiversity within the Ivy 
District and the region as a whole.

3. General Examples
See Appendix D, Building Examples for images of building tops 
that are representative of the building character for  
green roofs.

C. Public Square Sub-district Building Design Controls
The following Building Design Controls complement and/or 
amplify General Building Design Standards and Guidelines in 
Sections A and B of this part.

1. Public Square Sub-district Standards
a. Building Materials

(1) Side and rear façades shall be of finished quality  
and of the same color that blends with the front of 
the building  

(2) Accessory buildings, enclosed garages, or carports 
shall be designed and constructed of the same 
material as the primary building.

2. Public Square Sub-district Guidelines
There are no building design guidelines that apply specifically 
to the Public Square Sub-district.

3. Public Square Sub-district Examples
See Appendix D, Building Examples for images of elevations 
that are representative of the intended design character for 
proposed buildings in the Public Square Sub-district.

D. Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district Building  
Design Controls 

The following Building Design Controls complement and/or 
amplify General Building Design Standards and Guidelines in 
Sections A and B of this part.

1. Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district Standards
a. Building Materials 

(1) Side and rear façades shall be of finished quality and 
of the same color that blend with the front of the 
building. 

(2) Accessory buildings, enclosed garages or carports 
shall be designed and constructed of the same 
material as the primary building. 

b. Façade Composition
(1) At least one of the following—porches, bay windows, 

stoops, eaves or balconies—shall be added every 
thirty feet (30’) along the front residential façades to 
add pedestrian interest along the street.  

(2) Porches must be a minimum of five feet (5’) by eight 
feet (8’) and covered with a roof. Bay windows must 
be at least a two foot (2’) projection, four feet (4’) 
wide and eight feet (8’) tall. 

(3) Stoops are elevated entrances and must be at least 
five feet (5’) by five feet (5’) at the entry level. 

(4) Eaves must be at least one foot (1’) deep. 
(5) Balconies must be five feet (5’) by eight feet (8’) and 

are not required to be covered. 
(6) Any façade articulation shall be based on the overall 

building size and height in order to be legible at an 
urban scale.

(7) For residential buildings the grade of the slab or first 
floor elevation shall be elevated at least thirty inches 
(30”) above the grade of the sidewalk.  

2. Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district Guidelines
There are no building design guidelines that apply specifically 
to the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district.

3. Parkside Examples
See Appendix D, Building Examples for images of elevations 
that are representative of the intended design character for 
proposed buildings in the Parkside Neighborhood Sub-district.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 73



57

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

A. Introduction

Streets in the Ivy District need to support the overall goal 
of a mixed use, compact, pedestrian oriented district. They 
balance all forms of mobility while maximizing convenience 
for residents and visitors. The Street Network Plan (Exhibit 
B3) designates the street network within the Ivy District. This 
part of the PD document specifies the typical configuration 
of streets within the Ivy District. The specifications address 
vehicular lane width, parkway widths, right-of-way (R.O.W.) 
widths, number of travel lanes, on-street parking, and 
pedestrian and bicycle accommodation.  The character of 
streets in the Ivy District will vary based on the location. This 
part of the PD document also establishes streetscape design 
controls. 

B. Street Design Controls

This portion of the PD document specifies design standards for 
Ivy District streets.

1. Public Streets
Major perimeter streets serving the Ivy District shall be public 
streets dedicated to and maintained by the City of Pearland.

2. Private Streets
Interior streets within the Ivy District shall be private streets 
owned and maintained by the developer. 

3. South Spectrum Drive
The intersection of South Spectrum Drive and SH-288 frontage 
road, as well as portion of the street continuing west, has been 
constructed and the existing street section will be extended 
westward to the intersection of Promenade Shops Drive to 
serve the Ivy District. Therefore, the proposed “Boulevard” 
street type (see Table 9.1 and Section 2.a of this Part 9), which 
applies to South Spectrum Drive, will be conformed to match 
existing conditions.

4. SH 288
Access to the Ivy District from the SH 288 west frontage road 
will be via the existing South Spectrum Drive intersection; 
therefore, no modifications to the SH 288 frontage road are 
proposed.

5. Fruge Road
A connection to Fruge Road from Promenade Shops Drive will 
be made as illustrated in Exhibit B1, “Site Plan” in Appendix B.

6. Street Classification
Table 9.1 and associated cross sections shall establish the cross 
sections for each street type. The proposed cross sections may 
be adjusted prior to plat approval to meet the requirements 
of the Ivy District Traffic Impact Analysis Report in order to 
ensure that all roads comply with applicable engineering 
requirements and traffic policies of the City of Pearland in 
compliance with Texas Municipal Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices and AASHTO, latest edition, as well as all other 
applicable codes in place at the time of development.

STREET AND STREETSCAPE  
DESIGN CONTROLS9

TABLE 9.1 - STREET GUIDELINES

Street  

Classification

Street Width  

(Recommended  

min. R.O.W) 

Number of  

Vehicular 

Lanes

Vehicular 

Lane 

Widths

Number 

of Bike 

Lanes*

Bike Lane 

Widths

Turn 

Radius 

(max.)

Median On-Street Parking Pedestrian 

Sidewalk 

Width (min.)

Parkway/

Tree Well

Boulevard Street 
Type (Public)

82 feet 4 11 feet 0 None 30 feet Yes, 14 
feet

None 7’ wide 5’ wide

Neighborhood 
Collector Street 
Type (Public)

94 feet 2 11 feet 2 5 feet 20 feet Yes, 14 
feet

Yes 11’ wide 5’ wide

Neighborhood 
Collector Street 
Type (Private)

76 feet 2 11 feet 2 6 feet 20 feet None Yes 6’-6” wide 4’-6” wide

Local Street 
Type (Private)

56 feet 2 11 feet 0 None 15 feet None Yes 6’-0” wide 4’-0” wide

* The Ivy District shall encourage the extension of bike lanes into adjoining future developments. If such extension does not happen, the Ivy District shall provide an 
alternate connection to any future bike lanes that are part of Spectrum Drive. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 74



82’

14’

11’11’11’

12’

11’

12’

7’5’7’ 5’

22’22’

82’

14’

11’11’11’

12’

11’

12’

7’5’7’ 5’

22’22’

Boulevard Design Features
1. Street tree
2. Seating zone
3. Planted median  
4. Paved pedestrian zone
5. Tree grate
6. Concrete sidewalk

58

Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

Illustrative Plan

6

44

4

2

3 5

1

1

1 1

36 6

*Lane width established for a WB-50 design vehicle.

Key Plan

Typical Section

a. Boulevard Street Type (Public) - 82’ R.O.W.

5

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 75



Neighborhood Collector Street Design Features
1. Street trees
2. Tree grate
3. Concrete sidewalk
4. Bike Lane
5. On-street parking

11’ 11’ 11’

16’ 16’24’ 14’

94’

24’

11’5’ 8’ 8’5’ 5’ 5’

11’ 11’ 11’

16’ 16’24’ 14’

94’

24’

11’5’ 8’ 8’5’ 5’ 5’

59

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

*Lane width established for a WB-50 design vehicle.Typical Section

Key Plan

b. Neighborhood Collector Street Type (Public) - 94’ R.O.W.

Illustrative Plan

3

4

5

2

1

1

2 4

5

4 5 23 3

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 76



Neighborhood Collector Street Design Features
1. Street trees
2. Planted bioswale
3. Tree grate
4. Concrete sidewalk
5. Bike Lane
6. On-Street Parking

76’

56’11’ 11’

11’7’ 7’6’-6” 6’-6”4’-6” 4’-6”6’ 6’3’ 3’11’

76’

56’11’ 11’

11’7’ 7’6’-6” 6’-6”4’-6” 4’-6”6’ 6’3’ 3’11’

1

3 5 5 34 42 26

60

Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

*Lane width established for a WB-50 design vehicle.

4

Typical Section

Key Plan

c. Neighborhood Collector Street Type (Private) - 76’ R.O.W.

Illustrative Plan

2

4

5

6

3
2

1

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 77



Local Street Design Features
1. Street trees
2. Planted bioswale
3. Tree grate
4. Concrete sidewalk
5. On-Street Parking

56’

36’10’

6’ 4’ 7’ 11’ 6’4’7’11’

http://www.ebay.com/sch/Nail-Care-Manicure-Pedicure-/47945/i.html

56’

36’10’

6’ 4’ 7’ 11’ 6’4’7’11’

http://www.ebay.com/sch/Nail-Care-Manicure-Pedicure-/47945/i.html

1

3 34 42 25

61

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

Illustrative Plan

5
3

4

2

1

*Lane width established for a WB-50 design vehicle.

Key Plan

Typical Section

d. Local Street Type (Private) - 56’ R.O.W.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 78



62

Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

C. Streetscape Design Controls

Streetscape standards and guidelines shall apply to all streets 
within Ivy District. Streetscape standards shall address all 
elements between the building face and edge of the curb. 
Typical streetscape elements addressed are street trees, 
lighting, street furniture and pedestrian amenities, and 
materials.  A “Master Streetscape Plan” shall be prepared 
based on the design controls, which include standards, 
guidelines and examples, in this section and shall be approved 
by the City Manager prior to submittal of a plat application. 

1. Standards 
a. Street Trees

(1) Street trees shall be required on streets in the Ivy 
District (except on alleys). 

(2) Street trees shall be planted approximately four feet 
(4’) behind the curb line. 

(3) Street tree spacing shall be an average of 30 feet 
(30’) on center (measured per block face) along all 
streets. 

(4) The minimum caliper size (caliper size for a multi 
trunk tree shall be the total of the diameter of the 
largest trunk and one half (½) of the diameter of 
each additional trunk, measured at a height of four 
and a half feet (4.5’) above the ground) for each 
tree shall be 3 in. and shall be a minimum of 12 feet 
in height at planting. Each tree shall be planted in a 
planting area no less than 40 sf. However, the tree 
well area shall be no smaller than 16 sf. 

(5) Boulevard trees shall be required in the median and 
spacing and species type shall be maintained along a 
street. The minimum caliper size for each boulevard 
tree shall be 3 in. and shall be a minimum of 12 feet 
in height at planting. Each tree shall be planted in a 
planting area no less than 40 sf. However, the tree 
well area shall be no smaller than 16 sf. 

(6) Development of City standards and standards 
of other agencies having jurisdiction over public 
streets and SH 288 frontage roads for street trees 
and landscape are in progress; therefore, developer 
will coordinate with the City and other agencies 
to incorporate their requirements for street trees 

along public streets and the SH 288 frontage road 
into the Ivy District’s Master Public Open Space and 
Landscape Plan.

(7) Street trees shall not conflict with the Utility 
Easements as defined in the Pearland Engineering 
Design Criteria Manual, June 2007. 

b. Planted Areas
(1) When visible from the street and alleys, all unpaved 

ground areas shall be planted with low growing 
shrubs or ground cover, ornamental grasses, or a 
combination thereof. Turf grass must be installed as 
solid sod and not seeded on. 

(2) Species shall include plants from the approved 
list of ground cover, vines, perennials, shrubs, and 
xeriscape plant list in Chapter 4 Site Development 
Section 4.2.2.5 and the Replacement Tree List in 
Chapter 4 Site Development Section 4.2.3.9 of 
the City of Pearland Unified Development Code, 
Eight Edition, January 2013 and the T-15 and T-16 
amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 
16, 2013, except as modified by this PD document.

(3)  Developer will coordinate with the City and other 
agencies to incorporate their requirements for 
planted areas along public streets and the SH 288 
frontage road into the Ivy District’s Master Public 
Open Space and Landscape Plan. 

c. Maintenance
(1) Developer will maintain all street trees and planted 

areas along public streets from the back of the curb 
that is adjacent to the Ivy District site.

(2) Developer will maintain all street trees and planted 
areas along the SH 288 frontage road west of the 
site’s eastern boundary.

(3) Developer will maintain all street trees and planted 
areas along and within the R.O.W. of all private 
streets.

2. Guidelines
There are no design guidelines established by this PD 
document that complement the standards established in the 
previous Subsection C.1 or the examples presented in the 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 79



63

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

following Subsection C.3 that apply specifically to streetscape 
and the development of the required Master Streetscape Plan.

3. Examples
See Appendix E, Streetscape Examples for images that are 
representative of the intended streetscape design character.

D. Street Furniture, Lighting, and Materials Design Controls

Street furniture, lighting, and materials standards and 
guidelines shall apply to all streets and streetscape within the 
Ivy District.  Street furniture, lighting, and materials shall be 
incorporated into the Master Streetscape Plan.

1. Standards
a. Overall

(1) The specific terms related to the maintenance 
of light standards, street furniture, and sidewalk 
paving materials located within the sidewalks 
and roads dedicated to the city shall be outlined 
in the Development Agreement between the Ivy 
District and the City of Pearland.  The Development 
agreement shall be in place prior to submittal of a 
development application.

(2) All utility service lines shall be located underground 
along all streets.

b. Street Furniture
(1) Street furniture and pedestrian amenities such as 

benches are required along all streets. 
(2) All street furniture shall be located in such a manner 

as to allow a clear sidewalk passageway of a 
minimum of six feet (6’). 

(3) Trash receptacles and bike racks shall be required 
along streets. A minimum of one each per block face 
shall be required. 

c. Lighting
(1) Ivy District shall use energy efficient bulbs and 

fixtures.
(2) All lighting must be shielded to prevent glare to 

private and public uses, especially residential units.  
The angle of maximum candela from each interior 
luminaire as located in the building shall intersect 
opaque building interior surfaces and not exit out 

through the windows.
(3) Lighting in Commercial Areas shall illuminate drive 

lanes and pedestrian areas. See Figure 9.1.
(4) Lighting types shall be modern, minimal and urban in 

character and shall not include historic replications.
(5) Lighting levels and fixture types shall be selected 

according to the use of each fixture type.  For 
instance, bollards and other lighting fixtures that 
illuminate the ground plane but do not directly 
illuminate adjacent residential units shall be used in 
courtyards.

Figure 9.1  Commercial Lighting Typical Section

(6) Lighting in Residential Areas shall illuminate 
streetscape and pedestrian areas. See Figure 9.2.

Figure 9.2  Residential Lighting Typical Section

(7) Pedestrian scale lighting, with the top of fixture 
being no more than 20 feet from the ground, shall be 
provided along all streets except alleyways. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 80



64

Part 9  Street and Streetscape Design Controls

August 7, 2014

(8) Street lights shall be placed at 50 feet (min.) on 
center, approximately 2 feet behind the curb line. 

(9) The light standard selected shall be compatible with 
the design of the street and buildings. 

d. Materials
(1) Materials for all public and private streets are 

required to be concrete paving and are required 
to meet the minimum design performance 
specifications per the Pearland Engineering Design 
Criteria Manual, June 2007. Permeable paving zones 
are not permitted for either public or private streets.

(2) Materials for sidewalk paving shall be pavers or 
concrete paving that will meet the minimum design 
performance specifications per the Pearland 
Engineering Design Criteria Manual, June 2007.

(3) Materials selected for street furniture shall be of 
durable quality and require minimal maintenance. 

2. Guidelines
The following guidelines complement Street Furniture, 
Lighting, and Materials Design Standards in Section D.1 of  
this part.

a. Overall
(1) There are no design guidelines that apply overall to 

street furniture, lighting, and materials.
b. Street Furniture

(1) There are no design guidelines that apply specifically 
to street furniture.

c. Lighting
(1) Security should primarily be provided through 

lighting and increased visibility, in place of armoring 
of windows and doorways.

(2) Certain areas of the Ivy District neighborhood are 
intended to have lower lighting levels, such as the 
Clear Creek Recreational Park where it is important 
to minimize light pollution so as not to disturb 
wildlife and maintain a natural setting.

d. Materials
(1) There are no design guidelines that apply specifically 

to materials. 

3. Examples
See Appendix E, Streetscape Examples for images that are 
representative of furniture, lighting, and materials that would 
comply with the corresponding design controls.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 81



65

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 10  Signage Design Controls

August 7, 2014

A. Introduction

Signage helps to highlight the identity of businesses while 
enhancing the appearance of the streetscape and should be 
of a creative and engaging nature at the Ivy District.  Except 
as specifically listed below, and in Table 10.1 in the following 
page, all other signage and sign standards must comply with 
Chapter 4 Site Development, Article 2, Division 5 Signage, as 
amended, of the City of Pearland UDC, 8th Edition, January 
2013 and the T-15 and T-16 amendments approved June 24, 
2013 and December 16, 2013, as amended, City Standards and 
the Texas Municipal Uniform Traffic Control Devices, latest 
edition. The signage standards and guidelines in this part 
shall apply to all signs in the Ivy District.  A “Master Signage 
and Wayfinding Plan” shall be prepared based on the design 
controls in this part.

B. Signage Design Controls

1. Standards
a. Overall 

(1) No billboards, roof signs, back-lit box signs, flashing, 
moving or video signs are permitted.  Where 
possible, exposed junction boxes, lamps, tubing, 
conduits, or raceways are not permitted.

(2) Signage is intended to address the pedestrian level 
and no portion of any sign may extend more than 
twenty-five (25’) above sidewalk grade.

b. Signage Area
(1) Sign area is defined as the area of a sign that is used 

for display purposes excluding small supports.  Sign 
area shall be computed on the basis of a rectangle 
large enough to frame the display or text. 

(2) Retail wall signs on buildings shall not exceed three 
square feet (3 sf) per linear foot of retail frontage 
or forty-five square feet (45 sf), whichever is lower, 
for each street frontage.  Wall signs related to a full 
service grocery store may be up to one hundred fifty 
square feet (150 sf) per building face along a public 
right-of-way.

SIGNAGE DESIGN CONTROLS10
c. Signage Types

(1) One projecting sign per every thirty linear feet (30’) 
of retail is permitted.  Each primary projecting sign 
for retail tenants shall not exceed twenty-four square 
feet (24 sf) in area, and if a single tenant maintains 
more than thirty linear feet (30’) of street frontage, 
each additional sign shall not exceed ten square 
feet (10 sf). Corner businesses are allowed one 
primary projecting sign per street frontage.  Three-
dimensional projecting signs shall not exceed forty-
eight cubic feet (48 cf) in volume. Parking directional 
signs shall not exceed an area of fifteen square feet 
(15 sf).

(2) Signage on awnings is permitted in lieu of projecting 
signs and must not exceed thirty square feet (30 sf)
of sign area.

(3) Residential wall signs shall not exceed twenty square 
feet (20 sf).  Residential projects may utilize signage 
on awnings over the primary multi-unit entryway. 
Copy areas on awnings shall not exceed thirty square 
feet (30 sf).

2. Guidelines
The following guidelines complement Signage Design 
Standards in Section B.1 of this part.

a. Overall
(1) Consistency among signs within the Ivy District is 

encouraged to create visual harmony between signs, 
buildings, and other components of the district.

(2) Compatibility between signage, architectural and 
site design features are encouraged within the Ivy 
District. 

(3) Signage that is in character with planned and 
existing uses is encouraged to create a unique sense 
of place.

(4) Multi-tenant commercial uses are encouraged 
to develop a unique set of sign regulations in 
conjunction with development standards.  

3. Examples
See Appendix F, Signage Examples for images that are 
representative of signs that would comply with the signage 
design controls.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 82



66

Part 10  Signage Design Controls

August 7, 2014

TABLE 10.1

 

Sign Type

Predominately 

Non-residential 

Areas

Predominately 

Residential 

Areas Standard

Wall (Building or 
Attached) Signs 

P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

For all first floor commercial uses (retail, office, and restaurant): One sign per tenant space; area 
to be calculated at 1.5 sq. feet per linear foot of public street frontage for the tenant space with a 
maximum of 100 sq. ft per tenant.   

Second and upper floor commercial uses may also be permitted one second floor wall sign per 
tenant space per public street frontage; area to be calculated at 1.5 sq. feet per linear foot of second 
or upper floor frontage along that public street with a maximum of 125 sq. feet. 

Institutional uses (non-profits and churches): One sign per tenant space; area to be calculated at 1.5 
sq. feet per linear foot of public street frontage with a maximum of 100 sq. feet. 

Live-Work and Home occupations: One sign limited to an area of 20 sq. feet max. 

Building sign may encroach a maximum of 12” on to a sidewalk while maintaining a vertical clearance 
of 8 feet from the finished sidewalk. 

Building signs may be externally lit. 

Marquee signs as only permitted as specified below. 

Monument Signs P NP

One monument sign at the project entry for the purposes of identifying the project or district.  

Shall be in compliance with the Pearland Unified Development Code, 8th Edition, January 2013 and 
the T-15 and T-16 amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 16, 2013, except as modified 
by this PD document.

Window Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

Limited to 20% of the window area.

The following shall be exempt from this limitation:

Addresses, closed/open signs, hours of operation, credit card logos, real estate signs, and now hiring 
signs; 

Mannequins and storefront displays of merchandise sold; and 

Interior directory signage identifying shopping aisles and merchandise display areas. 

Shall be in compliance with the Pearland Unified Development Code, 8th Edition, January 2013 and 
the T-15 and T-16 amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 16, 2013, except as modified 
by this PD document.

Building Blade Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

One per building (commercial and mixed use buildings only). 

Area = 30 sq. feet maximum per sign face. 

May encroach a maximum of 6 feet over a sidewalk, but shall not encroach over any parking or travel 
lane. 

Building blade signs may be attached to the building at the corners of building or along any street 
facing façade above the first floor facade. 

Tenant Blade Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

One per commercial tenant space (retail, office, or restaurant use). 

Area = 16 sq. feet maximum per sign face. 

May encroach a maximum of 4 feet over a public sidewalk, but shall not encroach over any parking 
or travel lane. 

Tenant blade signs shall be oriented perpendicular to the building façade and hung under the soffit 
of an arcade or under a canopy/awning or attached to the building façade immediately over the first 
floor tenant space while maintaining a vertical clearance of 8 feet from the finished sidewalk. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 83



67

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 10  Signage Design Controls

August 7, 2014

TABLE 10.1

 

Sign Type

Predominately 

Non-residential 

Areas

Predominately 

Residential 

Areas Standard

Wall (Building or 
Attached) Signs 

P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

For all first floor commercial uses (retail, office, and restaurant): One sign per tenant space; area 
to be calculated at 1.5 sq. feet per linear foot of public street frontage for the tenant space with a 
maximum of 100 sq. ft per tenant.   

Second and upper floor commercial uses may also be permitted one second floor wall sign per 
tenant space per public street frontage; area to be calculated at 1.5 sq. feet per linear foot of second 
or upper floor frontage along that public street with a maximum of 125 sq. feet. 

Institutional uses (non-profits and churches): One sign per tenant space; area to be calculated at 1.5 
sq. feet per linear foot of public street frontage with a maximum of 100 sq. feet. 

Live-Work and Home occupations: One sign limited to an area of 20 sq. feet max. 

Building sign may encroach a maximum of 12” on to a sidewalk while maintaining a vertical clearance 
of 8 feet from the finished sidewalk. 

Building signs may be externally lit. 

Marquee signs as only permitted as specified below. 

Monument Signs P NP

One monument sign at the project entry for the purposes of identifying the project or district.  

Shall be in compliance with the Pearland Unified Development Code, 8th Edition, January 2013 and 
the T-15 and T-16 amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 16, 2013, except as modified 
by this PD document.

Window Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

Limited to 20% of the window area.

The following shall be exempt from this limitation:

Addresses, closed/open signs, hours of operation, credit card logos, real estate signs, and now hiring 
signs; 

Mannequins and storefront displays of merchandise sold; and 

Interior directory signage identifying shopping aisles and merchandise display areas. 

Shall be in compliance with the Pearland Unified Development Code, 8th Edition, January 2013 and 
the T-15 and T-16 amendments approved June 24, 2013 and December 16, 2013, except as modified 
by this PD document.

Building Blade Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

One per building (commercial and mixed use buildings only). 

Area = 30 sq. feet maximum per sign face. 

May encroach a maximum of 6 feet over a sidewalk, but shall not encroach over any parking or travel 
lane. 

Building blade signs may be attached to the building at the corners of building or along any street 
facing façade above the first floor facade. 

Tenant Blade Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

One per commercial tenant space (retail, office, or restaurant use). 

Area = 16 sq. feet maximum per sign face. 

May encroach a maximum of 4 feet over a public sidewalk, but shall not encroach over any parking 
or travel lane. 

Tenant blade signs shall be oriented perpendicular to the building façade and hung under the soffit 
of an arcade or under a canopy/awning or attached to the building façade immediately over the first 
floor tenant space while maintaining a vertical clearance of 8 feet from the finished sidewalk. 

Marquee Signs P NP

Permitted for theaters, auditoriums, and other public gathering venues of 100 persons or more.

Marquee signs shall be attached to the building or located above or below a canopy only. 

Area = 100 sq. feet maximum. 

Message board may be changeable copy (electronic and non-electronic) and shall be limited to 50% 
of the sign area.  Electronic message boards shall be non-flashing, nor shall flashing lights of any 
kind be permitted. 

Electric Marquee signs shall have an accessible disconnect switch and shall be labeled to indicate the 
voltage and amperage of electrical circuits connected to the sign.

For Sale/For Lease Signs P P Same as City of Pearland Sign Regulations

Address Signs P P Same as City of Pearland Sign Regulations

Temporary  
Construction Signs

P P Same as City of Pearland Sign Regulations

Banners P P Same as City of Pearland Sign Regulations

Sandwich Board Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

Permitted only for retail, service, or restaurant uses. 

Limited to 12 sq. feet per sign face per storefront.

Sign may not exceed 4 feet in height.   

A minimum of 6 feet of sidewalk shall remain clear.  

Chalkboards may be used for daily changing of messages.  

Readerboards (electronic and non-electronic) shall be prohibited.

Sign shall be removed every day after the business is closed

Sign shall remain out of the public R.O.W.

Light Pole Banners P P

Permitted only with approval of the City. 

Must allow for 8 ft. clear height below banner.

Max. 10 sq. feet per sign face. 

Limited to one per light pole. 

All light pole banners shall be approved by the appropriate utility company prior to consideration by 
the City.

Light pole banners shall be limited to publicize community-wide events, holiday celebrations, public 
art, and other city sponsored events. 

Light pole banners shall have a unified design for the entire district.   

Directory Signs P

P  
(Commercial 
and live-work 

uses only)

Shall be allowed for all multi-tenant commercial and mixed use buildings only. 

One directory sign per multi-tenant building limited to 12 sq. feet in area. 

Design of the sign shall be integral to the façade on which the sign is to be affixed. 

Pole Signs NP NP

LED Signs NP NP

P = Permitted

NP = Not Permitted

 

Sign Type

Predominately 

Non-residential 

Areas

Predominately 

Residential 

Areas Standard

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 84



68

Part 11  Open Space Design Controls

August 7, 2014

A. Introduction

This part establishes the Public Open Space and Private Open 
Space Design Controls for Ivy District. The Public Open Space 
Design Plan, Exhibit B6, designates several areas for proposed 
Public Open Space types within Ivy District. The detailed 
Public Open Space Design Controls for each type are included 
in this portion of the PD document.  A “Master Open Space 
and Landscape Plan” shall be prepared based on the design 
controls in this part.

B. Public Open Space Design Controls

The design of Public Open Space shall be regulated by the 
Public Open Space standards herein which shall create a 
network of open spaces that recognizes the natural qualities 
of the area while providing a range of both passive and 
active recreational opportunities. These opportunities are 
accommodated in a variety of spaces ranging from larger 
parks to neighborhood-scaled greens to urban squares, plazas, 
and gardens. The open space network will be serviced by an 
interconnected network of trails and paths for pedestrians 
and bicyclists alike. Open space designs shall adhere to the 
standards and guidelines, contained within this section, for 
specific, open space types illustrated in Exhibit B6, Public Open 
Space Plan. 

1. Standards
a. Overall 

(1) Areas designated as publicly accessible open 
space at the Ivy District are illustrated in Exhibit B6, 
Public Open Space Plan.  Publicly Accessible Open 
Space at The Ivy District, excluding tower areas and 
courtyards, must be publicly accessible at all times, 
subject to reasonable maintenance, operations, and 
repair and security rights.

(2) Building structures may be permitted within areas 
designated as Dedicated Open Space in Exhibit B6, 
Public Open Space Plan. Some permitted buildings 
include public restrooms no greater than 500 square 
feet; and open-air park pavilions, and buildings and 
uses specifically permitted within Tables 6.3 and 6.4. 

(3) All amenities located in the Public Open Spaces 
shall also meet the standards of the Harris and 
Brazoria County Flood Control District.  Public use of 
amenities that overlap with the Harris and Brazoria 

OPEN SPACE DESIGN CONTROLS11
County Flood Control District water shed space shall 
be approved by both the Harris and Brazoria County 
Flood Control Districts prior to submittal of a plat 
application.

(4) Public Open Spaces shall include a rainwater 
detention area for street and roof runoff.  

b. Clear Creak Recreational Park
(1) The Clear Creek Recreational Park shall be defined 

by multi-use pathways, as well as landscaped  
open space. 

(2) The Clear Creek Recreational Park shall include 
limited hardscape areas with benches and areas for 
casual seating.

(3) Restroom facilities shall be provided in a convenient 
location for users of the Clear Creek Recreational 
Park.

(4) Water Drinking fountains shall be provided in a 
convenient location for users of the Clear Creek 
Recreational Park.

(5) Where necessary, Clear Creek shall be lined to 
reduce erosion and protect the existing slope south 
of the stream.

c. Art & Culture Green
(1) Art & Culture Green shall include a rainwater 

detention pond, fed by rainwater runoff from 
adjacent streets.  

(2) In order to allow overland flows of rainwater from 
the street to the detention pond Art & Culture Green 
shall be curbless.  Bollards or other visually attractive 
barriers must be incorporated to separate and define 
vehicle and pedestrian zones.

d. Parkside Green
(1) Parkside Green shall primarily be naturally 

landscaped with many shaded places to sit. 
(2) Parkside Green shall incorporate an active or 

structured recreational component such as, but not 
limited to, a playground, community gardens or 
bocce court. 

e. Ivy Square
(1) The square shall have a more urban, formal character 

and be defined by the surrounding building 
frontages and adjacent tree-lined streets. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 85



69

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 11  Open Space Design Controls

August 7, 2014

(2) All buildings adjacent to the square shall front onto 
the square. 

(3) Adjacent streets shall be lined with appropriately 
scaled trees that help to define the square. 

(4) The landscape shall consist of lawns, trees, and 
shrubs planted in formal patterns and furnished with 
paths and benches. 

(5) Shaded areas for seating shall be provided. 

f. Ivy Plaza
(1) Size shall range from 0.25 acre to 1 acre. Shall front 

on at least one (1) street. 
(2) Building frontages shall define these spaces. 
(3) The landscape shall consist primarily of hardscape. 

If trees are included, they shall be formally arranged 
and of appropriate scale. 

(4) Planting, including trees and shrubs, are required.
(5) Casual seating, along with tables and chairs, shall be 

provided. 

g. Ivy Garden
(1) Ivy Garden shall be defined by a formal pattern of 

walkways. 
(2) Lawns, trees, and ornamental plants shall be planted 

in formal patterns.
(3) Shaded areas with seating shall be provided.

h. Ancillary Structures
(1) Ancillary structures within public Public Open Spaces 

shall be formal in character and generally related to, 
but clearly subordinate to surrounding buildings. 

(2) Each individual structure shall keep in character or 
complement the style of nearby buildings. 

(3) Ancillary structures shall have one or more open 
sides or covered area that provides shade and 
shelter.

2. Guidelines
The following guidelines complement Public Open Space 
Design Standards in Section B.2 of this part.

a. Overall
(1) The open space network should provide a wide 

range of activities including, but not limited to: 
active recreation areas such as sports courts and 
playgrounds; social activity and gathering areas such 
as outdoor dining and seating areas; food production 
areas such as community gardens and the organic 

farm; and natural settings such as the stream 
corridor.

(2) Public Open Spaces should be planted with native or 
acclimated tree and plant species.

(3) Tree planting should follow the optimal growth of 
each tree species chosen and defined by a certified 
arborist at the time of planting.

(4) Rainwater detention areas should incorporate a 
water feature as an amenity for residents.

(5) Public Open Spaces should include seating, bike 
racks, trash and recycling bins where needed. 

(6) Separately defined areas within Public Open Spaces 
may be defined by distinct planting schemes.

b. Clear Creak Recreational Park
(1) Clear Creek should have a natural look, with a 

meandering channel.
(2) Once established, vegetation within the Clear Creek 

Corridor should not require irrigation and should 
require only minimal maintenance.

c. Art & Culture Green
(1) The use of Art & Culture Green is unstructured 

and passive recreation, casual seating/picnicking, 
outdoor concerts and special events

(2) The character of Art & Culture Green should be of 
a large, open space defined by landscaping and 
building frontages; detention and retention, paths, 
trails, open shelters, lawns, trees and shrubs naturally 
disposed to provide space for special events.

(3) The multi-purpose lawn should be planted with low 
maintenance, acclimated lawn alternative species 
which have low water needs.

(4) A space for community events, gatherings and 
festivities such as farmer’s markets or outdoor 
concerts should be provided within Art & Culture 
Green. Areas with tree plantings may be included in 
this space.  

(5) Areas with seating should be provided and be 
carefully integrated into the overall design of Art & 
Culture Green.

(6) The bike lane along Art & Culture Green should be 
paved with pervious unit pavers.

(7) Art & Culture Green should be planted with native or 
acclimated plant species.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 86



70

Part 11  Open Space Design Controls

August 7, 2014

d. Parkside Green
(1) Parkside Green should be available for civic 

purposes, commercial activity, unstructured 
recreation and other passive uses. 

(2) Appropriate paths, civic elements, fountains or 
open shelters may be included and shall be formally 
placed within the green. 

(3) An open area, either paved or lawn, should be 
provided in Parkside Green to accommodate social 
gatherings, informal play and sitting.

(4) Parkside Green should include clearly defined areas 
for programmed activities such as, but not limited 
to, a picnic area, a community garden, a bocce ball 
court, a mini soccer field, basketball or tennis court, a 
playground or an outdoor dining area.

(5) Ground floor active uses are encouraged to open 
onto and occupy parts of the Parkside Green 
adjacent to buildings with outdoor spaces.

(6) Parkside Green should include ample seating. 
Trees should provide maximum wind protection, 
and seating should be located to offer sunny, wind 
protected places to sit and gather.

(7) Rainwater detention areas should incorporate a 
water feature as an amenity for residents.

(8) Separately defined areas within Parkside Green 
should be defined by distinct planting schemes.

e. Ivy Square
(1) A civic element or small structure such as an open 

shelter, pergola, or fountain may be provided within 
the square. 

(2) An open area, either paved or lawn, should be 
provided to accommodate social gatherings, 
informal play and sitting.

(3) Ivy Square should include ample seating. Trees 
should provide maximum wind protection, and 
seating should be located to offer sunny, wind 
protected places to sit and gather.

f. Ivy Plaza
(1) Plazas typically should be located at the intersection 

of important streets. Plazas are appropriate in the 
Public Square Sub-District. 

(2) Typical uses are commercial and civic uses; casual 
seating; outdoor dining; retail and food kiosks.

g. Ivy Garden
(1) Ivy Garden is intended to be a quiet, relaxing and 

meditative space.v
(2) A predominate feature will be a bosque of shade 

trees planted in a formal, orchard-like arrangement.
h. Ancillary Structures

(1) Typically, these structures are located at prominent 
locations within an appropriate Public Open Space.  

(2) Ancillary structures located in the Public Square 
Sub-District may have minor commercial uses, such 
as small food or news vendors, but may also serve 
as civic elements for general public use with more 
passive activities. 

(3) Small, stand alone structure  may be located within a 
Park, Green, Square or Plaza.

(4) Primary uses should be civic or minor commercial 
uses. 

(5) Casual seating/picnicking, or recreational support 
facilities should be provided.

3. Examples
See Appendix G, Open Space Examples for images 
representative of the intended design character for public 
open spaces.

C. Private Open Space Design Controls

Given the mixed use nature of the Ivy District, all residential 
development within Ivy District shall meet the Private 
Open Space standards established in this portion of the PD 
document. 

1. Standards
a. Overall

(1) At least fifty percent (50%) of all residential units 
fronting on a street, public Public Open Space, 
forecourt, or courtyard shall provide one balcony 
or patio; or one playground or other Private Open 
Space amenity

(2) All other Private Open Spaces are optional.
b. Balconies

(1) Balconies that are not flush shall be a minimum of 5 
feet clear in depth and a minimum of 8 feet in width.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 87



71

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 11  Open Space Design Controls

August 7, 2014

c. Patios
(1) Patios shall be a minimum of 150 square feet. 
(2) Patios shall have a clear sense of enclosure and 

separation from the public realm. 

d. Courtyards
(1) Courtyards shall be bounded on at least two sides by 

buildings with at least one pedestrian connection to 
an adjoining building or public sidewalk.

(2) The courtyard shall be a minimum of one hundred-
fifty (150) square feet.

e. Forecourts
(1) A Forecourt is a small private open space between a 

building facade and the Build-to Line.
f. Pedestrian Passages

(1) The minimum width shall be fifteen feet (15’) wide.

g. Playgrounds
(1) Playgrounds shall be a minimum of four hundred 

(400) square feet.
(2) Playground equipment and design must be reviewed 

and approved by the City prior to installation. 
(3) Playgrounds shall be permitted in parks and greens 

to provide open space designed and equipped for 
the recreation of children. 

(4) These playgrounds shall serve as quiet, safe places 
– protected from the street – and typically located 
where children do not have to cross major roads to 
access them.

h. Community Gardens
(1) Maximum size shall be one (1) acre.
(2) Gardens shall be enclosed by a fence on all open 

sides.
(3) Fences shall be installed straight and plumb, with 

vertical supports at a minimum of eight feet (8’) on 
center. 

(4) Fencing Materials Permitted: pressure treated wood 
(must be painted or stained medium to dark color), 
wrought iron, painted galvanized steel 

(5) Fencing Materials not permitted: chicken wire, chain 
link, bobbed wire, vinyl, un-painted/stained pressure 
treated wood, plywood.

i. Roof Terraces
(1) A Roof Terrace shall be at least be fifty percent 

(50%) of the building footprint area.

(2) A Roof Terrace shall provide landscaping in the form 
of potted plants, seating, and other amenities for the 
users of the building.

2. Guidelines
The following guidelines complement Public Open Space 
Design Standards in Section C.1 of this part.

a. Overall
(1) Drinking fountains should be provided at all active 

recreation areas. Lighting should be provided in 
some of the active recreation areas to allow for 
evening use. 

(2) Outdoor dining areas should be located in sunny, 
wind-protected locations. Outdoor cooking facilities 
are encouraged.    

b. Balconies
(1) Balconies may be semi-recessed or recessed. 

Projecting metal or slab balconies are only permitted 
if they have some means of visible support. 

c. Patios
(1) There are no guidelines that apply specifically  

to patios.

d. Courtyards
(1) Courtyards should be large enough to allow for 

public activities and have sunlight during midday. 
(2) Courtyards should be designed to connect to 

adjacent buildings or to the public sidewalk through 
a pedestrian passage.

e. Forecourts
(1) There are no guidelines that apply specifically  

to forecourts.

f. Pedestrian Passages
(1) A pedestrian passage may be used to visually reduce 

the impact of a large development block. Building 
edges may accommodate active uses such as shops 
and restaurants. 

(2) Pedestrian passages shall consist of a hardscape 
pathway activated by frequent entries and exterior 
stairways. 

(3) The edges may simply be landscaped with minimal 
planting and potted plants.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 88



72

Part 11  Open Space Design Controls

August 7, 2014

g. Playgrounds
(1) Playgrounds may be fenced. 
(2) An open shelter, play structures or interactive art 

and fountains may be included with landscaping 
between. Shaded areas and seating shall be 
provided. A larger playground may be incorporated 
into the park, whereas a more intimate playground 
may be incorporated into the green.

(3) Separate play areas should be provided for toddlers 
(2-5 year old) and older children (5-12 year old).  
Play equipment that allows for multiple uses and 
encourages free-play is desirable.

(4) The design, color, and material of play and recreation 
equipment should relate to the overall modern 
design aesthetic of the specific space in which it is 
located. 

h. Community Gardens
(1) There are no guidelines that apply specifically  

to community gardens.

i. Roof Terraces
(1) A Roof Terrace may also include a portion of the roof 

as a green roof which may or may not have public 
access.

3. Examples
See Appendix G, Open Space Examples for images 
representative of the intended design character for private 
open spaces.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 89



73

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Part 11  Open Space Design Controls

August 7, 2014

This page 

intentionally 

left blank

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 90



August 7, 2014

Appendix A:
Site Description

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 91



75

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Exhibit A1 Location Map

Exhibit A2 Survey

Exhibit A3 Legal Description

Exhibit A4 CLOMR Plan

Exhibit A5 FEMA Letter

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 92



76

Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Exhibit A1 Location Map

1”=750’

0 750’375’ 1500’

1”=2400’
1000-acre schemes @ 33%

1000
500

0 1500’500’ 2500’1000’

1”=1000’

0 1000’500’ 2000’

1”=1200’

0 1200’600’ 2400’

1/16”=1’-0”’

0 16’8’ 32’4’

1”=2000’

0 2000’1000’ 4000’

1”=250’

0 250’125’ 500’

1”=400’

0 400’200’ 800’

1”=300’

0 300’150’ 600’

1”=200’

0 200’100’ 400’

1”=100’

0 100’50’ 200’

0 300’100’50’ 200’

1”=0.25mi

0 0.25 0.750.5 1.0 mile

1”=2mi

0 2 3 5 miles1 4

1”=4.5mi

0 2.25 4.5 9 mi6.75

K
ir

b
y 

D
r

C
h
ri

s 
R

d

P
ro

m
en

ad
e 

S
h
op

s 
D

r

Beltway 8

Fruge Rd

PROJECT 
AREA

Shadow Creek Pkwy

H
ig

h
w

ay
 2

8
8

A
lm

ed
a 

S
ch

oo
l R

d

Clear Creek

Spectrum Drive

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 93



77

TH
E M

O
D

ER
N

 G
R

EEN
 IV

Y
 D

ISTR
IC

T A
ppendix A

  Site D
escription

A
ugust 7, 20

14

Exhibit A
2  Survey

P
earland C

ity C
ouncil A

genda 8 25 2014
P

age 94



78

Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Exhibit A3 Legal Description

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 95



79

TH
E M

O
D

ER
N

 G
R

EEN
 IV

Y
 D

ISTR
IC

T A
ppendix A

  Site D
escription

A
ugust 7, 20

14

Exhibit A
4  R

evised 2011 C
LO

M
R

 Plan

P
earland C

ity C
ouncil A

genda 8 25 2014
P

age 96



80

Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Exhibit A5   FEMA Letter

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 97



81

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 98



82

Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 99



83

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 100



84

Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 101



85

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix A  Site Description

August 7, 2014

This page 

intentionally 

left blank

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 102



August 7, 2014

Appendix B:
Design Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 103



87

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B1 Site Plan

Exhibit B2 Illustrative Master Plan

Exhibit B3 Street Network Plan

Exhibit B4 Building Program Plan

Exhibit B5 Setbacks Plan

Exhibit B6 Public Open Space Plan

Exhibit B7 Parkland Landscape Plan

Exhibit B8 Parkland Amenities Plan

Exhibit B9 Phasing Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 104



88

Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B1  Site Plan

0 400’200’ 800’

0 800’400’ 1600’

Floodway

Connection to Fruge Road

BLOCK 8 BLOCK 5 BLOCK 1BLOCK 3

BLOCK 9 BLOCK 6 BLOCK 2
BLOCK 4

BLOCK 10 BLOCK 7

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

SH
-2

88

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

 IV
Y

 D
R

IV
E

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

BLOCK 11

FRUGE ROAD

Clear Creek

BLOCK 12

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 105



89

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

ART & 
CULTURE 
GREEN

IVY SQUARE

IVY GARDEN

IVY PLAZA

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

CLEAR CREEK 
RECREATIONAL PARK

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Urban Style Dwellings

Flats or Lofts

Urban Style Dwellings

Townhouse

Retail / 
Urban Style Dwellings

Retail / 
Urban Style Dwellings

Community Center / 
Urban Style Dwellings

CCRC

Retail / 
Hotel

Retail / 
Urban Style Dwellings

Retail / Office

Conference 
Center

Exhibit B2  Illustrative Master Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 106



90

Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B3  Street Network Plan

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

G
R

EE
N

 IV
Y

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

JADE STREET

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

“Boulevard” Street

“Neighborhood Collector” Street 

“Local” Street 

Dashed line denotes a Private Street, with variable alignment

Solid line denotes a Public Street, with fixed alignment

Street Types

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 107



91

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 9

BLOCK 10

BLOCK 11

BLOCK 12

Exhibit B4  Building Program Plan

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’Residential 

Retail

Retail, Residential Above

Retail, Parking Above

O�ce

Hotel

Convention Center

CCRC

Community Center

Retail, Hotel Above

Retail, O�ce Above

Parking

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 108



92

Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B5  Setbacks Plan

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 9

BLOCK 10

BLOCK 11

BLOCK 12

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’
25’ max. setback

10‘min. - 15’max. setback

8’min. - 10’max. setback

5’min. - 10’max. setback

5’min. - 8’max. setback

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 109



93

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B6  Public Open Space Plan

Floodway - 2011 CLOMR

Clear Creek

Parkside 
Green

Parkside 
Green

Ivy Square

Ivy Plaza

Ivy Garden

Clear Creek Recreational Park

ART & 
CULTURE 
GREEN

IVY SQUARE

IVY GARDEN

IVY PLAZA

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

CLEAR CREEK 
RECREATIONAL PARK

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Note: Total area of public open space identified is 18.7 acres. 

Art & Culture 
Green

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

G
R

EE
N

 IV
Y

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

JADE STREET

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 110



94

Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Exhibit B7  Parkland Landscape Plan

Predominately softscape surface (e.g. lawns, meadows, under-planting)

Predominately hardscape surface (e.g. pavement, pavers, crushed stone)

Concentrations of Shade Trees

Water Bodies
Predominately softscape surface (e.g. lawns, meadows, under-planting)

Predominately hardscape surface (e.g. pavement, pavers, crushed stone)

Water bodies

Concentrations of shade trees
3” - 6” caliper
10 trees / acre of public open space

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 111



95

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B8 Parkland Amenities Plan

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Trails
Bicycle, walking, and jogging
1,200 sf / acre of public open space

Picnic, BBQ, and Gathering Areas
Picnic tables and barbeque pits
100 sf / acre of public open space

Play and Exercise Areas
Playgrounds and exercise stations
100 sf / acre of public open space

Ancillary Structures
Shade and small-scale performance 
pavilions, restrooms, and the like
Distributed as shown

Furnishings
Benches, drinking fountains, and the like
Distributed as shown

Trails

Picnic, BBQ and Gathering Areas

Play Areas and Exercise Stations

Pavilions, Minor Ancillary Buildings and Structures

Furnishings

Shade Trees

ART & 
CULTURE 
GREEN

IVY SQUARE

IVY GARDEN

IVY PLAZA

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

CLEAR CREEK 
RECREATIONAL PARK

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 112



96

Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

Exhibit B9 Phasing Plan

Phase 1
Phase 2

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 9

BLOCK 10

BLOCK 11

BLOCK 12

Residential 

Retail

Retail, Residential Above

Retail, Parking Above

O�ce

Hotel

Convention Center

CCRC

Community Center

Retail, Hotel Above

Retail, O�ce Above

Parking

ART & 
CULTURE 
GREEN

IVY SQUARE

IVY GARDEN

IVY PLAZA

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

CLEAR CREEK 
RECREATIONAL PARK

PARKSIDE 
GREEN

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 113



97

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix B  Design Plan

August 7, 2014

This page 

intentionally 

left blank

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 114



August 7, 2014

Appendix C:
Regulating Plans

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 115



99

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix C  Regulating Plans

August 7, 2014

Exhibit C1 Sub-Districts Regulating Plan

Exhibit C2 Land Use Regulating Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 116



100

Appendix C  Regulating Plans

August 7, 2014

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Exhibit C1  Sub-Districts Regulating Plan

SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

Sub-District Legend

Public Square

Parkside Neighborhood

Clear Creek 

Commercial / Retail /  Residential

Sub-districts

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 117



101

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix C  Regulating Plans

August 7, 2014

Exhibit C2  Land Use Regulating Plan

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 9

BLOCK 10

BLOCK 11

BLOCK 12

JADE STREET

SOUTH SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

PA
R

KV
IE

W
 T

ER
R

A
C

E

G
R

EE
N

  I
V

Y
 D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
K

 L
A

N
E

MODERN GREEN DRIVE

0 200’100’ 400’

Floodway

Clear Creek

Land Use Legend

Notes:
1. The depicted alignment of streets and configuration of blocks are conceptual and variable pursuant to the 

minor devation provisions established in this PD document.
2. Public open space is the only permitted land use where so indicated on this plan; however, public open 

space shall also be incorporated in the development blocks as required to meet open space requirements as 
established in this PD document.

SPECTRUM DRIVE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E 
SH

O
PS

 D
R

IV
E

Commercial, Retail

Commercial, Retail,  
Residential

Retail, Residential

Residential

Public Open Space

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 118



August 7, 2014

Appendix D:
Building Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 119



THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix D  Building Examples

103August 7, 2014

Exhibit D1 Office Building Examples

Exhibit D2 Hotel and Conference Center Examples

Exhibit D3 Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC) Examples

Exhibit D4 Community Square Examples

Exhibit D5 Anchor Retail Examples

Exhibit D6 Residential - Urban Style Dwellings Examples

Exhibit D7 Residential - Flats or Lofts Examples

Exhibit D8 Residential - Townhouse Examples

Exhibit D9 Building Top Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 120



Appendix D  Building Examples

104 August 7, 2014

Office buildings in the Ivy District will help promote a 
community where one can both live and work. The inclusion 
of office program will also help activate the neighborhood 
during office hours. The images shown are representative of 
the intended design character for office buildings and illustrate 
appropriate application of design standards for building 
elevations.  

Key Plan

Exhibit D1  Office Building

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 121



THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix D  Building Examples

105August 7, 2014

A hotel and conference center will help draw non-residents to 
the community, activate the retail center and provide additional 
hospitality amenities to the Pearland area. The images shown 
are representative of the intended design character for hotel 
and conference center buildings and illustrate appropriate 
application of design standards for building elevations.

 

Exhibit D2  Hotel and Conference Center

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 122



Appendix D  Building Examples

106 August 7, 2014

A Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC) means any 
buildings specifically designed to meet the physical or social 
needs of senior citizens. The images shown are representative 
of the intended design character for CCRC building and 
illustrate appropriate application of design standards for 
building elevations.

Key Plan

Exhibit D3  Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC)

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 123



THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix D  Building Examples

107August 7, 2014

The community center is intended to support the creation of 
smaller community gathering places and is meant to create 
a hub of activity and social engagement at the Ivy District. 
Located adjacent to the Clear Creek Recreational Park, the 
community center should foster a strong relationship between 
the interior of buildings and the outdoors. The images 
shown are representative of the intended design character 
for Community Center building and illustrate appropriate 
application of design standards for building elevations.

 

Key Plan

Exhibit D4  Community Center

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 124



Appendix D  Building Examples

108 August 7, 2014

To create a vibrant neighborhood commercial center, Anchor 
Retail is intended to support and serve the entire Ivy District 
neighborhood and broader Pearland community. The images 
shown are representative of the intended design character for 
Anchor Retail building and illustrate appropriate application of 
design standards for building elevations.

Key Plan

Exhibit D5  Anchor Retail

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 125



THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix D  Building Examples

109August 7, 2014

Key Plan

Urban-style residential buildings are intended to include a range of 
dwelling unit types in order to encourage a diversity of  
households within the Ivy District. Non-residential uses 
within these buildings are intended to support and serve 
the surrounding residential population with small-scale, 
community oriented spaces and services. The images shown 
are representative of the intended design character for Urban 
Style residential buildings and illustrate appropriate application 
of design standards for building elevations.

 

Exhibit D6  Residential - Urban Style Dwellings

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 126



Appendix D  Building Examples

110 August 7, 2014

Flats or lofts are intended to include a range of dwelling 
unit types in order to encourage a diversity of households 
within the Ivy District. The images shown are representative 
of the intended design character for Flats or Lofts residential 
buildings and illustrate appropriate application of design 
standards for building elevations.

Exhibit D7  Residential - Flats or Lofts

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 127



THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix D  Building Examples

111August 7, 2014

Townhouses are intended to include a range of dwelling unit 
types in order to encourage a diversity of households within 
the Ivy District. The images shown are representative of the 
intended design character for Townhouse residential buildings 
and illustrate appropriate application of design standards for 
building elevations.

Exhibit D8  Residential - Townhouse

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 128



Appendix D  Building Examples

112 August 7, 2014

The tops of buildings at Ivy District should be designed to 
support stated goals of sustainability. The images shown 
represent examples of how those goals may be achieved 
by providing space for alternative energy production, 
incorporating vegetated roof covers, addressing rainwater run-
off, and allowing residents to inhabit them.  

Exhibit D9  Building Top Examples

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 129



THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix D  Building Examples

113August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 130



August 7, 2014

Appendix E:
Streetscape Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 131



115

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Exhibit E1 Streetscape - Mixed Use Examples

Exhibit E2 Streetscape - Residential Examples

Exhibit E3 Bioswale Examples

Exhibit E4 Paving Examples

Exhibit E5 Bicycle Parking Examples

Exhibit E6 Site Furnishings Examples

Exhibit E7 Lighting Examples

Exhibit E8 Material and Color Examples

Exhibit E9 Pedestrian Bridges Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 132



116

Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Key Plan

Exhibit E1  Streetscape - Mixed Use Examples

Retail signage, street trees and planting areas, and 
accommodations for bike and pedestrian traffic should be 
provided. Outdoor seating areas are encouraged.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 133



117

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Exhibit E2  Streetscape - Residential Examples

Planting should not obscure stoops and entryways. Sidewalks 
should be kept clear for pedestrian traffic.

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 134



118

Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Key Plan

Bioswales located within the sidewalks throughout the Ivy 
District street network are designed for storm water runoff 
conveyance that provides an alternative to storm sewers. 
They can absorb low flows or carry runoff from heavy rains 
to storm sewer inlets or directly to surface waters. Bioswales 
improve water quality by infiltrating the first flush of storm 
water runoff and filtering the large storm flows they convey. 
The maintenance of bioswales will be the responsibility of the 
owner.

Exhibit E3  Bioswale Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 135



119

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Exhibit E4  Paving Examples

The ground plane within the public realm plays a critical role 
in both maximizing site permeability as well as enhancing 
the character of the Ivy District as a pedestrian focused 
neighborhood.  In order to encourage a modern, simple 
neighborhood aesthetic, the paving palette is intended to 
be limited to a small range of textures and colors. The use of 
recycled or renewable materials, when possible, is encouraged. 
Materials for sidewalks are permitted to be pavers or concrete 
paving that will meet the minimum design performance 
requirements per the Pearland Engineering Design Criteria 
Manual, June 2007. All streets must be concrete and meet the 
minimum strength requirement of the Pearland Engineering 
Design Criteria Manual, June 2007 and a Geotech Report 
signed and sealed by a Texas Professional Engineer.

Key Plan

Pathway

Sidewalk 

Street

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 136



120

Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Key Plan

Exhibit E5  Bicycle Parking Examples

Bicycle parking and other public amenities are intended to 
support the design and function of streets and open spaces 
and enhance the character of the Ivy District as a pedestrian 
and bicyclist focused neighborhood. Bicycle parking shall 
be made of durable and vandal-resistant materials such as 
stainless steel or other heavy duty materials where appropriate.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 137



121

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Exhibit E6  Site Furnishings Examples

Materials, site furnishings and other public amenities described 
in this section are intended to support the design and function 
of streets and open spaces, while aesthetically enhancing the 
public character of the Ivy District as a pedestrian focused 
neighborhood. Bollards and trash and recycling bins are 
intended to have a consistent design vocabulary throughout 
the neighborhood.

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 138



122

Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Key Plan

Lighting is intended to be attractive and visually engaging, 
while providing public safety and enhancing the character of 
the Ivy District as a pedestrian focused neighborhood.  Certain 
areas of the Ivy District neighborhood are intended to have 
lower lighting levels, such as the Clear Creek Recreational Area 
where it is important to minimize light pollution so as not to 
disturb wildlife and maintain a natural setting. The Ivy District 
shall develop a “Master Lighting Plan” for review and approval 
by the city manager and the city council before submittal of a 
development application. 

Exhibit E7  Lighting Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 139



123

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

The use of materials and colors help to define the quality 
and nature of a place.  Individual buildings at Ivy District are 
encouraged to use a variety of material and color palettes, 
weaving together a vibrant neighborhood tapestry.   

Exhibit E8  Material and Color Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 140



124

Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Pedestrian bridges shall be located within Public Open Space. 
Design of pedestrian bridges in the Ivy District shall take 
the urban context into consideration including pedestrian 
amenities, architectural detailing, railings, and appropriate 
materials. The images in this section are intended to provide 
examples of pedestrian bridges. The incorporation of public 
art is also encouraged to provide a unique sense of place and 
identity to the landscaped open space.  

Exhibit E9  Pedestrian Bridge Examples

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 141



125

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix E  Streetscape Examples

August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 142



August 7, 2014

Appendix F:
Signage Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 143



127

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix F  Signage Examples

August 7, 2014

Exhibit F1 Signage Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 144



128

Appendix F  Signage Examples

August 7, 2014

Exhibit F1  Signage Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 145



129

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix F  Signage Examples

August 7, 2014

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 146



August 7, 2014

Appendix G:
Open Space Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 147



131August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G1 Clear Creek Recreation Park Examples

Exhibit G2 Art and Culture Green Examples

Exhibit G3 Parkside Green Examples

Exhibit G4 Ivy Square Examples

Exhibit G5 Plaza Examples

Exhibit G6 Ancillary Structure Examples

Exhibit G7 Balcony Examples

Exhibit G8 Patio Examples

Exhibit G9 Courtyard Examples

Exhibit G10 Forecourt Examples

Exhibit G11 Pedestrian Passage Examples

Exhibit G12 Playground Examples

Exhibit G13 Community Garden Examples 

Exhibit G14 Roof Terrace Examples

Exhibit G15 Other Private Open Space Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 148



August 7, 2014132

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G1  Clear Creek Recreational Park Examples

The Clear Creek Recreational Park is intended to provide an 
active open space along Clear Creek at the southern edge 
of the project.  The area is also a significant element of the 
regional detention strategy for the Ivy District and takes 
advantage of the Clear Creek Floodway, as well as the city’s 
proposed “Lower Kirby Regional Detention Facility”, study 
dated July 2013, which is located on the south western edge of 
the 48.5 acre Ivy District site.  

The intent is to create a vibrant and active edge along the 
creek and regional detention area with recreational activities. 
The Clear Creek Recreational Park provides a casual place for 
residents and visitors to the Ivy District to walk, bike, or jog. 
The Clear Creek Recreational Park shall be defined by multi-use 
pathways, as well as landscaped open space.  

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 149



133August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Key Plan

The Art and Culture Green will create an important public space 
that connects the Clear Creek Recreational Park with the Ivy 
District and allows for active and passive recreation, as well as 
provides space for outdoor music and special events.  The Art 
and Cultural Green shall primarily be naturally landscaped with 
many places to sit on benches or low walls.  Passive recreation 
activities in the park includes grassy lawn for unstructured 
and informal active recreational activities. Appropriate civic 
elements, fountains or open shelters may be included. 

Exhibit G2  Art and Culture Green Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 150



August 7, 2014134

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G3  Parkside Green Examples

The Parkside Green will serve as an important public space for 
the Ivy District.  The green will be available for civic purposes, 
commercial activity, unstructured recreation and other passive 
uses. The green shall primarily be naturally landscaped with 
many shaded places to sit. Appropriate paths, civic elements, 
fountains or open shelters may be included and shall be 
formally placed within the green. The Parkside Green is the 
heart of the Parkside Neighborhood Sub District. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 151



135August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G4  Ivy Square Examples

Ivy Square serves as an open space available for civic purposes, 
commercial activity, unstructured recreation and other passive 
uses. The square shall have a more urban, formal character 
and be defined by the surrounding building frontages and 
adjacent tree-lined streets. All buildings adjacent to the square 
shall front onto the square. Adjacent streets shall be lined with 
appropriately scaled trees that help to define the square. The 
landscape shall consist of lawns, trees, and shrubs planted in 
formal patterns and furnished with paths and benches. Shaded 
areas for seating shall be provided. A civic element or small 
structure such as an open shelter, pergola, or fountain may be 
provided within the square.  Ivy Square is located at the heart 
of the Public Square Sub-District. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 152



August 7, 2014136

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G5  Plaza Examples

Plazas add to the vibrancy of streets within the more urban 
districts and create formal open spaces available for civic 
purposes and commercial activity. Building frontages shall 
define these spaces. The landscape shall consist primarily of 
hardscape. If trees are included, they shall be formally arranged 
and of appropriate scale. Casual seating, along with tables and 
chairs, shall be provided. Plazas typically should be located at 
the intersection of important streets. Plazas are appropriate in 
the Public Square Sub-District. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 153



137August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Key Plan

Exhibit G6  Ancillary Structures Examples

Ancillary structures within public Public Open Spaces shall 
be formal in character and generally related to, but clearly 
subordinate to surrounding buildings.  Each individual structure 
shall keep in character or complement the style of nearby 
buildings. Typically, these structures are located at prominent 
locations within an appropriate Public Open Space.  Ancillary 
structures located in the Public Square Sub-District may have 
minor commercial uses, such as small food or news vendors, 
but may also serve as civic elements for general public use 
with more passive activities. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 154



August 7, 2014138

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G7  Balcony Examples

A balcony is a platform projecting from a second or higher 
story interior or exterior wall of a building, usually enclosed for 
privacy and protection by a rail. A balcony usually has French 
or sliding glass doors leading out to it, and can be entered from 
a living room or bedroom. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 155



139August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G8  Patio Examples

A Patio is an outdoor space for dining or recreation that 
adjoins a residence and is often paved. It may also be a 
roofless inner courtyard within a residence, typically found in 
Mediterranean dwellings. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 156



August 7, 2014140

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G9  Courtyard Examples

A Courtyard is a landscaped open space in the center of the 
block, usually with no street frontage, bounded by walls or 
buildings on at least two sides. It shall be large enough to allow 
for public activities and have sunlight during midday. It shall 
be designed to connect to adjacent buildings or to the public 
sidewalk through a pedestrian passage.

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 157



141August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G10  Forecourt Examples

A Forecourt is a small private open space between a building 
facade and the Build-to Line.

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 158



August 7, 2014142

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G11  Pedestrian Passage Examples

A Pedestrian Passage is an intimate street level passage way 
for pedestrians from the interior of one block or building to a 
public sidewalk. These paths provide direct pedestrian access 
to residential addresses and create unique spaces for frontages 
to engage and enter off of. A pedestrian passage may be used 
to visually reduce the impact of a large development block. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 159



143August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G12  Playground Examples

Playgrounds shall be permitted in parks and greens to provide 
open space designed and equipped for the recreation of 
children. These playgrounds shall serve as quiet, safe places – 
protected from the street and typically located where children 
do not have to cross major streets to access. 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 160



August 7, 2014144

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G13  Community Garden Examples

A Community Garden is a small to medium size garden 
cultivated by members of an area for small scale agricultural 
uses for the benefit of the same people. It may consist of 
individually tended plots on a shared parcel or may be 
communal (everyone shares a single plot). 

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 161



145August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G14  Roof Terrace Examples

Roof terraces are flat areas on top of a building which are 
accessible for use as a recreation space for the residents and 
users of the building.

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 162



August 7, 2014146

Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Exhibit G15  Other Private Open Space Examples

Other Private Open Space could include a pool (swimming, lap 
pool, spa area), play courts (basketball, volleyball), or picnic 
areas with shade structures.

Key Plan

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 163



147August 7, 2014

THE MODERN GREEN IVY DISTRICT Appendix G  Open Space Examples

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 164



      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF MARCH 17, 2014 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2014-02Z 
 

A request of Steven Biegel, applicant; on behalf of America Modern Green 
Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone change from the Waterlights 
Planned Development (PD) to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on approximately 
48 acres of land on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: That portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton 
Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion lying within Harris County, Texas and the 
remainder lying within Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof 
recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of the deed records of Harris County, Texas. 

 

General Location:  Southwest corner of Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 
    288 

 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application could be considered as follows:  
 

 If P& Z makes a 
recommendation on 
March 17, 2014 

If action on the 
application is postponed 

Planning and Zoning 
Commission  

March 17, 2014 April 21, 2014 

City Council for First 
Reading 

April 14, 2014 May 12, 2014 

City Council for Second 
Reading      

April 28, 2014 May 26, 2014 

 
These dates may change further based on the outcome of the meetings. 

 

 
Project Summary   
 
The applicant Steven Beigel, on behalf of the owner America Modern Green 
Development (Houston) LLC is proposing a 48.5 acre mixed use development located 
on the west side SH 288, east of Kirby Drive, south of South Spectrum Boulevard, and 
north of Clear Creek.  This site was the location of a previously approved Planned 
Development of Waterlights District in March 2008, also a mixed use district. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 165



 
The site is currently vacant, with a detention pond that was constructed a few years 
back, in anticipation of the first phase of Waterlights development.  Due to the downturn 
in the economy, the Waterlights project did not advance, and the property was 
foreclosed by Amegy in 2010.  The property is currently owned by the applicant 
America Modern Green Development LLC.  
 
It is proposed that this “pedestrian oriented, urban” development could include an 
unspecified mix of offices, retail, restaurants, cafes, social and recreational center, and 
high density multi-family residential.  Some other potential uses listed in the PD, which 
were not included in the Waterlights, include assisted living, skilled nursing, long-term 
stay hotel, and related uses. 
 
Summary of October 7, 2013 Joint Workshop 
 
The PD was discussed at a joint workshop of the City Council and Planning and Zoning 
Commission on October 7, 2013.  Although there was no formal motion made, it is staff 
interpretation that the City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission had the 
following major comments: 
 

1. Codification and Design Standards: 
The design and illustrations shown in the PD need to be codified.  The text 
needs to reflect the overall design and concept.  Building guidelines need to be 
clarified and revised to ensure that the built-form, as shown in the exhibits, are 
requirements rather than guidelines.     The codes and details need to ensure 
that the goal of the Modern Green Ivy District is met – “…to promote a range of 
development within an overall street network, public space, and sustainable 
infrastructure framework that will become a model, vibrant, and ecological 
neighborhood for the City of Pearland, Texas”.    
 
Specifically for residential development, need to discourage conventional two-
three storied single-use, multi-family rental apartments, surrounded by parking 
lots (garden–style apartments) and encourage  pedestrian oriented high-density, 
parking area/structure enveloped by housing, with shared parking for commercial 
and residential uses (Texas Wrap Housing Product).  Ensure that the codes in 
the PD result in a development that meets the proposed objective of the PD, 
which is to “…build a residential community that is both highly sustainable and 
unique in character, while offering a range of amenities for residents, set within 
an attractive pedestrian environment.”   
 

2. Land Use and Open Space: 
a. Review the land use mix.  Increase the percentage of offices and retail 

uses and lower multi-family. 
 b.   More buildings need to include first floor commercial / office uses. 

c. Provide more details on parks and open space and how it meets the city's 
requirements on park dedication and open space. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 166



d. Provide definition of the land use terms used in the PD and provide a 
breakdown of area/ number of units for each of these uses - Community 
Center, Senior Living, MF Rentals, MF Condos, Assisted Living, Skilled 
Nursing, Short-term/Long-term Hotels, Multi-Family Residential with Non-
Residential on First Floor, Luxury Condos, Performing Arts Center, etc. 

 
3. Infrastructure and Amenities: 

Provide details of infrastructure improvements and lake amenities within and 
outside PD boundaries – assign responsibility for construction, maintenance, 
ownership of these improvements. 

 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 167



Staff Analysis of the Current Proposal  
 
The proposed PD has a strong focus on residential and senior living component, 
especially with the proposed flexibility of 25% increase in the 11.5 acres of Parkside 
neighborhood.  This flexibility could allow an increase of approximately 95 units, when 
compared to the previously approved Waterlights PD.  The following table compares 
the Waterlights PD to the proposal discussed at the workshop on October 7, 2013 and 
the current proposal. 
 

 Waterlights 
District 

% of 
total 
land 

Proposed 
Modern Green 
Ivy District 
Oct. 2013 

% of 
total 
land 

Proposed Modern 
Green Ivy District 
Jan. 2014 

% of 
total 
land 

Site Area 57.7 acres NA 48.5 acres NA 48.5 acres NA 

Office 390,000 square 
feet 

15.5% 110,000 square 
feet 

5.2% 100,000 square feet 4.7% 

Retail 
Shopping & 
Restaurant 

218,000 square 
feet 

8.6% 80,000 square 
feet 

3.7% 130,000 square feet 6.1% 

Hotel Short 
Stay 

500 keys  450keys  100 keys  

Senior 
Facility 

0  Included above  310 keys  

Residential 1150 units* 
on 48.5 acres 
 
(1400 on 57.7 
acres) 
350 units were 
proposed on 
additional 10 acres 
that is not included 
in Modern Green 
Ivy District 

24.26 
units/acr
e 
 

1410 units 
on 48.5 acres 

29 .07 
units/a
cre 

1300 units 
on 48.5 acres 
 
MF rental: 400 units 
MF- condo:900 units 
 
25% increase 
allowed in the PD 
will result in 
additional 95 units 

26 .8 
units/ac
re 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community 
Center 

Within each 
residential block 

 Not calculated  80,000 sf 3.8% 

Parking  5100 – 5900 
spaces 

 4,500 spaces  3,600 spaces  

 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 168



Major Concerns 
 
Staff has the following major comments for the PD submitted on January 31, 2014.  
These comments largely echo the concerns raised by the City Council and Planning 
and Zoning Commission in October.  Additional comments have been listed at the end 
of this report. 
 

1. Land Use Breakdown – As discussed earlier in the workshop, staff 
recommends that a true mix of uses, both vertical and horizontal be considered.   
Despite the changes to the land use breakdown, there appears to be an uneven 
balance of residential to commercial, with residential uses dominating the PD.  
 
While the previously approved Waterlights PD had proposed 1,150 units on 48.5 
acres, this PD proposes 1,300 residential units and 310 units in the Senior 
Facility, totaling 1,610 units on the same acreage.  Additionally, the allowed 25% 
increase could result in 1,705 total units.   
 
Currently Office use is at 4.7% of the total land area, and Retail, Shopping and 
Restaurant is at 6.1%.  Cumulatively, these have not increased substantially 
since the last workshop.  Staff recommends that these percentages be increased 
to 8-10% for Office use, and 12-15% for Retail, Shopping and Restaurants.  
 

2. Open Space and Parkland Dedication – The PD will need to address how the 
applicant will meet the parkland dedication and open space requirements.  
Details of acreages, amenities, and quantities need to be included.  Amenities 
and non-traditional open spaces (plazas etc.) are eligible for credit towards this 
requirement.  Staff recommends that all UDC requirements (including quantity) 
be met by a combination of open space, amenities, and parkland dedication 
fees.  The UDC requires the following quantities for 1,610 units: 

Parkland dedication at 1 acre per 50 units or $750/units =32.2 acres   
Open space requirement at 900 sf/residential unit = 33.2 acres   
 
Other open space requirements of the UDC Section 2.4.2.10.g and Section 
2.2.2.1 need to be met.  Staff recommends that acreages be added in Appendix 
I with appropriate coding to identity the type of open space in conformance with 
Chapter 11.  Images need to be tied to the map and to the components for better 
clarity to assist in review and approval of future permits. 
 
Since the PD does not provide a breakdown on the type of units included in the 
Senior Facility, this calculation assumes that Senior Housing will comprise of 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 169



independent 55+ older units, which are subject to the open space and parkland 
dedication calculations. 
 

3. Multi-Family Housing Form – The PD lacks regulations to prevent “garden 
style” development.  Staff recommends that the built form be better defined, and 
include minimum heights, details on designs, and restrictions on parking in areas 
along the streets by limiting the building setbacks.  This would ensure a 
development that is pedestrian oriented, high-density, with parking area/structure 
enveloped by housing, and shared parking for commercial and residential uses 
(Texas Wrap Housing Product). 
 

4. Street Network – The PD should clarify that all external roads will be public and 
constructed by the developer.  Internal roads can be private.  The ownership and 
maintenance responsibility of all roads needs to be clearly identified in the PD. 

5. Deviations – The following deviations proposed in the proposed PD would not 
be permitted by the UDC: 

 
a. Twenty Five (25) percent modification for land uses. 
b.  Fifteen (15) percent change in setbacks would be in addition to the range 

specified already. 
c. Deviations for street screen.  
d. Page 33, Table 9.1 -    South Spectrum is a secondary thoroughfare on the 

Thoroughfare Plan and is not conducive to on street parking, especially since the 
road continues west of this development.  Promenade Shops is a major collector 
(4 lanes, no on-street parking) with western frontage on another property. Staff 
recommends that the on-street parking be confined to their internal streets.  

 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Planned Development (PD) 

Promenade Shops. 
Bass Pro Shops and vacant 

land.  
South General Commercial (GC) and 

Spectrum 1 (SP1 - The Beltway 
District) 

Detention & vacant land. 
Clear Creek. 

East BP-288 (Business Park District) 
 

Vacant land. 
State Highway 288. 

West Spectrum 1 (SP1 - The Beltway 
District) and Planned Development 

(PD) Waterlights. 

Vacant 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 170



CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Planned Development (PD) - Waterlights.   
The application seeks to change the Waterlights PD to Modern Green Ivy District PD. 
 
According to the UDC – “The purpose of an overlay planned development zoning 
district ("PD District") is to provide for the development of land as an integral unit for 
single or mixed use in accordance with a PD Design Plan that may include uses, 
regulations and other requirements that vary from the provisions of other zoning 
districts.  PD Districts are intended to implement generally the goals and objectives 
of the City's Comprehensive  Plan.    PD Districts are also intended to encourage 
flexible and creative planning, to ensure the compatibility of land uses, to allow for the 
adjustment of changing demands to meet the current needs of the community, and to 
result in a higher quality development for the community than would result from the 
use of conventional zoning districts.”    
 
In this case, the concept document provided by the applicant does not include sufficient 
description and details to meet the intent and purpose of the PD, as required by the 
UDC. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  As indicated by the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan, approximately 75% of the subject property is designated as The 
Beltway District  (S1) and  25% as The Mixed-Use High Density Residential District (S3).   
 
The 2004 Comprehensive Plan Update and the Lower Kirby Urban Center (LKUC) 
Development Code supported a high density, mixed use, livable center concept.  The 
examples mentioned in the Comprehensive Plan included The Legacy in Plano, The 
Arboretum in Austin, and The Woodlands Town Center in the Woodlands, all of which 
have a higher percentage of non-residential uses than proposed.   
 
The LKUC Development Code states – “The Lower Kirby Urban Center is intended to 
be a diverse regional destination that includes significant employment uses along Kirby 
Drive transitioning to light industrial uses to the west, regional retail along the highway 
frontages, and a pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use core anchoring the District. The goal of 
Lower Kirby Urban Center is to promote for a range of development opportunities within 
an overall urban design, street network and drainage infrastructure framework.” 
 
The land use break-down proposed in the PD, with over 25% of the land designated for 
multi-family single use buildings, would not be in conformance with the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The eastern boundary of the 
subject property has frontage on State Highway 288 , a State Highway.  The northern 
boundary has frontage on Spectrum Drive, a major thoroughfare, with a minimum of 120’ 
right-of-way.  The western boundary has frontage on Promenade Shops Drive, a major 
collector, with a minimum of 80’ right-of-way.   Right of way dedication for all or portions of 
these streets would be required at the time of platting and the applicant would be required 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 171



to construct or extend these roads to city standards.  A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) would 
be required and the applicant would be required to construct all improvements as per the 
TIA. 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  Platting is a separate process that commences after the approval of 
the PD and prior to any land development.  The property will need to be platted prior to the 
issuance of any permits.   
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel is not serviced by public water and 
sewer.  The applicant would need to extend the utilities to serve the site.  The applicant has 
not provided any information on the proposed extension of services or how the capacity 
issues and other required off-site improvements will be addressed. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  As discussed above, this 
zone change would not be in conformance with the recommendations of the 
Comprehensive Plan, specifically due to the proposed conceptual land-use mix that is 
predominantly (vertically and horizontally) multi-family residential.  The development as 
proposed may encourage other predominantly multi-family residential developments in 
the future, and be detrimental to the development of this area as envisioned in the 1999 
Comprehensive Plan, the 2004 Comprehensive Plan Update and the Lower Kirby 
Urban Center (LKUC) Development Code. 
 
The 1999 Comprehensive Plan recommended creation of “an attractive business park 
environment along State Highway 288”.  It recommended campus like settings, office 
buildings, light manufacturing uses, restaurants, retail, regional shopping centers, 
hotels, and multi-family development with limitation on the number of units per acre. 
 
The 2004 Comprehensive Plan Update and the Lower Kirby Urban Center (LKUC) 
Development Code supported a high density, mixed use, livable center concept.  The 
examples mentioned in the Comprehensive Plan included The Legacy in Plano, The 
Arboretum in Austin, and The Woodlands Town Center in the Woodlands, all of which 
have a higher percentage of non-residential uses than proposed.   
 
The LKUC Development Code states – “The Lower Kirby Urban Center is intended to 
be a diverse regional destination that includes significant employment uses along Kirby 
Drive transitioning to light industrial uses to the west, regional retail along the highway 
frontages, and a pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use core anchoring the District. The goal of 
Lower Kirby Urban Center is to promote for a range of development opportunities within 
an overall urban design, street network and drainage infrastructure framework.” 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee.  Additional comments from other departments have been relayed to 
the applicant and have been included in this report.   
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  The site plan that has been included in the PD 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 172



document is a very conceptual plan.  Staff recommends that additional details, 
clarifications and modifications, as listed in this report, be added to the site plan for further 
review. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration, as well as property owners 
within the existing Planned Development.  A legal notice of public hearing was published in 
the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject property.   There are 
limited existing adjoining landowners and users in this area due to the land being in its pre-
development stage. 
  
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that all comments be addressed before 
any action is taken on the PD.  At this time, staff recommends that the applicant be 
provided more time to provide a complete document that is in conformance with the 
expectations set by the City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission at their October 
workshop, and that addresses all staff’s comments.  The extension of time would also 
provide an opportunity for the applicant to ensure that: 
 

1. The proposed PD  is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and Lower Kirby 
Urban Center Development Code. 

2. The proposed PD  is in compliance with the purpose of the PD as stated in the 
UDC.   

3. All staff comments and concerns have been addressed, especially those related to 
the land-use breakdown; open space and parkland dedication; multi-family housing 
form; and street ownership and maintenance. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
• Vicinity and Zoning Map 
• Property Ownership/Abutter Map 
• Property Owner Notification/Abutter List 
• Future Land Use Plan 
• Aerial Map 
• Newspaper Notice 
• Lower Kirby Urban Center Regulating Plan  
• Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
• Related Document - Spectrum District Land Use Map 

 
 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 173



ADDITIONAL STAFF COMMENTS: These comments pertain to the details contained in 
the PD.  These comments would need to be addressed after the expectations set by the 
City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission at their October workshop, and major 
comments listed earlier in this report (related to the land-use breakdown, open space and 
parkland dedication, multi-family housing form, and street ownership and maintenance) are 
addressed. 
 
 

1. PD Refers to the UDC 8th edition throughout the document.  This should be changed to 
the new 9th edition.    

2. The modification process on Page 9 is confusing and is contradictory.  Please clarify.  
Staff recommends that PD amendments follow the process in the UDC. Appeal of City 
Manager’s decision – needs clarification that this will be through an application process, 
and the decision will be made without a public hearing process. 

3. Ownership component (condo units) needs to be defined and identified on the plan. 
4. Page 8 – 3. Administration, A.   Please revise to read “The development standards under 

the UDC…shall apply except as specified herein.” 
5. Page 9 – Add ‘Or street classifications and connectivity locations to City streets.’ to D.6.  
6. Page 11 – Building facades – “Parks and breezeways would be considered as buildings” 

- need to discuss.   
7. Page 11 – Use the term First Floor instead of Ground Floor. 
8. Page 12 – Formula Retail – would these meet the standards in the PD are will they be 

allowed to follow their own standards?   
9. Gallery – For Public Streets, any encroachment on the street needs City approval.  The 

street needs to be designed such that private spaces are separated from public ROW. 
10. Page 13 “Minor Modification” references Part 3 h of the PD Document.  There is no Part 

3H.  This should reference 3D. 
11. Page 13- Minor Modifications- Table 3 is missing. 
12. Page 13 – Plaza – defined by building on how many sides?  How is this different from a 

Square? 
13. Page 11- Senior Citizen – Not sure which age criteria is referred to?  The UDC definition 

may not apply to the type of development proposed.  
14. Page 16, Item 5 I - Any private streets are not patrolled by City Police Department to 

enforce traffic laws unless an Ordinance has been passed for private street enforcement.  
15. Page 17, Table 6.2 – Does Personal and Business include amenities within residential?  

Need to clarify these amenities or refer to UDC. 
16. Page 18 – Table 6.4 – Drive through uses do not work well in a pedestrian friendly 

environmental without locational and other design criteria.  Please address this. 
17. Page 18 – Hospitals are not permitted.  This area may benefit from such uses and staff 

recommends that they be included. 
18. Page 18 –  

a. Table 6.4 – Residential Uses – Single Family… - Design Criteria states “…or the 
width of the lot…”.  Where is “the width of the lot” defined in the PD document? 

b. Table 6.4 – Other Uses – Long-Term Hotel – Design Criteria – Why is it limited to 
just the initial renter has to be a senior citizen?  Does that mean the next renter 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 174



does not have to be a senior citizen?  What defines a senior citizen?  What is an 
“other qualified residents”? 

 
19. Page 19- Other Uses – Surface parking needs to be in accordance with the Appendix C 

– Program Area Regulation Plan. 
20. Page 20 - Table 6.5 –Formal Retail – needs clarification. 
21. Page 20- Table 6.5 – Not sure what the cap on Assisted Living units is, not to exceed 

30% of 301 units? 
22. How is Assisted Living defined? Independent units or ones with shared facilities?  Need 

to explain each use included under Senior Family including skilled nursing.  It appears 
that assisted living and extended stay hotel would be similar to each other.   

23. Page 20 – Special Events would need a Special Events Permit from the City.  This needs 
to be differentiated from outdoor activities and events that would not need additional 
parking and city services.   For recurring smaller events, a Special Permit process may 
be too cumbersome for some of these events. 

24. Page 24- Facade Composition – explain the term “façade rhythm” in terms of articulation 
required by projections or recesses with a certain horizontal or vertical distance, or 
similar. 

25. Page 25 – 4.B. ii –reference the percentage of EIFS and other material listed on page 
26. 

26. Page 25 – 4.C. 1 and 2 - Façade Composition and Windows and Doors – Need specific 
standards for implementation.  

27. Page 26 – 3 ii – Incomplete sentence. 
28. Page 26, Table 8.1 – Need to add minimum stories and height 
29. Page 26 – Table 8.1 – What do the Block numbers in the Table reference? 
30. Page 30 & 31 – The road network as depicted in this rendering does not match Appendix 

C.  
31. Page 32 references the 2012 International Fire Code. The Codes in place at the time of 

development should be adhered to.  This should include the Building, Fire, Energy 
Conservation, Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing Codes, etc. 

32. Page 32 – General Comments on all items included in the Street & Streetscape Design 
Standards  

a.  Assumption should be that everything in this section of the PD document is 
privately owned, operated, and maintained unless specifically designated to be 
publically owned, operated, and maintained. 

b. All streets private or public must be concrete and meet the minimum strength 
requirement of the Engineering Design Criteria Manual and a Geotech Report 
signed and sealed by a Texas Professional Engineer. 

33. Page 33 – South Spectrum Boulevard – As mentioned earlier, a bike lane is 
recommended to connect this development to surrounding future developments. 

34. Page 33 –F.5 – Need standards for Boulevard trees. 
35. Page 3 – F.7 – Remove the term “clearly”.  All exposed unpaved areas need to have a 

ground cover. 
36. Page 33 – F.10 – Appendix D does not show “highway access roads” or “arterials”.  The 

UDC does not have standards for these as stated in the PD.  Add standards. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 175



37. Page 34 – H – Need a utility map showing underground and above ground utilities.  The 
Spectrum District requires all utilities to be underground. 

38. Pages 35-37 – Need to show pavers on page 35.  This will help in visually identifying and 
unifying the district.  The special pavers shown in cross walks need to be detailed – 
material etc.  

39. Page 35 - City standard lane width is 12' not the 11' lanes as shown. 
40.    Page 36 & 37 - If these are private streets, there is no issue.  If these are intended to 

be public, the lanes should be 12' wide. 
41. Page 41 “Bicycle parking is encouraged to be made of durable and vandal resistant 

materials…” should read “Bicycle parking shall be made of durable…” 
42. Page 45 -  Pedestrian Bridge Design 

a. How many pedestrian bridges are proposed?  Appendix G looks like it could have 
as many as 10+ pedestrian bridges. 

b. Last sentence is out of place. 
43. Page 46 & 47 – The streets look like pavers or textured concrete.  The PD document 

does not match the picture. 
44. Page 49 – Sandwich signs need to be outside of Public ROW. 
45. Page 49 – Light Pole Banners – need to have a unified design for the entire district. 
46. All open spaces and open elements in Chapter 11 need to be identified on Appendix I – 

Illustrative Plan. 
47. Page 50 - General Comment on all items included in the Public Open Space & Private 

Open Space Standards – Assumption should be that everything in this section of the 
PD document is privately owned, operated, and maintained unless specifically 
designated to be publically owned, operated, and maintained. 

48. Page 50 – What shows the areas proposed to be public open space versus private open 
space? 

49. Need details on the Entertainment & Recreation/Community Center located on the 
southeast corner of the site. 

50. Add notes on outdoor activities, storage, display, mobile vendors and carts, etc. 
51. Need to add parking standards from LKUD. 

Comments from last submission- Parking – Based on ratios in page 20, retail would 
require 1184 spaces.  That leaves only 2142 spaces for 1360 residential units, 140 hotel 
(that include long term stay), and Senior Facility (assisted living and skilled nursing).  If 
this is deemed adequate, please provide backup information or break-down.  The 
provided parking is also less by 1211 spaces as required by city’s ratios.  However, since 
this is a mixed use development, staff understands that there would be some reduction. 

52. Other Uses – Permitting surface parking on parcels designated as future phase building 
sites will not ensure that the intent of this development as a “…unique in character, while 
offering a range of amenities for residents, set within an attractive pedestrian 
environment” is met until all phases area developed.  Staff is not in favor of this. 

53. Need a detailed signage plan/design plan. 
54. There are several typos throughout the document.  The word “though” should be 

“through,” on pages 9, 16, and throughout the document etc. 
55. Any set timeline on when all 4 phases will be complete. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 176



56. Provide additional details regarding the phasing plan.  There should be a proportionate 
amount of residential/nonresidential at all times. 

57. Add Development Agreement referenced on Page 17, 32, etc., and all other documents 
related to the PD document, to the PD document to have all necessary review materials 
in one place. 

58. Whether including the acreage for the residential component or all acreage included 
within the PD, the density calculations on page 17 do not appear to be accurate. 

59. Add legend to page 18 just as on page 19, for ease of use. 
60. Staff would like to see the paving palette identified on page 40, to avoid ambiguity during 

future reviews. 
61. Provide a lighting plan identified on page 43 to be included in the PD. 
62. Show pedestrian bridges identified on page 45 on one of the plans in the appendix and 

label or some vision of what this would look like. 
63. For ease of use/review, it would be nice if all design standards can be in the form of a 

table in the appendix that references the section of the PD.  For example, a “forecourts” 
and courtyards are required, and it would be nice to look in one area of the PD for all 
requirements and for specifics related to the requirement, one can reference a particular 
section of the PD. 

64. Fencing materials listed on page 54 for community gardens allows chicken wire.  Provide 
locations on map, or add text to limit chicken wire to areas that are not visible from 
streets. 

65. Add the base zoning district to the Regulating Plan found in the appendix and within the 
body of the PD document. 

66. Provide a detailed description of all development standards that are different from those 
in the base zoning district. 

67. Provide Master Wayfinding Plan. 
68. Page 60 – Location and Size – No size is given here or in the referenced Appendix A. 
69. Page 60 - Improvements on the south side of Clear Creek will need to be approved by 

Brazoria Drainage District #4. 
70. Page 62  

a. Location and Size – No size is in Appendix A.   
b. Location and Size – 0.5 to 2 acres seems like a large range. 
c. Typical Uses – This repeats the location and size information.  Remove and 

include typical uses. 
71. Page 63 – Location and Size – Plaza Areas are not shown on Appendix A. 
72. Appendix A – What is the building area shown south of Clear Creek?  Is that a driveway 

from the SH288 frontage road to a parking lot on the south side of Clear Creek?  
73. Appendix C - It is difficult to see where the driveways to access the parking areas are 

located.  The driveways will need to meet the City's driveway spacing requirements of the 
UDC/EDCM. 

74. Appendix D - Promenade shops is a 4 lane major collector in the Thoroughfare Plan.  
However, it is shown as a 2 lane road in the PD document.   

75. Identify private streets and who will own and maintain. 
76. ADD "A Traffic Impact Analysis is required for the site.  Approval of the TIA is required 

prior to the approval of the Plat.  As a result of the TIA, additional roadway network may 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 177



be required to be constructed by MGID as a result of the impact of the traffic volumes 
generated by the MGID development."  

77. Table 9.1 vs. cross section illustrations, General, the cross sections in the table do not 
match the illustrations of the cross sections. 

78. South Spectrum is referred to as 102’ vs. 106’ - South Spectrum should be 106'  
79. Dimension shown in cross sections must be legible, the current sections are not. 
80. APPX D - What is the difference between dashed and solid local street on far east end of 

South Jade?  It appears to be a dead end, please clarify what type of street or feature 
this is. 

 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 178



Vicinity and Zoning Map

Zone Change 2014-2Z

Modern Green/
Ivy District

PUD

SP3

SP1

GB

BP-288

SP2

GC

SH
 288 S

SH
 288 N

SH
 288 FN

TG
 S

SH
 288 FN

TG
 N

SH
 288 R

A
M

P

MCHARD RD

FRUGE RD

11100

11003

11500

2234

11041

2234

11233

1820

11151

1906

1801

14525

11005

1901

1908

11601

11100

1826

1910

2234

11015

11029

11520

302

10015

11309

1920

11313
2620

11623

11100

515

2234

2624

510

303

914

615703

306

506

830

404

2620

915

507

519

2731

402

907

307

407

2758

511

611

2915

814

902
826

2754

2835

506

603

534
610

911

530

531

2726

2731

2910

822

515
519

2703
2830

502

408

2911

614

2730

731
2714
2718

2726

2735

502

2706
2739

818

6062710
503 522

2826

526518

602

703

514

2800

2702

718

806

714

711

3522

2707

2702

2734

2703

715

702

727

802

2927

2738
810

2730

2810

802

814

726

2735

2814

730

2818

707

2715

803

830
826

711

2718
819

822

2723
2719

811

612

2907

2718

814

2919

2843

810
722

719

2711

2706

2710

815

2727

2714

900

2743

2742

706

2719

2730

2726
2718

2735

710

2711

2723

2715

802
738

11633

2715

2734

2711

2722
2711

2711

2723

904

806 2735
810

2742

722
2624

2710

814

Shadow Creek Marketplace

HCA Pearland Medical Campus SD

The Lakes at Countryplace Sec 8

Nova Solutions Minor

Shadow Creek Ranch Commercial Site No 18A

Shadow Creek Ranch Commercial Site No. 18B

Countryplace Sec 12

Pateder-Patel

Southway Community Church Plat

Bandali Daycare

Country Place Plaza

Kirby-Shadow Creek Retail Center

Shadow Creek Ranch Commercial Site No 16B

Shadow Creek Ranch Business Center DR & Medical Center DR ¯0 380 760190 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

PD

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 179



FLUP Map

Zone Change 2014-2Z

Modern Green/
Ivy District

Parks

Mixed Use Business Park

Business Park

Low Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

High Density Residential
Medium Density Residential Business Commercial

Public / Semi-Public

SH
 288 S

SH
 288 N

SH
 288 FN

TG
 S

SH
 288 FN

TG
 N

SH
 288 R

A
M

P

MCHARD RD

FRUGE RD

11100

11003

11041

1820

11151

1906

14525

11005

1901

1908

11100

2234

2234

11233

180111601

1826

1910

11029

302

10015

11309

1920

11623

11100

515

2624

510

914

615703

306

506

830

404

2620

915

507

519

2731

402

907

307

407

2758

511

611

2915

814

902
826

2754

506

603

534
610

911

530

531

2726

2731

2910

822

515
519

2703
2830

502

408

2911

614

2730

731
2714
2718

2726

2735

502

2706
2739

818

6062710
503 522

2826

526518

703

514

2800

2702

718

806

714

711

3522

2707

2702

2734

715

702

727

802

2927

2738
810

2730

2810

802

814

726

2814

730

707

2715

803

830
826

711

2718
819

822

2723

811

612

2907

2718

814

2919

810
722

719

27112710

815 2714

900

706

2719

2730

2726
2718

2735

2711

2723
802
738

2715

273427222711

2711

2730

904

806 2735
810

2710

814

Shadow Creek Marketplace

HCA Pearland Medical Campus SD

The Lakes at Countryplace Sec 8

Nova Solutions Minor

Shadow Creek Ranch Commercial Site No. 18B

Countryplace Sec 12

The Lakes at Countryplace Sec 7

Pateder-Patel

Southway Community Church Plat

Bandali Daycare

Country Place Plaza

Shadow Creek Ranch Commercial Site No 16B

¯0 380 760190 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 180



Abutter Map

Zone Change 2014-2Z

Modern Green/
Ivy District

SH
 288 S

SH
 288 N

SH
 288 FN

TG
 S

SH
 288 FN

TG
 N

SH
 288 R

A
M

P

MCHARD RD

FRUGE RD

11100

11003

11500 2234

11041

2234

11233

1820

11151

1906

1801

14525

11005

1901

1908

11601

11100

1826

1910

2234

11015

11029

11520

302

10015

11309

1920

11313
2620

11623

11100

515

2234

2624

510

303

914

615703

306

506

830

404

2620

915

507

519

2731

402

907

307

407

2758

511

611

2915

814

902
826

2754

2835

506

603

534
610

911

530

531

2726

2731

2910

822

515
519

2703
2830

502

408

2911

614

2730

731
2714
2718

2726

2735

502

2706
2739

818

6062710
503 522

2826

526518

602

703

514

2800

2702

718

806

714

711

3522

2707

2702

2734

2703

715

702

727

802

2927

2738
810

2730

2810

802

814

726

2735

2814

730

2818

707

2715

803

830
826

711

2718
819

822

2723
2719

811

612

2907

2718

814

2919

2843

810
722

719

2711

2706

2710

815

2727

2714

900

2743

2742

706

2719

2730

2726
2718

2735

710

2711

2723

2715

802
738

11633

2715

2734

2711

2722
2711

2711

2723

904

806 2735
810

2742

722
2624

2710

814 ¯0 380 760190 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 181



Zone Change No. 2014-2Z
Modern Green/Ivy District

NAME ADDRESS UNKNOWN
GCCLE - SHADOW CREEK LP 3120 ROGERDALE RD
DE GEORGE ROSE ESTATE OF % GIACOMO DE GEORGE 606 SADDLE ROCK DR
ALLEN DOROTHY ATWATER 505 N ADAMS ST
CITY OF PEARLAND 111 E LOCUST ST
STUDE M S 815 WALKER ST 
MINOR STEWART ADDRESS UNKNOWN
SHRINERS HOSPITALS FOR CRIPPLED CHILDREN % DON PO BOX 31356
BROWN ' BRADSHAW ADDRESS UNKNOWN
MARTINI RICHARD A & 1306 E ANDERSON RD
PEARLAND LIFESTYLE CENTER LP ATTN LEGAL DEPARTMENT 2650 THOUSAND OAKS BLVD 
MAYOR RICHARD B 2121 KIRBY DR UNIT 13NW
MAYOR JAMES M 2006 ELM CRST
MAYOR THOMAS H 5555 DEL MONTE DR UNIT 1306
AMERICA MODERN GREEN DEV 9889 BELLAIRE BLVD 
STEVEN BIEGEL 6001 SAVOY DR.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 182



ADDRESS 2 CITY STATE ZIP
STE 150 HOUSTON TX 77042

HOUSTON TX 77037-2024
FREDERICKSBURG TX 78624-3363
ANGLETON TX 77515-4642

STE 1650 HOUSTON TX 77002-5748
HOUSTON TX
TAMPA FL 33631-3356
UNKNOWN
HOUSTON TX 77047-5226

STE 3150 MEMPHIS TN 38118-2486
HOUSTON TX 77019-6070
SAN ANTONIO TX 78230-2714
HOUSTON TX 77056-4184

STE 214 HOUSTON TX 77036-3591
STE 120 HOUSTON TX 77036

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 183



Aerial Map

Zone Change 2014-2Z

Modern Green/
Ivy District

SH
 288 S

SH
 288 N

SH
 288 FN

TG
 S

SH
 288 FN

TG
 N

SH
 288 R

A
M

P

MCHARD RD

FRUGE RD

11100

11003

11500 2234

11041

2234

11233

1820

11151

1906

1801

14525

11005

1901

1908

11601

11100

1826

1910

2234

11015

11029

11520

302

10015

11309

1920

11313
2620

11623

11100

515

2234

2624

510

303

914

615703

306

506

830

404

2620

915

507

519

2731

402

907

307

407

2758

511

611

2915

814

902
826

2754

2835

506

603

534
610

911

530

531

2726

2731

2910

822

515
519

2703
2830

502

408

2911

614

2730

731
2714
2718

2726

2735

502

2706
2739

818

6062710
503 522

2826

526518

602

703

514

2800

2702

718

806

714

711

3522

2707

2702

2734

2703

715

702

727

802

2927

2738
810

2730

2810

802

814

726

2735

2814

730

2818

707

2715

803

830
826

711

2718
819

822

2723
2719

811

612

2907

2718

814

2919

2843

810
722

719

2711

2706

2710

815

2727

2714

900

2743

2742

706

2719

2730

2726
2718

2735

710

2711

2723

2715

802
738

11633

2715

2734

2711

2722
2711

2711

2723

904

806 2735
810

2742

722
2624

2710

814 ¯0 380 760190 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 184



2004 Comprehensive Plan Update  May 2004 

   Page 25 of 50 Future Land Use Recommendations 

  

  

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 185



Appendix B

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 186



 

 

 

 

 

July 8, 2014 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 
 
Re: Recommendation on Zone Change Application No. 2014-02Z 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
At their meeting on July 7, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
following:   
 
 A request of Kevin Cole, applicant; on behalf of American Modern Green 

Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone change from the Waterlights 
Planned Development (PD), to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on 
approximately 48.5 acres of land on the following described property, to wit: 

 
 Legal Description:  That portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton 

Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion lying within Harris County, Texas and the 
remainder lying within Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof 
recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of the deed records of Harris County, Texas. 

 
 General Location:  Southwest corner of Spectrum Boulevard and State Highway 

288. 
 
 
 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 187



 
 
After staff presentation by the Director of Community Development, Lata Krishnarao, 
approval was recommended by staff.   
 
After discussion, P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles made the motion to recommend 
approval with conditions, and P&Z Vice Chairperson Mary Starr seconded. The vote 
passed (4-2), with Commissioners Derrick Reed and Daniel Tunstall in opposition. 
 
Recommended conditions follow: 
 
 

1. Parkland Dedication – City Council and P &Z specifically did not approve any 
variance to the Parkland Dedication, since this can be a payment in lieu of. 
Please indicate how the balance (based on $900/unit) will be addressed. 
Currently a standard of $700 sf/unit has been used in the PD. 

2. Page 21 – F. Minor Deviations – line 9- “Design” was mispelled. 

3. Page 27 – Marquee Sign – Flashing lights not permitted by UDC. Please remove 
the sentence that refers to flashing lights. 

4. Page 43 – Residential Uses –The table indicates that townhomes are permitted 
in Public Square. Other areas of the PD indicate that townhomes will be 
restricted to Parkside Neighborhood. Please clarify. 

5. Page 46 – as previously discussed add phasing to the Program Density to plan 
to indicate what can be expected in terms of land use breakdown at the end of 
each phase. 

6. Page 48 – Please add the block numbers in Table 7.1 for better clarity. 

7. Pager 50, 51 – Under Utilities and Block Standards please refer to sections of the 
PD that address this, and replace the note– “There are no specific…) 

8. Page 51 – e. (10) Building Height conflicts with Table 7.2 –Building Height 
Standards. 

9. Page 51 – C.1.c, d , and g– Refer to Chapter 8 on Building Design Standards 
and replace the note “There are no specific …”. 

10. Page 52, Building Materials - As indicated in previous discussions, staff 
recommends percentage breakdown of various materials to avoid a monotonous 
100% stucco/brick building. 

11. Page 53 – f. (5) “windows and doors or and visually…” Replace. 

12. Page 55 – 2.c and d – refer to sections in the PD that address this, replace 
“None”. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 188



 

 

13. Page 56 – C. 2 – Public Square Sub-District Guidelines – Refer to regulatory 
plans and chapters in the PD. 

14. Page 56, Building Materials - As indicated in previous discussions, staff 
recommends percentage breakdown of various materials to avoid a monotonous 
100% stucco/brick building. 

15. Page 57 – B. 5. – Fruge Road – Connection is shown to a section of Fruge Road 
that does not exist. Improvement of the road needs to be shown. 

16. Page 62 – C.1.2 – Island width shown is less than 5 feet for certain streets. How 
will this requirement of tree being 4 feet from the curb be met? 

17. Page 61 – C.2. – Guidelines – Refer to Master Streetscape Plan and Public 
Open Space Plan – Page 23. 

18. 2. Guidelines – Need to refer to Page 23.3. Master Plans - to be provided prior to 
Platting. 

 
 
 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Johnna Matthews 
 
City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 189



Submit Date
First 
Name: Last Name:

Street 
Address: Email: Phone: What would you like to share?

1 July 07, 2014 
9:43 p.m.

Kathye Warfield 3526 
Linwood St.

Kathye@Pe
arlandHome
s.com

(281) 485-
1946

I would like to request that city council oppose the Modern Green proposal.  I do not agree with the Planning and Zoning recommendation and 
urge council to vote against this.  This is not what we need for our community.  Please, please, please....no more apartments.

Kathye Warfield
Pearland Resident since 1970
Active Realtor in the Community

2 July 07, 2014 
11:14 p.m.

Vivian Ho-Nguyen 2710 
marble 
brook lane

Honguyen.vi
vian@gmail.
com

(504) 559-
9644

I am writing expressing the opinion regarding the growth and development within the west side of Pearland and specifically the development 
immediate to Shadow Creek Ranch.  With the understanding that we want to improve the growth of our community, however, some of the 
decisions based on votes from the City Planning and Zoning Authority need further review and consideration.  For example:  a decision to 
develop or build more multifamily homes and apartment complexes immediate to Shadow Creek Ranch is not wise to foster increase home 
values, attract more home owners and businesses to live and conduct business within our community.  We want more developments such as 
high end restaurants, corporate hubs and more single family homes.  Having said that, we, the citizens also want the Planning review the current 
situation of the stretch of FM 518 leading toward the wide side of town.  The current congestion situation is direct result of poor City planning 
for the potential growth.  We need to fine permanent resolutions, such as, open up feeder road access to and from the shopping complexes 
from SH 288 so that congestions on FM 518 can be reduced.  I hope that my comments and opinion are noteworthy for Council members to 
review and have the opinions of the citizens be counted during your decision making process. Thank you in advance and any future 
considerations.  Please excuse any typo or grammatical errors.

Vivian Ho-Nguyen  Engaged citizen to making our city a better place to live.

3 July 07, 2014 
11:29 p.m.

Angelita Solis 2903 Indigo 
Drive

ayzqlefty@y
ahoo.com

(713) 550-
3002

Please do not approve the Modern Green proposal. We do not need anymore more multi-plex housing.
We need a bigger library on the Westside.

4 July 08, 2014 
2:03 a.m.

Bedros Bedrosian 11502 
Watercastl
e, Pearland

bedrosian.b
edros@gmai
l.com

(630) 776-
7543

Please vote NO on the Modern Green proposal that would build as many as 1000 additional apartments / rental condos in / near Shadow Creek 
Ranch. 

5 July 08, 2014 
6:09 a.m.

Altaf Mehmood 11901 
Cedar 
Creek Dr

(713) 436-
6722

Modern Green proposal --> Not in favor.

Please no more apartment comlexes. 

What happened to the 2007 voter approved sports complex in Shadow Creek?

6 July 08, 2014 
6:13 a.m.

Lisa Morfey 11803 
Crescent 
Cove Dr.

lisamorfey1
2@yahoo.co
m

(832) 569-
4490

Please vote against the Modern Green development proposal.  It is not the right kind of development for the area.  The residents of Shadow 
Creek have uniformly been voicing their opposition to the building of more apartments.  We do not need the added burden on our 
infrastructure, and do not need the added traffic etc.  Please vote against the Modern Green proposal.  Thanks for your attention.  Lisa Morfey

7 July 08, 2014 
6:30 a.m.

Cynthia Rackley 2501 Rock 
Shoals Way

Rackleyrc@
yahoo.com

(832) 244-
8572

The Modern Green proposal is seriously lacking and should be disapproved by the City Council. This area of development is a Gateway to the city 
of Pearland and should contain more substantial and destination retail sites. A proposal that contains mostly multi-family is doomed for long 
term failure on this site. I strongly urge you to oppose the Modern Green development.

8 July 08, 2014 
7:38 a.m.

Laura Parker 11609 
Waterwoo
d Court

lwilliamspar
ker@gmail.c
om

(832) 858-
3396

As I resident I would like to voice my opinion that I am strongly against more multi-family living in Shadow Creek Ranch.  I am strongly against 
the Modern Green proposal.

Public Comments for Modern Green PD - Zone Change 2014-2Z

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 190



9 July 08, 2014 
8:50 a.m.

Vivian Scheibel 2005 Shoal 
Court

vscheibel@a
tt.net

(713) 436-
6593

I would like to implore you to vote against the Modern Green proposal in its current form.  Our area simply does not have the infrastructure to 
accommodate more multi-family housing.  I believe Modern Green needs to drastically change its development plans so that they will be 
appropriate for our great city.

Thank you for your attention.

Respectfully,
Vivian Scheibel

10 July 08, 2014 
8:55 a.m.

Monica Russo 13106 
Castlewind 
Lane

mrusso@bb
bhou.org

(713) 341-
6149

I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands

11 July 08, 2014 
9:18 a.m.

Fernando Morales 2215 Drake 
Falls Dr.

fmorales240
@gmail.com

(281) 796-
0283

I would like the city council to vote NO on the "Modern Green" proposal that was voted on last night. I live in the Shadow Creek Ranch 
subdivision and the last thing we need in our city is more multi family housing/ condos. The traffic situation is already approaching critical mass 
at 288 and 518. On a Saturday it takes 30 minutes to travel 3 miles sometimes. This situation needs to be fixed before we even begin to consider 
adding more families and more cars on Pearland roads.

12 July 08, 2014 
9:49 a.m.

Eloy Zuniga Jr. 2530 
Skyview 
Cove Ct.

eloyz.email
@gmail.com

(713) 829-
1035

I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing.

Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as 
well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support 
upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern 
Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST this project as it currently stands.

13 July 08, 2014 
9:51 a.m.

James Leuellen 13902 
Morgan 
Bay Drive

Leuellenjam
es@gmail.c
om

(832) 605-
6006

I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands 

14 July 08, 2014 
9:56 a.m.

Lee Ann Kincaid 12503 
Bethany 
Bay Drive

LeeAnn.kinc
aid@gmail.c
om

(214) 729-
6975

I would like to express some concern regarding the Modern Green Proposal. As a home owner in Shadow Creek Ranch, I am excited about the 
oportunity for Pearland to grow as a community and economy. My concern is in regards to the transportation infastructure around the 288 and 
Beltway intersections. While I look forward to further developments around the Bass Pro Shop, I feel that further developments without 
improvements to the high way exits, lights, and access roads will cause more accidents and further congestion. Please take into consideration 
mandating these expansion items if the Modern Green proprosal is to pass. I would like to thank you as a Council for furthering Pearlands 
growth. As a resident since 2010, I am excited about the City's growth. Pearland has some great atractions and is a great place to rase a family. 

Thank you for your service, 

Lee Ann Kincaid , MHA

15 July 08, 2014 
10:06 a.m.

Danell Laurence 13212 
Laguna 
Shores 
Drive

danellhead
@hotmail.c
om

(832) 689-
6457

Good morning, 
I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 191



16 July 08, 2014 
10:31 a.m.

Megan Crook 2712 
Golden 
Creek Lane

megan.croo
k@ymail.co
m

(713) 222-
7373

I wanted to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland Planning and Zoning Commision's vote to approve the Modern Green Proposal.  I DO NOT 
WANT THIS TO BE APPROVED.
I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST this project. 
We do not need more multi-family houses and 288 and Pearland Town Center is congested enough.  I WOULD support upscale mixed use 
development such as CityCentre which is located in the Energy Corridor. 
Respectful Taxpayer,
M Crook

17 July 08, 2014 
12:04 p.m.

Anu Mahesh 2004 Shoal 
Court

anuxmahesh
@gmail.com

(713) 436-
8999

I request the city council to veto the current Modern Green proposal as is and to work with the Modern Green developer to use similar 
percentages of land use as was proposed earlier by the Waterlights Planned Development for the following:
a. Office area
b. Retail Shopping and Restaurants
c. Reduced residential areas
d. Increased community centers

The current zone changes that increase the percentages of residential areas in the Modern Green Planned development area is not going to be 
good for the community or property values. We need more employers and office space in the West Pearland area. We also need to have open 
space and other name brand anchors such as Dave and Busters and Studio Movie Grill to make Pearland their home. More apartments/condos 
will not help in that regard.

I sincerely hope all of you will veto the current proposal and encourage the developers to come up with a plan that will put Pearland on the map 
for all the right reasons.

Best regards,

18 July 08, 2014 
12:23 p.m.

Leslie Berhanu 2607 
Rusting 
Creek Drive

leslieberhan
u@gmail.co
m

(979) 864-
9049

Good morning, 
I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands

19 July 08, 2014 
12:45 p.m.

Timothy Read 2020 
Running 
Brook Lane

TexasSafety
Tim@gmail.
com

(307) 214-
8629

I want to express my extreme displeasure with the Modern Green Proposal.  One of the many draws for my family to move to the west side of 
Pearland was the commute consideration to The Houston Medical Center.  I know this has been a draw for many of our neighbors as well.  
Unfortunately, Pearland‰Ûªs transportation infrastructure is not well-equipped to handle additional traffic of so many multi-family homes this 
proposal would create without providing any alternatives.  I fear that this proposal will create too much of a commute hassle for medical center 
families and force many of them to migrate towards Myerland or other communities.  The increase of multi-family homes and exodus of medical 
center families will only hurt property values in Pearland.  Please vote NO against the Modern Green Proposal.

20 July 08, 2014 
12:52 p.m.

Lindsey Ray 2208 Pearl 
Bay

Lindsey.daig
le@gmail.co
m

(713) 922-
6021

Good afternoon,
I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands

21 July 08, 2014 
1:13 p.m.

Angela Douglas 2306 Silver 
Bay Dr

adouglas684
1@yahoo.co
m

(713) 436-
4875

I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 192



22 July 08, 2014 
3:00 p.m.

Shaina Sheppard 2706 Royal 
Creek Ct

smsheppard
22@gmail.c
om

(713) 436-
0433

I wanted to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green proposal yesterday. 
The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only adversely affect 
property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Our school zoning and family lives have already experienced recent 
upheaval because of the influx of students from multi-family housing.  

In addition, Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough, even at 
the awful morning hours I drive to the medical center. 

I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one 
proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST this project as it currently stands.

Sincere thanks for your consideration,


 23 July 08, 2014 
3:53 p.m.

Roberto F. Carmona 2411 
Canyon 
Springs Dr., 
Pearland, 
TX 77584

cooks75@g
mail.com

(334) 654-
1096

I would like to voice my position against the "Modern Green" proposal to the Pearland City Council.
I ask the Council to thoroughly evaluate the proposal, taking into consideration the residents of the City of Pearland's opinions, rather than 
market studies.

While additional retail space may be viewed as promoting commerce, the reality is that people seek a good, safe, clean, and friendly place to live 
first, over a "nice place to shop".

The City of Pearland offers a unique community environment that is hard to find in such a large metro are as is the greater Houston area, yet it is 
this community feeling that made hundreads to thousands of relatively new and incoming residents choose Pearland as our location to start and 
grow our families, settle, and contribute to this great place.

Adding multi-family housing without truly improving other, more pressing needs such as traffic control and roadways, available quality schools, 
crime mitigation, land management, as well as open and recreational spaces, will only erode this community and promote exactly the opposite: 
congestion, road rage, increased traffic violations/accidents, higher crime rate, degraded/overcrowded schools, loss of open and recreational 
areas, etc.

The real winners of the Modern Green initiative will be a few key developers, the losers will be the rest of us. It is time to do the right thing and 
vote AGAINST this proposal.

I ask the Council to do this in the upcoming City vote.

Thank you sincerely,

Roberto F  Carmona24 July 08, 2014 

5:11 p.m.
Tim Courtney 12108 

Dawnmist 
Ct

rebl@swbell
.net

(832) 875-
9643

I would like to ask all council members to vote NO about the Modern Green development proposed for the old Waterlights site. This proposed 
development is not in the best interest of Pearlanders, especially those living on the west side. It will adversely impact our quality of life.

Thanks,
Tim Courtney
Southern Trails HOA Board

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 193



25 July 08, 2014 
7:06 p.m.

Malene Dixon 2314 
Bending 
Spring Dr. 
77584

malene74@
gmail.com

(713) 436-
9005

I was extremely disturbed to learn about the City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission's vote to approve the Modern Green proposal 
yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing, especially near Shadow Creek Ranch. Moving forward with this project has 
the potential to not only adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Over the past two years, I have 
watched neighbors and my Children's classmates move out of Pearland because of the increase in crime and the ever increasing number of 
apartment complexes. Moreover, Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure to support a project like this. Our streets are 
congested enough. It saddens me to visit City Centre and First Colony Town Center knowing the potential Pearland has for similar developments, 
instead, Pearland has settled for an influx of stand alone apartment complexes that are just more of the same. Shadow Creek Ranch's perimeter 
is almost exclusively surrounded by apartment complexes. Someone referred to our neighborhood as Apartment Creek
Ranch. Unless Pearland wants to be a transient city with no real culture and no consistent tax base from homeowners, we have to say enough 
apartment complexes. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST this project as it currently stands. PLEASE!

26 July 08, 2014 
7:36 p.m.

Steven Chang 13005 
Winter 
Springs 
Drive

(281) 813-
3998

As a resident of Shadow Creek Ranch in Pearland, I am against any policies for more apartments in the Shadow Creek Ranch and surrounding 
communities. Please understand that many residents are upset at the notion of more apartments being built. Please keep multifamily 
apartments out of Shadow Creek Ranch.

Thank you.
Steven Chang

27 July 08, 2014 
7:51 p.m.

Ashley Verzwyvelt 13109 
Hampton 
Bay Dr

petnut@gm
ail.com

(832) 407-
7883

My neighbors, family and I are writing to express the complete disgust with the idea of approving more apartment complexes in the area.  We 
live in Shadow Creek Ranch.  The reason for the move for our family and others in our neighborhood was for more upscale living, better schools 
and community.  Adding more apartment complexes only lowers property values and "cheapens" the community as a whole.  PLEASE reconsider 
and do not approve more multi family complexes in Shadow Creek Ranch area or Pearland for that matter.

Thank you!

28 July 08, 2014 
8:26 p.m.

Brenda Gutierrez 2608 
Rusting 
Creek Dr.

Brendaarens
@yahoo.co
m

(832) 528-
2593

Many residents and I strongly disapprove of anymore apartment complexes being built. We moved out here to buy a home and be with other 
home owners. Not share the same street with apartments. We moved here from Houston to get away from all the traffic that comes with 
apartments. We will consider selling if apartments keep popping up. Please give the homeowners who buy their homes that suburban living we 
originally sought after.
Thanks! 

29 July 08, 2014 
8:28 p.m.

Veronica Love-
Strahan

2717 Calico 
Creek Lane

veronicanlo
ve@gmail.c
om

(832) 328-
9713

As a member of the Shadow Creek community we are asking that you NOT approve any additional permits to build apartments in our 
community.  I have lived in this community for 7 years and request that the City Council Members elected consider the residents request to not 
add additional apartment complexes.

Kindest regards,
Veronica Love

30 July 08, 2014 
8:39 p.m.

Rob Baskinger 2101 
Crestwind 
Court

rbaskinger@
sbcglobal.ne
t

(713) 436-
9051

I recently read more apartments have been recommended for Pearland around the 288 and 518 area based on a recent study. Please do not let 
this come to pass. Shadow Creek Ranch is inundated with apartments and this only contributes to our traffic woes by stacking more and more 
people on top of one another. Please don't let tax revenue cloud your judgement at the cost of our community's future. Please vote no for this 
proposal. Our city needs more infrastructure, athletic facilities and green space, not short-sighted development.

31 July 08, 2014 
8:40 p.m.

Ron Hickman 12405 
Evening 
Bay Drive 
Pearland Tx 
77584

Rdhcorvette
@yahoo.co
m

(281) 536-
4854

Please limit apt complexes in Pearland. An increase in crime
 to be a direct correlation and increase police calls having to
respond to the current complexes already here. No increase in tax 
Revenue or school tax revenue from apt occupants schools crowded now.
Thank you 

32 July 08, 2014 
8:48 p.m.

Harvey Person 2412 
Centerbroo
k Ct

h.aperson@
sbcglobal.ne
t

(713) 436-
5277

This message is to express my extreme displeasure at the prospect of building additional apartment complexes in Pearland west of Hwy 288.  
Since purchasing a home in the Shadow Creek area in 2005, we have been overwhelmed with multi-family units on all sides of the area. The long 
term effect on our property values as well as intense over crowding will ultimately be the end result. This expression of concern should not be 
interpreted as a "we are better than them" attitude but a genuine concern for the quality of life and the negative economics associated with a 
radically changing stakeholder population. Too often those with no significant investment and are in fact transient by nature do not share the 
same concerns. To that end, I am appealing to your concern for the interest of the residents of Shadow Creek Range to oppose the any 
additional construction new multi-family units. Thank you for your support. The long term negative effect will outweigh any short tern benefits.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 194



33 July 08, 2014 
9:14 p.m.

Amanda Kleckley 2304 
Diamond 
Springs Dr

amandaklec
kley@gmail.
com

(713) 859-
9542

I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only adversely 
affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure to support 
a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is located in 
the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST this project 
as it currently stands.

34 July 08, 2014 
9:15 p.m.

David Morton 13202 Lone 
Creek Ln.

David@isam
orton.com

(713) 422-
3448

Please remember that the home valuations in Brazoria county, and thus the value of the city of Pearland (and future tax income) is dependent 
on approving the right things and declining the wrong things.

The multifamily unit that is being discussed are overwhelmingly discouraged by Homeowners (please see the Shadow Creek Facebook page to 
get an idea of just how much this project would disappoint the current citizens of Pearland should it pass.

I ask you to think very hard about accepting this development.  More developments will come in, and in better quality, if we slowly build the 
town at a pace that allows us to grow properly.  We can either be Sharpstown or we can be  Katy, but we will only be as good as the decisions 
the council makes.  Approving another apartment complex at this point would be a gross misjudgment, would send the wrong message to 
homeowners in the area, would decrease property values, and would prevent quality businesses from establishing roots in our city.  Please make 
h  h  h  d  35 July 08, 2014 

9:52 p.m.
Sharon Smith 2303 Cape 

Landing Dr
sksclark@g
mail.com

(713) 436-
1917

Please do not build anymore apartments in Shadow Creek Ranch.

36 July 08, 2014 
10:02 p.m.

Mandi Kleinwolter
ink 

13001 
Grand 
Shore Dr

Loretta320
@hotmail.c
om

(515) 450-
8524

Do NOT approve the hideous development proposed on 288.  We do not want more apartment tenants.  The crime and traffic would increase 
greatly and the quality of life for Pearlanders would suffer. This would be a major downgrade and would seal the deal to make Shadow Creek 
Ranch one of the worst developments in the suburbs. We want better for Pearland and the people here. We want good schools,  community 
spaces,  and low crime. None of these will happen if these apartments come to fruition.  This Asian company Green Way does not care how it 
will affect us they only want their $ . Please stop this!  We want something like City Center and this is not it!!!! 

37 July 08, 2014 
11:23 p.m.

Susan Kirk 11603 spill 
creek dr

Memphiskir
ks@gmail.co
m

(281) 705-
4200

Please vote against the initiative to introduce more apartment complexes and housing in Pearland. Decreased traffic and accessibility are huge 
assets to this area. However roads and schools are increasingly congested. Please consider upgrading our infrastructure and making what influx 
of residents we already have in an effort to keep our properties valuable, desirable, and accessible.

38 July 09, 2014 
5:07 a.m.

Jackie Isidro 2730 
ravens 
creek drive

Jcjitkaroon
@yahoo.co
m

(832) 419-
2008

Please do not build anymore apartment complexes in the city

39 July 09, 2014 
7:50 a.m.

Joby Joseph 12107 
amber 
creek Dr 
77584

pulimoodan
@rediffmail.
com

(713) 436-
4004

Please don't construct any more apartment in the shadowcreek area. 

40 July 09, 2014 
7:51 a.m.

Joby Joseph 12107 
amber 
creek Dr 
77584

pulimoodan
@rediffmail.
com

(713) 436-
4004

Please don't construct any more apartment in the shadowcreek area. 

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 195



41 July 09, 2014 
8:32 a.m.

Anh Thy Tran 2002 
Mistwood 
Ct

tran.a@sbcg
lobal.net

(832) 260-
7533

I have been a resident of Pearland for the past 8 years. I love being part of this city and I have a lot of confidence in the city's leadership. I trust 
that the group will listen to the concerns raised by the city residents. I urge the City Council member to reject the proposal submitted by Modern 
Green P&D. Although the revised proposal, July 2014, is an improvement over the original proposal, there is still a very low ratio of office and 
retail space. The proposal of 140,000 sq. ft. space for offices is only 6.6% of the total land use.  This is far less than 15.5% proposed by the Water 
Lights District.
  In addition, the revised proposal basically sacrifices spaces for everything else that would benefit the value of the area such land allocation for 
community centers, parking spaces, etc. so that they can MAINTAIN the high concentration of multiple family units. So, on the surface, they are 
attempting to comply with the request of the city's planning & development dept. However, in the end, they are still KEEPING a high number of 
multiple family units.
   There are already a lot of multi-family units on the West of 288. Having more MF units would only bring down the value of those existing units 
as well as overall  MF units as a whole in the longer term. This will force result in accelerated deterioration of these units,  thus will not keep 
Pearland beautiful.
   I love this city and my family would love to call this city home for years to come. Please consider not approving a plan that would set our city 

  42 July 09, 2014 
8:34 a.m.

Donald Lewellyn 2002 
Mistwood 
Ct

lewellyn.d@
sbcglobal.ne
t

(281) 627-
1953

 I have been a resident of Pearland for the past 8 years. I love being part of this city and I have a lot of confidence in the city's leadership. I trust 
that the group will listen to the concerns raised by the city residents. I urge the City Council member to reject the proposal submitted by Modern 
Green P&D. Although the revised proposal, July 2014, is an improvement over the original proposal, there is still a very low ratio of office and 
retail space. The proposal of 140,000 sq. ft. space for offices is only 6.6% of the total land use.  This is far less than 15.5% proposed by the Water 
Lights District.
  In addition, the revised proposal basically sacrifices spaces for everything else that would benefit the value of the area such land allocation for 
community centers, parking spaces, etc. so that they can MAINTAIN the high concentration of multiple family units. So, on the surface, they are 
attempting to comply with the request of the city's planning & development dept. However, in the end, they are still KEEPING a high number of 
multiple family units.
   There are already a lot of multi-family units on the West of 288. Having more MF units would only bring down the value of those existing units 
as well as overall  MF units as a whole in the longer term. This will force result in accelerated deterioration of these units,  thus will not keep 
Pearland beautiful.
   I love this city and my family would love to call this city home for years to come. Please consider not approving a plan that would set our city 
up for failure.
43 July 10, 2014 

8:09 p.m.
Amy Cuellar 2917 

Perdido 
Bay Ln

amykizer@h
otmail.com

(713) 443-
9258

I am writing in advance of the city council meeting to voice my concern about the Modern Green proposal.  The area in west Pearland already 
has an excessive number of multifamily homes.  This proposal would only bring more apartments to the area, which is not beneficial for the long-
term attractiveness and growth of the area.  Please vote "no" on this proposal on Monday.

44 7/14/2014 Cayla Hayes 13210 Lone 
Creek Lane

caa2007@gt
.rr.com

409-549-
0928

I would like to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green proposal last week. I 
have taken some time to do further research on the plans of the Modern Green proposal and strongly vote AGAINST this project as it currently 
stands. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east 
side as well. I am a first-time home buyer and own a home in Shadow Creek Ranch. My husband and I are very proud of where we live and are 
very proud of the wonderful community we live in. I encourage you to please re-consider your vote. Pearland's growth is important to us and 
this is an area that obviously we'd like to see something developed here that would strengthen the wonderful city we live in. I WOULD support 
upscale mixed use development (for example: The Woodlands City Market, CityCentre off of I-10, SugarLand Town Square, etc.), but NOT a 
project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to PLEASE vote AGAINST this project as it currently stands.

45 July 14, 2014 
9pm

Joshua Laase 2608 
Sparkling 
Brook Ct

josh@laase.
net

832.283.3
106

I have recently heard that City Planning & Zoning Commission approved the Modern Green proposal for the plot of land along 288 south of Bass 
Pro Shop. This proposed plan brings an additional 1000 apartment / rental condos and additional multi family housing units. The west side of 
Pearland already has a huge number of apartments and does not needs an additional 1000 units. I would like to say that I am against this type of 
proposal. Already the 4 schools in the local area are at capacity. By the time that this construction would be completed, many of the schools will 
be over capacity. This information can be verified at http://www.alvinisd.net/Page/15353. At the same time, the West side roads are also at 
capacity. On any given weeknight or weekend, it can take quite a while to get from the west side of 288 to the east side of 288 on 518. Adding 
the 1000+ multifamily homes will only make this traffic worse. AS shown in the 2010 mobility study commissioned by Pearland, the travel times 
along 518 are abysmal. COPS Mobility Study 
http://www.westernite.org/annualmeetings/sanfran10/Papers/Poster%20Papers/ITE%20Paper_Poster-Bedi.pdf Please do not approve the 
Modern Green proposal. I would like to see the land used for further growth in business and retail. A solution like City Centre by Memorial City 
section of Houston would be much more welcome. Joshua Laase

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 196

mailto:caa2007@gt.rr.com
mailto:caa2007@gt.rr.com
mailto:josh@laase.net
mailto:josh@laase.net


46 July 14, 2014 
11am

Jesus Cuellar 2714 
Ginger 
Cove Lane

jesus.cuellar
a@gmail.co
m

832.367.8
014

I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green 
proposal yesterday. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only 
adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure 
to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I WOULD support upscale mixed use development such as CityCentre which is 
located in the Energy Corridor, but NOT a project like the one proposed by Modern Green. I am asking City Council members to vote AGAINST 
this project as it currently stands  

47 July 16, 2014 
3:00 p.m.

William Yasinski 11311 
Softbreeze 
Ct

wyasin1@y
ahoo.com

832.264.2
326

I will not support any candidate that votes in favor of Modern Green. I will not support any candidate that supports a low grade version of the 
park expansion which gives a couple unlit fields. Do it right or not at all. I'm tired of West Pearland funding East Pearland and the low tax paying 
residents. 

48 July 16, 2014 
3:06 p.m.

Jennifer Yasinski 11311 
Softbreeze 
Ct

jeneb7@ya
hoo.com

832.627.8
433

I do not support the Modern Green proposal to dump more multi-family units on the West side of Pearland, just south of Bass Pro Shops. Our 
schools are already above capacity with the multi-family units surrounding the Shadow Creek development. The proposal also reduces the 
office/commercial space 50% below the current zoning. Unacceptable!

49 July 21, 2014 
10:02 a.m.

Ling Walla 11423 
Easton 
Springs Dr

lingwalla@
gmail.com

281.435.
3811

I learned that City Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-2 to approve the Modern Green proposal -- the approved proposal would allow the 
development of over 1000 apartment / rental condos in the area in addition to some retail, 150 key hotel and retirement community (basically 
more multi family). The P&Z recommendation will now go to Council (possibly on 7/28. This is a cruticial moment for Pearland West Side 
residence as we already are seeing enough multi family buildings and traffic jam. I wanted to take a moment to voice my displeasure in City of 
Pearland's Planning & Zoning Commission vote to approve the Modern Green proposal. The last thing our city needs is more multi-family 
housing. Moving forward with this project has the potential to not only adversely affect property values on the west side of 288, but on the east 
side as well. Pearland does not have the transportation infrastructure to support a project like this. Our streets are congested enough. I am not 
opposing the building of any more apartments in Pearland, rather, I am saying the percentage of apartments is too high with most residents 
living around 288/518 and 288/Shadowcreek Parkway. The schools are always running out of space. People who live in the apartments can be 
less concerned about long term overall wellbeing of the city (they could move in and out). Why can't we build something that will make Pearland 
more beautiful? Why can't we build something that will make people want to visit Pearland, even they may not live here? why can't we look at 
some upscale developments similar to Sugarland's Town Square, Memorial's CityCentre, The Woodlands Water or Mall. I want to vote for 
infrustrature that will greatly improve the image and reputation of the city of Pearland, not more appartments! I have lived in Pearland West 
Side for 10 years and many of the construction i have seen are building apartment buildings. As a concerned resident, I am strongly requesting 
the City Council members to vote AGAINST this project as it currently stands.

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 197

mailto:jesus.cuellara@gmail.com
mailto:jesus.cuellara@gmail.com
mailto:jesus.cuellara@gmail.com
mailto:wyasin1@yahoo.com
mailto:wyasin1@yahoo.com
mailto:jeneb7@yahoo.com
mailto:jeneb7@yahoo.com
mailto:lingwalla@gmail.com
mailto:lingwalla@gmail.com


141343

2014-2Z

JB2/19/14$850.00

Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 198



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 199



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 200



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 201



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 202



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 203



P
earland C

ity C
ouncil A

genda 8 25 2014
P

age 204



Pearland City Council Agenda 8 25 2014 Page 205



New 
Business 
Item No. 6 

6. Council Input and Discussion – FY2015 Budget and Multi-Year Plan:

• General Fund Budget Further Reductions/Revenue Enhancements
• Take Home Fleet Expansion
• Police Staffing and Resources
• City Hall Renovations
• Water/Sewer Rates
• Water Meter Change-Out Program
• Other Budget Discussion  Items



AGENDA REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   August 25, 2014 ITEM NO.: 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 19, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN:   Finance 

PREPARED BY:  Bobby Pennington PRESENTOR:     Clay Pearson 

REVIEWED BY:   CJP REVIEW DATE: 8/20/2014 

SUBJECT:   Budget Discussion – FY 14-15 Proposed Budget 

EXHIBITS:    Budget PowerPoint Slides – FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget 
      Memo to Mayor and Council, with Exhibits 

FUNDING: 
Grant Developer/Other Cash  

Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  N/A   AMOUNT BUDGETED:  N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:  N/A PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:  N/A    

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
    X    Finance    Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

The Finance Department’s Budget Office is providing responses to Council’s questions 
regarding the specifics of the FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget for the City of Pearland. During the 
August 4, 2014 Budget Workshop, and subsequent presentations by staff on the proposed 
funding for capital improvements and Debt Service, Council made requests for additional 
information regarding the expansion of the police take-home fleet program, police staffing, 
community development fees, membership at the Knapp Center, and for staff to respond to 
other questions and comments provided by Council.  

New Business No. 6



The Budget Officer has coordinated the compilation of information necessary for these items to 
be presented to Council, as well as those involving a comparative analysis of the General Fund 
prior to Organizational Restructuring, the City’s staffing history, operations at the Recycling 
Center, City Hall building renovation costs, the change-out of water meters, and a Rate 
Structure – Rate Comparison analysis. Council also requested information on the LEED 
certification program associated with the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC). 
 
Council has voted to place the FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget on the agendas of September 22nd 
and September 29th City Council meetings of 2014, and has proposed a property tax rate of 
$.7121, and set the public hearings on the tax rate for September 2nd and September 8th of 
2014. A tax rate of $0.7121, not exceeding the roll-back rate, results in a General Fund revenue 
loss of $260,000. Staff will be prepared to review recommended reductions. 
 
The August 25th City Council meeting will include a discussion of the FY 2014-15 Proposed 
Budget in light of specific requests of Council per its requests. The attached documents provide 
Council with the Budget Office’s responses to those inquiries. 
   
Staff is be prepared to review and answer any questions Council may have. 
 
 
SCHEDULE  
 
The remaining schedule associated with the budget process includes the following: 
 
• The first public hearing (tax and budget) is scheduled for Tuesday, September 2rd beginning 

at 6:30 p.m.  There will also be opportunity for further questions and thoughts from the City 
Council based upon the thoughts and information presented here.  

 
• The second public hearing (tax) on September 8, 2013 beginning at 6:30 p.m.  
 
• The first reading of the ordinances (budget and tax rate) is scheduled for September 22. 
 
• The second and final reading of the is scheduled for September 29, 2014, prior to the start 

of the new FY 2014/15 Fiscal Year on October 1, 2014 required as a duty of the City Council 
in accordance with the requirements for the adoption of our fiscal year budget for the City. 

 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
See attached Exhibits A - N  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Review and discuss the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015, Multi-Year Financial Plan, 
and requested documentation and information provided to Council.  



Planting 
Seeds for 
the Future

CITY OF PEARLAND
Proposed Budget, Multi-Year 

Financial Plan and Five Year CIP
Fiscal Year 2015
August 25, 2014

1



Topics for Discussion
A.  General Fund Budget Operation Cost                  

Further Reductions
B.  Police Home Fleet Expansion Deferral/Review
C.  Police Staffing and Resources
D.  City Hall Renovations
E.  Water-Sewer Rate Options and Comparison Bills
F.  Water Meter Change Out
G.  Budget Packet included; answers to other   
questions

2



A.  General Fund Budget Further  Reductions
$260,000 Recurring

Reduction Recurring Non-Recurring Total
Tuition Reimbursement $5,000 $5,000
FT Parks Maintenance 
Worker

$36,900 $36,900

Patrol Sergeant Addition –
(1) (leaves funding for 1)

$101,742 $11,560 $113,302

Facilities Superint. Share 
with w/s fund

$36,132 $36,132

PT Fire/Investigator $21,390 $14,018 $35,408
Trail Connectivity $5,920 $5,920
Custodial – Supplies $7,500 $7,500
Ditch Cleaning $20,000 $20,000
Paving/Sidewalks $5,416 $5,416
KPB Contribution for 
Recycling Center

$20,000 $20,000

Total $260,000 $25,578 $285,578 3



B.  Police Home Fleet Expansion-Deferral
Background Information
Currently 39 Officers, out of 84 patrol Officers, assigned to Home Fleet
Vehicles. Past Practice to expand the program, was 1 additional fleet for
every 5 Officers hired

Recommendation – Fall 2013
Limit Home Fleet to City / ETJ
Presented options for expansion of the program (at 3, 4, and 5 
years of service)

Policy Direction – Fall 2013
Officers with 5 years service eligible for home fleet program
New assignments restricted to within City/ETJ

Currently:
Officers allowed to drive vehicles to second jobs within City or ETJ; 
permitted to actually use on second jobs, neighborhood patrols, 
with Chief’s permission. City covers all cost for insurance, fuel, 
and maintenance 4



Police Home Fleet Expansion Deferral
Cost of Expansion

New Take-Home Vehicles 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Additional Officers w/ 5+ Yrs: 13 10 4 7 5 
New Vehicles Needed 7 6 3 5  3 
Cost Per Vehicle $29,990 $30,890 $31,816 $32,771 $33,754
Equipment 28,478 29,332 30,212 31,119 32,052
Insurance 814 839 864 890 916
Operating Cost:
Estimated fuel - home 2,046 2,107 2,170 2,235 2,302
Fuel used on Patrol 3,265 3,363 3,464 3,568 3,675
Repairs/Maintenance 2,369 2,440 2,513 2,589 2,666
Estimated Cost Per Vehicle $66,962 $68,971 $71,040 $73,171 $75,366
Total Estimated Cost for all 
Vehicles

$468,734 $413,826 $213,120 $365,855 $226,098

Cumulative Cost $468,734 $882,560 $1,095,680 $1,461,535 $1,687,633

5



Police Home Fleet Expansion Deferral
General Fund Multi-Year Forecast*
Expansion of Home Fleet currently not in Multi-Year forecast 

*Fund Balance and Over Policy is base on the Proposed Budget

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Annual Estimated Total 
Cost 

$468,734  $413,826 $213,120 $365,855 $226,098 

Without Expansion
Fund Balance $12,178,846 $11,391,290 $11,991,410 $12,888,510 $15,237,289 
Over Policy $1,714,498 $409,149 $575,185 $920,094 $2,837,491 

With Expansion
Fund Balance $11,710,112 $10,508,730 $10,895,730 $10,797,968 $12,543,818 
Over/(Under) Policy $1,167,626 ($542,396) ($556,022) ($602,429) $1,112,167 

6



Police Home Fleet Expansion Option
Cost of Expansion

New Take-Home Vehicles 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Additional Officers w/ 5+ Yrs: 5 18 4 7 5 
New Vehicles Needed 3 10 3 5  3 
Cost Per Vehicle $29,990 $30,890 $31,816 $32,771 $33,754
Equipment 28,478 29,332 30,212 31,119 32,052
Insurance 814 839 864 890 916
Operating Cost:
Estimated fuel - home 2,046 2,107 2,170 2,235 2,302
Fuel used on Patrol 3,265 3,363 3,464 3,568 3,675
Repairs/Maintenance 2,369 2,440 2,513 2,589 2,666
Estimated Cost Per Vehicle $66,962 $68,971 $71,040 $73,171 $75,366
Total Estimated Cost for all 
Vehicles

$200,886 $689,710 $213,120 $365,855 $226,098

Cumulative Cost $200,886 $890,596 $1,103,716 $1,469,571 $1,695,669

For FY2015, assignment for officers with 6 years service, then 
back to 5 years of service for 2016.

7



Police Home Fleet Expansion Option

Option - General Fund fund balance under 
policy 2016- 2018
• Competing interests with completed capital 

projects (fire stations/parks)
Defer until General Fund can afford
Proceed with Option

– 6-years of service FY2015
– 5-years service thereafter

8



C. Police Staffing and Resources
Department consists of 195 full-time and 7 part-
time; 149 classified as Civil Service personnel
2013 Citizen Satisfaction Survey

– 99% of residents felt “Safe or Very Safe” in their 
neighborhoods during the day time

– 96% of residents felt “Safe or Very Safe” in their 
neighborhood at night

– 94% of residents felt “Safe or Very Safe” in 
shopping areas

9



Policing Staffing and Resources
Patrol Division

– Patrol - Comprised of 4 squads, working 12-hour 
shifts

– Traffic Unit- Motorcycle Unit, Commercial Vehicle 
Enforcement Unit, and the K-9 unit.

Performance Objective set by the Police 
Department Leadership.

– Two patrol interval objectives; arterial roadways 
and residential roadways

10



Police Staffing and Resources

– Response Time Objectives
• Priority 1 Calls – Immediate threat to life or public safety targeted 

at 4 minutes
• Priority 2 Calls – In-progress property crimes and/or threat to 

human welfare targeted at 15 minutes
– Unit Availability

Staffing Allocations
– Department utilizes a combination staffing software, 

internally developed statistics, and long-term knowledge 
of the city to develop staffing allocations.

– Specific to Pearland; crime trends in other communities 
are not considered but the way those trends are addressed 
are specific to Pearland

11



Police Staffing and Resources

Trained and Motivated Staff
– Required to be problem solvers; empowered to be 

problem solvers 
– Identify potential problems and get out in front 

whenever and wherever possible

Ensuring the right people are in the right place 
at the right time.  Reviewing, managing, and 
adjusting our resources that accomplishes the 
Department’s mission.

12



D.  City Hall Complex Renovations
Dates Built

Community Center 1983
City Hall 1986

Renovation Needs
Replace 30 year old building systems
Additional space for current and future
Building Security
Adjacencies for efficiencies

13



City Hall Complex Renovations
Renovation covers 50,918 square feet (two 
buildings)
Estimated Project Budget - $4.9 million

Design $   400,000
Construction $4,370,900
FF&E $      75,000

Funding for Renovations
Certificates of Obligation - $4.9 million
Estimated Avg. Annual DS - $  365,000

Cost of New Facility $24.1 million
Estimated Avg. Annual DS - $1,808,437

14



City Hall Complex Renovations

Schedule
October 2014 Design, Options, Cost 

Estimates – 6 months
April 2015 Bid Phase and Award – 2 

months
June 2015 Notice to Proceed
Feb. 2016 Complete*

*  Hope to deliver sooner

15



E.  Water Sewer Rate Options
Customer Profile

Residential
93%

Commercial
3%

Irrigation
3%

Multi-Unit
1%

Customer Accounts-34,059

5/8 & 3/4
92%

1 & 1.5
4%

2
4%

3-10
0%

Accounts by Meter Size-34,059

16



Water Sewer Rate Options
Consumption Profile

Residential
93%

Commercial
3%

Irrigation
3%

Multi-Unit
1%

Customer Accounts-34,059

Residential
69%

Commercial
11%

Sprinkler
12% Other

8%

Consumption Aug 2013 – July 2014    
3.6 billion gallons billed

17



Water-Sewer Rate Options
4.63% Revenue Increase 

(monthly rates)
Current Proposed-Option 1 Proposed-Option 2

WATER

Base (2,000 gallons) 11.98 11.98 12.58- (+.60)

2,001-6,000 2.93* 3.16* 3.08*

6,001-15,000 3.67* 3.96* 3.86*

15,001-25,000 4.40* 4.75* 4.63*

25,000+ 5.86* 4.75* 4.63*

SEWER

Base (2,000 gallons) 14.41 14.41 14.99-(+.58) 

Volume 3.03* 3.28* 3.16*

*- per 1000 gallons. Option 1 or Option 2 estimated to provide equal 
total city water-sewer revenues  18



Monthly Water-Sewer Bill Comparison
Current to Proposed Options

Gallons Current Proposed-Option 1 Proposed-Option 2

Residential

Base - 2,000 26.39 26.39 27.57-(+1.18)

5,000-5,000 Cap 44.27 45.71 46.29

10,000-8,000 Cap 70.97 74.55 74.29

Irrigation 25,000 113.18 121.23 119.07

Commercial

25,000 - 2” meter 180.49 192.91 189.03

50,000 – 2” meter 347.99 373.91 364.53

150,000- 2” meter 1,017.99 1,097.91 1,066.53

19



Water-Sewer Revenues
Base vs. Volume

Revenues Current Proposed-Option 1 Proposed-Option 2

Base 5,509,189 5,677,447 5,961,728

Volume 10,041,570 11,231,997 10,949,470

Total 15,550,759 16,909,444 16,911,198

% of Revenues

Base 35 34 35

Volume 65 66 65

Total 100 100 100

20



Water-Sewer Bill Comparisons
To other Cities

City Base 5K-G
5000 Cap

10K-G
8000 Cap

25K-G
Comm.

2” 

50K-G
Comm.

2”

150K-G
Comm.

2”

Option 1 26.39 45.71 74.55 192.91 373.91 1,097.91

Option 2 27.57 46.29 74.29 189.03 364.53 1,066.53

League City 21.01 42.05 85.41 252.45 515.45 1,577.97

Friendswood 23.50 48.60 61.30 169.95 309.95 532.45

Baytown 17.64 52.89 119.26 382.53 647.78 1,708.78

Pasadena 18.50 35.00 57.88 262.55 464.53 1,308.78

Sugar Land 20.38 34.58 81.13 287.26 436.01 1,031.01

Avg. Opt 1 21.24 43.14 79.92 257.94 457.94 1,209.48

Avg. Opt 2 21.43 43.24 79.88 257.30 456.38 1,204.25

21



F. Water Meter Change Out
Automated Meter Reading System (AMR) to and 
Advanced Metering Infrastructure System (AMI)
• Moving parts to no moving parts, accuracy is 

more precise
• AMI able to meter 1 drop of water; AMR cannot 

detect water below .25gpm (dripping faucet)
• Customer Portal
Metering is the most important fundamental step in  
funding system operations; accuracy and reliability 
a must
Meters must be replaced, question is with what

22



Water Meter Change Out
Why a Meter Change Out Program is Needed 
(regardless of going to an AMI system):
• 12,722 or 37% of residential meters are 10 years 

old or older
• By 2019, 22,749 or 74% of residential meters will 

be 10 years old
• Batteries have 7-12 year useful life, a drive by 

read rate of 85%, up from 75% in 2012 due to 
$576K register replacement project. 

• Currently 5,400 registers not reading; $1.1 million 
to replace registers only (parts & labor)

23



Water Meter Change Out
Cost
• FY2015 $     304,790
• FY2016 $  2,625,000
• FY2017 $  2,625,000
• FY2018 $  2,625,000
• FY2019 $  2,625,000

Total $10,804,790

2015 to purchase backbone of the system, new development to 
purchase new meters/technology.  Provides new construction to have 
the new standard installed by builders.  Phase in city over 4 years, 
beginning in 2016.

24



Water Meter Change Out
Benefits of Meter Change Out
• Greater Accuracy
• Increased Water Accountability
• Cost Avoidance; decreased expenses
• Intelligent Statistics; Water Management
• Improved Customer Service

– Customer Web Portal
– Virtual Metering – leaks, consumption usage, 

changing behavior

25



Budget Calendar

• September 2 First Public Hearing – Tax and Budget

(Tuesday) Budget Workshop
• September 8 Second Public Hearing – Tax Only

Budget Workshop, if necessary
• September 22 1st Reading of Ordinances
• September 29 2nd Reading of Ordinances
• October 1 Start of Fiscal Year, Happy New Year!

26



Questions?

Fiscal Year 
2014-2015

Proposed Budget 
August 25, 2014

27



Memo 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
Via:  Claire Board, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Updates and Clarifications to Proposed Budget 

During our budget workshop held on Monday, August 4th, there were some questions and other 
comments that came up regarding the proposed budget that staff is addressing in the attached 
packet.  We hope that what we have included in the packet provides the information you were 
inquiring about and properly addresses any questions or concerns you may have.   

Exhibit “A” – General Fund List of Further Reductions. 

Exhibit “B” - Police Take-Home Fleet Expansion Analysis 

Exhibit “C” - Police Staffing and Resource Allocation 

Exhibit “D” – Community Development Fee Schedule 

Exhibit “E” – Knapp Senior Center Membership 

Exhibit “F” – Miscellaneous Questions/Comments Received 

Exhibit “G” – General Fund Financial Prior to Organizational Restructuring, for 
Comparative Analysis 

Exhibit “H” – Long-Term Staffing History by Department. 

Exhibit “I” – Recycle Center Operations. 

Exhibit “J” – City Hall Renovation 

Exhibit “K” – Water Meter Change-out 

Exhibit “L” – Water Rate Structure & Rate Comparison 

Exhibit “M” – Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 

Exhibit “N” – Vacuum Truck 

We hope that these exhibits and the information attached provide you with the necessary detail 
to properly address your concerns and questions.  If there are any other questions, or 
clarifications, related to the proposed budget that you would like to be addressed, please let me 
know.  Thank you

Page 1 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



Recurring Non-Recurring Total

Tuition Reimbursement (City 
Manager's off ice)

5,000 5,000

Parks Maintenance Worker 36,900 36,900
Patrol Sergeant 101,742 11,560 113,302
Split Facilities Superintendent 
position
- 33.3% on W&S, 100% = 
$108,504 incl.bene.

36,132 36,132

PT Fire/Investigator 21,390 14,018 35,408
Trail Connectivity 5,920 5,920
Custodial - Janitorial Supplies 7,500 7,500
Paving 3,385 3,385
Sidew alks 2,031 2,031
Ditch Cleaning 20,000 20,000
Expenditure Total 240,000 25,578 265,578

KPB Contribution (Recycle Center) 20,000
20,000

Revenue Total 20,000 0 20,000

Total Change 260,000 25,578 285,578

PROPOSED BUDGET REDUCTIONS

Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 
Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: General Fund List of Further Reductions 

For the FY2015 budget process, Property Tax revenues were calculated using a property 
tax rate $0.7201, with the General Fund (M&O) tax rate at $0.2251 used in the proposed 
budget. On 8/13/2014, staff recommended a revised tax rate of $0.7151, reducing the debt 
service tax rate 50 cents.  However, due to Truth in Taxation Provisions, the proposed rate 
is subject to the rollback rate provision, which the City of Pearland has elected to not do. 
Therefore, on 8/13/2014 The City Council voted on a proposed tax rate of $.7121, a property 
tax revenue increase of 5.62% above the effective tax rate, which is essentially the rollback 
rate. The further reduction in the tax rate was taken from the M&O tax rate, from $0.2251 
to $0.2221, resulting in a recurring revenue loss to the General Fund of $260,000 for what 
had been available at projection.   

Reductions to the proposed budget as detailed below are recommended due to lowering the 
property tax rate.   

In addition, the City is anticipating the following increases in revenue; staff is proposing 
$20,000 contribution from KPB in support of the Recycle Center operations. Staff has 
communicated this proposal with KPB and has received positive feedback. 

The recommended reductions and revenue improvements are listed as the following: 

EXHIBIT A 

Page 2 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 
Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Police Take-Home Fleet Expansion Review and Deferral 

During the budget workshop held on Monday, August 4th, there was a request by Council to 
review the expansion of the Police Take-Home Fleet Program. 

Background Information 
The City has had for many year a Police Take-Home Fleet Program.  Currently, out of 84 
patrol officers, 39 are assigned take-home vehicles.  The initial goal of the program was 
increased visibility in Pearland subdivisions and in and around town, deterring crime; as 
well as the thought that officers are on call 24/7.  These vehicles can be used to travel to extra 
jobs only in the City/ETJ.  For use in the actual performance of an extra job, the approval of 
the Chief of Police is required.  This is usually only allowed for situations such as 
neighborhood patrol where traffic enforcement is performed and citation(s) will be issued.  
The City picks up 100% of the cost of the vehicle, equipment, fuel, insurance, and 
maintenance.    

The practice for expanding the program was to budget for one additional take-home car for 
each five officers hired. 

Fall 2014 
In the fall of 2014, City Council requested an overview of the program.  At that time the Chief 
recommended that take home cars be allowed for those officers who live in the City and ETJ.  
The Chief further reviewed options for expansion of the program and the capital cost of each 
option. 

Based on Council discussion, the direction by City Council was to expand the program when 
eligible officers attained 5 years of service and with no limit placed on where one lived for 
officers currently in the program.  Over the next five years, 39 officers would be eligible based 
on 5-years of service, for a total cumulative cost of $2.7 million.  However, when taking into 
account the conversion of the shared cars, only 24 actual new vehicles are needed, for a  cost 
of $1.7 million 

FY2015 Budget 
Based on Council direction, the Police Department submitted a budget request in April 2014 
to expand the program, requesting eight vehicles, totaling $553,944, including vehicle, 
equipment, fuel and maintenance.  The cost of the vehicle is $29,990 and equipment, 

 EXHIBIT B 

Page 3 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



including light bar, radar, MDT, video camera and mobile radio totals $28,107.   As of today, 
based on up-to-date data, seven cars would be needed. 

When the cost to implement the expansion was factored into the FY2015 budget and forecast, 
along with competing department needs, the expansion program was unaffordable, resulting 
in the General Fund being under fund balance policy in years 2016, 2017, and 2018. 

An option to consider is to expand the program to eligible officers with 6 years of service in 
fiscal year 2015 and return to the 5-years of service in fiscal year 2016.   However the 
deferment would still result in the General Fund being under fund balance policy in years 
2016 – 2018.   

The City would need to defer the expansion several years, until competing needs such as the 
completion of major capital projects with significant operating costs and police operation 
staffing needs as the city continues to grow, are funded and absorbed into the budget. 

Attached is the analysis of the cost of the expansion: 

Page 4 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Please note:  This is a forecast and variables (mileage, fuel costs, accidents, maintenance and repair costs) may result in slight changes in replacement numbers. 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Cumulative

Cost**

Current Assigned Vehicles:
Replacements for Currently Assigned Vehicles* 3             9                    5                18              4               8                2            6             24              17              24             
Replacement Cost - Vehicle 29,990    29,990           30,890       31,816       32,771      33,754       34,767   35,810     36,884       37,990       39,130       
Installed/Updated equipment - light bar, radar, 
MDT, Video camera, mobile radio 28,107    28,107           28,950       29,819       30,713      31,635       32,584   33,561     34,568       35,605       36,673       
Operating Cost:
Insurance (12% increase 2015) 727 814 839 864 890 916 944 972 1,001 1,031 1,062
Estimated fuel to and from home* 1,986 2,046 2,107 2,170 2,235 2,302 2,372 2,443 2,516 2,591 2,669
Fuel used on Patrol** 3,170 3,265 3,363 3,464 3,568 3,675 3,785 3,898 4,015 4,136 4,260
Repairs/Maintenance** 2,300 2,369 2,440 2,513 2,589 2,666 2,746 2,829 2,914 3,001 3,091
Estimated Cost Per Vehicle $66,280 $66,591 $68,589 $70,646 $72,766 $74,949 $77,197 $79,513 $81,898 $84,355 $86,886
Total Estimated Cost for all Vehicles $198,840 $599,317 $342,943 $1,271,632 $291,062 $599,588 $154,394 $477,078 $1,965,559 $1,434,039 $2,085,262 $9,220,875

New Take-Home Vehicles
Additional Officers reaching 5+ Yrs 1             13                  10              4                7               5                2            2             2                2                2               
Number of new vehicles needed 1             7                    6                3                5               5                2            2             2                2                2               
Cost Per Vehicle (3% incr/year): $29,990 $29,990 $30,890 $31,816 $32,771 $33,754 $34,767 $35,810 $36,884 $37,990 $39,130
Eqipment (light bar, radio, radar, etc.) 28,478 28,478 29,332 30,212 31,119 32,052 33,014 34,004 35,024 36,075 37,157
Insurance (12% increase 2015) 814 814 839 864 890 916 944 972 1,001 1,031 1,062
Operating Cost:
Estimated fuel to and from home* 1,986 2,046 2,107 2,170 2,235 2,302 2,372 2,443 2,516 2,591 2,669
Fuel used on Patrol** 3,170 3,265 3,363 3,464 3,568 3,675 3,785 3,898 4,015 4,136 4,260
Repairs/Maintenance** 2,300 2,369 2,440 2,513 2,589 2,666 2,746 2,829 2,914 3,001 3,091
Estimated Cost Per Vehicle $66,738 $66,962 $68,971 $71,040 $73,171 $75,366 $77,627 $79,956 $82,355 $84,825 $87,370
Total Estimated Cost for all Vehicles $66,738 $468,733 $413,824 $213,119 $365,855 $376,831 $155,254 $159,912 $164,709 $169,650 $174,740 $2,662,627

Total Estimated Cost $265,578 $1,068,050 $756,767 $1,484,751 $656,917 $976,419 $309,648 $636,989 $2,130,269 $1,603,690 $2,260,002 $11,883,502

Assumptions: Years 2020-2024, estimate 2 additional Officers qualify with 5+ years.
Year 2024, estimate the 13 vehicles replaced/purchased in 2015 will need to be replaced in 2024.

*38 - Current number of Take-Home Vehicles - cost of fuel based on average miles to-from home listed below:

Fuel cost per year, current 38: est.mileage $ per mi.
current

annual cost
cost per
vehicle

24 of 38 live within Pearland/ETJ 1680 $0.56 $28,224 $941
8 live outside city, within 12 miles 3360 $15,053 $1,882
6 live outside 12+ miles (est. 20 miles) 5600 $25,088 $3,136
Assume a 3% increase each year on all costs. average: $22,788 $1,986

**Fuel and maintenance while on Patrol is based on actual to date for the number of Officers / vehicles in use.

The Take-Home Fleet Program began in 1991.  The years for replacement vehicles are estimated based on the purchase dates and the 
oldest vehicles purchased 2/1/2008 which have not yet been replaced.

Page 5 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Pearland Police Department 
2555 Cullen Parkway • Pearland, Texas • 77581 • 281.997.4100 

Memo 

TO: Clay Pearson 

City Manager 

FROM: J.C. Doyle 

Chief of Police 

CC: Assistant Chief Spires 

Captain Chapman 

Captain Fraser 

Captain Moncrief 

Lieutenant Savage 

DATE: August 19, 2014 

RE: Police Department Staffing A/locations 

The Pearland Police Department consists of 195 full time and 7 part time employees. Of the 
202 employees, 149 are classified Civil Service personnel with the balance being civilian. 

The two major divisions within the police department are Patrol Division and the Criminal 

Investigations Division. The most visible of these divisions is the Patrol Division. The Patrol 
Division is effective in serving the citizens of Pearland, as is evidenced in the 2013 Citizen 
Satisfaction Survey. 

The 2013 Citizen Satisfaction Survey indicated that 99% of our citizens felt 'Safe or Very Safe' 
in their neighborhoods during the day time and 96% responded in a like manner for nighttime 
hours, a significant increase over the 2011 Citizen Satisfaction Survey. Citizens further reported 
feeling 'Safe or Very Safe' in shopping areas at a 94% level. 

EXHIBIT C

Page 6 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



Page 7 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 8 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 9 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 10 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 11 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 12 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 13 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 14 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Community Development Fee Schedule 

During our budget workshop held on Monday, August 4th, there was a request by 
Council to provide a comparative analysis of the proposed Community Development 
fees to other cities. The following attachments include an analysis of fees on Health and 
Environmental, Planning and Permit Processing as it relates to comparable cities. 

Processing Fee 
The City currently does not have a processing fee. The proposed processing fee of $10 
per application is significantly lower than comparable city rates.  Anticipated revenue 
from the fee would generate an additional $124,000, based on current activity, that 
would off-set the cost of services that are directly related to the administrative tasks of 
filing and processing the permit application.  The budget includes $110,000 for the 
processing fee, continuing conservative budgeting. 

Planning Fees 
The proposed planning fees would generate an additional $62,680 in revenues that are 
to compensate the direct cost of services related to planning. The changes would 
include an increase to zoning, CUP, preliminary platting, final platting, P & Z subdivision 
variance, ZBA variance, cluster plans and PD/PUD. The proposed fees are set lower 
than the City of Sugar Land, and comparable to other surrounding cities. 

Health and Environmental Fees 
The proposed Health and Environmental Fees would generate an additional $53,250 in 
revenues that are to compensate for the direct cost of services related to inspections of 
regulated establishments. These changes would not affect smaller establishments with 
4 or less employees.  The proposed increases are comparable to Missouri City and 
Baytown, and lower than Sugar Land. 

Please let staff know if additional information is needed. 

EXHIBIT D 

Page 15 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



 P
er

m
it 

Ty
pe

 

 P
as

ad
en

a 

 A
lv

in
 

 L
ea

gu
e 

Ci
ty

 

 S
ug

ar
 L

an
d 

 B
ay

to
w

n 

 L
a 

Po
rt

e 

 P
ea

rla
nd

 P
ro

po
se

d 

N
um

be
r o

f P
er

m
its

 
Pr

oc
es

se
d

 R
ev

en
ue

w
 B

as
ed

 o
n 

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

Fe
e 

 Commercial $110.00 $150.00 N/A N/A N/A $47.50 $10.00 527 $5,270.00
 Demo $50.00 $150.00 $150.00 $45.00 $45.00 $75.00 $10.00 27 $270.00
 Electrical $50.00 $100.00 $25.00 $20.00 $62.00 $20.00 $10.00 2,186 $21,860.00
 Fire Permits N/A N/A $50.00 N/A N/A $47.50 $10.00 367 $3,670.00
 Foster Home N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $10.00 37 $370.00
 Irrigation N/A N/A $25.00 N/A N/A $47.50 $10.00 327 $3,270.00
 Mechanical $50.00 $100.00 $25.00 $30.00 $50.00 $30.00 $10.00 1,517 $15,170.00
 Moving N/A N/A $150.00 $175.00 $125.00 $150.00 $10.00 41 $410.00
 Plumbing $50.00 $50.00 $25.00 $30.00 $62.00 N/A $10.00 1,962 $19,620.00
 Residential Addition 
Alteration 

$65.00 N/A $65.00 N/A $62.00 $47.50 $10.00 3,642 $36,420.00

 Residential New 
Single Family 

$100.00 $100.00 N/A $50.00 $50.00 $47.50 $10.00 942 $9,420.00

 Residential New Two 
Family 

$100.00 $100.00 N/A N/A N/A $47.50 $10.00 0 $0.00

 Residential New 3 or 
more Family 

$100.00 $100.00 N/A N/A N/A $47.50 $10.00 0 $0.00

 Swimming Pools $50.00 N/A $25.00 N/A N/A $47.50 $10.00 309 $3,090.00
 Signs $50.00 N/A N/A $30.00 N/A $47.50 $10.00 391 $3,910.00
 Tenant Occupancy $150.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A $50.00 $10.00 160 $1,600.00
 Total $124,350.00

 2014 Fee Study for Permits Department Processing Fee 

N/A - Information not available or combined with other fees.

Page 16 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Type League City Missouri City Sugar Land Friendswood Alvin ₂ Baytown₃
Current 

City of Pearland
# of 

cases₁
# of 
lots

Proposed 
new fee

Revenue based on 
existing fee

Revenue based on 
proposed fee Increase

Zone Changes $1,000.00
$450.00 + $25.00 

per acre $1,075.00 $300.00 N/A $150.00

Starts at $750.00 + 
$25.00 per 25 acre 
increment 20

Starts at $1000.00 + 
$25.00 per 25 acre 
increment 15,500.00$                   20,500.00$                   5,000.00$          

CUP $1,000.00 $1,200.00 $1,600.00 $300.00 N/A $500.00 $250 12 $1,200.00 3,000.00$                     14,400.00$                   11,400.00$        

Platting

Preliminary
$400.00 + $8.00 per 

lot

$400.00 +$6.00 per 
lot + $30.00 per 

acre
$1075.00 + $3.00 

per lot $1,000.00
$200.00+$5.00 per 

acre
$150.00 + $3.00 per 

lot $600.00 + $6.00 per lot 36 1440
$1000.00 + $8.00 
per lot 30,240.00$                   47,520.00$                   17,280.00$        

Final
$400.00 + $8.00 per 

lot

$500.00 + $12.50 
per lot + $80.00 per 

acre
$1075.00 + $3.00 

per lot $500.00
$400.00+$5.00 per 

acre
$150.00 + $3.00 per 

lot $600.00 + $6.00 per lot 40 1600
$1000.00 + $8.00 
per lot 33,600.00$                   52,800.00$                   19,200.00$        

Amending $250.00 N/A $475.00 $500.00 N/A $20.00 $600.00 + $6.00 per lot 6 20
No Change 
Proposed 3,720.00$                     -$                               -$                    

Minor $250.00 N/A $475.00 n/a N/A $20.00 $600.00 + $6.00 per lot 42 85
No Change 
Proposed 25,710.00$                   -$                               -$                    

Replat $500.00

$500.00 + $12.50 
per lot + $80.00 per 

acre $475.00 $500.00 N/A $20.00 $600.00 + $6.00 per lot 4 8
No Change 
Proposed 2,448.00$                     -$                               -$                    

Variance

P&Z Subdivision Variance $325.00 $300.00 $695.00 $100.00 $250.00 $100.00 250 4 $400.00 1,000.00$                     1,600.00$                     600.00$              

ZBA Zoning Variance $275.00 $300.00 $690.00 $100.00 $250.00 $100.00
$300.00 Res $500.00 
Com 6 $500.00 Res/Com 1,800.00$                     3,000.00$                     1,200.00$          

Annexation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0 -$                               -$                               -$                    

Pre Development $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0 -$                               -$                               -$                    

Cluster Plans no such use no such use no such use no such use no such use no such use

Starts at $400.00 + 
$50.00 per 25 acre 
increment 5

Starts at $1200.00 + 
$50.00 per 25 acre 
increment 2,100.00$                     6,100.00$                     4,000.00$          

PD/PUD $1,000.00 $1,200.00

1600.00 + $20.00 
per acre or portion 

($3000.00 max) $300.00 N/A $0.00

Starts at $800.00 + 
$50.00 per 25 acre 
increment 10

Starts at $1200.00 + 
$50.00 per 25 acre 
increment 8,100.00$                     12,100.00$                   4,000.00$          
Total Increase 127,218.00$                 158,020.00$                 62,680.00$        

2014 Fees Study Planning Department

Page 17 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Health 
Establishments 
per Employee

Missouri City 
Fees

Sugar Land 
Fees

Baytown Fees*
Pasadena

Fees
Galveston 

County Fees**

Est # of Food 
Estab. in Pearland- 

Full Service

Est # of Food 
Estab in Pearland 
Limited Service

Est. Revenue 
based on existing 

fee

Est.Revenue 
based on 

proposed fees
Increase

Full Service
Limited 

Preparation Full Service
Limited 

Preparation

1 -4 $200.00 $212.50 $300.00 $100 $100 $100 $100 9 55 $6,400.00 $6,400.00 $0

5 - 9 $300.00 $475.00 $300.00 $150 $100 $375 $175 13 49 $6,850.00 $13,450.00 $6,600

10 - 25 $400.00 $637.00 $500.00 $300 $150 $525 $225 124 18 $39,900.00 $69,150.00 $29,250

26 - 50 $500.00 $850.00 $500.00 $450 $150 $650 $300 20 9 $10,350.00 $15,700.00 $5,350

51 - 100 $600.00 $1,062.75 $500.00 $550 $200 $750 $350 12 15 $9,600.00 $14,250.00 $4,650

 101 - More $700.00 $1,275.25 $500.00 $700 $200 $900 $400 0 1 $200.00 $400.00 $200

0-1,000 sq ft $200.00

> 1,000 sq ft $300.00

Prepackaged only $150.00 $100.00 $100 n/a $125 n/a 10 $1,000 $1,250 $250

Mobile Units 100/200/ 300 $100.00 $175 n/a $200 6 $1,050 $1,200 $150

Produce Vendor $106.25 $75 n/a $100 10 $750 $1,000 $250

Schools / Daycares $100.00 $150.00 $75 n/a $125 90 $6,750 $11,250 $4,500

Temporary fees $106.25

$75 for 14 days
or $20/day plus 
$15 registration $20 n/a $30 155 $3,100 $4,650 $1,550

Pre-opening inspection 
fee $159.50 $50 $100 10 $500 $1,000 $500

Other
Frozen Deserts 

$212.50
Limited Prep all 

$300 Total Increase $86,450.00 $139,700.00 $53,250.00

*Baytown also has a plan review fee of $25
**Galveston County inspects for League City and Friendswood

  Current COP 
Health Fees

Proposed New 
COP Fees

2014 Fees Study Health and Environmental Services Department

Page 18 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



EXHIBIT E Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Knapp Senior Center Membership - Residents 

During recent budget discussions, Council asked if Staff had surveyed the participants 
at the Knapp Senior Center regarding the implementation of a membership fee for 
residents.  There is currently a membership fee for non-residents.   

The City did not survey senior center participants in regards to instituting a participation 
fee for residents.  However, Parks & Recreation is finalizing a cost recovery analysis of 
several programs that includes the Knapp Senior Center. The goal of the analysis is to 
identify services that should be subsidized higher than those services that have a 
community benefit. 

When analyzing Knapp Center operations, the total facility related expenses were 
approximately $180K. The Parks Department currently charges a non-resident 
membership of $50/year and estimate that the Center is only recovering approximately 
2% of the cost to operate the facility. 

Based on the current operational cost, the analysis suggest that the Knapp Center 
should recover between $27K and $45K in order to meet the financial expectations 
outlined in the cost recovery mutual benefit analysis. For fiscal year 2015, Parks & 
Recreation is proposing a $25 fee for resident members, currently nothing is collected; 
combined with the current non-resident fee, the services would be within the targeted 
recovery range and is not believed to be a factor for most access to the Center. 

For budgeting purposes Staff remains conservative, estimating less than the current 
attendee numbers, taking into account some residents may discontinue attending.  For 
the purposes of social equity and ensuring individuals have access to the aspects of 
quality of life we offer, financial assistance (50% of the membership cost) is to be 
granted to those that qualify. To qualify the applicant must be a Pearland resident. 

While the City did not survey the participants regarding the fee, Staff proposes to inform 
current attendees of the annual membership as an option being considered as part of 
the budget process and if approved would take effect October 1st.  

Page 19 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



2. The City request $20K from Keep Pearland Beautiful for a portion of the operations at
the Recycling Center for FY15

3. The City sends a notice to renegotiate September 1

4. Convene a group (the group should consist of KPB and City staff at a minimum) to begin
to renegotiate the contract with the goal of a new contract being in place by March 2015
prior to preparation of the FY16 budget

5. New contract should have clear goals and expectations of organization in exchange for
funding, not overly duplicate services paid by user fees and taxes, possibly repurpose
the use of the Recycle Center itself to be used as the hub of operations for KPB

Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



SENIOR CENTER MEMBERSHIP AND SERVICES – OTHER AREA CITIES 
League City 
 Do not have a dedicated facility for seniors only. Classes and programs out of main facility center –

Hometown Heroes Park
 $25 annual base fee for resident or non-residents. The age limit is 55 and up. $8 additional each day

for programs and classes.
 Offers group exercise classes, ballroom dancing, and watercolor painting.
 Does not offer transportation.
 Offers lunch on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays.

Sugar Land 

 Facility for seniors is the T.E. Harman Center.
 $10 a year for residents and $46 a year for non-residents.
 90% of programs are free 10% are $40 additional
 Group Exercise Classes and Field trips
 No Transportation – Fort Bend County Does offer Transportation
 Lunch 1 time per month – Pot Luck, Center provides main course.  Members bring sides.

Pasadena 

 Facility for seniors is the Madison Jobe Senior Center
 No Membership Fees – Not even for nonresidents – No Age requirement
 Fee for special day trips and Lunch Bunch
 Billiards, Library, Fitness Room, Group Exercise Classes, Coffee & Desserts
 They do not offer transportation
 They do not provide lunch

La Porte 

 Dedicated Senior Services Center -  Located in their Recreation Center
 No Membership Fees – even for Nonresidents – No age requirement.
 Fees are only charged for Trips or if a special instructor is brought in.
 They offer Fitness classes, Water aerobics in their indoor/heated pool
 Transportation is available for residents only.
 Lunch is provided free of charge

Baytown 

 Dedicated, Senior Services Center - Located in their Recreation Center
 No Membership Fees – even for Nonresidents – No age requirement.
 Fees are only charged for Trips or if a special instructor is brought in.
 They offer small crafts, card games, dance, and aerobics at facility; off-site trips also available.
 Transportation is available for residents only.
 Lunch is provided free of charge.

Page 20 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Miscellaneous Questions/Comments Received 

Councilmembers requested additional information and/or further discussion on the 
following Items following submittal of the recommended budget on August 4th. 

Item #1 – Budget Award (Book 1, Page 1) 
In an email from 8/7/2014 it was stated that a member of Council has additional ideas 
and issues in regards to transparency. Staff is open to thoughts or suggestions in 
improving financial transparency.  Most recently, The Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented a Distinguished Budget 
Presentation Award to the City of Pearland, Texas, for its annual budget for the fiscal 
year beginning October 1, 2013. In order to receive this award, a governmental unit 
must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as 
an operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications device. The 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is the most sought out and recognizable 
award for municipal government.  We believe our current budget continues to conform 
to program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another award.  The City is currently striving to meet a high standard for financial 
transparency by publishing the City’s check register under the guidelines of the Texas 
Comptroller Leadership Circle Gold Award.  

Item #2 – Community Beautification Pearland 20/20 (Book 1, Page 3) 
In State Statute Section 505.303 which addresses project operating costs of a 4B, 
PEDC cannot fund the operating costs of the general landscape contract, unless the 
corporation constructed or purchased the project and operating cost for maintenance 
were included in the notice for the public hearing.  In the future, if PEDC were to build a 
road for example, the corporation would need to include in the notice the cost of 
construction, plus the operating cost. Also, if they built the entryway features they could 
fund the operating cost for maintenance. 

Item #3 – Iron Mountain Document Storage/Management (Book 1, Page 19) 
Iron Mountain is a vendor to provide a service to scan, archive, index, convert to pdf 
format, all records contained in 83 boxes and then destroy them.  The program will 
convert a paper filing system to an electron, digital filing system, saving storage space, 

EXHIBIT F 

Page 21 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



retaining records in good condition, preventing destruction due to dampness and 
humidity and provide easy access to records in laser fiche. 
  
Item #4 – Plan Review Service in Planning (Book 1, Page 19) 
A plan review service will allow the city to get third party help in plan reviews, 
subdivision/plat application reviews, and other development related permits, if required.  
Currently the Planning Department has four staff members and shared administrative 
staff.  The platting/subdivision and development activity has seen an increase in the 
past year, with the highest number of plats/subdivisions being approved in the past few 
years.  Plan review provides a continuation of contracted services of a planner, in lieu of 
hiring another full-time planner, to address the increased level of development permits 
while maintaining the same levels of service and turnaround time.  The plan review 
service also allows the city to use temporary help for any other special projects and 
studies to address council goals and priorities that may need to be undertaken. As part 
of the 2015 budget, a request was made for an additional staff position, which was not 
included in the final list of supplemental items. Staff believes that the contract option is a 
good way to address the increased workloads due to the high levels of development 
activity and growth that the city is currently experiencing.  
 
Item#5 – Donation Fund Needs Assessment for Animal Services (Book 1, Page 23) 
At present, the Animal Services building is located in the east section of the City on Old 
Alvin Road.  A professional review of the facility and staffing requirements is needed 
due to population growth, and the increasing number of calls to Animal Services from 
the west end of Pearland.   The response time currently is 28-35 minutes.  A facility on 
the west side could be needed to provide faster response time to calls regarding 
aggressive animals and/or dangerous situations related to animal contact, provide for 
more visibility in a high density area and should increase the number of adoptions and 
decrease the number of animals euthanized as more space would be available to keep 
the animals for a longer period of time.  Where the facility would go, when the facility is 
needed, what the facility needs to include are all questions to assist the City in planning 
for future facility timing and funding needs.  The donation fund is available to Animal 
Services for any use related to the care or benefit of animals. 
 
Item#6 – Tree Trust Fund for Wood Chipper (Book 1, Page 23) 
The Tree Trust Fund may be used for the care and/or replacement of trees.  The 
purchase of a Wood Chipper, a non-recurring expenditure would eliminate a recurring 
expenditure of the fee to dump tree limbs and green waste collected from maintaining 
the landscape at parks and trails, of which the minimum fee is $40/dump, and the cost 
for the purchase of mulch.  The equipment would recoup the expenditure within three 
years or less, as well as provide mulch for trails and parks.  The City Attorney has 
determined that the purchase of a Wood Chipper is a permissible use of these funds.  
The tree mitigation ordinance (in the UDC Section 4.2.3.2) created the Tree Trust Fund. 
The Tree Trust is a fund for the purpose of growing, maintaining and purchasing trees 
and must be expended in conformance with the tree propagation program drafted by the 
Parks and Rec Director or their designee. 
 

Page 22 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



 
Item #7 – Building Plan Check Fee; Book 1, Page 66 (010-0000-351.01-09) 
Revenues from building plan check fees are a function of building permits and the value 
of the permits.  Building plan check fees are 50% of the permit fee.  Based on current 
activity, we are projecting $1,675,000 for building permit revenue, $371K more than 
budget.  As such, projections for this year of $871K for building plan check fee is $245K 
more than budget.  We are projecting similar revenues for 2015 based on platting, plans 
under discussion, etc. based on anticipated activity. 
 
 
Item #8 – Fines and Forfeitures; Book 1, Page 67 (010-0000-352.00-00) 
There are two reasons why Fines and Forfeitures are lower than budget by $573K.  
First, due to the conversion and implementation of a new court system. The court did 
not participate in the Texas Warrant Round-Up in 2014, accounting for $150K - $180K 
of the shortage.  Second, the number of charges written are down by 4,100 through July 
as compared to the same time period in fiscal year 2013.  For fiscal year 2015, there is 
a slight increase in revenues mainly due to participation in the warrant round-up, with 
the actual number of charges written remaining flat. 
 
 
Item #9 – Natatorium; Book 1, Page 67 (010-0000-353.03-06) 
Rentals related to the natatorium are accounted for in Recreation Center Rentals 010-
0000-353.03-07 instead of the -06 account.  The -07 account is showing going up $94K, 
the same amount that Natatorium revenues went down by. 
 
Item #10 – Other Requirements, (Book 1, Page 73; Tying out to Book 2, Page 9) 
On page 73 of Book 1, Other Requirements does not tie out for the $1,546,744 in 
Transfers Out to Other Funds. Due to accounting for transfers separately from operating 
cost, these transfers are shown on page 61 and page 71 of Book #1, below the 
operating expenditures.  The detail in Book 2 provides all account numbers and 
activities within the division of “Other Requirements” for a total of $3,398,559. However 
this observation calls for better clarification and Staff will include a footnote in regards to 
the accounting of transfers. 
 
Item #11 – LEAD Program (Book 2, Page 3) 
The Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service at the University of Virginia offers a 1-
week intensive program for department heads, division heads, and senior staff of local 
government organizations.  As a participant, Pearland officials will have ample 
opportunity to practice the skills and test the strategies necessary to build a high 
performance government. An integral component of the initiative is the incorporation of 
democratic principles and values into the structure and management philosophy of the 
organization, resulting in the enhanced participation and accountability of personnel at 
all levels.  Collaboration translates into creative, innovate solutions and responsive, 
high-quality service.  Dollars here provide for four members of staff to attend. 
 
Item #12 – Library Miscellaneous Services versus Budget (Book 2, Page 10) 

Page 23 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



The $378,889 in Miscellaneous Services expenditures budgeted for the City’s libraries 
includes: $229,000 in rent, covering the existing space allocation of 6,000 square feet 
and the additional 4,000 associated with the expansion, as well as the Common Area 
Maintenance (CAM) costs; $2,400 in costs associated with the various telephone lines 
needed for both libraries; $111,009 for utilities at both locations (gas, electricity, 
water/sewer); $35,746 for the McNaughton Book Lease Program that provides a portion 
of the collection for each facility; and $684 for the copier rental expenditures associated 
with the Tom Reid Library on Liberty Drive.  

Item #13 – Employee Count for Police Community Services (Book 2, Page 14) 
Due to changes in assignments and the retirement of an Officer in the Police 
Community Services Department, at the time the dollars for the personnel budget was 
prepared, there was 1 less Officer in the department.  Another Officer was moved into 
the department afterwards and included in the count for staffing. An adjustment will be 
made to the dollars in salaries and benefits in-line with the head-count, reducing Patrol 
by the same amount for that position. 

Item #14 – Employee Count for Police Support Services (Book 2, Page 15) 
The projection for salaries and wages in Police Support Services are lower than 
budgeted due to several vacancies throughout FY 2014.   Projections are based on 
actual expenditures-to-date plus projected hire dates where there are vacancies.  Fiscal 
Year 2015 budget shows full funding for all of the authorized positions plus the 
increases in benefits for FY 2015, including TMRS, Medical and State Unemployment 
Insurance. 

Item #15 – Employee Count for Police Traffic Enforcement (Book 2, Page 19) 
The salaries and wages in Police Traffic Enforcement/Motorcycles decreases for FY 
2015 due to reassignments to the Traffic Enforcement Dept. 2219 from other 
departments.  In late October 2013, two Officers (who are at the top step in the pay 
schedule) were transferred into Traffic Enforcement, Dept. 2219.  In January and March 
of this year, two Officers were transferred out of Traffic Enforcement Dept. 2219, one to 
Patrol, 2212, and one to Investigations, 2213.  So, for 3-5 months, the Traffic 
Enforcement Dept. had ten positions and is now back to eight.  Staff will include an 
explanation/footnote in Final Budget. 

Item #16 – Fire Department Summary Text (Book 2, Page 24) 
 “Opening of Fire Station #” is supposed to be #3, not #4 and $305,291 is for Fire 
Station #3.    The full consolidation of Fire/EMS, which includes moving EMS personnel 
to a higher paid firefighter position and on a firefighter schedule which includes 
guaranteed overtime costs $383,094 including $20,000 in gear. 

Item #17 – EMS Staffing reduced by five Budget to Actual (Book 2, Page 28) 
In FY14 Fire Station #3 was budgeted for 9 full-time Firefighter positions, but with the 
consolidation, only 4 new positions are needed.    The decrease of 5 positions was in 
EMS, 2460 in FY14, Amended Budget.  With the Fire/EMS consolidation in Phase I, the 
department is beginning to hire Firefighter/Paramedics in lieu of hiring EMT’s.   In 

Page 24 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



addition to this reduction, 3 Firefighter positions were added to the Fire Department in 
July (FY14) to provide needed coverage and to reduce overtime costs.  In the 
consolidation of the departments, the EMS Department staffing was updated with the 
decrease of 5, but the Fire Department staffing for FY14 and FY15 was not updated 
with the net decrease of 2 (-5 EMTs +3 FF) in the budget document for FY15.  This will 
be corrected in the final budget document and will show in the Fire Department with 
a net decrease of 2 full-time positions for FY15.  Attached is a detailed analysis.

Item #18 – Intern Not Included in Staffing Summary (Book 2, Page 29) 
Interns are considered temporary and not tallied into the staffing summary.  The 
Community Development intern responsibility will be to drive and do the Land Use 
Analysis, that will involve parcel level land use survey and to create a database, linking 
the data to GIS. The Intern’s services are budgeted at $5,720, considered one 
semester.  

Item #19 – Miscellaneous Services Decrease (Book 2, Page 36) 
The decrease from fiscal year 2014 to fiscal year 2015 of $330,580 is mainly due to the 
non-recurring ROW assessment budgeted in 2014.  Staff will include an 
explanation/footnote in Final Budget. 

Item #20 – PW Streets & Drainage Budget Increase with Staffing Decrease (Book 
2, Page 41) 
There are currently 2 vacant positions in this department, reducing the projected cost of 
salaries and benefits for this year.  The FY15 increase in salaries and wages in Streets 
& Drainage is due to both an increase in benefit rates and changes in choice of medical 
coverage, from low rates (employee only) to higher rates (with dependents).  Medical 
premiums increased by $21,157 due to the combination of an increase in rates and 
employee changes in medical coverage – 3 employees originally budgeted at the family 
rate and 6 are currently budgeted at the family rate.  The increase in TMRS cost was 
$4,060. 

Item #21 – PW & Engineering Admin. Staffing Table (Book 2, Page 44) 
The total number of employees in the Public Works & Engineering Administration 
Department should be three employees.  The total does not add and will be corrected. 

Item #22 – Rec. Center/Natatorium Salary Increase & Staffing Constant (Book 2, 
Page 51) 
The increase in positions to the Recreation Center/Natatorium occurred late FY 2014 
from the transfer of five positions from Youth Development and Aquatics, therefore, the 
FY 2014 budget and projection did not reflect the full year’s salary and benefits for these 
positions. 

Item #23 – Capital Outlay in FY2014 (Book 2, Page 59) 
The FY2014 capital outlay in the Senior Program was the budgeted replacement of the 
old bus with a new van. 

Page 25 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Item #24 – Miscellaneous Service (Book 2, Page 61) 
The Miscellaneous service in the Aquatics Program is Outdoor Pool Management 
contract. 

Item #25 – Other Requirements Containing Merit Increase Consolidated Versus 
into Departments (Book 2, Page 74) 
The salary savings due to vacant positions is budgeted here as we do not know which 
positions will be vacant and for how long, however we do know we will have vacant 
positions and want to recognize that savings.  As positions become vacant, the salary 
savings is taken from the department’s budget and moved here against the savings, 
thereby recording the savings in the appropriate department at time of vacancy. 

The merit pool is initially budgeted here based on an average merit pool.  As employees 
receive their merit, based on the actual % given to each employee, the amount is 
transferred into each department budget, providing better administration of the merit 
pool funding. 

Item #26 – Other Requirements (Book 2, Pages 12, 112) 
The $634K is an error.  The total for the home fleet vehicles (officers who have reached 
five years of service are eligible for a take home car) is $553,944:  Cost per vehicle: 
$29,220 per vehicle plus $29,248 for emergency equipment (MDT, video camera, radio, 
etc.), and $10,775/year for fuel and maintenance, for a total per vehicle of $69,243.  The 
9 replacement vehicles do not require the $10,775/year for fuel and maintenance as it is 
already in the budget; therefore, the cost per replacement vehicle with equipment is 
$58,468. 

Page 26 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



EMERGENCY VEHICLE EQUIPMENT FORM 1-A Attachment

Title of Request: Police Patrol Replacement Vehicles Dept #:  2212
Number of Vehicles: 9

# Units Unit Costs Total
Description Per Vehicle Cost per Unit Per Vehicle All Vehicles
Loose (non-capitalized) equipment under $1,000/unit:
26120 SL20x Flashlight w/DC charger 1 105$            105$          945$         
90200 15.5' Stinger Spike System 1 460$            460.00       4,140$      
BR-930-W 3 Hole 12VDC Power Outlet 1 15$              15.00         135$         
425-6033 Dual Cup Holder 1 38$              38.00         342$         
425-6035 Microphone w/bracket 2 11$              22.00         198$         
425-2273 12VDC Outlet w/ Cover 3 7$  21.00         189$         

laptop Power Supply 1 140$            140.00       1,260$      
Sledge Hammer 1 40$              40.00         360$         
Jumper Cables 1 40$              40.00         360$         
Fire Extinguisher 1 85$              85.00         765$         

Total 941$            966$          8,694$      
Equipment $1,000-$4,999/unit:

Radar Unit 1 1,350$         1,350$       12,150$    
-            -$          

Total 1,350$         1,350$       12,150$    

New Coban Video Camera 1 7,410$         7,410$       66,690$    
Mobile Data Terminal 1 5,935$         5,935$       53,415$    
Mobile Radio 1 5,255$         5,255$       47,295$    

3942L6 Code 3 Siren/Light control 1 450$            450$          4,050$      
920-10TH Tahoe Headlight Wigwag 1 50$              50$            450$         
RDPearlandKit09-T Tahoe Graphics Package 1 360$            360$          3,240$      
3160B tahoe Push Bumper 1 300$            300$          2,700$      
MS100 100 Watt Siren Speaker 2 155$            310$          2,790$      
8567079A-12 Tahoe Speakerbracket 2 13$              26$            234$         
2752CCRDAA Code3 RX2700 LED Lightbar 1 1,650$         1,650$       14,850$    
425-5015 Tahoe FP & Computer Mount 1 350$            350$          3,150$      
425-3282 Computer Tilt Plate Assembly 1 21$              21$            189$         
425-6011 12"Jotto Desk Console 1 120$            120$          1,080$      
425-6034 Adjustable Arm Rest Assembly 1 75$              75$            675$         
P5700T10A Tahoe 1/2 Slide Partition 1 505$            505$          4,545$      
SP57FwT07 Lower Extension Panel 1 50$              50$            450$         
B5705T07 Cargo Barrier 1 370$            370$          3,330$      
TRX6R Red TREX Pushbumper LED 1 83$              83$            747$         
TRX6B Blue TREX Pushbumper LED 1 83$              83$            747$         
XT3LBKT Pushbumber LED Bracket 2 7$  14$            126$         
LAB1 Installation Labor 1 640$            640$          5,760$      
Rumbler Rumbler Speaker System 1 408$            408$          3,672$      
RB-Tah008 Tahoerumbler Mount Kit 1 29$              29$            261$         
LAB1 Rumbler Install Labor 1 99$              99$            891$         
CLTA6XL6 Rear Window Lightbar 1 300$            300$          2,700$      
MBNLB Commander Mounting Bracket 1 37$              37$            333$         

Dual Battery and Install 1 205$            205$          1,845$      
Rear Slide Out Tray 1 790$            790$          7,110$      

93207076534 Viper 3303 Alarm 1 300$            300$          2,700$      
Electrical solenoid 1 157$            157$          1,413$      
Cost to move Coban and Bracket 1 550$            550$          4,950$      

Total 26,757$       26,932$     242,388$  
GRAND TOTAL 29,048$       29,248$     263,232$  

Equipment permanently installed on vehicle OR capitalized, $5,000 and over, 

Page 27 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: General Fund Financial Prior to Organizational 
Restructuring, for Comparative Analysis 

During our budget workshop held on Monday, August 4th, there was a request by 
Council to show a comparative analysis of the proposed 2015 budget showing 
Departments listed under their 2014 Function/Department category.   

The attached General Fund income statement and expenditure summary provides the 
financial data that includes the Projection and Proposed as provided in Book 1 pages 70 
and 71 of the Proposed Budget, only the attached document provides the detail prior to 
departmental restructuring.  What is shown is prior to the property tax reduction and 
expenditure reduction detailed in Exhibit A.    

 Please let staff know if additional detail or information is required. 

EXHIBIT G 

Page 28 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



OVERVIEW

FY2014 FY2014 FY 2015
FY2013 AMENDED YEAR END PROPOSED
ACTUAL BUDGET PROJECTION BUDGET

REVENUES

Property Taxes $11,178,950 $11,818,335 $11,901,823 $13,371,435
Sales and Use Taxes 15,919,785 17,428,319 17,038,649 18,063,535
Franchise Fees 5,758,776 6,106,615 6,264,559 6,646,438
Licenses & Permits 2,988,859 2,877,117 3,642,823 3,812,331
Fines & Forfeitures 3,333,675 3,568,281 2,945,940 3,105,239
Charges for Service 12,567,692 13,175,835 12,828,870 14,070,274
Miscellaneous 717,581 595,362 2,329,940 591,309
Transfers in 3,764,560 3,709,547 3,865,462 2,975,094
Other Financing Sources 1,179,413 2,754,764 2,426,987 1,187,000

TOTAL REVENUES 57,409,291 62,034,175 63,245,053 63,822,655

EXPENDITURES

General Government 6,697,743 7,630,655 8,334,601 9,754,644
Public Safety 29,407,660 34,449,353 33,660,791 33,718,524
Community Services 3,312,707 3,953,705 3,936,686 4,224,141
Public Works 7,741,495 10,136,545 9,358,103 8,972,354
Parks & Recreation 7,224,818 8,641,990 8,261,670 8,959,530

Total Operating Expenditures 54,384,423 64,812,248 63,551,851 65,629,193
Transfers Out 1,973,712 1,386,903 2,784,191 1,546,744

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 56,358,135 66,199,151 66,336,042 67,175,937
Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses 1,051,156 (4,164,976) (3,090,989) (3,353,282)

Beginning Fund Balance 17,571,961 18,623,117 18,623,117 15,532,128

Ending Fund Balance $18,623,117 $14,458,141 $15,532,128 $12,178,845

Policy - 2 months Recurring Oper. 9,660,155    9,450,047     10,464,348   
Fund Balance over Policy 4,797,986    6,082,081     1,714,497     

The General Fund provides the financing for all of the City of Pearland's basic services except water, sewer
and solid waste, which is accounted for through the Water & Sewer and Solid Waste Funds. The principal
sources of revenue include property taxes, sales and franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and
forfeitures, and charges for services. Expenditures are comprised of five major functional areas: Public
Works, Public Safety, General Government, Community Services, and Parks and Recreation. Public Safety
provides all emergency services to the citizens of Pearland and accounts for 53% of total operating
expenditures (excluding transfers). General Government includes departments such as Mayor and City
Council, City Manager, Finance, Legal and Human Resources. Expenditures include all personnel costs for
509.75 full-time employees and 141 part-time employees, utilities, fuel, park and right-of-way maintenance,
street lighting, just to name a few.  

GENERAL FUND - 10

FY 2015 PROPOSED BUDGET
SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCE

EXHIBIT G
PRIOR TO REORGANIZATION

Page 29 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



FY 2014 FY 2014 FY 2015
FY 2013 Amended Year End Proposed

FUNCTION/DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Projection Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
City Council 102,643 116,297 104,632 106,575         
City Manager 673,544 781,326 1,051,905 736,787         
Human Resources 710,583 873,086 875,312 788,203         
City Secretary 293,686 319,477 322,340 334,026         
Legal 646,482 683,077 689,447 696,870         
Information Systems 1,354,791 1,435,919 1,460,836 2,866,517      
Finance 1,818,822 1,887,917 1,894,138 1,988,872      
Other Requirements* 963,548 1,251,667 1,203,488 1,851,815      
Library1 133,645 281,889 732,503 384,979         

GENERAL GOVERNMENT TOTAL 6,697,743 7,630,655 8,334,601 9,754,644      
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 18,527,952 21,252,998 21,031,809 22,010,496     
Fire Administration 1,003,376      
Fire Operations 6,410,733 7,451,352 7,216,264 9,919,982      
Fire Marshal 640,011 686,004 656,179 745,308         
Emergency Management 43,059 53,020 47,421 39,362           
Emergency Medical Services 3,785,906 5,005,979 4,709,118

PUBLIC SAFETY TOTAL 29,407,660 34,449,353 33,660,791 33,718,524    
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Community Development
   Community Development Administration 268,175 456,122 446,542 310,676         
   Planning 263,747 364,504 346,657 415,862         
   Permits & Inspections 809,206 988,873 995,115 1,111,829      
   Health/Code Enforcement 392,863 408,636 403,562 495,274         
Animal Services 636,652 756,484 752,572 779,096         
Communications 327,896 332,922 336,984 434,718         
Municipal Court 614,169 646,164 655,254 676,686         

COMMUNITY SERVICES TOTAL 3,312,707 3,953,705 3,936,686 4,224,141      
PUBLIC WORKS
Public Works and Engineering Administration 266,032 279,768 277,611 309,363         
Public Works Operations Administration 159,418 493,101 483,758 153,178         
Fleet 390,524 432,870 423,276 484,998         
Streets & Drainage 4,204,505 5,291,117 4,872,224 4,503,598       
Service Center 201,109 143,993 133,044 174,911         
Engineering & Capital Projects:
Capital Projects 720,618 805,956 824,337 841,635         
Geographic Information Systems 168,931 248,455 247,800 231,712         
Traffic Operations and Maintenance 637,909 1,290,118 945,875 1,137,980      
Engineering   992,448 1,151,167 1,150,178 1,134,979      

PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL 7,741,495 10,136,545 9,358,103 8,972,354      

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
By FUNCTION/DEPARTMENT
FY 2015 PROPOSED BUDGET

Page 30 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



FY 2014 FY 2014 FY 2015
FY 2013 Amended Year End Proposed

FUNCTION/DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Projection Budget

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
By FUNCTION/DEPARTMENT
FY 2015 PROPOSED BUDGET

PARKS & RECREATION
Administration 945,743 965,390 1,179,704 666,202         
Resource Development 198,789 197,630 129,494         
Recreation Center/Natatorium 1,566,720 1,881,456 1,813,781 2,220,330      
Westside Events Center 190,158 220,586 205,799 219,762         
Parks Maintenance West 917,297 1,034,791 950,358 731,463         
Parks Maintenance 1,170,830 1,457,221 1,259,662 2,452,499      
Facilities Maintenance 861,083 993,284 881,670 1,021,479      
Custodial Services 337,155 415,182 357,028 324,589         
Athletics 260,443 354,898 333,879 335,591         
Special Events 251,756 283,649 274,359 280,034         
Senior Program 201,137 250,418 231,160 209,128         
Youth Development 167,521 220,474 217,877
Aquatics 155,586 128,091 142,052 141,223         
Recycling 199,390 237,761 216,711 227,736         

PARKS & RECREATION TOTAL 7,224,818 8,641,990 8,261,670 8,959,530      

SUBTOTAL 54,384,423 64,812,248 63,551,851 65,629,193    

TRANSFERS 1,973,712 1,386,903 2,784,191 1,546,744      

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 56,358,135 66,199,151 66,336,042 67,175,937

1 Library employees' salaries are funded by the County; City pays all operating expenses.
*Other Requirements exclude transfers, which are listed after the subtotal.

General 
Government, 

15% 

Public Safety, 
51% 

Community 
Services, 7% 

Public Works, 
16% 

Parks & Rec, 
15% 

General Fund Expenditures 
by Function/Department 

FY 2015 Proposed Operating Budget* 

*Excludes Transfers 

Page 31 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Long-Term Staffing History by Department 

A member of Council requested a long-term staffing history.  Attached you will find two 
lists, one related to full-time hires and the second list related to part-time hires. The data 
provided on both provides a history as far back as FY2005.  The Department/Divisions 
are grouped as they are presented in the 2015 proposed budget for clarity and 
comparison purposes.  An example: Animal Services complete history is listed under 
Public Safety, even though the department was reported under Community Services in 
prior years.  

EXHIBIT H 

Page 32 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Amended Proposed

General Government
City Manager 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
City Secretary 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Finance 11 13 15 15 15 17 16 16 16 17 17
Human Resources 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7
Information Systems 3 3 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 8
  Geographical Information System 2 2 2 2 2 2 5 5 6 6 6
Legal 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Utility Billing/Solid Waste 7 8 9 9 10 10 10 10 10 11 11

General Government Total 41 45 49 50 51 53 55 55 56 60 62

Public Safety
Fire Department (EMS) 11 22 32 54 60 58 66 72 72 84 84
Fire Marshal 5 6 6 6 7 7 6 6 6 6 6
Health & Code Enforcement 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 6 6 7
Police Department 126 138 151 166 171 183 178 183 191 195 198
Animal Services 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 10 10

Public Safety Total 153 178 202 239 251 261 263 274 284 301 305

Public Works
Public Works Oper. Admin. 2 2 4 4 4 4 1.5 1.75 1.75 1.75 1.75
    Facilities Maintenance 1 1 1 2 2 3 5 6 6 5 5
    Custodial Services 5 5 5 5 6 8 7 5 3 2 2
    Fleet Maintenance 6 6 6 6 8 8 7 7 7 7 7
    Streets & Drainage 18 18 19 20 20 17 17 17 17 17 16
    Public Works ROW 0 1 2 2 3 18 18 15 15 15 9
    Traffic Operations 4 6 6 6 6 6
    PW W&S Administration 5.25
    Lift Stations 6 6 6 9 9 10 7
    Wastewater Treatment 21 22 20.5 21.5 14.5 14.5 14.75 14.75 14.75 14.75 15
    Water Production 6 6 6 6 8 8 10 12 12 15 15
    W&S Distrib. & Collect. 21 23 21 24 24 24 23.5 26.5 27.5 27.5 23
    W&S Construction 12 12 12.5 11.5 11.5 11.5 12.25 13 13 13 10
    Water Meter Service 4 5 5 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7
Public Works & Engr. Admin. 3 3 3 3
    Engineering 15 14 15 15 15 14 13 12 12 12 12
    Capital Projects 11 11 10 12 12 12 12 8 8 9 9

Public Works Total 122 126 127 134 140 158 159 163 162 165 153

 
Community Services
      Community Develop. Admin. 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3

   Planning 5 5 6 6 6 6 5 3 4 4 4
   Permits & Inspections 13 15 16 16 16 11 9 12 13 13 14
Municipal Court 8 10 11 11 11 11 11 10 12 12 12
Communications 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 4

Community Services Total 31 35 37 37 37 32 27 29 34 35 37

Parks & Recreation
Parks & Rec. Admin. 4 4 4 5 5 8 7 8 8 7 7
Parks & Rec. Resource Development 2 1
Parks Maintenance  (East & West) 23 24 30 30 31 19 18 16 16 15 28
Recreation/Rec Center/Natatorium/Aquatic 3 5 4 5 7 9 9 8 8 9 9
Westside Events Center 1 1 2 2 2 2
Athletics 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Special Events 2 2 3 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1
Senior Programs 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2
Recycling 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Parks & Recreation Total 38 41 47 49 52 46 44 41 41 42 54

Other Funds
Economic Development 4 4 4 5 5 6 5 5 5 5 5
Convention & Visitors' Bureau 2 3 3
U. of Houston-Pearland 1 1 1 1 1 1
Municipal Court Security Fund 1 1 1
Municipal Court Juvenile Services 1 1 1

Other Funds 4 4 4 5 5 7 6 6 10 11 11

Grand Total 389.00 429.00 466.00 514.00 536.00 557.00 554.00 568.00 587.00 614.00 622.00

Function/Department
Full-Time Employees

LONG-TERM STAFFING HISTORY 

Page 33 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Amended Proposed

Function/Department
Full-Time Employees

LONG-TERM STAFFING HISTORY 

Population 62,634          79,322          84,500          89,000          92,600          94,100          97,200          99,800          104,100        106,500        110,000        
Taxable Value - in billions 2.756             3.576             4.412             5.390             5.904             6.269             6.332             6.369             6.537             7.002            7.601            

Calls for Service:
   Fire 1,168             1,188             1,202             2,215             2,432             2,416             2,621             2,826             3,369             
   Police - Dispatched 27,443          30,496          32,747          34,865          37,440          35,676          39,815          42,318          47,200          
  EMS 3,941             4,290             5,372             6,029             6,411             6,472             7,055             7,668             7,668             

Miles of:
   Streets* 248 578 758 773 807 807 806 806 839
    Water Mains 296 361 3965 410 420 433 443 448 469
   Sanitary Sewers 279 321 353 360 370 378 380 382 400

Number of Water Bills 192,014        248,848        293,833        318,160        325,201        336,668        350,871        359,716        387,997        

* Prior to 2007, street miles were measured visually. Beginning in Fiscal Year 2007 GIS was used to measure street miles.

Page 34 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Amended Proposed

General Government
City Manager 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

City Secretary 1

Finance 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Human Resources 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Information Systems
  Geographical Information System
Legal 1 1

Project 1 1
Utility Billing/Solid Waste 2 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4

General Government Total 5 5 8 7 7 6 8 8 8 8 8

Public Safety
Fire Department 44 41 25 25 25 25 42 43 43 51 51

Fire Marshal 1 1 2 2 2 2 3

Health & Code Enforcement
Police Department 4 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7
Animal Services 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1

Public Safety Total 48 47 32 33 32 34 52 53 53 61 62

Public Works
Public Works Oper. Admin.
    Facilities Maintenance
    Custodial Services
    Fleet Maintenance
    Streets & Drainage
    Public Works ROW
    Traffic Operations
    PW W&S Administration
    Lift Stations
    Wastewater Treatment
    Water Production
    W&S Distrib. & Collect.
    W&S Construction
    Public Works GIS
    Public Works W&S ROW Mow
    Water Meter Service
Public Works & Engr. Admin.
    Engineering
    Capital Projects 1 1

Public Works Total 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Community Services
      Community Develop. Admin. 1

   Planning 1 1 1 1

   Permits & Inspections 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2

Municipal Court 1 1 1 2 1 1
Communications

Community Services Total 0 0 1 2 2 2 4 4 4 3 3

Parks & Recreation
Parks & Rec. Admin. 1 1

Parks & Rec. Resource Development 1 1

Custodial Services
Facilities Maintenance
Parks Maintenance  (East & West) 2

Media/ROW/WW
Community Center 3 1

Recreation/Rec Center/Natatorium/Aquatics 8 11 12 11 11 31 46 53 57 58 58

Westside Events Center 3 3 1 1 1 1

Athletics 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4

Special Events
Senior Programs 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3
Recycling 2 3 3 4 4 4 3 4 4 4 4

Function/Department
Part-Time Employees

LONG-TERM STAFFING HISTORY 

Page 35 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Amended Proposed

Function/Department
Part-Time Employees

LONG-TERM STAFFING HISTORY 

Parks & Recreation Total 14 18 21 18 18 45 57 66 70 71 71

Other Funds
Economic Development
Convention & Visitors' Bureau 2

U. of Houston-Pearland
Municipal Court Security Fund 1 2
Municipal Court Juvenile Services

Other Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4

Grand Total 67.00 71.00 63.00 60.00 59.00 87.00 121.00 131.00 135.00 144.00 148.00

Page 36 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Recycle Center Operations 

The cost to operate the Stella Roberts Recycling Center in the 2015 fiscal year is 
projected at $227,736 with almost $162K in salary and wages, $30K for waste disposal. 
The City collects 15% of solid waste residential revenue and 18% of commercial 
revenues as general fund franchise fees.  By contract, KPB receives 14% of the 
franchise fees collected from Waste Management. The projected revenue for that 14% 
next fiscal year is $222,845. KPB also receives $5,000 a month from Waste 
Management as part of the contract for services with the city for a total of $60,000 and 
projected payment to KPB for next fiscal year is projected to be $282,845 

The City also provides office space, phone service etc. for KPB at no charge. As of May 
31, 2014 KPB had over $500K in assets.  Some in designated funds but over $100K in 
a non-designated money market, $55K in a building fund and $230K in a contingency 
fund. 

The recycling facility operates Monday-Friday from 8am-5pm and Saturdays 9am-1pm. 
Items collected at the Recycling Center are almost identical as items collected 
curbside. HHW items collected at the Center are available for curbside pick-up for 
Pearland residents.  Brazoria County residents can drop off HHW at no charge and the 
city bills the county on a regular basis for the estimate of those services.  Brazoria 
County residents must have a voucher to dispose of electronics. Other non-residents 
pay for vouchers to be able to dispose of HHW and electronics and those estimates are 
estimated to cover the fees for those services. The contract with KPB expires in 
September 2016 with 120 day notice we can send a notice to renegotiate. 

Residents are paying service fees for curbside pick-up and paying taxes for the 
operations of the Recycling Center while 14% (exceeding the amount of operations of 
the Center) of the service fee fund another organization. Based on the above facts, Staff 
proposes the following: 

1. The City Manager, per their contract, request details of the use of funds KPB receives
from franchise fees and education funding from Waste Management to be included in
their annual report that is due no later than September 1.

EXHIBIT I 

Page 37 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



Memo 
To:  Clay Pearson, City Manager 

From:  Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager 

CC:  Jon Branson, Deputy City Manager 
Claire Bogard, Finance Director 
Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 
Skipper Jones, Assistant Director - Projects 

Date: August 15, 2014 

Re: City Hall Complex Renovations 

The Community Center was built in 1983 and City Hall was constructed in 1986.  A major renovation to 
both buildings, collectively referred to as the City Hall Complex, has been in the planning stage for 
several years.  The need for the renovations is based on the need to replace thirty year old building 
systems, provide additional space for current and future staff, upgrade building security, and reallocate 
space to improve building efficiency.  The end result will be an updated complex that will meet the 
needs of the citizens and staff for the next thirty years.    

Most recently, a $400,000 allocation from Certificates of Obligation was approved to provide the 
funding for needs assessment, adjacencies study, design, cost estimates for decision-making, and 
eventual bidding.  With that allocation, at this stage, we will further develop the cost estimates and 
come back with options within the $4.1 million construction budget.   

30 Year Old Building Systems 

The Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) equipment and other building systems for this 
facility are beyond their expected life and need to be replaced or upgraded during the planned 
renovation prior to a major failure.  A review of this equipment was conducted in 2010 and 2013.  The 
recommendations from the reports are below: 

• Replace badly corroded exterior HVAC piping
• Existing Air Handling Units are past the American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air

Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) service life and need replaced
• HVAC controls and zones need to be expanded and adjusted
• Exterior electrical distribution equipment is past the ASHRAE service life and should be replaced

with new technology
• Replace existing ductwork in Community Center

Page 39 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups

bpennington
Typewritten Text
              EXHIBIT J



• Install a new sprinkler water service and fire suppression system throughout the Community 
Center building  

• Parts are becoming obsolete for the existing elevators.  The recommendation is to upgrade the 
elevators to reduce life-cycle cost to maintain and operate 

All of the recommended building system upgrades or replacements will increase the building efficiency, 
decrease the cost to operate, or are required to meet code. 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

Making City Hall accessible not just to meet current minimum standards, but to bring our public meeting 
spaces into a state for people of all mobility range remains a priority.   Both buildings have several items 
that will need to be brought into compliance with the ADA at a minimum, especially in the restrooms. 

Additional Space 

Current staff is utilizing areas originally designated for storage and the existing layout is very inefficient.  
To accommodate current staffing and storage needs as well as future staffing and storage needs, the 
remaining large rooms in the Community Center need to be built-out and existing space needs to be 
reallocated.   

The idea is to coordinate the most-often used functions needed by the public.  For instance, the Civic 
Center space (which would be lost for recreational programming) would be converted to first floor space 
for the Finance Department.  That Finance space will bring together Finance, Purchasing, and 
Water/Sewer billing.  Bill payments will be across the hall from Community Development so that 
residents and contractors can move from permits issuance to payment more easily.  There is also a 
desire to consolidate cash management and points of payment.  Another idea to coordinate functions is 
to bring the City Secretary and City Manager’s Office to the first floor of City Hall where records and staff 
can be easily accessed by the public.  Moreover, the entire building’s office space does not maximize the 
floor space for productive area.  There are multiple areas for office supplies.  There are hallways in each 
wing of each floor which are not productive space nor conducive for departments to work openly with 
each other.  Furthermore, each office pod is not able to share administrative front counter staff for 
receiving the public or answering calls.  We have been through modern office spaces such as Kelsey-
Seybold where their design emphasizes open collaborations and shared common spaces.   

In addition, two Councilmembers will be added over the next two years.  This will require additional 
space at the Council Chamber dais.  To provide the additional space, multiple ideas are under 
consideration including potentially removing a wall to create more space and provide natural light from 
the west elevation.   

Reallocation of Space  

Current spaces within City Hall and the Community Center were originally built-out for different 
departments and a smaller number of employees.  This has created a situation where space is use 
inefficiently and good departmental adjacencies are lacking.  The space is not flexible for future growth 
or changing departmental needs.  The renovation will provide much more flexible open space that can 

Page 40 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



be reallocated and changed in the future by rearranging modular furniture instead of moving walls, 
electrical, and IT infrastructure.   

Safety and Security 

A Business Security Survey was conducted for the City Hall Complex by the Pearland Police Department 
in 2103.  The recommendations from this report have been included in the project.  These include 
limited access to employee only areas, security cameras, exterior lighting, and upgrades to teller 
windows where cash transactions are handled.  The security upgrades will make use of card access 
readers to limit access to office areas.  An additional idea under consideration is to perhaps eliminate 
the first floor stair case which takes up valuable public lobby space and provides open unaccompanied 
access to office areas.   

Cost Estimate 

Initial cost estimates for the project were based on the architect’s current projects and industry input 
from contractors performing similar work during this time period.  The Architect’s cost estimates 
projected construction costs of $75.00 per square foot (SF).  Staff was able to look at costs for the West 
Side Library build-out (totaling approximately $62.50/SF) and the remodel work done on the Fire and 
EMS building (totaling approximately $69.77/SF) and confirmed the $75.00/SF was a reasonable factor 
to utilize for planning purposes at this early stage.   

The renovation includes the following spaces:   
City Hall First Floor  9,489 SF 
City Hall Second Floor 9,489 SF 
City Hall Third Floor 8,831 SF 
Community Center 23,109 SF 
Total SF   50,918 SF 
 
The estimate that will need to be revised once we move into design of the renovations.  During the 
design we may discover that a particular area does not need much renovation or that a building system 
(HVAC or Electrical) has more needs than currently identified in pre-design study.  To remain within 
budget or potentially reduce the budget, the project can be bid with a base amount of work to take care 
of the most critical areas (HVAC, Electrical, Community Center Buildout and Renovations, Council 
Chambers, City Hall 1st Floor, etc.) with other areas (City Hall 2nd & 3rd floor) as add-alternate bid items.  
The main issue with the piecemeal approach is that as each space modification is made in the future, 
you have to modify the balance of the HVAC system to accommodate the re-arranged spaces.  The 
issues that this approach causes are exemplified by the current HVAC issues in the Community Center.  
The building was originally a library and the HVAC system was not properly modified to accommodate 
the way the building was built-out.  Therefore, the HVAC system is difficult to control causing some 
areas to always be cold and other area not cool enough.  It is also a very expensive system to operate 
based on age and operational setup. 

 

Page 41 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Alternate Solution & Recommendation 

As estimated in the attached July 2, 2014 Thursday Packet, a New City Hall would cost approximately 
$24M.  It would last about thirty years before needing a major building renovation to replace 
mechanical equipment and update the facility.  A $4.85M renovation (including design and construction) 
of the existing 30-year old facility is a much more cost effective use of funds and is the recommended 
solution.   

Page 42 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

Memo 
To: Clay Pearson, City Manager 

From: Trent Epperson, Director of Engineering & Capital Projects 

CC: Jon Branson, Assistant City Manager 
Claire Bogard, Finance Director 

Date: July 1, 2014 

Re: City Hall Complex Renovations 

7/z-/l'f I 

~4.,,,lr:{, 
?-/(1~'-a;i .if. .,.. ?1)-;r,Jr 

'"'fr~~h (~/'O'"eolz. 
The Community Center was built in 1983 and City Hall was constructed in 1986. A major renovation to 

both building, collectively referred to as the City Hall Complex, has been in the planning stage for several 

years. Included in this memo is a history of the renovation project, how the scope has evolved, cost 

estimates, and an alternative cost for a new centrally located facility. 

History 

In 2007, it was planned to move Community Development from the Community Center to the Old Police 

Department building on Veterans Drive after completion of the new Public Safety Building (PSB) . Then 

the Community Center would be renovated to accommodate the growth of departments in City Hall. In 

addition, targeted renovations within City Hall were included. After Hurricane Ike, the renovations were 

scaled back due to the wall, carpet, ceiling, paint, and roofing replacements made after the hurricane. 

After completion of the Public Safety Building in 2010, Municipal Courts moved out of City Hall creating 

additional space in City Hall for Utility Billing and other departments. However, also in 2010, the 

concept for the Old PD building changed to a Fire Administration building instead of Community 

Development. This meant that Community Development would remain in the Community Center 

building and the space would not be available for the growing departments in City Hall. 

Also in 2010, a study of the exiting City Hall Complex prompted adding major HVAC renovations at the 

Community center to the project . 

. ,L. The funds to move forward with this project were originally scheduled in 2010 but have been delayed to 

If'- this point. In the interim, only minor renovations have taken place in the Administration suite and 

Human Resources suite. 

ll Page 

Page 43 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

Original Scope & Cost 

Building Spaces 

The original scope for this project focused on a significant renovation of the Community Development 

area of the Community Center Building. This encompassed approximately 9,000 SF. In addition, 

targeted minor renovations were included for specific areas of City Hall. This included the Projects and 

Utility Billing/IT areas. The concept for these areas was to move some walls and office space to more 

efficiently utilize the existing space. The City Hall areas totaled 3,350 square feet (SF). 

HVAC/Plumbing/Electrica I 

The original scope included upgrades to the HVAC system in the Community Center and modifications to 

the electrical, plumbing, and fire sprinkler systems to meet current code requirements. In 2011, this 

part of the scope was changed to a replacement ofthe HVAC system within the Community Center. 

The original scope included the replacement of the roof at City Hall. After Hurricane Ike the roof was 

replaced and this was removed from the scope. 

The budget was approximately $2.3M for the original scope, which was developed in 2008 and was 

included in the 2009-2013 Capital Improvement Program budget. After Hurricane Ike, much of both 

buildings received new paint and carpet. In addition, the roof on City Hall was replaced. At that time a 

new budget was developed that included a less extensive renovation because of the new roof, carpet, 

and paint. The budget was reduced to $751,000 in the 2011-2015 Capital Improvement Program {CIP) 

budget. This budget was based on approximately $55/SF for a limited renovation of approximately 

12,350 SF. Over the following three budget cycles the scope was expanded to include additional area 

within City Hall, security upgrades, and limited build-out of the Community Center space. This resulted 

in a 2014-2018 CIP Budget of approximately $2.7M. 

* Current Scope & Cost 

Since the original scope was developed, it has been determined that a more comprehensive renovation 

will be more cost effective and serve the needs for the City Hall complex for the next 20+ years. This 

scope addresses building security, HVAC systems, adjacency improvements, workload requirements, and 

improves public meeting spaces. 

Building Spaces 

In addition to the full renovation of the Community Development area of the Community Center 

Building, the existing community center space will be converted to office space. This will conceptually 

21 Page 

Page 44 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



* 

RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

include Utility Billing and Finance, which will consolidate all of the public financial transactions into one 

building. This adds an additional 14,000 SF to the original 9,000SF renovation ofthe Community Center. 

Within City Hall, the space necessary for staff has grown for the departments that will remain. In 

addition, the renovation will include more efficient utilization of space and improve the adjacencies of 

frequently interacting departments. The addition of two City Councilmembers over the next two years 

and re-orientation of the speaker's podium will also require re-allocation of space within the Council 

Chambers. This results in a more extensive renovation to most of the building, which is approximately 

30,000 SF. 

For both buildings, all restrooms will be updated to address any ADA issues, install more efficient 

fixtures, and meet the aesthetics of the newly renovated building. 

Safety/Security 

A Business Security Survey was conducted for the City Hall Complex by the Pearland Police Department 

in 2103. The recommendations from this report have been included in the project. These include 

limited access to employee only areas, security cameras, exterior lighting, and upgrades to teller 

window where cash transactions are handled. 

HVAC, Plumbing, & Electrical 

An assessment of the HVAC system in City Hall was completed since the last building assessment. The 

system is currently past its expected useful life and is therefore recommended for replacement during 

the renovation project. 

Major Scope Changes 

Major changes to the original scope that occurred over several years include: 

• Reduction in scope due to the Hurricane Ike restoration project 

• HVAC upgrades in the Community Center changed to HVAC replacement 

• HVAC system replacement in City Hall 

• Community Development remaining in the Community Center created a need for additional 

space for the other departments in the City Hall Complex 

II 

• Build-out of the community spaces on the Community Center were added to accommodate staff 

growth {added 14,000 SF) 

• Significant security upgrades to both buildings 

• Extensive reallocation of space in City Hall and Council Chamber changes (added 26,650 SF) 

The most recent construction estimate from the architect is $4.0lM for construction only, which 

equates to approximately $75/square foot for the renovation of approximately 53,460SF. We have 

estimated a 10% design fee, 9% contingency, and $75,000 for Fixtures, Furnishings, and Equipment 

(FF&E). The following is a summary ofthe proposed budget: 

3I Page 

Page 45 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



' 

RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

Design (10%) 

Construction ($75/SF) 

FF&E 

Contingency (9%) 

Total 

$ 400,000 

$4,010,000 

$ 75,000 

$ 360,900 

$4,845,900 

New City Hall Alternative - Cost c----
As an alternative to a major renovation of the existing buildings, staff developed a cost estimate for a 

new centralized City Hall. Based on the programming exercise conducted for the renovations and 

projected space requirements, a new City Hall building would need to be approximately 50,000-60,000 

square feet. A reasonable estimate for a new facility that includes all of the necessary site work, parking 

lot, water, sewer, and storm water utilities, landscaping, etc. is $325-350 per square foot. 55,000 SF and 

$325/SF are used for the estimate. 

Approximately seven to ten acres of centrally located land would need to be purchased. The cost of 

centrally located land is widely variable. The tax role value of property without frontage on FM518 or 

other major roadways varies from $30,000 to 40,000 per acre. For property on FM518 or other major 

roadways the tax appraised value is around $125,000 per acre. Typically, the open market value will be 

higher than the appraised value. Ten acres and $80,000 per acre is used for the estimate. 

The design estimate is at 15% of construction cost because of the addition of geotechnical engineering, 

civil engineering, structural engineering, and lengthier construction phase services. FF&E was held 

constant but would probably need to be higher for a new facility and the Contingency was increased to 

15% based on the uncertainty of land cost, unforeseen conditions, and the rapidly rising construction 

costs. The estimate is below: 

Land Acquisition 

Design (15%) 

Construction 

FF&E 

Contingency (15%) 

Total 

Recommendation 

$ 800,000 

$ 2,681,250 

$17,875,000 

$ 75,000 

$ 2,681,250 

$24,112,500 ~ 

Staff recommends moving forward with the more extensive City Hall Complex renovation, which will 

result in a modern and efficient facility that will serve the City of Pearland for the next 20-30 years. The 

recommended project is included in the proposed sale of Certificates of Obligation that will be 

presented to City Council on July 14, 2014. 

41 Page 

Page 46 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



2. The City request $20K from Keep Pearland Beautiful for a portion of the operations at
the Recycling Center for FY15

3. The City sends a notice to renegotiate September 1

4. Convene a group (the group should consist of KPB and City staff at a minimum) to begin
to renegotiate the contract with the goal of a new contract being in place by March 2015
prior to preparation of the FY16 budget

5. New contract should have clear goals and expectations of organization in exchange for
funding, not overly duplicate services paid by user fees and taxes, possibly repurpose
the use of the Recycle Center itself to be used as the hub of operations for KPB

Page 47 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 J

Page 48 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 

ppatke
Rectangle



E
X

H
IB

IT
 J

Page 49 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo     

To: Clay Pearson, City Manager 

From: Eric Wilson, Public Works Director 

CC: Jon Branson, Deputy City Manager 
Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager 
Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Date:  August 18, 2014 

Re: Water Meter System Replacement 

The purpose of this memorandum is to update the status of the recommendation for the 
phased replacement of the current Automated Meter Reading System (AMR) with an 
Advanced Metering Infrastructure System (AMI). 

The metering system is the heart of the City’s water and sanitary sewer enterprise fund 
operations.  The accuracy and reliability of that system is paramount in the accounting 
of water usage and the funding of that operation.   

In approximately 2002-2003 the City began a re-metering program of the older and less 
accurate water meters that were in use at the time.  It was decided to move away from 
the traditional manual read meter system towards the relatively new AMR type metering 
system.  The original implementation of this technology consisted of the replacement of 
approximately 12,000 water meters and the introduction of a meter reading data 
collection system (computer, software, and interface to HTE). As the City grew the 
number of meters/accounts grew as well.  Currently the system has approximately 
35,000 water meters. 

The water meter type that is currently being utilized within the City of Pearland is a 
nutating disk, positive displacement meter.  It consists of two parts, the metering 
chamber and the register/transmitter.  Below is a picture of a meter showing the two 
parts. 

Nutating Disc 
Metering 
Chamber 

Register 
Transmitter 

Page 50 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups

bpennington
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT K



 

The metering chamber works on the principal of positive displacement, meaning that water 
physically moves the disc within the chamber relative to that same volume of water.  The 
movement of the disc physically drives the register which totalizes the flow through the meter.  
The picture below (not representative of current meter) gives an idea of how the meter actually 
works.  
 

 
 
Over time the nutating disc  wears, causing the meter to become less accurate at 
various flow rates, or seize all together.  This causes the under-registering of water, 
leading to a loss of revenue for both the potable water and sanitary sewer funds, as well 
as the unintended increase of lost or unaccounted for water. 
 
The oldest of the current residential meter inventory has been in operation between 10 
and 14 years..  In May 2014 the City removed and tested 190 domestic water meters 
with usages of approximately one million gallons with an age of 10 years or older.  The 
American Water Works Association testing protocols call for tests to be conducted at 3 
water flow rates for domestic meters.  Those flow rates are ¼ gallon per minute (GPM), 
2 GPM, and 15 GPM with register accuracy requirements of low flow 95%-101%, 
medium flow 98.5%-101.5%, and high flow 98.5%-101.5%. 
 
Based on those criteria the sample set returned results of:      

 Low Flow –   54 failed, 136 passed (28% failure rate) 
 Medium Flow –  49 failed, 141 passed (26% failure rate) 
 High Flow –   23 failed, 167 passed (12% failure rate) 

A significant portion of water use in the residential environment is taken in the low and 
medium flow categories; toilets, icemakers, laundry and dishwashers, etc.  Additionally, 
as the plumbing fixtures continue to become more water efficient the amount of water 
that is taken at the lower flows will continue to increase over time resulting in an even 
greater decrease in revenue and accountability.   
 

Page 51 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



 

In addition to the accuracy of this type of meter beginning to diminish over time the 
transmitters (pictured above) are beginning to have battery failure.  This has resulted in 
the drive-by system not being able to receive the consumption data for a significant 
number of customers.  As of July 2014, there are approximately 5,400 meters (15%) 
that are not being read by the drive-by system on a monthly basis.  This requires staff to 
revisit the meter location to perform the reading manually before the water bill can be 
processed.   
 
In fiscal year 2012 the City allocated approximately $576,000 (parts and labor) to initiate 
a register replacement project to improve the functionality of the drive-by system.  The 
starting readability of the system was 75% of the then 33,100 meters. After completion 
of this project, in November 2013, the readability of the system improved to 87% with 
33,900 meters.  Currently, (July 2014) the drive by system has a functional readability of 
85%. As you can see in the subsequent eight months the functionality of the system is 
beginning to once again decline.  At issue are the batteries, which are integral to the 
transmitters.  The batteries have a life expectancy of between 7 and 12 years. With 
approximately 37% of the current residential meter inventory of an age equal to or 
greater than 10 years the failure of the transmitters based on battery life is likely to 
accelerate over the coming years.  This will result in an increase in the number of 
manual reads and the likelihood of a higher number of customer consumption disputes 
and complaints. The chart below shows the ages of the City’s meter inventory 
throughout the system.  Note that currently 37% of the residential meters are 10 years 
of age or older.  By 2019 74% of residential meters will be that age. 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND                                                                            

Aggregate Meter Count ‐ By size and age of meters    

Current  Age  0  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  10  11  12  13  14  15  16  17  18  19  20  21  22  23  24 

Grand Total 
Age in 7 yrs  7  8  9  10  11  12  13  14  15  16  17  18  19  20  21  22  23  24  25  26  27  28  29  30  31 

Meter Size  Number of Meters 

Count of Meter 
Number 

Column 
Labels    

Row Labels  0  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  10  11  12  13  14  15  16  17  18  19  20  21  22  24  25  Grand Total 

1  27  66  42  66  89  79  91  110  140  99  74  156     38  64  35  18  1  1  1     2           1199 

2  95  129  150  68  132  129  285  135  198  188  442  22     2  12  4     8                       1999 

3     6  8  14  2  8  16  16  4  8  12  3                                         97 

4  1  6  2  2  2  2  6  8  2  2  10  2                                         45 

6        2        2  4  2        4                                            14 

8                 1  1                                                        2 

10     2                                                                       2 

1.5   3  1     1  5  3  5  2  20  14  1  23     2  8  2                             90 

5/8 (Small)  774  2560  1674  1544  1661  841  1205  2388  3543  2094  1898  7983  6  1068  1644  12  30  11  2  2  5     8  1  8  30962 

3/4(small)                                   11     3  30                                44 

(blank)           1                    3           1  1                             6 

Grand Total  900  2770  1878  1696  1891  1065  1613  2661  3907  2405  2444  8200  6  1113  1759  54  48  20  3  3  5  2  8  1  8  34460 

Meter 10years and older 

Residential  12722  37% 

Meters 10 years or older in 2019                                     

Residential  22,749  74%                                     

 

Page 52 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



 

Currently it takes approximately two to four man hours to address a single customer 
consumption inquiry.  The process to address a customer’s inquiry is:  1) the customer 
calls Customer Service to make an inquiry, 2) a Customer Service representative 
researches the account, 3) a work order is generated for a Meter Service Technician to 
visit the location, 4) a Meter Service Technician visits the location and investigates 
potential leaks on the customer’s side of the meter, and 5) the Meter Service Technician 
returns the completed work order to Customer Service for additional communications 
with the customer.  The Customer Portal of the AMI system could eliminate a significant 
amount of these inquiries. 
 
The costs associated with the continued replacement of failing registers on a per meter 
basis are: for parts $170.00 (current contract price), and labor costs are between $20-
$40.  The replacement of 5,400 registers would cost approximately $1.1 million.  
Bearing in mind, this would be the replacement of the registers/transmitters that are 
currently inoperable.  If the failure rate stays linear, based on the deterioration over the 
last 8 months there would be a need to replace approximately 100 register/transmitters 
per month.  The recurring monthly cost of this replacement would be $20,000. 
 
Continued register/transmitter replacement does not address the meter accuracy issue. 
Several reports indicate that meter accuracy degradation can have significant impacts 
on the revenue stream in the 15 to 30 year meter life time frame, contingent on water 
quality.  Based on the results obtained from the recent meter testing it appears that the 
accuracy of the system could be on the lower side of this timeline. 
 
The implementation of an AMI system would provide benefits to both the consumer and 
to staff through increased accuracy and a more user friendly customer interface (web 
portal).  The system is comprised of a back bone (communications components), 
transmitting water meters, meter data transceivers, computer and software, interface to 
the financial system, and customer portal. 
 
The back bone of the system includes the data transceiver points, reading acquisition 
computer and software, financial system interface, and once implemented a customer 
portal (not included in this phase).  Because of higher transmitter output power of the 
meter it is no longer necessary to drive by the meter’s location.  The system also has a 
two-way stream of communications between the meter and the transceiver, contributing 
to longer battery life.  The data transceivers periodically “ping” the meter for data and 
the meter responds.  In the event of a communications error between the meter and the 
transceiver, the meter has the ability to store several months worth of consumption data 
in hourly increments within the meter’s register until communications are reestablished.  
The same holds true in the event that the connection is lost between the base computer 
and the transceiver.  The placement of the transceivers will also provide a significant 
amount of overlap, which would minimize the impact to utility billing in the event of a 
transceiver failure. 
 
A promulgation study was conducted to see how many transceivers would be required 
for the system to operate properly within the City of Pearland.  The map below shows 
that the entire City and ETJ would require three transceivers which would have 
sufficient overlap to cover a transceiver outage.  

Page 53 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



 

 

 
 
As part of this project the recommendation is to change the actual type of meter being 
used from the mechanical nutating disc to magnetic flow metering technology.  This 
technology has no moving parts but rather records movement of the water through a 
magnetic field.  The accuracy of this technology is much more precise than any of the 
mechanical flow measuring equipment currently available.  This equates to more 
accurate tracking of consumption by the customer while also assisting the City in 
improving the system’s overall water accountability. 
 
The technology used in the transmitters has also changed over the past ten years.  
Most noteworthy is that of the batteries.  The AMI systems that are being evaluated 
have a ten (10) year 100% replacement warranty for the battery, which equates to the 
meter as the battery is incased within the meter.  Following the original ten year period, 
there is a prorated warranty for the following ten years.  With installation of a new meter 
the warranty is also renewed. 
 
The AMI systems also have the ability to read the meters in real time.  This will greatly 
improve customer service by allowing staff to convey current information to the 
customer without having to send Meter Services staff to the location for a reading.  If 
implemented, the Customer Portal will give the customers the ability to see, also real 
time, their consumption.  This is similar to technology that is being used by many 
electrical power providers, allowing customers to see what their consumption is and 
make adjustment to their usage thus saving money. 
 

Red: meter locations 
Green: very strong signal strength 
Blue: good signal strength 
Yellow: fair signal strength 

Page 54 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



 

For fiscal year 2014 the City budgeted $378,000 towards meter replacement in-house.  
However, because of the need for the Meter Services staff to perform the high volume 
of manual reads, staff are not able to replace a significant number of meters or 
register/transmitters.  With the growth patterns of the City, showing the majority of that 
growth on the far western side, the recommendation is to use the newer system for all 
new development while also working to replace the oldest components of the current 
system.  
 
The fiscal year 2015 budget includes $304,790 for the backbone of the new system with 
$2,625,000 identified annually in the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 2015-
2019, beginning in 2016 through 2019, for a total cost of $10.8 million.  Except for year 
2016, all but $2,625,000 is funded with cash generated by the 1.4 times coverage 
required pursuant to the City’s bond covenants.  The debt on $2.6 million equates to 
approximately $390,000 in annual debt service over a 10-year period, which is more 
than offset by increased revenues and lower expenses. 
 
Over a four or five year period the City could be in a position to be more customer 
oriented, have greater revenues, and greater water accountability with minimal  
issuance of debt for this transition, overall resulting in a better outcome for the water-
sewer fund. 
 
 

 
 
     
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Water-Sewer Bill and Rate Structure Comparisons 

The fiscal year 2015 budget includes a 4.63% water-sewer revenue increase to support 
operations, pay debt service, and to meet reserve and bond covenant requirements.   In 
order to raise the revenues needed of $1.358 million, the staff presented at the August 
4th budget discussion the option where the full amount of the increase was placed on 
the volume side.  Council requested that staff look at a second rate option, putting some 
of the increase on the base charge, as the base charge as not changed at all in many 
years.    

Council also requested bill and rate structure comparisons to other cities for additional 
information.  City staff researched and provided comparisons on five other local cities, 
comparing to the City’s current water-sewer rates and proposed rates:  Option 1 being 
where the rate increase is placed on the volume; Option 2 being where part of the rate 
increase is also placed on the base charge.   The five cities are League City, 
Friendswood, Baytown, Pasadena, and Sugar Land.   

Rate structures and rates are designed around the needs of the system, including size 
and age of the system, infrastructure needs, debt service and covenant requirements. 
Below is a summary of each. 

Rate Structure: 
Base Charges 
Out of the 6 cities, including Pearland, 4 of the cities have adopted a base rate by meter 
size.  The larger the meter, the bigger the base rate. Baytown has adopted a flat rate for 
residential and a rate by meter size for commercial.  The rationale for a base rate by 
meter size is that the flow and consumption of a larger meter is greater, therefore the 
system demands are greater.  

Pearland has a standard rate no matter the size of the meter.   Staff did recommend 
going to a base rate by meter size in conjunction with the move to a conservation block 
structure for volume back in 2006, but did not implement based on Council direction as 
both changes at once resulted in significant increases to commercial customers.   

EXHIBIT L 

Page 56 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



Volume Charges 
Out of the 6 cities, including Pearland, all but one, League City, have adopted a 
conservation block structure for residential, meaning the more you use the more you 
pay.  City of Pasadena has taken this a step further and also implemented a increasing 
block structure on the sewer volume side as well.   

Comparison of Monthly Bills 
Residential based on 5/8” meter – Pearland’s residential bills based on 3 different 
scenario’s is not far off of the average of the cities, however Pearland’s commercial bills 
are low as 4 of the cities have a adopted a base rate by meter size, which directly 
impacts the commercial  customers. 

See attached information. 

Page 57 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Cities
Water Sewer TOTAL

Pearland $11.98 $14.41 $26.39
Pearland Opt 1 $11.98 $14.41 $26.39
Pearland Opt 2 $12.58 $14.99 $27.57
League City $7.13 $13.88 $21.01
Friendswood $15.50 $8.00 $23.50
Baytown* $7.11 $7.11 $17.64
Pasadena $10.50 $8.00 $18.50
Sugar Land $7.98 $12.40 $20.38
* Includes $3.42 per bill
Avg - Opt 1 $21.24
Avg - Opt 2 $21.43

Cities
Water Sewer TOTAL

Pearland $20.77 $23.50 $44.27
Pearland Opt 1 $21.46 $24.25 $45.71
Pearland Opt 2 $21.82 $24.47 $46.29
League City $18.93 $23.12 $42.05
Friendswood $21.30 $27.30 $48.60
Baytown* $26.40 $23.07 $52.89
Pasadena $18.75 $16.25 $35.00
Sugar Land** $12.78 $12.40 $34.58
* Includes $3.42 per bill  ** includes surface water charges
Avg - Opt 1 $43.14
Avg - Opt 2 $43.24

Cities
Water Sewer TOTAL

Pearland $38.38 $32.59 $70.97
Pearland Opt 1 $40.46 $34.09 $74.55
Pearland Opt 2 $40.34 $33.95 $74.29
League City $48.43 $36.98 $85.41
Friendswood $35.80 $25.50 $61.30
Baytown* $61.25 $54.59 $119.26
Pasadena $33.13 $24.75 $57.88
Sugar Land** $18.03 $44.30 $81.13
* Includes $3.42 per bill  ** includes surface water charges
Avg - Opt 1 $79.92
Avg - Opt 2 $79.88

Cities
Water Consumption TOTAL

Pearland $11.98 $101.20 $113.18
Pearland Opt 1 $11.98 $109.25 $121.23
Pearland Opt 2 $12.58 $106.79 $119.07
League City $7.13 $129.80 $136.93
Friendswood $15.50 $84.25 $99.75
Baytown* $7.11 $197.87 $204.98
Pasadena $9.59 $86.00 $95.59
Sugar Land** $7.98 $76.25 $84.23
* Includes $3.42 per bill  ** includes surface water charges
Avg - Opt 1 $123.79
Avg - Opt 2 $123.43

Base Billing 

ALL COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON 5/8" METER SIZE  

ALL COMPARABLE IRRIGATION COSTS BASED ON 5/8" METER SIZE 

10,000 Gallons Water/8,000 Sewer Cap

5,000 Gallons Water/5,000 Gallons Sewer Cap

25,000 Gallons

ALL COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON 5/8" METER SIZE  

ALL COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON 5/8" METER SIZE 
RESIDENTIAL

Page 58 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



ALL COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON METER SIZE - COMMERCIAL - SEWER BASED ON 25,000 
Cities

Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL
Pearland $96.39 $84.10 $180.49 $96.39 $84.10 $180.49 $96.39 $84.10 $180.49 $96.39 $84.10 $180.49
Pearland Opt 1 $103.06 $89.85 $192.91 $103.06 $89.85 $192.91 $103.06 $89.85 $192.91 $103.06 $89.85 $192.91
Pearland Opt 2 $101.36 $87.67 $189.03 $101.36 $87.67 $189.03 $101.36 $87.67 $189.03 $101.36 $87.67 $189.03
League City $136.93 $115.52 $252.45 $136.93 $115.52 $252.45 $136.93 $115.52 $252.45 $136.93 $115.52 $252.45
Friendswood $88.00 $52.50 $140.50 $117.45 $52.50 $169.95 $117.45 $52.50 $169.95 $117.45 $52.50 $169.95
Baytown* $139.36 $140.11 $282.89 $189.18 $189.93 $382.53 $310.15 $310.90 $624.47 $488.04 $488.79 $980.25
Pasadena $76.84 $78.30 $155.14 $120.25 $142.30 $262.55 $230.75 $295.30 $526.05 $393.25 $520.30 $913.55
Sugar Land** $37.23 $84.90 $169.13 $80.79 $159.47 $287.26 $337.02 $597.93 $981.95 $631.76 $1,106.28 $1,785.04
* Includes $3.42 per bill  ** includes surface water charges
Avg - Opt 1 $198.84 $257.94 $457.96 $715.69
Avg - Opt 2 $198.19 $257.30 $457.32 $715.05

ALL COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON METER SIZE - COMMERCIAL - SEWER BASED ON 50,000 
Cities

Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL
Pearland $188.14 $159.85 $347.99 $188.14 $159.85 $347.99 $188.14 $159.85 $347.99 $188.14 $159.85 $347.99
Pearland Opt 1 $202.06 $171.85 $373.91 $202.06 $171.85 $373.91 $202.06 $171.85 $373.91 $202.06 $171.85 $373.91
Pearland Opt 2 $197.86 $166.67 $364.53 $197.86 $166.67 $364.53 $197.86 $166.67 $364.53 $197.86 $166.67 $364.53
League City $284.43 $231.02 $515.45 $284.43 $231.02 $515.45 $284.43 $231.02 $515.45 $284.43 $231.02 $515.45
Friendswood $160.50 $120.00 $280.50 $189.95 $120.00 $309.95 $189.95 $120.00 $309.95 $189.95 $120.00 $309.95
Baytown* $271.61 $273.11 $548.14 $321.43 $322.93 $647.78 $442.40 $443.90 $889.72 $620.29 $621.79 $1,245.50
Pasadena $223.97 $174.03 $398.00 $226.50 $238.03 $464.53 $337.00 $391.03 $728.03 $499.50 $616.03 $1,115.53
Sugar Land** $66.48 $157.40 $317.88 $110.04 $231.97 $436.01 $366.27 $670.43 $1,130.70 $661.01 $1,178.78 $1,933.79
* Includes $3.42 per bill  ** includes surface water charges
Avg - Opt 1 $405.65 $457.94 $657.96 $915.69
Avg - Opt 2 $404.08 $456.38 $656.40 $914.13

ALL COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON METER SIZE - COMMERCIAL - SEWER BASED ON 150,000 
Cities

Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL Water Sewer TOTAL
Pearland $555.14 $462.85 $1,017.99 $555.14 $462.85 $1,017.99 $555.14 $462.85 $1,017.99 $555.14 $462.85 $1,017.99
Pearland Opt 1 $598.06 $499.85 $1,097.91 $598.06 $499.85 $1,097.91 $598.06 $499.85 $1,097.91 $598.06 $499.85 $1,097.91
Pearland Opt 2 $583.86 $482.67 $1,066.53 $583.86 $482.67 $1,066.53 $583.86 $482.67 $1,066.53 $583.86 $482.67 $1,066.53
League City $880.33 $697.64 $1,577.97 $880.33 $697.64 $1,577.97 $880.33 $697.64 $1,577.97 $880.33 $697.64 $1,577.97
Friendswood $450.50 $52.50 $503.00 $479.95 $52.50 $532.45 $479.95 $52.50 $532.45 $479.95 $52.50 $532.45
Baytown* $800.61 $805.11 $1,609.14 $850.43 $854.93 $1,708.78 $971.40 $975.90 $1,950.72 $1,149.29 $1,153.79 $2,306.50
Pasadena $633.09 $568.28 $1,201.37 $676.50 $632.28 $1,308.78 $787.00 $785.28 $1,572.28 $949.50 $1,010.28 $1,959.78
Sugar Land** $183.48 $447.40 $912.88 $227.04 $521.97 $1,031.01 $483.27 $960.43 $1,725.70 $778.01 $1,468.78 $2,528.79
* Includes $3.42 per bill  ** includes surface water charges
Avg - Opt 1 $1,150.38 $1,209.48 $1,409.51 $1,667.23
Avg - Opt 2 $1,145.15 $1,204.25 $1,404.28 $1,662.00

5/8" METER 2" METER 4"METER 6" METER

4"METER

4"METER 6" METER

6" METER

5/8" METER 2" METER

5/8" METER 2" METER

Page 59 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



CURRENT RATES

Meter Size
Water Volume 

per Tier
Water 

Base Rate
Water Rate 

Per Tier
 Sewer 

Base Rate 
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
N/A 0-2,000 $11.98 14.41$     $3.03

2,001-6000 $2.93
6,001-15,000 $3.67

15,001-25,000 $4.40
25,001+ $5.86

Sewer Cap 12,000
Sewer Cons based on WQA Dec, Jan, Feb 

Meter Size
Water Volume 

per Tier
Water 

Base Rate

Water 
Rate/1000 

gls
 Sewer 

Base Rate 
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
N/A 0-2,000 $11.98 $3.67 14.41$     $3.03

Outer City Rates @ 1.5% for all users

Proposed Rates Option 1

Meter Size
Water Volume 

per Tier
Water 

Base Rate
Water Rate 

Per Tier
 Sewer 

Base Rate 
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
N/A 0-2,000 $11.98 14.41$     $3.28

2,001-6000 $3.16
6,001-15,000 $3.96

15,001-25,000 $4.75
25,001+ $6.33

Sewer Cap 12,000
Sewer Cons based on WQA Dec, Jan, Feb 

Proposed Rates Option 2

Meter Size
Water Volume 

per Tier
Water 

Base Rate
Water Rate 

Per Tier
 Sewer 

Base Rate 
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
N/A 0-2,000 $12.58 14.99$     $3.16

2,001-6000 $3.08
6,001-15,000 $3.86

15,001-25,000 $4.63
25,001+ $6.17

Sewer Cap 12,000
Sewer Cons based on WQA Dec, Jan, Feb 

Commercial

Residential

City of Pearland

Residential

Residential

Page 60 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Meter Size
Water Volume 

Base Water Base Rate
Water Rate/ 

1,000
Sewer Base 

Rate
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
N/A 0-3000 $7.13 $5.90 $13.88 $4.62

Sewer Cap 11,000   
 

Residential /Commercial

City of League City 

Page 61 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Meter Size Water Base Rate Water Volume Base Water Rate/ 1,000 Sewer Base Rate
Sewer Cons/ 1,000 

gl
Up to 1" $15.50 0-3,000 $0.00 $15.00 $2.10
1 1/2" $27.90 3,001-10,000 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10
2" $44.95 10,001-25,000 $3.15 $15.00 $2.10
3" $44.95 25,000+ $3.40 $15.00 $2.10
4" $44.95 $15.00 $2.10
6" $44.95 $15.00 $2.10

Meter Size Water Base Rate Water Volume Base Water Rate/ 1,000 Sewer Base Rate
Sewer Cons/ 1,000 

gl
5/8" $15.50 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10
1" $21.70 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10
1 1/2" $27.90 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10
2" $44.95 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10

3" $44.95 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10
4" $44.95 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10
6" $44.95 $2.90 $15.00 $2.10

Commercial

City of Friendswood

Residential 

Page 62 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Meter Size
Water Base 

Rate
Water Volume 

Base
Water Rate/ 

1,000
Sewer Base 

Rate
Sewer 

Volume
 Sewer 

Rate/1,000
Outside City 

Water
Outside Water 
Volume Base

Outside 
Rate/1,000

Outside City 
Sewer

Outside City 
Sewer Volume

Outside City 
Sewer/1,000

N/A $7.11 $7.11  $14.23 $14.23  
0-2,000 $2.43 0-2000 $2.46 0-2,000 $3.65 0-2000 $3.68

2,001-6,000 $5.29 2,001-12,000 $5.32 2,001-6,000 $7.93 2,001-12,000 $7.99
6,001-12,000 $6.34 12,000+ no charge 6,001-12,000 $9.53 12,000+ no charge
12.001-18,000 $8.26  12.001-18,000 $12.38  

18,001+ $10.73   18,001+ $16.10   

 

Meter Size
Water Base 

Rate
Water Volume 

Base
Water Rate/ 

1,000
Sewer Base 

Rate
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
Outside City 
Water Base

Outside 
Rate/1,000

Outside City 
Sewer

Outside City 
Sewer/1,000

5/8" $7.11 $5.29 $7.11 $5.32 $14.23  $7.93 $14.23 $7.99
3/4" $10.68 $5.29 $10.68 $5.32 $21.34 $7.93 $21.34 $7.99
1" $17.79 $5.29 $17.79 $5.32 $35.59 $7.93 $35.59 $7.99
1 1/2" $35.59 $5.29 $35.59 $5.32 $71.16 $7.93 $71.16 $7.99

2" $56.93 $5.29 $56.93 $5.32 $113.85 $7.93 $113.85 $7.99
3" $113.85 $5.29 $113.85 $5.32 $227.70 $7.93 $227.70 $7.99
4" $177.90 $5.29 $177.90 $5.32 $355.79 $7.93 $355.79 $7.99

6" $355.79 $5.29 $355.79 $5.32 $711.58 $7.93 $711.58 $7.99
8" $569.26 $5.29 $569.26 $5.32 $1,138.53 $7.93 $1,138.53 $7.99
10' $818.33 $5.29 $818.33 $5.32 $1,636.63 $7.93 $1,636.63 $7.99

Customer charged $3.42 per bill isssued inside City
Customer charged $6.84 per bill isssued outside City

City of Baytown

Residential

Commercial

Page 63 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Meter Size
Base Water 

Rate
Water Volume 

Base
Water Rate/ 

1,000
 Base Sewer 

Rate
Sewer Volume 

Base

Sewer 
Rate/ 
1,000

Size
1" $16.25 0-2,000 $10.50 $22.50 0-2,000 $8.00
1 1/2" $39.00 2,001-8,000 $2.75 $54.00 2,001-7,000 $2.75
2" $52.00 8,001-10,000 $3.00 $72.00 7,001-9,000 $3.00
3" $104.00 10.001-12,000 $3.25 $144.00 9,000+ $3.50
4" $162.50 12,001-30,000 $4.00 $225.00
6" $325.00 30,000+ $4.50 $450.00
6" Turbine $455.00 $630.00

8" $520.00 $720.00

8" Turbine $780.00 $1,080.00 NA
10" HP Protectus $910.00 $1,260.00 NA
10 " Protectus $1,235.00 $1,710.00 NA

Meter Size
Base Water 

Rate
Water Volume 

Base
Water Rate/ 

1,000
 Base Sewer 

Rate
Sewer Volume 

Base

Sewer
Rate/ 
1,000

Size
1" $16.25 0-2,000 $8.59 $22.50 0-2,000 $8.00

1 1/2" $39.00 2,001-10,000 $2.75 $54.00 2,001-10,000 $3.00
2" $52.00 10,001-20,000 $3.00 $72.00 10,001-18,000 $3.25
3" $104.00 20.001-30,000 $3.25 $144.00 18,001-26,000 $3.50
4" $162.50 31,000+ $4.50 $225.00 26,001-34,000 $4.00
6" $325.00 $450.00 34,001-44,000 $4.15
6" Turbine $455.00 $630.00 44,000+ $4.15
8" $520.00 $720.00
8" Turbine $780.00 $1,080.00
10" HP Protectus $910.00 $1,260.00
10 " Protectus $1,235.00 $1,710.00

For sewer take 95% off water consumption then charge by tiers

Commercial

City of Pasadena

Residential

Page 64 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Meter Size Water Base Rate
Water Volume 

Base
Water Rate/ 

1,000 Sewer Base Rate
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
5/8" $7.98 $12.40 $2.90
1" $12.46 0-3,000 $0.90 $20.11
1.5" $33.11 3,001-10,000 $1.05 $55.75
2" $51.54 10,001-20,000 $1.43 $86.97
3" $111.26 20,000+ $1.64 $188.54
4" $307.77 $525.43
6" $602.51 $1,033.78
8" $752.65 $1,291.80

Meter Size Water Base Rate
Water Volume 

Base
Water Rate/ 

1,000 Sewer Base Rate
Sewer Cons/ 

1,000 gl
5/8" $7.98 $1.17 $12.40 $2.90
1" $12.46 $20.11
1.5" $33.11 $55.75
2" $51.54 $86.97

3" $111.26 $188.54
4" $307.77 $525.43
6" $602.51 $1,033.78

8" $752.65 $1,291.80

Surface Water $1.88/1,000 gls for all users

City of Sugar Land

Residential

Commercial

Page 65 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Clay Pearson, City Manager 
CC: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Bobby Pennington, Budget Officer 

Date: August 20, 2014 

Re: Question regarding LEED - Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design 

The acronym” LEED” stands for Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design. 
LEED or “Green Building”, requirements seek to amplify the positive and mitigate the 
negative impacts on both the local environment and the people inhabiting these facilities 
throughout the life cycle of a building.  LEED requirements affect planning, design, 
construction, and operations of a facility.  The LEED features focus on: energy use, 
water use, indoor environmental quality, material selection, material source, and the 
building's effects on its surrounding environment.    

LEED Certification: 
The building certification system is administered by the U.S. Green Building Council 
(USGBC) which creates the certification criteria and evaluates project compliance with 
those requirements.  LEED requirements act as the framework for decision-making 
during planning, design and construction, rewarding best practices, design innovation 
with a goal of recognizing exemplary building projects with progressive levels of 
certification: Certified, Silver, Gold and Platinum.  Certification levels are based on 
accumulation of points awarded by reviewers working for USGBC.  The point 
accumulation system is based on credit categories containing specific prerequisites 
projects must satisfy and a variety of credits projects can pursue to earn the additional 
points necessary to achieve any certification level above Certified.  All levels above 
Certified require the owner to provide third party commissioning and reporting. Typical 
point requirements for each certification threshold:  

Platinum 80+ points 
Gold 60-79 points 
Silver 50-59 points 
Certified 40-49 points 

LEED Costs: 
Although there is very little cost associated with registering a project for LEED 
certification (approximately $250 to register the project) there are costs associated with 

EXHIBIT M 

Page 66 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups



the additional professional services for planning and design.  Additionally there are 
costs associated with site selection, construction administration and third party 
commissioning of the completed project.  Designers are reluctant to put a specific dollar 
value on the exact costs.  Project experience and industry estimates indicate that the 
cost to obtain certified level is approximately 3 to 5% of the construction costs.  This 
factor increases approximately 3 to 5% for each additional level sought.  In addition, 
third party commissioning, required for any tier above Certified, runs approximately 
$1.00 per building square foot and this cost increases with the level of certification 
sought.  There are also costs involved with construction administration beginning 
around 3% for Certified and topping out, typically around 7 or 8% for Platinum.  
Additionally, certification levels above Certified require increasing percentages of 
renewable energy source in the contract for electrical power service to the building. 
Another hard to define cost is the Operation & Maintenance (O&M) costs due to more 
sophisticated electrical and mechanical systems.  These systems are more efficient and 
should lower the operating cost of the building but experience has shown that it takes a 
higher degree of specialized Automated Building Systems expertise to realize and 
maintain those efficiencies.  Below is a general example of the additional costs for 
Platinum Certified LEED for a 7,000 SF building estimated at $250/SF without LEED 
Certification. 

Base Construction Cost  $2,100,000 
Additional Construction Cost (20%) $   420,000 
Additional Construction Admin cost (8%)  $   168,000 
Design Cost   $   210,000 
Additional Design Cost (20%)  $     42,000 
Commissioning ($1.00/SF)  $       7,000 
Total Cost  $2,947,000 

Incremental LEED Cost:  $637,000 or a 27.5% increase over the total project cost 
without LEED Certification 

Delores Fenwick Nature Center 
The Delores Fenwick Nature Center was planned to be a LEED Platinum Certified 
building to continue the educational aspects of the John Hargrove Environmental 
Center, which includes the Recycle Center, the Southwest Environmental Center 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, and future nature trails.  The facility would house Keep 
Pearland Beautiful and serve as an education facility for the public on “green” building 
construction, recycling, energy reuse, and sustainable practices.   

Grasscrete is a pervious pavement product that allows grass to grow up between the 
structural elements of the paving surface.  This reduces storm water runoff rates and 
the heat island effect of pavement.  It is often used in emergency access lanes or 
overflow parking areas to retain the aesthetics of a grass landscaped area.  It was 
included in the Nature Center project parking lot because it will qualify for LEED points 
for stormwater runoff and reduced heat island.  See following pictures: 

Page 67 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Page 68 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 



Memo
To: Clay Pearson, City Manager 

From: Eric Wilson, Director of Public Works 

CC: Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager 
Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Date:  August 20, 2014 

Re: Vacuum Truck Update 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an update to the business case for the 
purchase of a vacuum truck to be used by the Sanitary Sewer Collections Division of 
Public Works. 

The City has five collection basins that transport sewerage to the City’s five water 
reclamation facilities: Far Northwest, Southdown, Barry Rose, Longwood, and SWEC. 
Currently staff maintains over 405 miles of sanitary sewer collection lines ranging in size 
from 6” to 54”.  As a part of the sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program 
staff currently uses the vacuum truck on a daily basis to clean the system in addition to 
assisting the closed circuit television (CCTV) van in the evaluation and data collection 
for the sanitary sewer system.  The vacuum truck currently in service was purchased in 
2003.

The current work process for the vacuum truck operations consist of the following. 
 Clearing of collection system blockages (sewer backups) 
 Collection system line cleaning 
 Debris removal from the collection system 
 Assisting the CCTV operations  

o Keeping the lines free of flows that impede the operations of the CCTV
system

Page 69 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups

bpennington
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT N

cpearson
Highlight



o Pulling the CCTV equipment when necessary
  Remove floating debris from the wet wells of sanitary lift stations 

Currently the maintenance program staff are cleaning and televising approximately 
10,000 (2 miles) linear feet of collection system per month. The team currently spends 
approximately 70% of their time on these cleaning data collection functions.  The other 
30% of the time are spent working on collection system blockages or lift station 
cleaning. 

One of the features of the new vacuum truck will be the Jet Eye System, closed circuit 
TV that is integrated into the vacuum truck.  The Jet Eye System will allow staff to 
televise and record the conditions of the sanitary sewer lines as they are being cleaned, 
without the use of a separate piece of equipment.  With the Jet Eye System staff will be 
able to assess the condition of the sanitary sewer collection infrastructure while 
performing system maintenance.  The collection of this data in a more expeditious 
manner will improve the performance of the group by increasing the captured footage 
from 10,000 linear feet per month to 10,000 or more linear feet per week.

With the new Vacuum truck staff will establish a more efficient and systematic program 
to jet clean, debris removal and CCTV image acquisition of the City’s sanitary sewer 
system.  Part of this new program will be to develop a schedule for this City wide 
maintenance to be completed.  Additionally, the rapid acquisition of data will allow staff 
to better determine the needs for rehabilitation, point repairs or replacement of various 
sections of the collection system.  The goal of this improved program will be to have the 
entire collection system inspected and cleaned at minimum once every five years. 

Page 70 Aug 20, 2014 Budget Follow-ups 


	Agenda
	Consent Agenda - A Minutes
	July 28, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 

	Consent Agenda - B Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2014-05
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 2014-05
	Exhibit "A" Legal Description
	Exhibit "B" Location Map
	Exhibit "C" Site Plan
	Exhibit "D" Notice of Public Hearing
	Recommendation Letter
	Staff Report
	Land Use Plan
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Future Land Use Map
	Abutter Map
	Abutter List
	Applicant Packet 

	Consent Agenda - C Bid For Water and Wastewater Services
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-106
	Bid Tabulation

	Consent Agenda - D June 2014 Quarterly Investment Report
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-105
	Quarterly Investment Report

	Untitled
	Consent Agenda - E  Interlocal Agreement with Pearland ISD for School Resource Officer
	Agenda Requests
	Resolution R2014-107 
	Interlocal Agreement PISD SRO

	Consent Agenda - F Parks and Recreation Programing Standards
	Agenda Request
	Resolution R2014-101
	Thursday Packet Memo
	Standards of Care

	New Business No. 1 Sale of Undeveloped Property between So. Wayside and Mykawa to HCTRA 
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-108
	Exhibit "A" Warranty Deed 
	Exhibit "B" Easement
	Exhibit "C" Survey Maps
	Exhibit " D" Map

	New Business No. 2 Interlocal Agreement with Brazoria County for Certain Road Overlay Projects
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-102
	Brazoria County Road & Bridge Interlocal Agreement FY2015

	New Business No. 3 Adopting Chapter 4, Alcohol Beverages of the City of Pearland Code of Ordinance
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 1502
	Thursday - Memo to Council 
	Location Verification Permit

	New Business No. 4  Appointment to Parks Board Appointment
	Agenda Request
	Bethany Earl
	Cheryl Weaver 6.25.14
	Jessica Fernandez 7.9.14
	Kevin Lucas 7.8.14
	Paul Needham 6.30.14
	Sean Ennis 7.8.14
	Ted Mittica 6.16.14
	Valerie Marvin 7.14.14

	New Business No. 5 Zone Chage 2014-02Z Modern Green-Ivy District PD
	1. Agenda Request
	2. 2014-2Z Modern Green Ordinance No. 2000M-117
	PD Document
	Appendix A Site Description
	AppendixB Design Plan
	AppendixC Regulating Plans
	AppendixD Building Examples
	AppendixE Streetscape Examples
	AppendixF Signage Examples
	AppendixG Open Space Examples
	3. 2014-2Z  Modern Green JPH Staff Report
	4. Vicinity and Zoning Map
	5. Future Land Use Map
	6. Notification Map
	7. Notification List
	8. Aerial Map
	9. Spectrum District Map
	10. Lower Kirby Urban Center Regulating Plan
	11. 2014-2Z, Modern Green, PZ Recommendation Letter
	12. Modern Green Public Comments as of July 21, 2014
	13. Applicant Packet

	New Business No. 6 FY2015 Budget and Multi-Year Plan
	Agenda Request- Budget Discussion – FY 14-15 Proposed Budget
	Powerpoint
	Updates and Clarifications to Proposed Budget
	A - GF Further Reductions
	B - Take-home fleet expansion
	C - PD Staffing allocations
	D - CD Development fee schedule
	E - Knapp Senior Center membership
	F - Misc Questions and comments
	G - GF Financial comparison before restructuring
	H - Long-term Staffing History by dept
	I - Recycling center operations
	J - City Hall complex renovations
	K - Meter replacement
	L - Water sewer bill and rate structure comparisons
	M - LEED designation background
	N - Vacuum Truck update





